
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE AGENDA 
 
Town Hall Council Chambers  August 21, 2017 at 6:00pm  
30 South Main Street  Town Council Monthly Meeting  
Weaverville, N.C. 28787 
 

 

1. Call to Order.......................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Sherrill 
   
2. Approval / Adjustments to the Agenda................................................................................................................. Mayor Sherrill 
   
3. Approval of Minutes......................................................................................................................................................... 

A. June 27, 2017 Joint Meeting of Town Council & Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
B. July 17, 2017 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
C. July 25, 2017 Town Council Workshop Minutes:  Table of Uses Community Input 

Mayor Sherrill 
 

   
4. Employee Recognition.................................................................................................................................................... Town Manager 
   
5. General Public Comments  
   
6. Public Hearing on Voluntary Annexation Petition submitted by Shakamar, LLC and R-2 

Zoning Request................................................................................................................................................................... 
Town Attorney 

   
7. Public Hearing on Code Amendments Related to the Table of Uses.................................................... Town Planner 
   
8. Consent Agenda.................................................................................................................................................................. 

Motion to approve the consent agenda 
Mayor Sherrill 
 

 A. FY 16-17 Tax Collector’s Settlement Report; Approval of Bond Amount for Tax Collector; 
FY 17-18 Tax Order for Collection 
Town Manager recommends approval of report, bond amount and order for collection. 

 

 B. Local Government Employees Retirement System (LGERS) Contract  
Town Manager recommends approval of contract. 

 

 C. Budget Amendment: Re-appropriation for McGill Water Study Fee 
Town Manager recommends approval of the budget amendment. 

 

 D. Final Plat Approval and Waterline Acceptance for Lillie Farm Cove 
Planning Director recommends approval of the final plat; Public Works Director recommends 
acceptance of the waterlines, setting of $8,500 in repair guarantee and authorization for staff to 
finalize documents for recording 

 

   

9. Discussion & Action Items:  

 A. Engineering Report on Water Plant Expansion............................................................................................ Keith Webb 
 B. Board Appointments................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Sherrill 
 C. Update on Lake Louise Community Center....................................................................................................... Town Manager 
 D. Discussion of Eller Cove Watershed Easement Proceeds......................................................................... Town Manager 
    
10. Town Manager's Report ..................................................................................................................................................  Town Manager 

   

11. Adjournment.......................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Sherrill 

 

1



 
Page 1 of 4  June 27, 2017  

Joint Special Called Meeting with Town Council  
And Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Minutes 

 
Special Called Joint Meeting of Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board  

Tuesday, June 27, 2017 - Fire Department Training Room  
 
 

The Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special-
called Joint meeting on Tuesday, June 27, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. in the Fire Department Training Room 
within Weaverville Fire Department at 3 Monticello Road, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Town Council members present: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Doug Dearth, Councilman Patrick 
Fitzsimmons, Councilman Doug Jackson and Councilman Andrew Nagle. Vice-Mayor/Councilman 
Penley was absent. 

Planning and Zoning Board members present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Vice Chairman Gary Burge 
Board Members Catherine Cordell and Peter Stanz. Board Member Osborne and Alternate Board 
Member Chase was absent. 

Staff present: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Planner James Eller and Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake  

1. Call to Order. 
 

Mayor Dottie Sherrill called the meeting to order on behalf of the Town Council at 6:03 pm. 
Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order on behalf of the Planning and Zoning Board at 
6:03 pm. 
 
2. Presentation and Discussion Related to the Proposed Tables of Uses 

 
Town Planner James Eller opened the discussion with an overview of how the Planning and Zoning 
Board got to this point. Hence, the vast majority of the Town of Weaverville’s zoning code was written 
in 1978, it is long overdue for an upgrade. On November 1, 2016, Town Council tasked the Planning 
and Zoning Board and staff with working on the concept of implementing a Table of Uses within the 
Town’s Zoning Ordinance.  After 11 meetings, consisting of approximately 18 hours of time spent in 
session, and many hours of discussion and deliberation. The Town Attorney has reviewed the concept 
documents, and the Planning and Zoning Board is now proud to present Town Council with a set of 
draft concept documents consisting of the Tables of Uses, Definitions, and Additional Standards. Town 
Planner James Eller noted that this does not in any way shape or form change the Zoning Map of the 
Town of Weaverville. However, the pyramid structure will be gone with this document and will 

2



 
Page 2 of 4  June 27, 2017  

Joint Special Called Meeting with Town Council  
And Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

 

transition over into the table. The Number of Uses currently identified by the Town’s code is 55 and 
the Number of Uses identified in the language proposed is 78. As for the Number of Uses with 
additional standards is 3 and the Number of Uses with additional standards in the proposed document 
is 22. The Planning and Zoning Board’s ultimate hope is that this concept will be incorporated into 
amendments to the Town Code that will serve to make the zoning provisions within the Town easier to 
understand, implement and abide by to ensure that the zoning provisions are both scripted and enforced 
in accordance with North Carolina law. The proposed Table of Uses, Definitions and Additional 
Standards are attached to these minutes.   
 
Chairman Doug Theroux started off by complimenting the staff for all their hard work and time spent 
on putting together this document. They did an exceptional job. Mr. Theroux explained that the 
Planning and Zoning Board spent a lot of time going through all of the definitions to determine if there 
was anything missing or needing to be explained further.  
 
Councilman Doug Dearth mentioned that he knows the importance and effort needed to establish this 
document since he used to be the Chairman several years ago. He thinks that the Planning and Zoning 
Board and staff did a wonderful job working together to create this document. Mr. Dearth believes 
moving away from the pyramid to a Table of Uses will be a great advantage for the Town and that 
there are other refinements in this document that will be very useful as well. He just wants to 
understand the rationale used by the Planning and Zoning Board to get to this point.  
 
Vice Chairman Burge said that a lot of it was somewhat arbitrary when deciding a use for one category 
and not in a similar category for a different zoning district. The thing that puzzled them constantly was 
the difference between the downtown business district C-1 and all the other commercial districts in C-
2.  
 
Councilman Nagle wondered how the Zoning Map will stay the same when Creekside Village is 
labeled I-1, but it is residential. The same goes for the AB Emblem property which is labeled I-1, but it 
has an apartment house on the property and there isn’t a special use permit. If the Town of Weaverville 
has more properties like this, then we might need to decide to change the zoning or the map to reflect 
it. Mr. Nagle also believes some owners might become upset with changing from the pyramid to a 
Table of Uses because it will be restricting the use of their property. 
 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that there are presently ten legacy special use permits in the 
Town of Weaverville and at this time there are two conditional zoning districts which should be 
reflected on the Zoning map. Mr. Eller explained that if a non-conforming use is established in a 
district, that use can be continued forever unless it is discontinued for a period of 9 months, then it 
goes back to the original zoning district.  
 
Vice Chairman Burge discussed that maybe they should compare the existing zoning map with the 
comprehensive plan and see if there are any discrepancies and then fix those areas on the map.   
 
Councilman Dearth covered the Table of Uses to see the rationale used by the Planning and Zoning 
Board in making the decisions for the following: family care homes and child care homes (6 or fewer) 
in all residential districts except R-12, recreational vehicle park campgrounds in C-2 and I-1, boarding 

3



 
Page 3 of 4  June 27, 2017  

Joint Special Called Meeting with Town Council  
And Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

 

houses in R-1, ATMs in R-12, child care center (6 or more) in C-2 and I-1 and cemeteries in industrial 
districts unless it is a church.  
 
Town Planner James Eller explained that the reason for the family care homes in R-1 is because they 
have specific statutory limitations placed upon them and by North Carolina law are required to be 
treated as single family homes. As for the recreational vehicle park campgrounds and a manufactured 
home park, we could note the use and prohibit across the board. However, if it is not listed it doesn’t 
mean you can’t do it, you just have to go to the next closest thing. 
 
Chairman Theroux also stated the reason a recreational vehicle park campground is listed down as a 
conditional zoning district is so that if someone comes in and asks if it’s available. It is listed, but we 
don’t have to approve it. The reason for the ATMs in R-12 is because of the high density of traffic in 
that area.  
 
Board member Catherine Cordell discussed that the reasoning for listing boarding houses is, as 
explained in the definition, a bed and breakfast can be deemed one and the Town has a bed and 
breakfast right off Main street. As for child care in the industrial district is because some companies 
want to have child care available for their workers and for instance, if Sonopress breaks up into 15 
different facilities, one of them could be child care.  
 
Councilman Fitzsimmons had some questions about stacking lanes, temporary vendors and the 
definition for stealth wireless telecommunication facilities stating it shall be mounted so that it doesn’t 
extend beyond the facility to which it is mounted, but usually they are mounted on the roof.   
 
Board member Cordell explained stacking lanes as when there are more than two cars in the drive thru 
waiting to get to the window and some examples of temporary vendors as someone who sells 
Christmas trees around Christmas, a firework stand or someone who sells fish.  Also, some examples 
of the stealth wireless telecommunication facility not mounted to roofs are the big white cross out on 
Flat Creek, a flagpole on Hendersonville road and the pine tree behind the VA hospital.    
 
 
3. Discussion Related to a Proposed Tables of Uses Meeting Schedule 

 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that he had put some dates together for a Proposed Table of Uses 
meeting schedule but it was not finalized and could be adjusted depending on Town Council and 
Planning and Zoning Boards schedules. As of now, it consisted of the following dates: Tuesday, July 
11 – Joint Meeting between Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board; Monday, July 17 – Town 
Council sets a Public Hearing for the Proposed Table of Uses for Monday August 21; Tuesday, July 25 
and August 8 – Town Council Workshop/ Community Information Meeting I & II; Monday, August 
21 – Public Hearing related to the Proposed Table of Uses.  
 
Councilman Jackson discussed that maybe the previously scheduled workshop could be cancelled, 
since we just finished the budget and we have covered the Table of Uses.  
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to cancel the July 11 meeting . Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the 
motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 

4



 
Page 4 of 4  June 27, 2017  

Joint Special Called Meeting with Town Council  
And Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 

 

Councilman Nagle suggested that sometime between the August 8 Town Council Workshop/ 
Community Information Meeting II and the Public Hearing on August 21, the Planning and Zoning 
Board and Town Council have a joint meeting to cover the Table of Uses. 

Town Council and the Planning and Zoning Board decided to schedule a joint meeting for Tuesday, 
August 15 at Town Hall at 6:00pm, and determined that all the other scheduled Table of Uses meetings 
be held at the Town Hall at 6:00pm as well.  The Table of Uses meeting schedule is attached.  
 
Adjournment 
 
Councilman Fitzsimmons made the motion to adjourn.  Councilman Jackson seconded and all voted to 
adjourn the Council’s meeting at 7:12 p.m. 

 

____________________________ 
        Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 
     Doug Theroux, Chairman 
    Planning and Zoning Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
 Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

5



 

 
Page 1 of 5  July 17, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

            MINUTES 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MONDAY, JULY 17, 2017 

 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, July 17, 2017, 
at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North 
Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, 
Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley was 
absent. 

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Police Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer 
Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Tony Laughter. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilman Nagle seconded 
and all voted in favor of the motion. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to approve the minutes from June 1, 2017 Town Council Budget 
Workshop and June 19, 2017 Town Council Meeting as presented. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded 
the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. Employee Recognition 
Town Manager Selena Coffey recognized Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson for completing the Eller 
Cove Watershed Easement. She had been working on this easement for quite some time and spent a lot 
of time going back and forth with the State of North Carolina and Southern Appalachian Conservancy. 
Ms. Coffey also, recognized all the Department Heads and their employees for all their hard work on the 
4th of July. Most of them worked around 16 to 17 hours. 
 

5. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows:  
 
Linda Tull, 35 Wildwood Avenue, commented on the Monticello Commons CZD application, an action 
item on the agenda. She urges Town Council to stand by their thoughts and actions made at January's 
Town Council meeting. She believes the Town is in dire need of office space, medical offices and 
public service spaces, and this property is the only commercial land left in the Town limits. Not to 
mention building these 264 units is going to increase the traffic in this area.  
 

6



 

 
Page 2 of 5  July 17, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

Bernard Koester, 37 Lakeshore Drive, commented on the CZD application as well. He believes that the 
Town is developing too fast and may need to take a step back.  The biggest thing these developers need 
is water, but the Town’s biggest concern now and in the future is water too. He thinks that if we are 
going to use this property, it should be for businesses instead of apartments. He encourages Town 
Council to keep zoning regulations the way they are.  
 
Jim Proffitt yielded his time to Thomas Veasey. 
 
Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Drive, thanked the Mayor and Town Council for all their hard work they 
do for the Town. As a member of the LLPA, Mr. Veasey announced his run for Town Council. He plans 
to keep the Zoning regulations the way they are, develop more parks and recreation areas and help 
expand the Water Treatment Plant. He hopes to protect the small town community for the citizens here 
now, and in the future.  
 
Jerry Cody, 35 Wildwood Avenue, spoke about the Monticello Commons action item too. He thanked 
the Planning and Zoning Board for their foresight into this CZD application and their negative 
recommendation. They were adamant about following the planning growth and he urges Town Council 
to follow their recommendation of turning down this application. 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
Motion to approve the consent agenda 
A. Road Closure Ordinances for: Art in Autumn, North Buncombe Homecoming Parade and 

Christmas Parade 
Town Manager recommends approval of these road closure ordinances. 

B. Quarterly Departmental Reports 
Quarterly reports are for information only. 

C. Amended Tax Release and Refund 
Tax Collector recommends approval of an amendment to the tax release and refund approved June 
2017. 

D. Receipt of Certificate of Sufficiency of Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, Annexation 
Petition & Setting Public Hearing on Annexation and Initial Zoning Request R-2 
Town Manager recommends scheduling a public hearing for August 21, 2017 at 6pm. 

 
Councilman Dearth moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded 
the motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
 
A. NCLM Report on Comprehensive Review of Weaverville Police Department 

Police Chief Greg Stephens introduced Chief Tom Anderson from the North Carolina League of 
Municipalities. Chief Anderson retired from the City of Statesville as the Chief of Police and has over 
26 years in Law Enforcement. He is the North Carolina League of Municipalities Law Enforcement 
Risk Manager and works with many agencies across North Carolina to analyze insurance and liability 
concerns impacting law enforcement agencies and develop a risk management review to assist in the 
identification and mitigation of high liability activities found in police operations. 

7



 

 
Page 3 of 5  July 17, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

Chief Tom Anderson recognized the Weaverville Police Department for their impressive work in law 
enforcement and for completing the risk review process. The risk review process included about 40 high 
risk categories such as use of force, supervisory training, and pursuits. He is proud to say that the 
Weaverville Police Department exceeded many of these categories expectations. Chief Anderson 
personally thanked Police Chief Stephens and Detective Alan Wyatt for their commitment through this 
process. Chief Stephens displayed strong leadership in proactively reaching out to them to go through 
this risk review process and Detective Wyatt was a key person that he worked with during this two 
month process.  Chief Anderson mentioned this is a 3 year evaluation cycle and he will have to come 
back to see any changes that have been made after this cycle. Chief Tom Anderson then presented 
Police Chief Greg Stephens with a plaque from the North Carolina League of Municipalities.     

B. Ordinance Authorized by the “Brunch Bill” 

Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that the North Carolina Legislature has recently amended 
North Carolina law by enacting N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-205.3, which permits a municipality to adopt an 
ordinance allowing for the sale of malt beverages, unfortified wine, fortified wine, and mixed beverages 
beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Sunday pursuant to the licensed premises’ permit issued under N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § 18B-1001. This proposed ordinance would be effective immediately upon adoption by Town 
Council with a 2/3 affirmative vote. 

Councilman Dearth made a motion to adopt the proposed ordinance . Councilman Fitzsimmons 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 4-0. 

C. Monticello Commons CZD Application 

Town Planner James Eller mentioned that there is no action needed by Town Council on this item 
tonight. However, he did want to update Council on things that have occurred to make sure everybody 
was on the same page on how this process may go forward. Mr. Eller stated back on July 6th the 
Planning and Zoning Board established a unanimous negative recommendation related to the proposed 
conditional zoning district at Monticello Commons. The applicant must submit in writing to the Town 
Clerk a request for a public hearing before Town Council within thirty days of being notified of the 
negative recommendation. If no such request is filed within thirty days then their application is 
considered denied. Attached is the unanimous negative recommendation that the Planning and Zoning 
Board submitted to Town Council.  

Councilman Jackson wondered why they would be bringing this back to Town Council when nothing 
has been changed since January when Town Council had a unanimous negative opinion. Councilman 
Jackson doesn’t like seeing this waste of Council and staff time when no changes were made. 

Councilman Andrew Nagle asked when the deadline was for them to file.  

Town Planner James Eller stated it is their right as an applicant to proceed as they see fit. They received 
staffs input and decided they didn’t want to change anything. They were given notice in writing on July 
10, so 30 days from them receiving notice of the negative recommendation. 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson reminded Town Council that this originally came before them earlier 
this year as a water allocation request. There were comments made at that time but no action was taken 
by Town Council.  

D. Set Public Hearing and Announce Community Info/Workshop Dates for Tables of Uses 

8



 

 
Page 4 of 5  July 17, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

Town Planner James Eller mentioned that the decision was made to transition over to a Table of Uses in 
the zoning code by Town Council on November 1, 2016. The reason for this transition is the language in 
the code basically says unless a specific use is noted in the code, it is not allowed. However, in North 
Carolina the Zoning Administrator is to find the next closest use established by the zoning code. The 
Number of Uses currently identified by the Town’s code is 55 and the Number of Uses identified in the 
language proposed is 78. The Number of Uses presently with additional standards is 3 and the Number 
of Uses with additional standards in the proposed document is 22. This will transition the Town from 
special use permits to conditional zoning districts and will not change the Zoning Map of Weaverville. 
The Planning and Zoning Board was proud to present to Town Council a set of draft concept 
documents, which was the result of 11 meetings, consisting of approximately 18 hours of time spent in 
session, and many hours of discussion and deliberation. Lastly, Mr. Eller announced some dates coming 
up related to the proposed Table of Uses: Tuesday July 25-Town Council Workshop/ Community 
Information Meeting I, Tuesday August 8- Town Council Workshop/ Community Information Meeting 
II, August 15-Joint Meeting of Town Council/ Planning and Zoning Board to consider any changes that 
can be made from Public comment, and asked Town Council to schedule a Public Hearing for August 
21. 

Councilman Dearth made a motion to schedule a Public Hearing on the proposed Table of Uses for 
Monday, August 21 at 6 p.m. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council.  

E. Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Easement Transfer 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey discussed that the Town of Weaverville has completed the Eller Cove 
Watershed Conservation Easement and after signing numerous documents, received a wire transfer of 
$550,000 on July 13, 2017.  This easement through Southern Appalachian Highland Conservancy and 
the North Carolina Clean Water and Management Trust Fund is for the preservation of over 300 acres 
up on Eller Cove. Ms. Coffey asked Town Council where they would like these monies to be held or 
what purpose they would like for them to be used.   
 
Councilman Jackson mentioned that it had been discussed that these monies would go to rehabilitating 
the community center. 
 
Councilman Dearth stated that he thinks this might be a little premature since the community center 
project is being studied by a workgroup but Town Council hasn’t seen any studies as of yet. Also, he 
mentioned that there was the issue of expanding the Water Treatment Plant and we might want to keep 
in mind that there is some residual responsibility to the Eller Cove property because the reservoir is still 
there with no utilities. 
 
Town Council asked that these funds be kept out of the operating budget for right now, until they have 
more time to figure what best to use these monies on.  
 

8. Town Manager’s Report 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s Report to Council including that 18 individuals 
will be graduating from the Citizens Academy on July 20, the Town of Weaverville’s audit has begun 
this week and we will have another visit from the auditors on July 25 and 26, OSHA has requested a 

9



 

 
Page 5 of 5  July 17, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

consultation visit on July 19, the water study will be completed by the end of this week, and she thanked 
Fire Chief Ted Williams for getting the clock letters painted.  
 
Mayor Dottie Sherrill, personally thanked Town Manager Selena Coffey and the Department Heads for 
their hard work in making the 4th of July a success. There were over four thousand people who attended 
and Joe Lasher Jr. headlined the event.  
 

9. Closed Session 
 
Councilman Jackson  made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) 
to consult with an attorney, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(5) to establish or instruct staff concerning 
the position to be taken on the acquisition of real property and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to 
consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, of 
conditions of employment of a public officer or employee, or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge 
or grievance . Councilman Dearth seconded the motion and by a unanimous vote Council entered into 
closed session. 
 
[CLOSED SESSION] 
 
Councilman Dearth  made the motion to exit closed session. Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted 
unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

10. Adjournment 
Councilman Dearth made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all voted to 
adjourn the Council’s meeting at 7:45 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

10



 

MINUTES 

Town of Weaverville            Community Information Meeting/ 
State of North Carolina             Town Council Workshop I 

       Tuesday, July 25, 2017 
 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Community Information Meeting/ Town 
Council Workshop on Tuesday, July 25, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville 
Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, 
Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth and Councilman Andrew Nagle. Councilman 
Patrick Fitzsimmons was absent. 

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Town Planner James Eller and Public Works Director Tony Laughter. 

1. Call to Order  
Mayor Dottie Sherrill called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. 

 
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilman Penley made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilman Jackson seconded 
and all voted in favor of the motion. 

3. Consideration of bids received for 2017 or newer septic tanker truck – Action to award contract 
to lowest responsible bidder. 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that bids for a septic tanker truck with 4,000 gallon aluminum 
tank and vacuum pump system were advertised and received. The bids were opened on July 20, 2017 and 
evaluated. The lowest responsive bid was from Satellite Industries, Inc. with a bid amount of 
$140,476.50. Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan asked if a backup camera could be added and the 
company can do that for $800.00. Even with the add-on the bid is well under the amount that Town 
Council approved for the purchase of this equipment. The cost of this equipment puts this within the 
formal bid range which requires Town Council approval.  Public Work’s Director Tony Laughter and 
Town Manager Selena Coffey recommend the award of this purchase contract to Satellite Industries, Inc.  
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson asked for a motion to declare Satellite Industries, Inc. the lowest 
responsive bidder for the septic tanker truck and award the contract to them for a total of $141,276.50, 
which includes the cost of the backup camera add-on.  
 
Councilman Penley made a statement before his motion that even though this action item was scheduled 
in the budget this year, Town Council should refrain from doing any other action items like this in future 
workshops.   
 
Councilman Penley made a motion to declare Satellite Industries, Inc. the lowest responsive bidder for 
the septic tanker truck and award the contract to them for a total of $141,276.50. Councilman Dearth 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council.  
 
4. Discussion and Community Input Related to a Proposed Table of Uses. 

 

11



a. Review of Concept Documents (if needed) 
Town Planner James Eller opened the discussion with an overview of how the Planning and Zoning 
Board got to this point. In November 2016, Town Council tasked the Planning and Zoning Board and 
staff with working on the concept of implementing a Table of Uses within the Town’s Zoning Code.  
After 11 meetings, consisting of approximately 18 hours of time spent in session, and many hours of 
discussion and deliberation. The Town’s Attorney has reviewed the documents for consistency and 
compliance with state statute then submitted them to the Planning and Zoning Board for their 
consideration. As of June, the Planning and Zoning Board passed along these documents, along with 
their unanimous decision to Town Council to review for passage. Mr. Eller noted the intent of this 
document is two-fold. There is language in the ordinance that states if a use isn’t specifically set out 
as permitted in a zoning district then that use shall be prohibited. This is not permissible under North 
Carolina law as related to land use regulations. The Zoning Administrator is charged with finding the 
next closest use to the proposal brought forth and applying those regulations to the referred zoning 
district.  These documents increase the number of uses specified by the code from 55 to 78 and will 
transition the Town away from special use permits, which is a quasi-judicial action, to conditional 
zoning districts, which is a legislative action. The importance of transitioning to the Table of Use 
means it will go to the Planning and Zoning Board for review then pass along to Town Council with 
their recommendation. At this point, Town Council has the capacity to act in any way they see fit. 
Town Planner James Eller stated that in no way shape or form will this change the current Zoning 
map. It will simply eliminate the pyramid structure and increase the number of uses permitted with 
additional standards from 3 to 22.  
 
b. Questions and Comments from the Public 
Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Drive, thanked the Planning and Zoning Board for their hard work in 
developing these documents and thanked Town Council for finally getting rid of the Unified Housing 
District.   
 
Bernard Koesters, 37 Lakeshore Drive, thanked the Town Council for allowing him to have some 
input on this matter and thanked the committee for all their hard work. Mr. Koester wondered how 
this would currently impact his zoning district, since the document is changing the acreage to two and 
he only has 1.82 acres and had the right to have animals and fowl on his property. He wanted to know 
how they came up with two acres.  
Town Planner James Eller stated that any non-conforming uses that may arise from this new 
legislation would be grandfathered in for eternity, providing that you don’t cease the use for a period 
of nine months. As for the reason for choosing two acres is because of the density of the town. It is 
vastly different now then it was in 1978 when the code was originally created.  

  
c. Questions and Discussion by Council 
Councilman Andrew Nagle mentioned that the intention of this transition is not to hurt anybody or 
devalue anybody’s property, but to allow the Planning and Zoning Board more oversight of 
ordinances allowed in the Town.  
  
Councilman Doug Jackson stated that another intention is to update the Town’s zoning code, since 
some these ordinances have been around for decades and are no longer applicable.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that a large amount of time has been spent working on 
these concept documents. These concept documents will be a package that can be given to individuals 
showing the definitions, a table of where these defined uses can be placed and the regulations applied 
to them. The documents will then need to be folded into the ordinances.  
 
Chairman Doug Theroux spoke that this document is going to be a major plus for the Town of 
Weaverville. He complimented staff on all their hard work in putting together these concept 
documents.   
 

12



d. Direction to Staff/Planning and Zoning Board 
Planning and Zoning Board was asked to review the actual ordinance amendments necessary to 
incorporate the concept documents into the Code at its August 1, 2017. The remaining meeting 
schedule was reviewed. 

 
5. Adjournment. 
Councilman Penley made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 7:10 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

 

13



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 21, 2017   

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Voluntary Annexation Petition submitted by 
Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, and R-2 Zoning Request 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney/Town Planner 

ATTACHMENTS: Certificate of Sufficiency and Voluntary Annexation Petition for 
Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, and Initial Zoning Request of R-2 

 Survey of Property to be Annexed and Area map 
    Proposed Annexation Ordinance 
    Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation on R-2 Zoning 
    Proposed Ordinance Establishing Initial R-2 Zoning  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

In May of 2017 the Town received a voluntary annexation petition for a +/-8 acre parcel of land 
under single ownership wishing to come into the Town’s municipal boundaries. Town Council 
received this petition and the Town Clerk has certified that it is both sufficient and proper for 
annexation of contiguous property under NCGS 160A-31. Town Council also asked that the Planning 
and Zoning Board review the initial zoning request and that review was conducted on July 6, 2017, 
with a favorable recommendation concerning the request R-2 zoning being unanimously approved. 

There are no vested rights on this project. Staff understands that as soon as the property is annexed 
a major subdivision application for 21 single family homes, to be known as Amblers Chase, will be 
submitted consistently with R-2 zoning regulations. 

Tonight's public hearing has been properly advertised and is being held in order to provide 
Weaverville citizens with an opportunity to address Town Council with any questions regarding the 
desirability of this property being annexed into the Town of Weaverville.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

At the conclusion of the public hearing should Town Council wish to annex this property the 
following motion could be considered:  

I move that the proposed annexation ordinance and ordinance establishing an initial R-2 
zoning classification be adopted. 

14



2415



202516



212617



222718



232819



242920



253021



22



S
ha

ka
m

ar
 A

nn
ex

at
io

n 
A

re
a

So
ur

ce
s:

 E
sr

i, 
H

ER
E

, D
eL

or
m

e,
 U

SG
S,

 I
nt

er
m

ap
, I

N
C

R
EM

EN
T 

P,
 N

R
C

an
,

Es
ri 

Ja
pa

n,
 M

E
TI

, E
sr

i C
hi

na
 (H

on
g 

Ko
ng

), 
Es

ri 
Ko

re
a,

 E
sr

i (
Th

ai
la

nd
),

Ju
ne

 1
3,

 2
01

7
0

0.
07

5
0.

15
0.

03
75

m
i

0
0.

1
0.

2
0.

05
km

1:
4,

51
4

193123



3224



263325



273426



3527



AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE CORPORATE LIMITS  
OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA –  

SHAKAMAR INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC 
7.78 ACRES ON REEMS CREEK ROAD - ANNEXATION #2017-1 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31 to 
annex the area described below; and 

 WHEREAS, Town Council directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of 
the petition; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public 
hearing on the question of annexation and initial zoning was held in the Town’s Council 
Chambers at Town Hall on August 21, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., after due notice by publication on 
August 9, 2017;  

 WHEREAS, at the public hearing the residents of Weaverville were given an 
opportunity to be heard on any questions regarding the desirability of the annexation; 

 WHEREAS, Town Council finds that the petition is valid and the public health, 
safety, and welfare of the inhabitants of the Town and the area proposed for annexation 
will best be served by annexation of the area proposed; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville, North Carolina, that: 

1. By virtue of the authority granted by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31, the property shown 
on that survey recorded in Plat Book 180 at Page 4, Buncombe County Registry, and 
further identified as Buncombe County Parcel Identification Number 9742-94-9526, 
is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Weaverville. Said territory shall be 
subject to the municipal taxes according to N.C. Gen. Sta. § 160A-58.10. 

2. From and after the effective date of this annexation ordinance the area so annexed 
shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances, and regulations in force in the Town of 
Weaverville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts 
of the Town of Weaverville.  

3. The Mayor of the Town of Weaverville shall cause to be recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Buncombe County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in 
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Paragraph 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. Such a map 
shall also be delivered to the Buncombe County Board of Elections as required by 
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-288.1. 

4. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately. 

28



 
ADOPTED THIS the 21st day of August, 2017, by a ____ out of ____ vote. 

 

_____________________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________________________  ____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney 
 

29



ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING INITIAL ZONING DESIGNATION OF R-2 
FOR NEWLY ANNEXED PROPERTY ON REEMS CREEK ROAD 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has annexed that certain property on Reems 
Creek Road shown on that survey recorded in Plat Book 180 at Page 4, Buncombe County 
Registry, into the Town's municipal boundaries; 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has the authority pursuant to Part 3 of Article 

19 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes to adopt zoning regulations, to 
establish zoning districts and to classify property within its jurisdiction according to zoning 
district, and to amend said regulations and district classifications from time to time in the 
interest of the public health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the newly annexed area consists of a +/-7.78 acre parcel of unimproved 
land and an R-2 zoning designation has been requested; 

WHEREAS, this amendment is consistent with the Town's Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan, is reasonable and in the public interest; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF WEAVERVILLE THAT: 

The Zoning Map of the Town of Weaverville is hereby, amended to establish an R-2 zoning 
classification for that certain real property identified and described in the Annexation 
Ordinance adopted by Town Council on August 21, 2017. 

THIS the 21st day of August, 2017. 
 

_______________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL , Mayor 

 

 
ATTESTED BY:      

 
 

________________________________________________  
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  
 

30



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, August 21, 2017 

Subject: Public Hearing on the Code Amendments related to the Table of Uses 

Presenter:   Planning Director/Town Attorney 

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 4 and 36 with Code 
Amendments attached as Exhibit A 
Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation 
Table Showing Recommended Changes and Public Comments 

Description: 

As Council is aware, on November 1, 2016 staff was instructed to begin work on the creation and 
implementation of a table of uses within the code of ordinances. The documents you are being 
asked to consider are the result of months of staff time and over twenty hours of deliberation 
before the Planning and Zoning Board. Town Council and the Planning and Zoning Board have 
encouraged community input throughout the entire review process by holding special meetings for 
community input on July 25 and August 8th and a joint meeting with the Planning and Zoning Board 
held on August 15th.  

In addition to the legally required noticing of the public hearing, signs advertising the three 
aforementioned meetings and tonight’s public hearing were placed around town in areas of high 
visibility. 

On August 1, 2017, the Planning and Zoning Board completed an exhausted review of the proposed 
Code Amendments and unanimously recommended adoption of these amendments with only slight 
changes. Those changes, staff recommended changes and the changes reviewed and discussed by 
Town Council on August 15th, have been incorporated into the Code Amendments which are 
attached as Exhibit A. All of these changes are also noted on the attached Table which reflects a 
page-by-page summary of the recommended changes and comments received. 

The public hearing tonight is being held to allow the residents of Weaverville to express any 
concerns about the adoption of these amendments. 

 Action Requested: 

Staff is requesting that Council adopt the proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 4 and Chapter 36 
of Weaverville's Code of Ordinances which table of uses, definitions, uses allowed with additional 
standards and all requisite revisions of code related to same. This action is permissible at the close 
of the public hearing.   

Town Council could also give direction to staff concerning any revisions to the proposed code 
amendments and direct that the matter be placed back on Town Council's agenda at a subsequent 
meeting. 

31



ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 4 AND 36 
OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to amend certain provisions of its Code; 

WHEREAS, said amendments have been reviewed by the Town’s Planning and 
Zoning Board which found that the amendments are consistent with the Town’s 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, reasonable and in the public’s interest; 

WHEREAS, in addition to community input meetings held by Town Council on July 
25, 2017, and August 8, 2017, Town Council held a public hearing on these amendments on 
August 21, 2017, after proper notice of same, and at this public hearing the residents of the 
Town of Weaverville were given an opportunity to express any concerns about the 
adoption of these amendments; 

WHEREAS, Town Council finds that these amendments are consistent with the 
Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, are reasonable and shall serve the public’s interest; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville, North Carolina, as follows: 

1. The Code amendments which attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein
as if fully set forth (with all deleted language is shown with strikethroughs and all
added language is shown as underlined), are hereby adopted.

2. It is the intention of Town Council that the sections and paragraphs of this Ordinance
and the Exhibit A attached hereto are severable and if any section or paragraph shall
be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of
any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not
affect any of the remaining paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since they would
have been enacted by Town Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of
any such unconstitutional or invalid section or paragraph.

3. These amendments shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED THIS the 21st day of August, 2017, by a vote of ___ in favor and ___ against.

_____________________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________________________ ____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney 

32



Chapter 4 - ANIMALS[1] 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 4-3. - Roosters. 

Roosters are expressly prohibited within the corporate limits of the town, unless they are kept confined 
on a bona fide farm, as described in G.S. § 153A-340.  

( Ord. of 2-23-2015, § 1 ) 

Secs. 4-4—4-35. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE II. - LIVESTOCK[2] 

Footnotes: 

--- (2) --- 

State Law reference— Fences and stock law, G.S. 68-1 et seq.; livestock brands, G.S. 80-45 et seq.; 
livestock diseases, G.S. 106-388 et seq.  

Sec. 4-36. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Livestock means any horse, mule, pony, cow, sheep, goat or other hoofed animal, excluding swine. 

Nuisance means an odor, noise, unsanitary or unhealthy condition that annoys or disturbs any person 
in the possession of his property, rendering the ordinary use or occupation of his property uncomfortable 
or inconvenient to him, and interferes with the enjoyment of life or property.  

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § I; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § I) 

Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2. 

 Sec. 4-37. - Location of lot, enclosure, stable or barn. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to locate, construct, reconstruct, alter, maintain or use any enclosure,
stable or barn, which shall be less than 200 feet from any commercial building or dwelling house for
the purpose of keeping, maintaining, lodging or feeding of any livestock.

(b) No person shall locate, construct, place or move any enclosure, stable or barn, within 200 feet of any
street or sidewalk.

EXHIBIT A

33

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=748101&datasource=ordbank


(c) Every part of a lot set aside for the use of cattle, goat, horses or other livestock shall be enclosed or
fenced so as to retain such animals at all times.

(d) Before any person shall locate, erect or place any enclosure, or barn on any lot within the corporate
limits of the town, he shall make application to the town zoning officer and obtain all required building
permits.

(e) Enclosures (including fences), stables or barns used for housing cattle, goats, horses or other livestock
shall comply with all local zoning ordinances and be constructed and maintained in conformity with the
requirements of the zoning officer of the town and the county health department.

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § II; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § II) 

Sec. 4-38. - Lots or enclosures.  

(a) Every person owning, using or maintaining any stall, stable, barn, yard, lot or pasture within the
corporate limits of the town where any horse, mule, pony, cow, goat, sheep, miniature pig or other
livestock (excluding unpermitted swine) shall maintain such place in a clean and sanitary condition in
order to protect the public health. Stables used for housing cattle, goats, horses, or other livestock
shall comply with all local zoning ordinances and be constructed and maintained in conformity with the
requirements of the county health department.

(b) All enclosures, barns, stables and all pens regardless of design or number of animals shall be cleaned
and sprayed with suitable disinfectants and insecticides as needed but shall be cleaned and sprayed
with a suitable disinfectant at least once every seven days, and during the fly breeding season be
sprayed with suitable insecticide at least once every two days.

(c) All enclosures, barns, stables and all pens of whatever design in which animals are kept must be high
and thoroughly drained so that no pools of water can accumulate.

(d) No enclosure, barn, stable or pen of whatever design shall be maintained in such a manner as to
create offensive odors or a breeding place for flies.

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § III; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § III)  

Sec. 4-39. - Keeping livestock; maximum number permitted – Agriculture-Commercial. 

(a) Except as provided in section 4-42, it shall be unlawful for any person to maintain, keep or house any
swine within the corporate limits of the town.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain, keep or house any cattle, goat, horse or other livestock 
on a lot containing less than one acre. Any lots used to maintain livestock shall be a minimum of five
acres of usable livestock area which excludes all impervious surfaces, and on such lot no more than
two animals per acre shall be allowed.

(c) No more than one head of cattle, goat, horse or other livestock may be kept on a lot containing less
than three acres.

(d) On lots containing more than three acres, cattle, goats, horses or other livestock may be kept in
numbers not to exceed one head per 1½ acre, total acreage to be in one tract and not divided into
smaller lots by fences or other means.

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § IV; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § IV)  

Sec. 4-40. -Keeping livestock; maximum number permitted – Agriculture-Neighborhood 

34



(a) Except as provided in section 4-42, it shall be unlawful for any person to maintain, keep or house
any swine within the corporate limits of the town. 

(b) Any lots used to maintain livestock shall be a minimum of two acres of usable livestock area which
excludes all impervious surfaces, and on such lot no more than one animal per acre shall be 
allowed. 

Sec. 4-404-44. - Effect upon existing livestock. 

(a) All persons keeping or maintaining any cattle, goat, horse, or other livestock within the corporate limits
of the town shall within six months of January 18, 1981, comply with all provisions of this article.

(b) All persons keeping or maintaining any cattle, goat, horse or other livestock within any area that
becomes subject to the provisions of this article through the extension of the corporate limits of the
town by annexation, shall within six months of the effective date of the annexation comply with all
provisions of this article.

Section 36-19 shall be applicable for existing uses that are made non-compliant by virtue of
amendments to the Town Code or upon annexation into the Town of Weaverville. 

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § V; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § V)  

Sec. 4-41. - Violations; notices. 

The county health department or the town upon complaint or otherwise may, after investigation, notify 
the owner of the property or the person keeping any livestock who has violated any health requirement or 
provision of this article, to remove or relocate the stable, enclosure, lot or barn so that it shall conform to 
the applicable health regulations and requirements of this article. Such property owner or livestock keeper 
shall thereupon comply or vacate and remove animals within five days after the receipt of such notice. 
Failure to comply within five days shall be a violation of this article.  

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § VI; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § VI)  

Sec. 4-42. - Potbellied pigs. 

(a) The keeping and raising of registered purebred miniature Vietnamese potbellied pigs (Susscrofa
bittatus) and other similar registered purebred miniature pigs as household pets shall be allowed in all
residential districts, subject to the limitations placed thereon by the following subsections of this
section. The term "registered" shall mean registered with a nationally recognized miniature pig
association.

(b) Miniature pigs shall not exceed a weight of 100 pounds. Only one such miniature pig shall be kept in
any household. Such pigs shall be kept in a restrained area at all times and shall not be permitted to
run at large. No such miniature pig shall be allowed outside of the premises of its owner except on a
leash or duly restrained in a vehicle.

(c) The breeding and raising of miniature pigs shall not be allowed within the town. Permitted pigs shall
be neutered or spayed or when any such pig shall give birth to piglets, the mother pig and all piglets
shall be immediately removed from the town for weaning and raising.

(d) Any person wishing to keep and maintain a miniature pig within the town shall fill out and present an
application form to the town clerk stating the applicant's name and address, the location where such

35



miniature pig will be kept and the registration information on such pig. The application form shall be 
accompanied by a registration fee of $25.00 payable to the town. The name, address and location of 
all owners of miniature pigs shall be kept on file by the town clerk at all times.  

(e) All miniature pigs kept as household pets must be routinely vaccinated against infections and all
communicable diseases common to such animals. The owner of any miniature pig growing tusks must
have the same surgically removed by a veterinarian.

(f) Any outside area occupied by a miniature pig shall be regularly sanitized and kept free of waste. No
such area shall be allowed to become muddy or unsanitary.

(g) Section 4-37(a) and (b), dealing with required distances for barns and stables from commercial
buildings or dwelling houses, shall not be applicable to miniature pigs and such pigs may be kept in or
near a dwelling house. Section 4-37(c), (d) and (c) shall be applicable to miniature pigs under this
section in the event the owner of such pig shall erect any outdoor facility for such miniature pig.

(h) The provisions of section 4-38, pertaining to lots or enclosures, shall be applicable to the keeping of
miniature pigs under this section.

(i) The provisions of section 4-39(b), (c) and (d), pertaining to acreage required for certain livestock, shall
not be applicable to miniature pigs.

(j) The provisions of section 4-40, effect upon existing livestock, section 4-41, violations; notices, and the
provisions of section 4-43, penalty, shall be applicable to the keeping of miniature pigs under this
section.

(Ord. of 6-15-1992, § XI)  

Sec. 4-43. - Penalty.  

(a) Each violation of any of the provisions of this article by an owner/custodian of the livestock or potbellied
pig shall subject such owner/custodian to a citation for a violation of this article and a charge of a
misdemeanor in accordance with G.S. 14-4.

(b) In addition to charging the owner/custodian with misdemeanor violations pursuant to G.S. 14-4, the
town may seek an injunction or order of abatement against any owner/custodian who is an habitual
offender of this article in accordance with the provisions of G.S. 160A-175. An owner/custodian who
violates the provisions of this article five times within a one-year period shall be considered an habitual
offender.

(Ord. of 1-18-1981, § VII; Ord. of 6-15-1992, § VII; Ord. of 2-21-2011) 

Secs. 4-44—4-75. - Reserved.  

36



Chapter 36 - ZONING  

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 36-1. - Authority and enactment clause. 

In pursuance of the authority conferred by General Statutes, particularly G.S. 160A-381 through 160A-
392 393, and for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity or the 
general welfare of the town; securing safety from fire, panic, and other damages; preventing the 
overcrowding of land; avoiding undue concentration of population; facilitating the adequate provisions of 
transportation, water, sewerage, schools, and other public requirements; conserving the value of buildings 
and encouraging the most appropriate use of land and buildings throughout the town, all in accordance with 
a comprehensive plan, the town council of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, does ordain and amend 
Chapter 36 of this Code to enact into law the following articles and sections.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. I) 

Sec. 36-2. - Short title. 

This chapter shall be known and may be cited as "the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina."  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. II) 

Sec. 36-3. - Jurisdiction. 

The provisions of this chapter shall apply within the corporate limits of the Town of Weaverville as 
heretofore established and as shown on the map entitled "Official Zoning Map of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina," as revised December, 1988 from time to time by the town council. Said map and all 
explanatory matters thereon accompanies and is hereby made a part of this chapter; it shall be on file in 
the office of the town clerk and in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Buncombe County. The town is 
exempt from the provisions and requirements of this chapter.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. III; Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 18 ) 

Sec. 36-4. - Interpretation of certain words and terms. 

Words defined herein or in section 36-197 shall have the meanings as set forth in this chapter. Words 
not defined herein shall have the meaning as set forth in Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary the Merriam-
Webster Dictionary, latest revisal. For the purpose of this chapter, certain words or terms used herein shall 
have meanings as follows:  

(1) Words used in the present tense include the future tense. Words used in the singular include the
plural, and words used in the plural include the singular.

(2) The word "shall" is always mandatory and the word "may" is discretionary.

(3) The word "lot" includes the word "plot" or "parcel."

(4) The word "building" includes the word "structure."

37

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


(5) The word "person" includes any firm, unincorporated association, organization, partnership, trust, 
company, or corporation, as well as an individual, male or female individual, partnership, firm, 
association, joint venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate, commission, board, public 
or private institution, utility, cooperative, interstate body, the State of North Carolina and its 
agencies and political subdivisions, or other legal entity.  

(6) The word "used" or "occupied," as applied to any land or building, shall be construed to include 
the words "intended, arranged or designed to be used or occupied.," unless specifically provided 
otherwise.  

(7) The word "map," "zoning map," or "Weaverville Zoning Map" shall mean the "Official Zoning Map 
of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina", unless the word "map" is clearly used in another 
context.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. IV, § 17-400)  

Sec. 36-5. - Definition of specific words and terms.  

Abandoned sign or sign structure. A sign or sign structure which was erected on property in conjunction 
with a particular use which use has been discontinued for a period of 90 days or more or a sign of which 
the contents pertains to a time, event or purpose which no longer applies or which event has already 
occurred.  

Accessory – retail.  The on-premises, retail sale of products directly to customers, where the retail use 
is incidental to a primary use conducted upon the same premises. Examples include but are not limited to 
the following: a furniture manufacturer who operates a show floor for the display and sales of furniture 
produced by the manufacturer; a bicycle manufacturer who operates a floor for the display and sales of 
bicycles produced by the manufacturer; a brewery or distillery who operates a tasting room for the sampling 
and sales of beer or spirituous liquors produced within the brewery or distillery. 

Accessory structure. A structure that is clearly incidental to and customarily found in connection with 
a principal building or use, is subordinate to and serves a principal building or use and is subordinate in 
area, extent and purpose to the principal building or principal use served. An accessory structure must be 
on the lot on which the principal use is located.  

Accessory use. A use of a nature customarily subordinate or incidental to, and located on the same 
lot as, the principal use of any structure or property.  

Administrative decision. Decisions made in the implementation, administration, or enforcement of 
development regulations that involve the determination of facts and the application of objective standards 
set forth in this chapter or development regulations adopted by the town. These are sometimes referred to 
as ministerial decisions or administrative determinations. 

Administrative hearing. A proceeding to gather facts needed to make an administrative decision. 

Adult establishment. Any establishment, adult bookstore, adult motion picture theatre, adult mini 
motion picture theatre, adult live entertainment business, or massage business as defined in N.C. General 
Statute, § 14-202.10, or any successor thereto. 

Advertising sign. A sign which directs attention to a business, commodity, service or entertainment 
conducted, sold, manufactured or offered. Such signs are further classified according to location, as follows:  

(a) Off-premises sign. Any sign used for the purpose of displaying, advertising, identifying or directing 
attention to a business, products, operations or services sold or offered for sale on a lot other 
than on the lot where such sign is displayed.  

(b) On-premises sign. Any sign used for the purpose of displaying, advertising, identifying or directing 
attention to a business, products, operations or services sold or offered for sale on the lot where 
the sign is displayed.  

38



Agriculture. The use of land for agricultural purposes, including farming, dairying, pasturage 
agriculture, horticulture, floriculture, viticulture and animal and poultry husbandry and the necessary 
accessory uses for packing, treating, or storing the produce; provided, however, that the operation of any 
such accessory uses shall be secondary to that of normal agricultural activities. For purposes of this 
chapter, the terms "agriculture", "agricultural", and "farming" are as defined by G.S. 106-581.1, which 
includes all of the following: 

(1) The cultivation of soil for production and harvesting of crops, including but not limited to fruits,
vegetables, sod, flowers and ornamental plants. 

(2) The planting and production of trees and timber.

(3) Dairying and the raising, management, care, and training of livestock, including horses, bees,
poultry, and other animals for individual and public use, consumption, and marketing. 

(4) Aquaculture as defined in G.S. 106-758.

(5) The operation, management, conservation, improvement, and maintenance of a farm and the
structures and buildings on the farm, including building and structure repair, replacement, expansion, and 
construction incident to the farming operation. 

(6) When performed on the farm, "agriculture", "agricultural", and "farming" also include the
marketing and selling of agricultural products, agritourism, the storage and use of materials for agricultural 
purposes, packing, treating, processing, sorting, storage, and other activities performed to add value to 
crops, livestock, and agricultural items produced on the farm, and similar activities incident to the operation 
of a farm. 

(7) A public or private grain warehouse or warehouse operation where grain is held 10 days or
longer and includes, but is not limited to, all buildings, elevators, equipment, and warehouses consisting of 
one or more warehouse sections and considered a single delivery point with the capability to receive, load 
out, weigh, dry, and store grain.   

Agriculture – Commercial.  Any establishment used for commercial agricultural purposes. 

Agriculture – Neighborhood.  A parcel of land which is used for the cultivation of the soil for production 
of crops, including but not limited to fruits, vegetables, flowers and ornamental plants for noncommercial 
purposes. Livestock may also be permitted under this use provided that the additional standards 
established herein are also met. 

Alcoholic beverage sales store. The retail sales of beer, wine, and/or other alcoholic beverages for off-
premise consumption as a primary use. 

Amusements, indoor.  Establishments providing commercial recreation activities completely within an 
enclosed structure. Such uses include but are not limited to pool halls, arcades, skating rinks, roller rinks, 
bowling alleys and facilities designed to accommodate live performances of the arts. Gaming terminals, as 
defined herein are expressly prohibited from consideration under the definition of amusements, indoor. 

Amusements, outdoor. Establishments that provide commercial recreation activities primarily 
outdoors. Such uses include but are not limited to miniature golf establishments, go-cart facilities, theme 
parks, carnivals, fairgrounds, midways, paintball parks, water rides and facilities designed to accommodate 
live performances of the arts.  

Animal services, Veterinary Clinic. Establishments that include services by licensed practitioners of 
veterinary medicine, dentistry, or surgery for animals. These services may include but are not limited to the 
testing and medical treatment of animals and the overnight interior boarding of animals that is necessary 
for, or accessory to, such testing and treatment; grooming. This term does not include "kennels." 

Animated sign. Any sign using flashing or intermittent lights, sound, color changes or other mechanical 
or electrical means to give motion to the sign or to give the impression of motion or movement to the sign; 
or any sign with visible moving, revolving or relocating parts; provided, however, this shall not include 
"time/date/temperature" signs as hereinafter defined.  

Apartment or apartment use. See "dwelling unit or dwelling" and "dwelling, multi-family". 

39



Attached sign. Any sign attached to, applied on, or supported by any part of a building, including, but 
not limited to, a wall, window, or projecting sign, or a sign painted on or attached to a canopy, awning or 
marquee of a building.  

Automated teller machines.  Computerized, self-service machines used by banking customers for 
financial institutions without face-to-face contact with financial institution personnel. These machines may 
be located at or within banks, or in other locations.  

Auto/mechanical parts sales.  Establishments selling new, used, or rebuilt automotive or mechanical 
parts and accessories. Examples include but are not limited to parts and supply stores, automotive stereo 
stores, speed shops, truck cap stores, tires and tube shops, and similar shops for other types of motorized 
or mechanical equipment.  

Automobile services - gas station. An establishment that primarily retails automotive fuels. Gas stations 
include structures that are specialized for selling gasoline with storage tanks, often underground or hidden. 
Bays for car washes may also be included but any establishment offering repair services as defined by 
automobile services – repair are not allowed under this category of use. 

Automobile services – repair.  An establishment that provides repair and maintenance of automobiles. 
These may or may not include facilities for lubricating, washing, or otherwise servicing automobiles, but 
may not include the painting thereof by any means. This classification shall not include convenience stores 
which do not dispense motor fuels. Gas stations as defined by automobile services – gas station may be 
permitted in conjunction with this use. This use does not include automobile body shop as such use shall 
be classified as Metal Product Fabrication, Machine or Welding Shop, Automobile Body Shop as defined 
herein. 

Automobile service or filling station. Any area of land, including structures thereon, which is used for 
the retail or wholesale sale of gasoline or any other motor vehicle fuel or oil and other lubrication 
substances, including any sale of motor vehicle accessories. These may or may not include facilities for 
lubricating, washing, or otherwise servicing motor vehicles, but may not include the painting thereof by any 
means. This classification shall not include convenience stores which do not dispense motor fuels.  

Awning. A temporary hood or cover which projects from the wall of a building, and which may include 
a type which can be retracted, folded or collapsed against the face of a supporting building.  

Banks, credit unions, financial services institutions. Establishments that engage in financial 
transactions that create, liquidate, or change ownership of financial services. Banks, credit unions, and 
savings institutions may perform central banking functions, accept deposits, and lend funds from these 
deposits. In addition to banks and credit unions, financial services institutions include, but are not limited 
to, credit agencies, trust companies, holding companies, lending and thrift institutions, securities/commodity 
contract brokers and dealers, security and commodity exchanges, vehicle finance (equity) leasing 
agencies, and investment banking, securities, brokerages and insurance-related services. Pawnshops shall 
not be considered under this definition. 

Banner. A strip of cloth or other material on which a sign is painted. 

Bar/tavern/nightclub.  A business where alcoholic beverages are sold for on-site consumption, which 
are not part of a larger restaurant. This term includes but is not limited to bars, taverns, pubs, and similar 
establishments where any food service is subordinate to the sale of alcoholic beverages. It may also include 
beer brewing as part of a microbrewery and other beverage tasting facilities. Entertainment including live 
music, and/or dancing, comedy, etc. may also be included. 

Bed & Breakfast. Any dwelling in which three or more persons, either individually or as families, are 
housed or lodged for hire, with or without meals. A bed & breakfast must be managed or operated by a 
person or family who resides on the premises. A "rooming house" and a "boarding house" establishment 
shall be deemed a bed & breakfast. If such an establishment is not managed by a person who resides on 
the premises, it shall be considered as a hotel,motel, or inn as herein defined.  

40



Berm. See "mounded earth" A mound of earth, sometimes referred to as a "berm", which shall not be 
more than four feet higher than the elevation of the surrounding property and with a slope no steeper than 
one foot of vertical distance for each two feet of horizontal distance. Any mounding of earth located within 
a required buffer strip must be mounded in conjunction with planting. The mounding of earth in a buffer strip 
shall not relieve the developer of the requirement of planting said buffer strip as herein specified. The 
mounding of earth outside of a buffer strip may be permitted without the required planting, but such 
mounding shall not exceed the height set forth above.  

Billboard. An advertising sign used as an outdoor display for the purpose of directing attention to a 
business, commodity, service or entertainment conducted, sold, manufactured, or offered at a location other 
than the location of said sign.  

Boarding house. Any dwelling in which three or more persons, either individually or as families, are 
housed or lodged for hire, with or without meals. A boarding house shall be managed or operated by a 
person or family who resides on the premises. A "rooming house" and a "bed and breakfast" establishment 
shall be deemed a boarding house. If such an establishment is not managed by a person who resides on 
the premises, it shall be considered as a hotel or motel, hereinafter defined.  

Buffer. A landscaped strip of land designed to minimize the potential conflicts between adjoining land 
uses. Specific buffers are defined as follows:  

Ten-foot buffer. A planted strip of land which shall be a minimum of ten feet in width. The required 
planting thereon shall be composed of evergreen vegetation which at maturity will be between six and 
ten feet in height. Hedges or other evergreen plantings shall be installed at an initial height of at least 
four feet, and shall be of a variety (such as Hetizi Juniper, Carolina or Canadian Hemlock, or other 
variety with similar characteristics) that can be expected to grow to an average height of ten feet, by a 
normal growth, within four years from the time of planting. Such required buffer strip must be at the 
same grade level as the land on both sides thereof.  

Twenty-foot buffer. A planted strip of land which shall be a minimum of 20 feet in width. The 
required planting thereon shall be composed of evergreen bushes, trees, and/or shrubs, initially of a 
height of at least four feet, planted so that at least two rows are provided which shall be planted in a 
staggered pattern approximately in the center of the buffer strip and which will grow from the initial 
four-foot height to a height of six feet within five years and which will contain foliage overlaps within 
six years of planting. Each buffer shall contain at least one deciduous tree for each 40 feet of lot 
perimeter which shall be at least one inch caliper with an initial height of six feet. Buffer strips must be 
maintained and inspected annually by the original developer or current owner with a report of 
conditions being submitted to the zoning administrator or his designee. Such required buffer strip must 
be at the same grade level as the land on both sides thereof. The planning and zoning board may 
approve as a buffer strip a previously planted strip of land, provided that the existing vegetation is of a 
height and density which will afford equal or better protection to the adjoining properties as would a 
newly planted buffer strip, as provided for in the foregoing portions of this definition.  

Building. Any structure having a roof supported by columns or by walls, and intended for shelter, 
housing or enclosure of persons, animals, property or business activity. The connection of two buildings by 
means of an open porch, breezeway, passageway, carport or other such open structure, with or without a 
roof, shall not be deemed to make them one building. The connection of two buildings by an enclosed 
corridor connector where the buildings connected are not less than 50 feet apart at all points, and the 
connecting corridor is not less than 50 feet in length nor more than 15 feet in inside width, one story in 
height, and the outside walls of which contain not less than 30 percent glazing, shall not be deemed to 
make them one building provided the corridor has no other use than as a passage from one building to the 
next.  

Building addition or expansion. Any construction that increases the size of a building or structure in 
terms of site coverage, height, length, width or gross floor area or where a portion of the gross floor area is 
relocated.  

41



Building frontage. The linear length of any building occupied by a single owner or tenant or the linear 
length of that portion of a building used by an individual tenant in a multiple tenant development which faces 
a public street or alley or which faces the access road in a unified business development.  

Building, height of. The vertical distance measured from the center of the front ground floor level of the 
structure at finished grade to the highest point of the coping of a flat roof, to the deck line of a mansard roof, 
or to the highest ridge of a gable, hip, or gambrel roof. Height limitations shall not apply to chimneys, 
steeples, communication antennas, spires, and other similar objects.  

Building line. The line, parallel to the street line, that passes through the point of the principal building 
nearest the front lot line.  

Building permit. See "permit, building." 

Building, principal. A building in which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which said building 
is located.  

Caliper. The diameter of a tree trunk measured 4½ feet above the ground. 

Canopy. A permanently attached structure which projects from and is supported by a building, which 
structure serves as a cover providing shelter or decoration and which extends beyond the building.  

Cemetery.  A parcel of land used for interment of the dead in the ground or in mausoleums. 

Changeable copy sign. Any permanent sign, illuminated or not, which is principally devoted to and 
designed for changeable text and graphics, but which specifically excludes "time/date/temperature" signs 
as hereinafter defined. Portable or moveable signs are not considered changeable copy signs.  

Child care center.  An individual, agency, or organization providing supervision or care on a regular 
basis for children who are not legal wards or foster children of the supervising adults. Child day care centers 
are designed to accommodate six or more children at a time and are not an accessory to residential use. 
A child care center operating in conjunction with a religious institution or school shall be considered an 
accessory use of such a religious institution. 

Child care home.  Care or supervision provided on a regular basis, as an accessory use within a 
primary dwelling, by a resident of the dwelling for not more than six children who are not legal wards or 
foster children of the supervising adult.   

Church. See religious institution as defined herein. A place of worship; a building(s) or structure(s) 
including, but not limited to, accessory classrooms, meeting rooms, offices, and housing quarters for 
religious leaders, that are primarily intended for religious services and which operates as a private, not-
profit, tax exempt institution. The term includes, but is not limited to, churches, synagogues, and temples.  

Clearance (as used regarding signs). The vertical distance from the established finished grade of the 
property upon which a sign is located to the lowest edge of the sign. No sign shall be built on a berm which 
would raise the height of the sign more than two feet.  

Clinic. See "hospital facility". 

Cluster development. The grouping of buildings in order to conserve land resources and provide for 
innovation in the design of the project provided there is no increase in the overall density of the 
development. This term includes nonresidential development as well as single-family residential 
subdivisions and multifamily developments that do not involve the subdivision of land.  

Cluster home. The configuration of dwellings such that each single-family dwelling is on its own lot; 
and such that one or more of the building's sides is located directly on a lot line; and such that one or more 
of the sides of each building directly abuts one or more of the sides of adjacent buildings.  

Clustering of buildings. A development design technique that concentrates buildings in specific areas 
on a site to allow the remaining land to be used for recreation, common open space, and preservation of 
environmentally sensitive areas.  

Commemorative sign. Any sign erected in remembrance or a historical person, place or event or which 
denotes, honors, celebrates or acknowledges a historical person, place or event.  

42



Community service organization. A public or quasi-public establishment providing social and/or 
rehabilitation services, serving persons with social or personal problems requiring special assistance. This 
term includes but is not limited to counseling centers, welfare offices, job counseling and training centers, 
vocational rehabilitation agencies, and community improvement and neighborhood redevelopment but does 
not include any services providing on-site residential or accommodation services. 

Construction sign. A sign with a message limited to the identification of architects, engineers, 
contractors, and other persons involved with a particular construction project or to set forth the name of the 
building being constructed, the intended purpose of the building and the expected completion date.  

Crematory. A structure where the technical process of using intense heat and flame to reduce human 
or animal remains and bone fragments to ashes. 

Cultural or community facility. Facility designed to promote cultural advancement and serve the 
community. Examples include but are not limited to non-profit civic or fraternal organizations, museums, 
libraries, and community centers. 

Customary incidental home occupations. Any use conducted entirely within a dwelling and which use 
is clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which use does 
not change the residential character of the dwelling. No more than one employee, other than family 
members residing on the premises, shall be employed in connection with the home occupation. No 
mechanical or electrical equipment shall be installed or used except such equipment as is normally used 
for domestic or professional purposes, and not over 25 percent of the total floor space of any residential 
structure shall be used for such home occupation.  

Day care center (or facility). The term "day care center" or "facility" shall be defined as the terms "day 
care facility" or "child day care home" are defined in G.S. 110-86.  

Decision-making board. Town council, planning and zoning board, board of adjustment, or other board 
assigned to make quasi-judicial decisions under this chapter or development regulations adopted by the 
town. 

Determination. A written, final, and binding order, requirement, or determination regarding an 
administrative decision. 

Developer. A person undertaking any or all the activities covered by this chapter, or for whose benefit 
such activities are commenced or carried on. A person, including a governmental agency or redevelopment 
authority, who undertakes any development and who is the landowner of the property to be developed or 
who has been authorized by the landowner to undertake development on that property. 

Development. Any human change or alteration to the unimproved or improved state of land, including, 
but not limited to changes or alteration to vegetation, soil, geology, hydrology, buildings or other structures 
for any residential, commercial, industrial, utility, or other uses, including, but not limited to, all areas for 
vehicular access, circulation, and parking and including, but not limited to, mining, dredging, filling, grading, 
paving, excavating and drilling operations and any subdivision of land. Unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise, the term means any of the following: 

(a) The constructions, erection, alteration, enlargement, renovation, substantial repair, movement to 
another site, or demolition of a structure. 

(b) The excavation, grading, filing, clearing, or alteration of land. 

(c) The subdivision of land. 

(d) The initiation or substantial change in the use of land or the intensity of use of land. 

Development approval. An administrative or quasi-judicial approval made pursuant to Article 19 of 
Chapter 160A that is required prior to commencing development or undertaking a specific activity, project, 
or development proposal. Development approvals include, but are not limited to, zoning permits, site plan 
approvals, special use permits, variances, and certificates of appropriateness. The term also includes plat 
approvals, development agreements, and buildings permits.   

43



Development regulation. A unified development ordinance, zoning regulation, subdivision regulation, 
erosion and sedimentation control regulation, floodplain or flood damage prevention regulation, mountain 
ridge protection regulation, stormwater control regulation, wireless telecommunication facility regulation, 
historic preservation or landmark regulation, housing code, State Building Code enforcement, or any other 
regulation adopted pursuant to state law, or a local act or charter that regulates land use or development. 

Development identification sign. A sign bearing the name of a residential or commercial development 
or subdivision, including an apartment house, unified business district or mobile manufactured home park.  

Directional sign. A sign, the sole purpose of which is to direct pedestrian or vehicular traffic to a 
particular premises. A particular premises will be limited to having two directional signs at each entrance to 
the premises from a public road. Such directional sign shall contain no advertising material.  

Drip line. An imaginary line on the ground formed by water falling from the end of the tree branches 
which extend the furthest from the trunk of the tree in all directions.  

Drive-thru retail/restaurants.  A facility where food and other products may be purchased by motorists 
without leaving their vehicles. Examples include but are not limited to fast-food restaurants, drive-through 
coffee, dairy products, photo stores, and pharmacies. 

Duplex. See "dwelling, two-family".  

Duplex. See Dwelling-Duplex. 

Dwelling or dwelling unit. Any building, structure, manufactured home, or mobile home, or part thereof, 
used and occupied for human habitation or intended to be so used, and includes any outhouse and 
appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed therewith. For this chapter, the term does not include 
any manufactured home, mobile home, or recreational vehicle as those are subject to specific regulations 
provided in this chapter. The term dwelling unit or dwelling is sometimes referred to as home or residence. 

Dwelling—Duplex. A building containing two residential dwelling units designed to have two families 
living independently of each other, each unit having a separate entrance from the outside or through a 
common vestibule.  

Dwelling—Multifamily (four or less units/building). A building containing more than one but less than 
five residential dwelling units. Each unit has a separate entrance from the outside or through a common 
vestibule. Multi-family dwellings include but are not limited to duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, townhouses 
and condos. 

Dwelling—Multifamily (more than four units/building). A building containing more than four residential 
dwelling units. Each unit has a separate entrance from the outside or through a common vestibule. These 
structures may include apartments, townhouses and condos. 

Dwelling – Secondary. A dwelling unit not exceeding 800 square feet of gross floor space and located 
on a lot with an existing single-family dwelling. No more than one such dwelling shall be situated on any lot 
and shall not be considered as an accessory use herein defined. 

Dwelling—Single-family. A free-standing building designed to accommodate one dwelling unit. 

Dwelling, multi-family. A building or portion thereof used or designed as a residence for three or more 
families living independently of each other and doing their cooking therein, including apartments, apartment 
houses or apartment hotels, and group houses.  

Dwelling, single-family. A building or manufactured, modular or mobile home arranged or designed to 
be occupied by one family.  

Dwelling, two-family. A building or manufactured, modular or mobile home arranged or designed to be 
occupied by two families living independently of each other. This shall include what is sometimes referred 
to as a "duplex".  

Dwelling unit. A building, or portion thereof, designed to provide complete and permanent living 
facilities for one family, including restroom and cooking facilities.  

44



Easement. A grant of one or more property rights by the owner to, or for the use by, the public, a 
corporation, or another person or entity.  

Eave line. The point where a cornice or projection occurs at the top of an exterior building wall.  

Electronic message signs. Signs which display changeable information in an easily comprehensible 
way and for which the message changes more than two times in a 24-hour period. All messages shall be 
visible for a minimum of three seconds and shall be kept accurate. Electronic message signs shall include 
tri-panel message systems. These will not be deemed to constitute changeable copy or animated signs and 
are permitted only on marquee signs.  

Erect. To construct, build, raise, assemble, install, place, replace, locate, relocate, affix, attach, display, 
alter, use, create, paint, draw, illuminate, or in any other way bring into being or establish.  

Erosion. The wearing away of land surface by the action of wind, water, gravity or any combination 
thereof. Externally illuminated sign. Any sign which reflects light from a source intentionally directed upon 
it, for example, by means of floodlights or externally mounted fluorescent light fixtures.  

Equipment rental. Establishments renting or leasing equipment including but not limited to (a) office 
machinery and equipment, such as computers, office furniture, copiers, or fax machines; (b) heavy 
equipment (without operators) used for construction, mining, or forestry, such as bulldozers, earthmoving 
equipment, etc.; (c) other non-consumer machinery and equipment, such as manufacturing equipment and 
metalworking; (d) telecommunications, motion picture, or theatrical equipment; (e) institutional [i.e. public 
building] furniture; and (f) agricultural equipment without operators. Such establishments displaying 
equipment to be rented entirely within a structure at all times, shall be considered equipment rental, interior 
storage. Such establishments displaying equipment to be rented on the exterior of the structure shall be 
considered equipment rental, exterior storage.  

Event Center. Any assembly, conference, or convention center used for the purpose of 
accommodating a number of individuals for a special event or purpose.  Such a facility used for this purpose 
may have, including but not limited to, accommodations for sleeping, food preparation and eating, 
recreation, entertainment, resource facilities and meeting rooms. 

Evidentiary hearing. A hearing to gather competent, material and substantial evidence in order to make 
findings for a quasi-judicial decision required by a development regulation. 

Exterior architectural features. The architectural style, general design and general arrangement of the 
exterior of a building or other structure, including the color, the kind and texture of the building material and 
the type and style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs and other appurtenant fixtures. In the case of 
outdoor advertising signs, exterior architectural features shall be construed to mean the style, material, size 
and location of all such signs.  

Externally illuminated sign. Any sign which reflects light from an exterior source intentionally directed 
upon the sign such as a sign illuminated by an exterior floodlight or externally mounted fluorescent or 
incandescent light fixture.  

Facade. The entire sides of a building, including any parapet and wingwalls.  

Family care home. An adult care home with support and supervisory personnel that provides room 
and board, personal care and habilitation services in a family environment for not more than six resident 
handicapped persons. An assisted living residence in which the housing management provides 24-hour 
scheduled and unscheduled personal care services for not more than six unrelated residents. 

Farm. A tract of land, generally composed of one acre or more, with or without a house, barn or other 
structures, used for the cultivation of the soil for production of crops, including but not limited to fruits, 
vegetables, flowers and ornamental plants, the planting and production of trees and timber, and the raising 
of livestock, for individual and public use, consumption, and marketing. A farm may consist of water devoted 
to the raising of fish or water related crops.  

Farmers Market. A food market at which local farmers sell items including, but not limited to, fruit and 
vegetables, meat, cheese, and bakery products at a location other than where the products are produced. 

45



Fence. A barrier, usually installed along a property line for security, privacy or decorative purposes 
whether open or solid in construction. A fence may be an interior fence erected to keep in livestock. No 
fence shall be located within the right-of-way of any street or highway. Fences located within any minimum 
required "yard" as provided for in this chapter shall not exceed seven feet in height. Where a fence is 
located at the top of a slope or retaining wall, the fence height shall be measured from the top of the slope 
or retaining wall.  

Festival signs. Temporary signs or banners which are placed to commemorate and/or attract attention 
to a festival recognized by the town. This type of sign includes signs erected by a school, church, or civic 
club to commemorate events which they sponsor and will be limited to being erected three weeks prior to 
the event sponsored.  

Finished grade (as used with reference to a sign). The final ground level immediately next to a sign.  

Fire chief. The principal fire code enforcement official of the Town of Weaverville.  

Fire official. The designee of the fire chief for purpose of enforcement of the Weaverville Fire 
Prevention Code.  

Flashing sign. A sign illuminated by direct or indirect artificial light which flashes on and off in regular 
or irregular sequences, including, but not limited to, strobe lights.  

Flood insurance study. The official report provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
The report may contain flood profiles as well as the flood hazard boundary-floodway map and the water 
surface elevation of the base flood.  

Flood maps. The flood boundary and floodway maps for Asheville, North Carolina, as provided by the 
FEMA, including amendments and updates, pursuant to the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (Public 
Law 93-234) as amended.  

Floodplain. Any normally dry land area that is susceptible to being inundated by flooding. Includes 
both the floodway and the flood fringe area. The susceptibility of this area to flooding may pose hazards for 
building construction.  

Flood profiles. A graph or longitudinal profile showing the relationship of the water surface elevation of 
a flood to a location along a river or stream, as provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 
pursuant to the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (Public Law 92-234) as amended.  

Floodproofing. Structural additions, changes, or adjustments to structures subject to flooding which 
will reduce or eliminate flood damages to the structure, building contents, water and sewer facilities, and 
utilities.  

Floodway. The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas in which 
development must be restricted in order to permit the unrestricted flow of the waters of the regulatory flood. 

Fowl. Any domesticated bird or captive-raised bird kept for meat, eggs, or feathers, and includes, but 
is not limited to, chickens, ducks, emu, geese, guinea fowl, ostriches, pheasant, quail, turkeys.   

Freestanding or pole sign. A sign which is permanently affixed to the ground by a pole or other structure 
and which is not a part of or attached to a building.  

Funeral establishment home. A building used for the activity of preparation of deceased human beings 
for burial or cremation is the primary use of the premises. Secondary uses may include the display of the 
deceased, consummation of rituals connected therewith before burial or cremation, the storage of funeral 
vehicles and funeral supplies necessary for the preparation of the dead for burial or cremation, and for the 
sale of caskets, urns, and other funeral supplies. Funeral homes which also operate a crematory are subject 
to additional regulations as a crematory.  

Gaming terminal. Electronic machines, including, but not limited to, computers and gaming terminals, 
where one may play games including, but not limited to, sweepstakes, lotteries, games and/or games of 
chance where cash, merchandise, or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise distributed, whether 
or not value of such distribution is determined by electronic games played or be predetermined odds which 
have a finite pool of winners. This term includes, but is not limited to, internet cafes, internet sweepstakes, 

46



or cybercafes. Gaming terminal operations do not include operations associated with the official N.C. State 
Education Lottery or any nonprofit operation that is otherwise lawful under state law (for example, church 
or civic organization fundraisers), nor shall it include arcade games of skill.  

Gated community. A subdivision, neighborhood, or residential community to which entry is restricted 
to residents and their guests. Often includes barriers such as gates, security personnel, fences and/or walls.  

General retail. A use category allowing premises to be available for the commercial sale of 
merchandise and prepared foods. Such use category does not include manufacturing. 

Gift shop. A retail space of 1,000 square feet or less in floor area in which miscellaneous articles 
appropriate as gifts are sold. This definition excludes food and beverage items intended for immediate 
consumption.  

Golf course. Outdoor facility with at least nine holes, including par three courses, and including driving 
ranges as accessory uses, but not including putt-putt, miniature golf, or driving ranges as a principal use.  

Government services. This term includes federal, state, and local government agencies that 
administer, oversee, and manage public programs and have executive, legislative, and/or judicial authority. 
This term does not include public safety facilities as defined herein. 

Governmental sign. Any sign erected by or on the order of an authorized public official or public body 
which shall include, but shall not be limited to, traffic control signs, street name and identification signs, 
warning and directional signs, public notices or signs of a similar nature.  

Grade (as used with reference to a sign). The lowest point at which a sign is attached to the ground.  

Gross floor space. The overall total area of a building or other structure including covered porches.  

Ground level sign. A freestanding sign erected flush to the ground and not elevated upon poles or 
stanchions and not attached to a building.  

Group care facilities.  A facility that provides resident services to more than six individuals, at least one 
of whom is unrelated to the others. These individuals are handicapped, aged, or disabled, or are undergoing 
rehabilitation, and are being provided services in the group care facility to meet their needs. This category 
includes, but is not limited to, uses licensed or supervised by any federal, state, or county health/welfare 
agency, such as group dwellings (all ages), halfway houses, nursing homes, resident schools, resident 
facilities, and foster homes.  

Guarantee in lieu of construction of improvements. Cash, irrevocable letters of credit, bonds, or similar 
financial instruments deposited with and accepted by the town to insure ensure that improvements required 
as part of a development will be satisfactorily completed.  

Hardship. A practical difficulty in carrying out the requirements of this chapter. Unless otherwise 
indicated, financial difficulties, in and of themselves, do not constitute a hardship.  

Height (as used with reference to a sign). The vertical distance between the highest part of the sign or 
its supporting structure, whichever is highest, and the base of the sign at grade.  

Home Occupation. Any use conducted entirely within a dwelling and which use is clearly incidental 
and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which use does not change the 
residential character of the dwelling. To be considered a home occupation: (a) no more than one employee, 
other than family members residing on the premises, shall be employed in connection with the home 
occupation; (b) no mechanical or electrical equipment shall be installed or used except such equipment as 
is normally used for domestic purposes; and (c) not over 25 percent of the total floor space of any residential 
structure shall be used for such home occupation. Commercial sale of merchandise shall not be permitted 
in conjunction with a home occupation. Home occupations include, but are not limited to, child care homes 
as defined herein. 

Hospital facility. Any type of hospital; facility operated in connection with a hospital such as a clinic, 
including mental health clinics; nursing, convalescent, or rehabilitative facility; public health center; or any 
facility of a local health department. The term "hospital facility" also includes related facilities such as 
laboratories, outpatient departments, housing and training facilities for nurses and other health care 

47



professionals, central service facilities operated in connection with hospitals, and all equipment necessary 
for its operation.  

Hotel, motel, inn. An establishment that provides lodging and usually meals, entertainment, and 
various personal services for the public.  Establishments providing lodging and short-term accommodations 
for travelers. These establishments may offer a wide range of services including, but not limited to, overnight 
sleeping space, food services, convention hosting services, laundry services, and/or entertainment and 
recreation activities.  

Identification sign. A sign used to identify, indicate or advertise the name, logo or other identifying 
symbol of a building, business, profession, institution, service, or entertainment conducted on the lot upon 
which the sign is located.  

Improvement. An addition to real property which is intended to enhance the value, beauty or utility of 
the property or to adapt the property for new or further purposes.  

Incidental sign. A single face professional or announcement sign attached wholly to a building, window 
or door containing information relative to emergencies, store hours, credit cards honored and other similar 
accessory information.  

Industry, light. Research and development activities, the manufacturing, compounding, processing, 
packaging, storage, assembly, and/or treatment of finished or semi-finished products from previously 
prepared materials, which activities are conducted wholly within an enclosed building. Light industry 
typically involves land uses operated in such a manner as to control external effects of the manufacturing 
process, such as smoke, noise, soot, dirt, vibration, odor, etc.  

Inflatable balloon sign. A sign which is inflated with air or other gases and which is tethered to the 
ground in some manner. Self-propelled aircraft and hot air balloons which are not tethered to the ground 
are specifically excluded.  

Internally illuminated sign. Any sign designed to provide constant artificial light to the sign through the 
sign face or through transparent or translucent material from a light source within the sign.  

Joint identification sign. A sign bearing the names of individual tenants located within a multiple tenant 
development and which may include the name of the multiple tenant development.  

Junk yard. A lot, land or structure, or part thereof, used primarily for the collection, storage and sale of 
waste paper, rags, scrap metal, or other discarded material; or for the collecting, dismantling, storage or 
salvaging of machinery or vehicles not in operating condition. This shall include the sale of parts from any 
such machinery or vehicles.  

Kennel. Any premises where domestic animals, such as dogs and cats, are boarded, trained, or bred 
for commercial or animal control purposes. A structure intended to be used for the breeding, sale, training, 
accommodation or overnight boarding of small domestic animals owned by someone other than the owner 
of the property on which the structure is located. This term shall include animal shelters of any kind 
regardless of who owns the animals within the shelter. This term does not include veterinary clinics or other 
animal services in which the overnight interior boarding of animals is necessary for, or accessory to, the 
testing, treatment and general or specialized healthcare of animals. 

Landscaped area of a lot. All pervious surfaces of a lot not including buildings, roofs, driveways, roads, 
parking areas, and sidewalks.  

Landowner. Any person who owns a legal or equitable interest in real property, including the heirs, 
devisees, successors, assigns, and personal representative of such owner. The landowner may allow a 
person holding a valid option to purchase to act as his agent or representative for purposes of submitting a 
plan or application under this chapter.  

Landowner or owner. The holder of the title in fee simple. Absent evidence to the contrary, a local 
government may rely on the county tax records to determine who is a landowner. The landowner may 
authorize a person holding a valid option, lease, or contract to purchase to act as his or her agent or 
representative for the purpose of making applications for development approvals. 

48



Legislative decision. The adoption, amendment, or repeal of a town ordinance or regulation. This term 
also includes the decision to approve, amend, or rescind a conditional zoning district or development 
agreement.   

Legislative hearing. A hearing to solicit public comment on a proposed legislative decision. 

Letter of credit. A written instrument issued by a financial institution at the request of a customer where 
the financial institution promises to honor drafts or demands for payment from a person named in the 
instrument upon compliance with conditions set forth in the instrument.  

Livestock. Any hoofed animal including, but not limited to, horses, mules, ponies, cows, sheep, and 
goats, but specifically excluding swine. 

Logo. A business symbol or trademark.  

Lot. A parcel of land occupied or capable of being occupied by a building or group of buildings devoted 
to a common use, together with the customary accessories and open spaces belonging to the same. This 
term also includes the words plot and parcel. 

Lot depth. The mean horizontal distance between front and rear property lines measured along both 
side property lines and at the mid-point of the front and rear property lines.  

Lot of record. A lot which is a part of a subdivision, a plat of which has been recorded in the office of 
the Register of Deeds of Buncombe County, North Carolina, or a lot described by metes and bounds in a 
deed which has been so recorded.  

Lot width. The distance between the side lines of a lot measured at the front building setback line.  

Maintain (as used with reference to a sign). To clean, paint, repair or replace defective parts of a sign 
in a manner which does not alter the basic design or structure of the sign.  

Manufactured home or mobile home. A structure as defined in G.S. 143-145(7). A structure, 
transportable in one or more sections, which, in the traveling mode, is eight feet or more in width or is 40 
feet or more in length, or when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet, and which is built on a permanent 
chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to 
the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical systems contained 
therein.   

Manufactured home dealer or dealer. Any person engaged in the business of buying, selling or dealing 
in manufactured homes or offering or displaying manufactured homes for sale. Any person who buys, sells 
or deals in three or more manufactured homes in any 12-month period, or who offers or displays for sale 
three or more manufactured homes in any 12-month period shall be presumed to be a manufactured home 
dealer. The terms "selling" and "sale" include lease-purchase transactions. The term "manufactured home 
dealer" does not include banks and finance companies that acquire manufactured homes as an incident to 
their regular business.  

Manufactured home parks or mobile home parks. Any premises where manufactured or mobile homes 
are parked for living and sleeping purposes, or any premises used or set apart for the purpose of supplying 
to the public parking space for travel trailers for living and sleeping purposes, and which include any 
buildings, structures, vehicles or enclosures used or intended for use as part of such park.  

Manufactured or mobile home site. A plot of ground within a manufactured or mobile home park 
designed for the accommodation and use of one manufactured home or mobile home, and containing all 
improvements and utility connections required under this chapter and other applicable town codes.  

Manufacturing, heavy. A use that involves or requires the use or storage of any hazardous materials 
or substances as determined by the Fire Marshal, or that is used for the purpose of manufacturing, 
assembling, finishing, cleaning or developing any product or commodity. The operation of such a facility 
may be continuous (24 hours a day/seven days per week) and is not required to completely confine noise, 
odor, dust, glare, smoke and fumes of such operation within an enclosed building. An outdoor storage yard 
may be permitted in conjunction with a heavy manufacturing operation. 

49



Manufacturing, light. A use that involves or requires the use or storage of any hazardous materials, as 
determined by the Fire Marshal, that is used for the purpose of manufacturing, assembling, finishing, 
cleaning or developing any product or commodity. Facilities are typically designed to look and generate 
impacts like a typical office building, but rely on special power, water, or waste disposal systems for 
operation. Noise, odor, dust, glare, smoke and fumes of each operation must be completely confined within 
an enclosed building.  

Manufacturing, neighborhood. The assembly, fabrication, production or processing of goods and 
materials using processes that ordinarily do not create noise, odors, glare, smoke, fumes or health or safety 
hazards outside of a building which is visually undifferentiated from an office building. This term includes 
but is not limited to medical and testing laboratories but does not include more intensive uses that require 
frequent deliveries by trucks with more than two axles.  

Map, official zoning. See "zoning map."  

Marquee. A sign on a theater, auditorium, fairground or museum which advertises current and 
scheduled events.  

Medical services - clinic, urgent care center, hospital. Facilities that provide ambulatory or outpatient 
health care, including but not limited to, emergency medical clinics, outpatient family planning services, and 
blood and organ banks. Any type of hospital; facility operated in connection with a hospital such as a clinic, 
including mental health clinics; nursing, convalescent, or rehabilitative facility; public health center; or any 
facility of a local health department. The term "hospital facility" also includes related facilities such as 
laboratories, outpatient departments, housing and training facilities for nurses and other health care 
professionals, central service facilities operated in connection with hospitals, and all equipment necessary 
for its operation.  

Medical services - professional office. An office of a member of a recognized profession maintained 
for the conduct of that profession and licensed by the State of North Carolina, including, but not limited to, 
the offices of chiropractors, doctors, dentists and psychologists or other counselors. 

Menu board. A freestanding or wall mounted sign primarily designed for the display of menu items and 
prices for the purpose of placing orders for such items in conjunction with a restaurant.  

Metal products fabrication, machine or welding shop, automobile body shop. An establishment 
engaged in the production and/or assembly of metal parts, including but not limited to, the production of 
metal cabinets and enclosures, cans and shipping containers, doors and gates, duct work forgings and 
stampings, hardware and tools, plumbing fixtures and products, tanks, towers, and similar products. 
Examples of these include, but are not limited to, blacksmith and welding shops; automobile body shops; 
plating, stripping, and coating shops; sheet metal shops; machine shops; boiler shops; metal casting. An 
outdoor storage yard may be permitted in conjunction with metal products manufacturing, machine and 
welding shop but not an automobile body shop. 

Mini-warehouses - A building or property containing separate enclosed storage spaces the sizes of 
which may vary, which are leased or rented on an individual basis.  

Mixed-use building or development. A multi-story building or structure which may accommodate both 
commercial and residential uses. A group of mixed-use buildings or structures can be combined to form 
a mixed-use development. The uses permitted within the mixed-use building or development shall be 
determined by the regulations applicable to the zoning district in which the property is located. 

Mixed use development. A development project integrating different types of land uses within one or 
more structures; for example residential units with office and/or retail facilities. 

Mobile Food Vendor. Any mobile food unit, pushcart or motor vehicle, including all machines designed 
or intended to travel over land by self-propulsion or while attached to any self-propelled vehicle, which is 
purposed for the sale for consumption of food and beverages. The sale of alcoholic beverages shall not be 
permitted by any mobile food vender absent the issuance of the requisite special event permit.  

Mobile home. See "manufactured home", and "trailers or travel trailers".  

50



Modular home. A dwelling unit constructed in accordance with the construction standards of the North 
Carolina Uniform Residential Building Code for One- and Two-Family Dwellings, and composed of 
components substantially assembled in a manufacturing plant and transported to the building site for final 
assembly and placement on a permanent foundation. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, a 
modular home may consist of two or more sections transported to the site on each's own chassis or steel 
frame, or a series of panels or room sections transported to the site on a truck and erected, assembled, or 
joined there. This unit is deeded, and not titled by the state department of motor vehicles.  

Modular home site. A plot of ground designed for the accommodation and use of one modular home, 
and containing all improvements and utility connections required under this chapter and other applicable 
town codes.  

Motel. An establishment which provides lodging and parking and in which the rooms are usually 
accessible from an outdoor parking area.  

Mounded earth (or berm). A mound of earth, sometimes referred to as a "berm", which shall not be 
more than four feet higher than the elevation of the surrounding property and with a slope no steeper than 
one foot of vertical distance for each two feet of horizontal distance. Any mounding of earth located within 
a required buffer strip must be mounded in conjunction with planting. The mounding of earth in a buffer strip 
shall not relieve the developer of the requirement of planting said buffer strip as herein specified. The 
mounding of earth outside of a buffer strip may be permitted without the required planting, but such 
mounding shall not exceed the height set forth above.  

Multiple tenant development. A development in which there exist a number of individual and/or 
separate activities establishments and in which there are appurtenant shared facilities (such as parking 
areas or a pedestrian mall area ways)., including but not limited to shopping and office centers. This 
definition does not include multi-family residential developments. The maximum sign height in such a 
development shall be 20 feet.  

Nameplate sign. A sign located on a particular premises which identifies a business or home 
occupation.  

New construction. Structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective 
date of this chapter.  

Nonconforming occupied lot. A lot which contained a structure on the effective date of this chapter or 
at the time the lot was brought into the  citytown's jurisdiction but which does not meet the minimum 
requirements for width, area, front, side, or rear yard, height and/or open space for the zoning district in 
which it is located.  

Nonconforming open uses of land. An open use on a lot when the only structures are incidental and 
accessory to the principal open use which was in existence prior to the effective date of this chapter or at 
the time the lot was brought into the citytown's jurisdiction and which would not be permitted by this chapter 
in the zoning district in which it is located. Uses such as storage yards, used car lots, auto wrecking yards, 
and golf driving ranges are examples of open uses.  

Nonconforming sign. Any sign which does not conform with the standards of this chapter.  

Nonconforming structure. Any structure which does not conform with the requirements of the zoning 
district in which it is located, either at the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter derives or 
as a result of subsequent amendments to this chapter.  

Nonconforming use of structure. A use of a structure which existed prior to the effective date of this 
chapter, or at the time the lot on which the structure is sited was brought into the town's jurisdiction, and 
which would not be permitted in the zoning district in which it is located.  

Nonconforming vacant lot. A lot which does not meet the dimensional requirements for the zoning 
district in which it is located, but which was recorded prior to the effective date of this chapter or prior to the 
time the lot was brought into the citytown's jurisdiction. This definition shall not be interpreted to include lots 
recorded prior to the adoption of this chapter which were in violation of any prior subdivision regulation of 
the town.  

51



Nonresidential development. All development other than residential development, agriculture, and 
silviculture.  

Noxious Uses.  Any use that could be harmful to health or the environment if not properly regulated. 
Noxious uses include, but are not limited to, the following: power plants, water and sewage plants, landfills 
or recycling facilities, outdoor firing ranges, junk yards or salvage yards, rendering plants and 
slaughterhouses, asphalt or concrete plants or any extractive industry.  

Nursing home. See "hospital facility" group care facility.  

Office-warehouse. A land use that includes offices that support showroom or warehouse uses.  

Off-premises sign. Any sign used for the purpose of displaying, advertising, identifying or directing 
attention to a business, products, operations or services sold or offered for sale on a lot other than on the 
lot where such sign is displayed.  

On-premises sign. Any sign used for the purpose of displaying, advertising, identifying or directing 
attention to a business, products, operations or service sold or offered for sale on the lot where the sign is 
displayed.  

Open space. An area that is intended to provide light and air, and is designed for either environmental, 
scenic, or recreational purposes. Open space may include, but is not limited to, lawns, decorative planting, 
walkways, active and passive recreation areas, playgrounds, fountains, swimming pools, wooded areas, 
and water courses. Open space shall not be deemed to include driveways, parking lots, or other surfaces 
designed or intended for vehicular travel.  

Outdoor storage. The storage of any item not enclosed within a building.  

Outdoor storage yard. An establishment which has as its principal use the open storage of various 
materials (including, but not limited to, motor vehicles).  

Owner. This term shall have the same meaning as the term "landowner."  

Parapet. That portion of a building wall which rises vertically above the roof line.  

Parking space. An area for vehicular parking of not less than nine  9 feet by 18 feet, exclusive of the 
necessary access space to reach such parking space. Parking spaces shall be provided with vehicular 
access to a street or alley, and shall always be located outside of the dedicated street right-of-way. 

Pawnshop.  A business in which a pawnbroker, or one who engages in the business of lending money 
on the security of pledged goods and who may also purchase merchandise for resale from dealers and 
traders, whether licensed pursuant to Article 45 of Chapter 66 of the NC General Statutes or not, regularly 
conducts business which includes, but is not limited to making loans on pledges of tangible personal 
property; dealing in bullion stocks; purchasing merchandise for resale from dealers, traders and wholesale 
suppliers; and/or any other pawn or pawn transactions.  

Pedestrian oriented design. Development designed with and emphasis on pedestrian access and 
interest from adjoining streets and sidewalks. In pedestrian oriented design, buildings are generally placed 
close to the street and the main entrances are oriented to the street sidewalk; additionally, there are 
generally windows or display cases along building facades that face the street. Site characteristics of 
pedestrian oriented design typically include: site grading that enhances the relationship of the building to 
the adjoining street(s) and sidewalk(s) from the perspective of the pedestrian; parking facilities placed to 
the side or rear of the building; and the provision of pedestrian oriented amenities, such as outdoor dining 
areas, landscaping/hardscaping, and seating.  

Performance guarantee. See "guarantee in lieu of construction of improvements."  

Permit, building. A permit for work or construction which is regulated by the North Carolina State 
Building Code in any or all of its volumes.  

Permit, grading and stormwater. The document issued by the city  Buncombe County which allows 
grading and stormwater management operations to commence and to proceed in accordance with the 
requirements of this chapter.  

52



Person. Includes individuals, corporations, partnerships, associations, legal representatives, trustees, 
trustees in bankruptcy or receivers.  

Personal services.  An establishment primarily engaged in providing services that are generally related 
to the care of a person. Such personal services include, but are not limited to hair salons and barbershops, 
massage and bodywork therapists, spas, and tanning salons. Personal services shall not include any use 
which may be defined as an adult establishment. 

Place of worship. A building(s) or structure(s) including, but not limited to, sanctuaries, accessory 
classrooms, meeting rooms, offices, and housing quarters for religious leaders, that are primarily intended 
for religious services and which operate as a private, nonprofit, tax exempt institution. The term includes, 
but is not limited to, churches, synagogues, and temples. Child care centers, schools, recreational facilities, 
and other uses developed as a part of the place of worship shall meet the standards for these uses set forth 
for the zoning district in which they are located.  

Plat. A map, or representation on paper, of a piece of land subdivided into lots, with streets and alleys, 
usually drawn to scale.  

Pole sign. See definition of "freestanding pole sign."  

Portable or moveable sign. Any sign designed or intended to be readily relocated and which is not 
permanently affixed to the ground or to a building but which is on wheels, a trailer or a truck bed and signs 
which are rented and which are intended to be moved from one location to another.  

Post office. Establishments conducting operations of the U.S. Postal Service. 

Private driveway. A roadway serving one or more lots, building sites or other divisions of land, which 
lots also have public street frontage and which driveway is maintained by a private person or groups of 
people and which is not intended to be used for public ingress or egress.  

Professional office. The office of a member of a recognized profession maintained for the conduct of 
that profession and licensed by the State of North Carolina, including, but not limited to, the offices of 
doctors, lawyers, dentists, landscape architects, architects, stockbrokers and financial analyst, 
accountants, chiropractors, engineers, or surveyors.  

Professional services.  Services provided that make available the knowledge and skills of their 
employees to sell expertise and perform professional, scientific, and technical services to others. Such 
services include, but are not limited to, legal services; accounting, tax, bookkeeping, and payroll services; 
architectural, engineering, and related services; graphic, industrial, and interior design services; consulting 
services; research and development services; advertising, media, and photography services, real estate 
services; and offices operating in conjunction with a wholesale establishment without warehousing on the 
property. Investment banking, securities, brokerages and insurance-related services are defined under 
banking, credit unions and financial services institutions.  Medical services such as physician's and dentist's 
offices are defined as medical services – professional office.   

Property. All real property subject to land-use regulation by the town. The term includes any 
improvements or structures customarily regarded as part of real property. 

Projecting sign. A sign end-mounted (or otherwise attached) to an exterior wall of a building and which 
projects from the wall.  

Public dedications. Land offered or dedicated to the public (open space, park land, etc.) for the public's 
use.  

Public safety facility. A facility operated for the purpose of providing public safety. This term includes, 
but is not limited to, fire stations and other fire prevention and firefighting facilities, police stations and sheriff 
substations and headquarters, emergency medical stations and substations. This term does not include 
Government Services as defined herein. 

Public utility. Any structure or facility transmitting a service provided by a utility company to include 
private systems such as telephone, electric, water and sewer, gas, power, etc., but not including utility 

53



substations, telecommunication towers, concealed telecommunication support structures, and other 
telecommunications devices.  

Public utility structure. Utility structures including, but not limited to, pumping stations, transformers, 
utility poles, transmission lines, and pipelines that require a specific location to provide service. No 
employees are housed in these facilities.  

Quasi-judicial decision. A decision involving the finding of facts regarding a specific application of a 
development regulation and that requires the exercise of discretion when applying the standards of the 
regulation. The term includes, but is not limited to, decisions involving variances, special use permits, 
certificates of appropriateness, and appeals of administrative determinations. Decisions on the approval of 
subdivision plats and site plans are quasi-judicial in nature if the regulation authorizes a decision-making 
board to approve or deny the application based not only upon whether the application complies with the 
specific requirements set forth in the regulations, but also on whether the application complies with the 
specific requirements set forth in the regulation, but also on whether the application complies with one or 
more generally stated standards requiring a discretionary decision on the findings to be made by the 
decision-making board. 

Reader boards. See "changeable copy sign."  

Real estate direction sign. A sign indicating the direction to a property being offered for sale. (See 
section 36-201(3)f.)  

Real estate sign. A sign offering property for sale, lease or development. (See subsection 36-201(3).)  

Recreational uses, governmental. Facilities owned or operated by governmental agencies for public 
recreational use.  

Recreation facilities, indoor. Uses or structures for active recreation including but not limited to 
gymnasiums, natatoriums, athletic equipment, indoor running tracks, climbing facilities, court facilities and 
their customary accessory uses. This definition is inclusive of both non-profit and for-profit operations.  

Recreation facilities, outdoor.  Parks and other open space used for active or passive recreation such 
as ball fields, playgrounds, greenway trails, tennis courts, pools and golf courses, and their customary 
accessory uses including, but not limited to, maintenance sheds, clubhouses, restrooms, and picnic 
shelters. This definition is inclusive of both non-profit and for-profit operations. 

Recreational vehicle or trailer. See "trailer or travel trailer".  

Recreational vehicle. A vehicular-type unit which is primarily designed not for use as a permanent 
dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use, including, but not limited 
to, trailers or travel trailers. 

Recreational vehicle park, campground. Establishments accommodating campers and their 
equipment, including tents, tent trailers, travel trailers, and recreational vehicles. Facilities and services 
include cabins, washrooms, food services, recreational facilities and equipment, and organized recreational 
activities. 

Religious institution.  Any facility such as a church, monastery, mosque, synagogue or temple, used  
for worship and, if applicable, customary related uses include but are not limited to education (pre-schools, 
religious education, etc.), recreation (gymnasiums, activity rooms, ball fields, etc.), housing (rectory, 
parsonage, elderly or disabled housing, etc.) and accessory uses such as cemeteries, mausoleums, soup 
kitchens, and bookstores and child care centers. Accessory uses operating in conjunction with a religious 
institution may be permitted only on the same parcel as the religious institution or on a contiguous parcel 
to the primary use.   

Residential development. A development consisting of buildings for residential uses such as attached 
and detached single-family dwellings, manufactured homes, apartment complexes, condominiums, 
townhouses, cottages, etc., and their associated outbuildings such as garages, storage buildings, gazebos, 
etc., and home occupations.  

54



Restaurant. A retail business selling ready-to-eat food and/or beverages for on or off-premise 
consumption. Customers may be served from an ordering counter (i.e. cafeteria or limited service 
restaurant), at their tables (full-service restaurant), and at exclusively pedestrian-oriented facilities that 
serve from a walk-up ordering counter (snack and/or nonalcoholic bars). Mobile food vendors, as defined 
herein, shall not be considered a restaurant. 

Retail business. An establishment selling commodities, the sale of which is not otherwise prohibited, 
in small quantities to the consumer.  

Retail services. Establishments providing intangible needs for members of the public.  

Retaining structure. A structure specifically designed to keep or hold an element in a particular place, 
condition, or position.  

Retaining wall. A wall constructed for the purpose of retaining or holding earth or fill, normally in lieu 
of a slope, to accommodate differences in the elevation or grade of adjacent properties. Retaining walls 
located within any minimum required yard as provided for in this chapter, shall not project more than one 
foot above the finished grade of the property they are erected to retain or hold.  

Retention basin. A basin designed to retain a permanent pool of water after having provided the 
planned detention of runoff during a storm event.  

Ridge. The elongated crest or series of crests at the apex or uppermost point of intersection between 
two opposite slopes or sides of a mountain, and includes all land within 100 feet below the elevation of any 
portion of such line or surface along the crest.  

Right-of-way. An area or strip of land, either public or private, on which an irrevocable right-of-passage 
has been recorded for use as a street, crosswalk, railroad, electric transmission line, oil or gas pipeline, 
water main, sanitary or storm sewer main, shade trees, or other special use.  

Riparian. The characteristic of an ecological zone along bodies of water with distinct soils, plants, and 
wildlife characterized by an increase in moisture and different soil conditions.  

Roof sign. Any sign erected, constructed or maintained upon or over the roof of any building or 
structure and which is wholly or partially dependent upon the roof or building structure for support. Roof 
sign shall not include a sign painted on the roof of a building or structure.  

Sanctuary. A room in or that section of a place of worship containing the altar and/or where regularly 
scheduled primary worship services are conducted. The room or part of the place of worship may be used 
for other purposes also.  

Sandwich board or A-frame signs. Any sign, other than portable or movable signs, as defined above, 
which is single or double faced, which may readily be moved from place to place on the premises and which 
is intended to be used in premise parking areas (example: No parking signs, package pickup signs, garage 
signs).  

School. A public, private, or charter institution offering a curriculum of education giving regular 
instruction at the pre-school, primary, secondary, or college level. This definition includes, but is not limited 
to, kindergartens, elementary schools, junior high schools, middle schools, high schools, colleges, 
universities, but does not include child care centers, individual instruction, or classes in a specialized 
subject. 

Screening. A fence, wall, hedge, or other natural planting of sufficient density to serve the purpose of 
a fence or wall that is opaque and minimizes the physical or visual intrusion generated by an existing or 
future use.  

School. A public or private institution offering a curriculum of education authorized by the State of North 
Carolina giving regular instruction at the primary and/or secondary level. This definition includes 
kindergartens, elementary schools, junior high schools, middle schools and high schools but does not 
include day care facilities, individual instruction, or classes in a specialized subject.  

55



Self-service storage facility. A building or group of buildings in a controlled access and fenced 
compound that contains varying sizes of individual, compartmentalized, and controlled access stalls or 
lockers for the storage of customer's goods or wares.  

Setback means:  

(1) The required minimum horizontal distance between the building line and the related front, side, 
or rear property line.  

(2) For the sign regulations found in article VIII of this chapter, setback shall mean the horizontal 
distance between the leading face of the curb of a street and the closest point of a sign or sign 
structure on such lot. Where there is no curb, the measurement shall be made from the edge of 
the pavement.  

Shrub. A woody deciduous or evergreen plant which consists of a number of small branches from or 
near the ground.  

Siding. The exterior wall covering of a structure.  

Sign. Any words, lettering, numerals, parts of letters or numerals, figures, phrases, sentences, 
emblems, devices, designs, material, except live vegetation, including any surface, fabric or other material 
background structure designed to carry such devices, as are used to designate or attract attention.  

Sign area. The area of a sign shall be determined by measuring the display and border parts of a sign 
structure. The structure holding the sign will not be included in calculating in the surface area. If the sign is 
composed in whole or in part of freestanding letters, devices, or sculptured matter and not mounted on a 
measurable surface, the sign area shall be construed to be the area of least squares, rectangles, or circles 
that will enclose the letters, the devices, and/or sculptured matter.  

Sign height. Vertical distance shall be measured from the street grade of the closest point in the street 
upon which the sign is located from the grade at the base of the sign, whichever is higher, to the highest 
point of the sign structure.  

Sign structure. Any structure which supports, has supported or is capable of supporting a sign, 
including any decorative cover for said sign structure.  

Single-family residential development. Any development where:  

(1) No building contains more than one dwelling unit;  

(2) Every dwelling unit is on a separate lot; and  

(3) Where no lot contains more than one dwelling unit.  

Single tenant. A single business establishment, activity, or use which does not share any facilities such 
as parking, storage areas, entrances, etc., with another use.  

Site. All contiguous parcels of land, including any contiguous bodies of water, under one or diverse 
ownership, contemplated for development or already developed as a unit, although not necessarily all at 
one time, and including such portions which the planning and development director determines, because 
of their characteristics, shall comply with the requirements of this chapter.  

Site plan. A plan, prepared to scale, showing accurately all information required by these regulations 
with respect to the development proposal. A scaled drawing and supporting text showing the relationship 
between lot lines and the existing or proposed uses, buildings, or structures on the lot, including, but not 
limited to, site-specific details such as building areas, building height and floor area, setbacks from lot lines 
and street rights-of-way, intensities, densities, utility lines and locations, parking, access points, roads, and 
stormwater control facilities, required to show compliance with all legally required development regulations 
that are applicable to the project and the site plan review. A site plan approval based upon application of 
objective standards is an administrative decision and a site plan approval based in whole or in part upon 
the application of standards involving judgment and discretion is a quasi-judicial decision. 

56



Site specific development plan. For the purposes of applying for zoning vested rights approval under 
this ordinance, this term shall mean a plan of land development submitted to the Town of Weaverville by a 
landowner or agent for purposes of obtaining or land use permits or approvals.  

Soffit. The underside of a structural component such as an arch, beam or cornice.  

Solid screens. A closed wooden fence or solid wall (minimum seven feet in height) used for screening. 
Closed fences and solid walls shall be identical to or of compatible texture and quality with the material and 
color of the principal building. Where solid screens are specifically required by this chapter, landscape 
plantings shall be located between the fence or wall and adjoining property or right-of-way lines. Such 
plantings shall be provided so that no more than two-thirds of the height of the fence or wall is visible from 
the adjoining property within five years of initial construction.  

Special use permit. A permit issued to authorize development or land uses in a particular zoning district 
upon presentation of competent, material and substantial evidence establishing compliance with one or 
more general standards requiring that judgment and discretion be exercised as well as compliance with 
specific standards. The term includes permits previously referred to as conditional use permits or special 
exceptions.  

Start of construction. The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, 
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or improvement was within 180 calendar days of the permit 
date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of a structure (including a 
manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of 
columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation or the placement of manufactured home on a 
foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; 
nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, 
footings, piers or foundations, or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the 
property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the 
main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of 
any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building.  

Storage container. Any container, storage unit, shed-like container or other portable structure that can 
be or is used for the storage of personal property of any kind and which is located for such purposes outside 
of an enclosed building other than an accessory building or shed which complies with all applicable building 
and land use requirements.  

Storm drainage facilities. The system of inlets, conduits, channels, ditches and appurtenances which 
serve to collect and convey stormwater through and from a given drainage area.  

Storm sewer. A closed conduit for conveying collected stormwater.  

Stormwater discharge permit. The stormwater discharge permit issued by the Buncombe County 
authorizing stormwater discharge activities in accordance with applicable ordinances and regulations.  

Stormwater management. The collection, conveyance, storage, treatment and disposal of stormwater 
runoff in a manner to meet the objectives of this section and its terms, including, but not limited to measures 
that control the increased volume and rate of stormwater runoff and water quality impacts caused by 
manmade changes to the land.  

Street. A paved or unpaved route which provides the principal means of access to abutting property.  

Street frontage. That portion of a lot abutting a publicly maintained street or alley.  

Street, major thoroughfare. Major streets that provide for the expeditious movement of high volumes 
of traffic within and through urban areas.  

Street, minor thoroughfare. Minor thoroughfares perform the function of collecting traffic from local 
access streets and carrying it to the major thoroughfare system. Minor thoroughfares may be used to 
supplement the major thoroughfare system by facilitating a minor through-traffic movement and may also 
serve abutting property.  

57



Street, private. Any paved or unpaved area not owned or maintained by a governmental entity, that is 
meant for the conveyance of vehicular traffic and is not a parking lot, although it may pass through a parking 
lot and be at times indistinguishable from said parking lot.  

Street, public. A dedicated public right-of-way in which the roadway has been constructed to public 
standards for vehicular traffic and has been accepted for maintenance by a governmental entity, but does 
not include alleys.  

Street right-of-way. A strip of land occupied or intended to be occupied by a travelway for vehicles and 
also available, with the consent of the appropriate governmental agency, for installation and maintenance 
of sidewalks, traffic control devices, traffic signs, street name signs, historical marker signs, water lines, 
sanitary sewer lines, storm sewer lines, gas lines, power lines, and communication lines. The location of 
any street planned, developed, or built after the effective date of this chapter must be shown on a legally 
approved plat recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Buncombe County.  

Street tree. A tree located along a roadway in compliance with section 36-152.  

Structure. That which is built or constructed, a structure is a walled and roofed building, a manufactured 
home, a gas or liquid storage tank, or other manmade facility or infrastructure.  

Studio for art, dance, martial arts, music. Small facilities which provide individual and/or group 
instruction and training in the arts, including martial arts. This term also includes the processing of 
photographs produced only by users of the studio facilities, yoga and similar instruction, and aerobics and 
gymnastics studios with no other fitness facilities or equipment. 

Subdivider. Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who subdividers subdivides or develops any land 
deemed to be a subdivision.  

Subdivision. All divisions of a tract or parcel of land into two or more lots, building sites, or other 
divisions for the purpose of sale or building development (whether immediate or future) and shall include 
all divisions of land involving the dedication of a new street or a change in existing streets; but the following 
shall not be included within this definition:  

(1) The combination or recombination of portions of previously subdivided and recorded lots where 
the total number of lots is not increased and the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards 
of the town as shown in the town's subdivision regulations;  

(2) The division of land into parcels greater than ten acres where no street right-of-way dedication is 
involved;  

(3) The public acquisition by purchase of strips of land for the widening or opening of streets or for 
public transportation system corridors;  

(4) The division of a tract in single ownership whose entire area is no greater that two acres into not 
more than three lots, where no street right-of-way dedication is involved and where the resultant 
lots are equal to or exceed the standards of the town as shown in the town's subdivision 
regulations; and  

(5) The subdivision or recombination of land by public utilities. The division of a tract into parels in 
accordane with the terms of a probated will or in accordance with intestate succession under 
Chapter 29 of the General Statutes. 

In case of a conflict between this definition and state law (G.S. 160A-376, or any successor statute), state 
law shall control.  

Substantial construction progress. The actual start of construction as defined under "start of 
construction".  

Substantial or significant improvement. Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 
improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the tax value, as determined 
by the Buncombe County Tax Department or market value based upon a certified appraisal, whichever 
value is greater, of the structure before the start of construction of the improvement or when an existing 

58



building is structurally altered such that the first floor gross square footage increased by more than 20 
percent. Improvements, modifications, and additions to existing buildings are counted cumulatively for at 
least five years. This term includes structures which have incurred substantial damage, regardless of the 
actual repair work performed.  

Surface area (with reference to a sign). The entire area shall be measured by the square, rectangle, 
semi-circle, or parallelogram thereof, and shall comprise the entire sign inclusive of any border or trim and 
all of the elements of the matter displayed, but excluding the base or apron, supports and other structural 
members. In the case of three dimensional letters or painted letters directly on a wall surface, the surface 
area shall be defined as the area encompassing the individual letters themselves including any trim or 
border and excluding the background that supports the three dimensional letters.  

Surveyor. A person licensed and qualified as a registered land surveyor in North Carolina.  

Suspended or transom sign. A sign which is suspended from the underside of a horizontal plane 
surface, such as a canopy or marquee, and which is supported by such surface.  

Tattoo parlor. An establishment whose principal business activity, either in terms of operation or as 
held out to the public, is the practice of placing designs, letters, figures, symbols, or other marks upon or 
under the skin of any person, using ink or other substances that result in the permanent coloration of the 
skin by means of the use of needles or other instruments to contact or puncture the skin.  

Temporary portable building. A building intended for nonresidential use for a limited time period, 
consisting of one or more modules constructed off the ultimate site of use and transported to that site either 
on its own wheels or otherwise.  

Temporary portable building, construction-related. A temporary portable building directly related to the 
development of a lot and limited in duration to a time period extending from issuance of the initial zoning 
permit for such development to issuance of the final certificate of occupancy for the development.  

Temporary sign. A sign with or without a structural frame, not permanently attached to a building, 
structure or the ground and intended for a limited period of display.  

Temporary structure.  A structure intended to serve a specific event and to be removed upon the 
completion of that event. This term includes, but is not limited to, bleachers, perimeter fencing, vendor 
tents/canopies, judging stands, trailers, portable toilets, sound/video equipment, stages, platforms, and 
other impermanent devices, which do not involve grading or landform alteration for installation, and which 
are not permanently affixed to the ground. 

Temporary use.  An activity or use of land which, having met certain requirements and conditions, may 
be permitted for a period of limited duration, and which may utilize "temporary structures" for the duration 
of the event. 

Theater, Motion Picture. A specialized facility designed for the interior showing of movies or motion 
pictures on a projection screen. This category includes, but is not limited to, cineplexes and megaplexes, 
complex structures with multiple movie theaters, each theater capable of an independent performance.  

Time/date/temperature sign. A sign containing numerals or letters, which may be alternately displayed, 
and which alternating portion shows only the time, date and/or temperature. This sign shall not be 
considered a flashing or animated sign.  

Tract. This term shall have the same meaning as the term "site."  

Trademark. A name, symbol, or other device identifying a product which is officially registered and 
legally restricted to the use by its owner.  

Trailer or travel trailer. Any vehicle or structure, other than a manufactured or mobile home, but 
including what is commonly known as a recreational vehicle or RV, capable of moving or being moved over 
streets and highways on its own wheels or on flat beds or other carriers, which is designed to be utilized to:  

(1) Provide temporary or permanent quarters for the conduct of a business, profession, trade, 
occupation or recreation;  

59



(2) Serve as a carrier of people, new or used goods, products or equipment.  

(3) No trailer or travel trailer shall be used in any use district as a dwelling.  

Unified business development. A development consisting of one or more principal business structures 
or buildings and necessary accessory structures or buildings to be constructed on a lot or plot of two acres 
or more not subdivided into the customary streets and lots and which will not be so subdivided.  

Use. Any activity, occupation, business or operation carried on, or intended to be carried on, in a 
building or structure or on a tract of land.  

Utility company accessory building or structure. A building or structure used by a utility company to 
provide utility services to the general area in which the building or structure is located, including pumping 
stations, water wells, reservoirs, equipment buildings, sewerage lift stations, etc., but not including ordinary 
utility appurtenances such as poles, pad mounted transformers and splicing pedestals as may be required 
to serve the area in which they are located. The provisions of section 36-12 and the minimum lot width and 
area provided for in article IV of this chapter shall not apply to any lot used for the purpose as defined by 
this paragraph; provided that the minimum front yard requirement of article IV is maintained and the 
minimum side and rear yard requirements of article IV are increased by ten feet.  

Variance. A variance is a relaxation of the terms of the zoning ordinance where such variance will not 
be contrary to the public interest and where, owing to conditions peculiar to the property and not the result 
of the actions of the applicant, a literal enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary and undue 
hardship.  

Vegetative screens. A screen consisting of a hedge or other vegetative plantings and shall contain a 
planting of two or more rows of shrubs and trees at such intervals and with the rows so staggered as to 
restrict visibility through the same by continually providing a year-round opaque foliage screen. Each shrub 
and tree shall have an initial height of at least four feet and shall be expected to reach a height of eight to 
12 feet at maturity. At maturity, the portion of intermittent visual observations shall not contain unobstructed 
openings more than six feet wide. Shrubs and trees planted on mounded earth or berms may have a lesser 
height provided the combined height is at least eight feet. Planting strips for vegetative screens shall be a 
minimum of six feet in width with shrubs and trees planted a sufficient distance from the property line so 
that the drip line will not extend beyond the property line at maturity. Such required vegetative screens must 
be at the same grade level as the land abutting the land being developed.  

Vehicle/heavy equipment sales—Indoor, Establishments which may have indoor showrooms for 
selling vehicles or heavy equipment. This term includes, without limitation, dealers for compact automobiles 
and light trucks, buses, trucks, bicycles, motorcycles, mopeds, ATV's and boat and marine craft. 

Vehicle/heavy equipment sales —Outdoor.  Establishments which may have indoor showrooms or 
open lots for selling vehicles or heavy equipment. This term includes but is not limited to dealers for compact 
automobiles and light trucks, buses, trucks, bicycles, motorcycles, mopeds, ATV's and boat and marine 
craft.  

Vested right. The right to undertake and complete the development and use of property under the 
terms and conditions of an approved site specific development pursuant to G.S. 160A-385.1 or an approved 
phased development plan or by virtue of common law. 

Violation. The failure of a use, structure, or other development to comply with the regulations set forth 
in this chapter. A use, structure, or other development without the elevation certification, other certifications, 
or other evidence of compliance required is presumed to be in violation until such time as that 
documentation is provided.  

Wall. An upright structure of masonry, wood, plaster or other building material serving to enclose, 
divide or protect an area.  

Wall sign. Any sign painted or attached flat against and parallel to the exterior wall or surface of a 
building or other structure and/or which projects from that wall or surface.  

Warehousing and Distribution.  Facilities for the storage of furniture, household goods, or other 
commercial goods of any nature. Such facilities with indoor storage shall be considered "Warehousing and 

60



Distribution with Interior Storage". Such facilities with outdoor storage shall be considered "Warehousing 
and Distribution with Exterior Storage". Warehousing and Distribution without warehousing of any kind shall 
be considered "Professional Services" as defined herein.  

Wholesale business. An establishment selling commodities in large quantities to retail businesses and 
not to the general public at large.  

Wind sign. A suspended sign made of a flexible material such as canvas, sailcloth, plastic or waterproof 
paper, including, but not limited to, banners, pennants, spinners or streamers.  

Window sign. A sign which is permanently painted on, permanently attached to or designed to be 
visible through a window, excluding displays of merchandise.  

Wireless telecommunication facility, stealth. Equipment that designed to be unobtrusive in its 
appearance including but not limited to the co-location of antennas on existing tower facilities, and the 
placement of equipment on flagpoles, buildings, silos, water tanks, pole signs, lighting standards, steeples, 
billboards and electric transmission towers. 

Wireless telecommunication facility, tower. Equipment constructed in accordance with Section 
332(c)(7) of the Telecommunications Act at a single location by a private business user, governmental user, 
or commercial wireless service provider to transmit, receive, or relay electromagnetic signals (including 
microwave). Such facility includes but is not limited to antennas or antenna arrays, wireless 
telecommunication towers, support structures, transmitters, receivers, base stations, combiners, amplifiers, 
repeaters, filters, or other electronic equipment; together with all associated cabling, wiring, equipment 
enclosures, and other improvements. 

Yard. A space on the same lot with a principal building which is open, unoccupied, and unobstructed 
by buildings or structures from ground to sky except where encroachments and accessory buildings are 
expressly permitted in such yard.  

Yard, front. An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a principal building, extending the full 
width of the lot, and situated between the street and front line of the building, projected to the side lines of 
the lot.  

Yard, rear. An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a principal building, extending the full 
width of the lot situated between the rear line of the lot and the rear line of the building, projected to the 
side lines of the lot.  

Yard, side. An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a principal building, situated between the 
building and the side lot lines and extending from the rear line of the front yard to the front line of the rear 
yard.  

Zoning administrator. The official designated by the town manager to administer and enforce the 
provisions of this chapter. The duties of the zoning administrator may be assigned to an existing office, or 
a designee.  

Zoning permit. A permit issued by the Town of Weaverville stating that a particular development 
project, change in use, or addition, is in compliance with the ordinances of the town pertaining to use of the 
land on which such use is situated. A zoning permit is typically issued after all other approvals have been 
obtained.  

Zoning vested right. A right pursuant to G.S. 160A-385.1 to undertake and complete the development 
and use of property under the terms and conditions of an approved site specific development plan.  

Zoning map amendment or rezoning. An amendment to a zoning regulation for the purpose of 
changing the zoning district that is applied to a specified property or properties. The term also includes (i) 
the initial application of zoning when land is added to the territorial jurisdiction of the town and (ii) the 
application of an overlay zoning district or a conditional zoning district. The term does not include (i) the 
initial adoption of a zoning map by the town, (ii) the repeal of a zoning map and readoption of a new zoning 
map for the entire planning and development regulation jurisdiction, or (iii) updating the zoning map to 
incorporate amendments to the names of zoning districts made by zoning text amendments where there 
are no changes in the boundaries of the zoning district or land uses permitted in the district.  

61



(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. IV, § 17-410; Ord. of 8-8-1994; Ord. of 1-20-1992; Ord. of 2-15-1999; 
Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(a); Ord. of 7-16-2012, § 1; Ord. of 7-18-2016(2), § 2 ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 
1 ; Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 2 )  

Sec. 36-6. - Use.  

No building or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or structure or part thereof 
shall be erected, moved, or structurally altered except in conformity with the regulations of this chapter, as 
amended, applicable to the district in which the building, structure or land is located.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-510)  

Sec. 36-7. -– Height, buffering and density.  

No building or structure shall hereafter be erected or altered so as to exceed the height limits, or to 
exceed the density regulations (minimum lot area) of this chapter for the district in which it is located. Height 
limits and densities are shown on the Table of Dimensional Requirements found at Sec. 36-106. For lots 
abutting a residential district, buffering requirements are set forth on the Table of Dimensional 
Requirements found at Sec. 36-106. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-512)  

Sec. 36-8. - Right-of-way.  

Street and highway rights-of-way shall not be included in determining the size of a lot or any required 
yard or open space.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-514)  

Sec. 36-9. - Lot reduction prohibited.  

No building lot, even though it may consist of one or more adjacent lots of record, shall be reduced in 
size so that the lot width or depth, front, side or rear yards, lot area per family dwelling, or other requirements 
of this chapter are not maintained. Building lots created after the effective date of the ordinance from which 
this chapter derives shall meet the minimum dimensional requirements established for the district in which 
they are located.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-516)  

Sec. 36-10. - Yard use limitations.  

No part of a yard or other open space required to surround any building for the purpose of complying 
with the provisions of this chapter shall be included as part of a yard or other open space similarly required 
for another building.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-518)  

Sec. 36-11. - Only one principal building on any lot.  

62

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=791086&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


Only one principal building and its customary accessory building(s) may hereafter be erected on any 
lot, except as authorized by article IX (Special Use Permits) or Sec. 36-84 (Conditional Zoning Districts).  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-520; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-12. - Street access.  

No building shall be erected, structurally altered, moved to, or relocated on any lot which does not abut 
at least 35 feet on a publicly dedicated or maintained street or on a private street which meets the standards 
of the North Carolina Department of Transportation as to maintenance, disclosure and construction. The 
right-of-way of any dedicated public or private street shall not be considered in computing any required 
square footage of a lot necessary to meet the other requirements of this chapter.  

Any lot in the C-2 general business district used for commercial purposes shall have its primary access 
upon the street on which it fronts. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-530; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(b) ; Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 19 )  

Sec. 36-13. - Front yard setback for dwellings.  

The front yard setback requirements of this chapter for dwellings shall not apply to any lot where the 
average front yard setback of the existing buildings, located either wholly or in part within 100 feet on each 
side of such lot within the same block and zoning district and fronting on the same side of the same street, 
is less than the minimum required front yard setback. In such case, the setback on the lot in question may 
be less than the required setback, but no less than the average of the setbacks of the aforementioned 
adjacent buildings.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-532)  

Sec. 36-14. - Side yard setback for dwellings on corner lots.  

Where a side yard abuts a street, the setback requirement for said side yard shall be the same as the 
front yard setback requirements for abutting property facing the side street.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-534)  

Sec. 36-15. - Double frontage lots.  

On lots having frontage on two streets, but not located on a street corner, the minimum front yard 
setbacks shall be provided on each street in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-536)  

Sec. 36-16. - Projections into required open space.  

Every part of a required yard shall be open and unobstructed from its lowest point to the sky, except 
for the ordinary projection of sills, cornices, buttresses, ornamental features, eaves, chimneys and flues 
into such area; provided, however, that none of the above shall project into a minimum required yard (front 
or side) more than 24 inches.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-538)  

63

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


Sec. 36-17. - Visibility at intersections.  

In all use districts except the C-1 general business district, no fence, wall, shrubbery, gutter or other 
obstruction to vision between the heights of 2½ feet and 15 feet shall be permitted to exist within 20 feet of 
the intersection of the right-of-way lines of streets.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-540)  

 Sec. 36-18. - Farms exempt.  

Except as they may be regulated by other ordinances of the town, the provisions of this chapter shall 
not apply to bona fide farms, other than poultry or swine farms which shall not be allowed in any use district 
except as an existing, nonconforming, use. This chapter shall in no way regulate crop lands, timber lands, 
pasture lands, idle or productive farm lands, nor any farm house, barn, poultry house, or other farm 
buildings, including tenant or other houses for persons working on said farms as long as such houses or 
other structures shall be owned by the same owner (or one of the owners) as the farm and shall be located 
on the farm. Such agricultural uses maintain the openness of the land and achieve the purpose of this 
chapter without the need for regulation. However, any non-farm use of farm land shall be subject to the 
regulations set forth in this chapter.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-550)  

Sec. 36-19. - Nonconforming uses.  

Nonconforming land uses in a particular use district are declared by this chapter to be incompatible 
with the permitted uses in the particular use district involved. However, to avoid undue hardship, the lawful 
use of any land at the time of the enactment of this chapter, or at the time of any applicable amendment 
thereof, may be continued even though such use does not conform with the land use for that district. Such 
nonconforming use shall not be:  

(1) Changed to a nonconforming use of higher intensity, such as from a commercial use to an 
industrial use, but may be changed to a nonconforming use of a similar character.  

(2) Restarted after discontinuance of the use (regardless of whether the owner has an intention to 
resume the use or not or has or has not made any efforts to re-establish the use) for nine 
consecutive months, or in cases of the settlement of an estate, after one year.  

(3) Reestablished or replaced with the same or similar use after relocation of the use from its specific 
site.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-560)  

Sec. 36-20. - Nonconforming structures.  

(a) Nonconforming buildings or structures in a particular use district are declared by this chapter to be 
incompatible with the permitted use in the district involved. However, to avoid undue hardship, the 
lawful use of any building or structure at the time of the enactment of this chapter or at the time of any 
applicable amendment thereof may be continued even though such structure does not conform with 
the provisions of this chapter applicable to the district. The nonconforming building or structure shall 
not be:  

(1) Replaced with the same or a similar building, after the physical removal or relocation of the 
building from its specific site as it was located when it became nonconforming. Provided, however, 
that preexisting manufactured housing used as a primary residence in the R-1 and R-2 districts 

64



may be replaced or upgraded to new manufactured housing as close as possible to the size of 
the manufactured housing being replaced.  

(2) Repaired, rebuilt, or altered after damage to the building which exceeds 60 percent of its tax 
value, as determined by the Buncombe County Tax Department, or market value, based upon a 
certified appraisal, whichever value is greater, at the time of such damage; unless a building 
permit for the reconstruction or repair to such building, otherwise permissible, is issued not later 
than six months after such damage occurred and reconstruction is completed no later than 12 
months after issuance of the building permit; provided, however, the zoning administrator may 
extend either time period for good cause shown.  

(3) Enlarged or altered in a way which increases the nonconformity of such building.  

(b) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent the strengthening or restoring to a safe condition of 
any building or part thereof declared to be unsafe by any official charged with protecting the public 
safety. In addition, nothing in this chapter shall prohibit the owner of a building from lawfully occupying 
or using a nonconforming building if the occupancy or use existed at the time of the adoption of this 
chapter, or any applicable amendment thereof.  

(c) All noncomplying signs shall be removed, changed, or altered to conform with the provisions of this 
chapter within 30 days after a finding by the zoning administrator that the sign poses an immediate 
danger to the public health, safety or general welfare, or, in any event, within five years after the same 
become nonconforming, except that signs having a valid permit issued pursuant to the provisions of 
the North Carolina Outdoor Advertising Control Act shall be exempt from the provisions of the five year 
amortization provision above set forth.  

(d) Failure to remove, change, or alter a nonconforming sign within the amortization period set forth above 
shall result in the removal of said sign by the town at the expense of the owner of said sign.  

(e) If the owner of a nonconforming sign which has been removed by the town fails to pay for the costs of 
removal within 30 days of the billing date for such action, a lien shall be placed against the property 
and the town clerk shall certify the same to the town tax collector for collection in the same manner as 
ad valorem property taxes are collected. The amount certified by the town clerk to the town tax collector 
for collection shall include the actual cost of removal of said sign, plus 15 percent of the total cost, 
representing penalty and interest for costs of collection.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-562; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(c), (d))  

Sec. 36-21. - Nonconforming lots of record.  

In the event that the owner of a lot of record in any particular use district owned such lot of record at 
the time of the adoption of this chapter or any applicable amendment thereto and neither he nor a successor 
in title to such lot of record own sufficient land contiguous to such lot to enable them to conform to the 
minimum lot size requirements of this chapter, or is unable to meet street access requirements of this Code, 
the owner or successor in title to such lot may, nevertheless, use such lot as a building site, provided that 
the current owner obtains a zoning permit or variance in accordance with the following provisions:  

(1) Where the lot area and lot width are not more than 20 percent below the minimum standards 
specified in this chapter, and all other dimensional requirements are otherwise complied with, the 
zoning administrator is authorized to issue a zoning permit.  

(2) Where the lot area and lot width are more than 20 percent below the minimum standards specified 
in this chapter or other dimensional requirements cannot be met, the board of adjustment is 
authorized to consider requests for variances of such dimensions as shall conform as closely as 
possible to the required dimensions.  

(3) There must be a maintenance agreement with reference to such private street duly recorded in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Buncombe County, North Carolina providing for the 

65



continuing maintenance of such "private" street in all weather conditions and setting forth the 
party or parties responsible for such maintenance.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. V, § 17-564; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(e))  

Sec. 36-22. - Conflict with other laws.  

Whenever the regulations of this chapter require a greater width or size of yard, or require a lower 
height of buildings or smaller number of stories, or require a greater percentage of lot to be left unoccupied, 
or impose other more restrictive standards than are required in or under any other statute, the requirements 
of this chapter shall govern. Whenever the provisions of any other statute require more restrictive standards 
than are required by this chapter, the provisions of such statute shall govern. If there are conflicting 
provisions within this chapter then the more restrictive provisions apply. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVIII, § 17-1810)  

Sec. 36-23. - Penalties for violations.  

Civil penalties for violations. Any person who erects, constructs, reconstructs, alters, repairs, converts, 
or maintains any building, structure, sign or sign structure or develops, grades or otherwise alters property 
in violation of this chapter, any person who uses any building, structure, sign or sign structure or land in 
violation of this chapter or owns property where a person erects, constructs, reconstructs, alters, repairs, 
converts, or maintains any building, structure, sign or sign structure or develops, grades or otherwise alters 
property in violation of this chapter shall be subject to a civil penalty as provided for in section 1-6 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the Town of Weaverville.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIX, § 17-1910; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(f); Ord. of 2-21-2011)  

Sec. 36-24. - Sidewalk requirements.  

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to ensure that applicants for new construction and renovations, 
additions, and/or expansions to existing structures consider the need for sidewalks as part of the 
proposed development and to establish requirements for the construction of sidewalks. While the town 
recognizes its need to maintain sidewalks and to construct sidewalks to meet the needs of the general 
population, project applicants may be required to participate in the construction of sidewalks to meet 
the pedestrian needs of the citizens of the town. The town also recognizes that in certain cases, 
sidewalks may not be needed or their construction may not be feasible.  

(b) Sidewalks required. Sidewalks shall be required for all new construction and development except for 
(1) single family dwellings, and (2) duplexes. for renovations, additions and/or expansions to existing 
structures which fall into one of the following categories:  

(1) All new multifamily residential development;  

(2) All new office, institutional, and commercial development; and  

(3) All renovations to multi-family residential development, office, institutional, and commercial, existing 
structures where the cost of the renovation exceeds 50 percent of the assessed value, as determined 
by the Buncombe County Tax Office, of the structure for which the renovation is proposed.  

(4) All additions or expansions to multi-family residential development, office, institutional, commercial, 
and industrial development existing structures where the addition or expansion results in an increase 
of more than 50 percent in the gross floor area of the structure and/or the gross floor area of the 
addition or expansion is more than 40,000 square feet.  

66



Sidewalks shall be constructed along all street frontages of the lot for which the development is 
proposed. All sidewalks shall be constructed to a minimum of five feet in width in accordance with the 
standards set forth in the Town of Weaverville Standard Specifications and Details Manual. Sidewalk 
rehabilitation shall be required for the types of development projects identified above where the existing 
sidewalk has been determined by the department of public works to be dilapidated.  

(c) Waiver of requirement.  

(1) Waiver of requirement. For additions to existing residential neighborhoods without sidewalks 
where sidewalks would not be in character with the existing neighborhood, the town manager is 
authorized to waiver the requirement for sidewalks.  

(2) Waiver of requirement by the board of adjustments. In certain instances, the construction of a 
sidewalk may not be warranted or feasible. In these circumstances, the board of adjustments may 
waive the requirement that a sidewalk be constructed provided that certain conditions exist.  

(d) Exceptions. Exceptions may be considered by the board of adjustment under the following 
circumstances:  

(1) If sidewalks are scheduled to be installed as part of a state or town project within ten years, then 
the developer may pay a fee in lieu of construction equal to 100 percent of the full cost of the 
sidewalk as estimated by the town's engineer.  

(2) Where existing and future (based on the potential for development in the area) pedestrian 
volumes and/or vehicle volumes are so low that the level of conflict between vehicles and 
pedestrians walking on the street is minimal. This exception may not be used where road 
geometry creates sight distance problems. (An example of where this exception could be met is 
on a dead-end street that has little existing or future development.)  

(3) Where the construction of sidewalks in the findings of fact by the Weaverville Board of Adjustment 
would create greater harm or danger to the pedestrians.  

Requests for an exception to the requirement that sidewalks be constructed shall be made to the town 
zoning administrator on a form provided by the town.  

(Ord. of 10-19-1999; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(g))  

Sec. 36-25. - Traffic impact analysis.  

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to ensure that applicants for new construction, additions and/or 
expansions to existing structures, and/or changes of use consider and mitigate the impact of the 
development on the existing and/or proposed roadway system. While the town and the State of North 
Carolina recognize their responsibility to build and maintain a public transportation system, the project 
applicants may need to assist in improving transportation facilities in order to maintain the existing 
level of service by accommodating additional traffic generated by the development. These 
transportation facilities involve pedestrian, nonmotorized vehicular traffic and motorized vehicular 
traffic. The town zoning administrator will provide any necessary assistance in the preliminary review 
of these requirements.  

(b) Required. For the purpose of this section, the term "peak hour trip" shall be as defined in the most 
recent edition of the Trip Generation Manual published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers. 
All proposals for new construction, additions and/or expansions to existing structures, and/or changes 
of use which will result in total peak hour trips equal to or greater than 40 peak hour trips using trip 
generation rates from the most recent edition of the Trip Generation Manual published by the Institute 
of Transportation Engineers shall include an analysis of the traffic to be generated by such 
construction, addition or extension. The traffic impact analysis shall be submitted with the zoning or 
project application and shall include the following information:  

(1) Introduction and summary.  

67



a. Purpose of report and study objectives.  

b. Executive summary.  

1. Site location and study area.  

2. Development description.  

3. Principal findings.  

4. Conclusions.  

5. Recommendations.  

(2) Proposed development (site and nearby).  

a. Off-site development: Provide map (the town zoning administrator will identify).  

b. Description of on-site development.  

1. Land use and intensity.  

2. Location: Provide vicinity map.  

3. Site plan.  

4. Zoning.  

5. Phasing and timing.  

(3) Area conditions.  

a. Study area (includes the project area and extends to any intersection where the volume of 
peak hour traffic on any approach leg will be increased by ten percent or more as a result of 
the additional traffic generated by the proposed use).  

1. Area of influence: Provide map.  

2. Area of significant traffic impact: Provide map. (signalized/unsignalized intersections 
and driveways)  

b. Study area land use.  

1. Existing land uses.  

2. Existing zoning.  

3. Anticipated future development.  

c. Site accessibility.  

1. Area roadway system.  

(i) Existing.  

(ii) Planned completion by horizon year (shall be the year in which the project is to be 
completed).  

(iii) Future (the town zoning administrator will identify) proposed roadway 
improvements must be under construction and proposed for completion at the time 
of the issuance of the initial certificate of occupancy for the development in order 
for the improvement to be considered in the impact analysis.  

2. Traffic volumes and conditions.  

(i) Provide a figure showing existing daily traffic volumes and peak hour turning 
movements for identified study intersections.  

(ii) Provide all documentation in an appendix to the report.  

68



3. Pedestrian access and circulation.  

(i) Review proposed pedestrian access and circulation amenities.  

(ii) Provide adequate pedestrian facilities.  

4. Other modes as applicable.  

(4) Projected traffic.  

a. Site traffic: Existing and proposed zoning.  

1. Trip generation [1]: Provide tables.  

(i) Daily.  

(ii) Peak hour; in/out and total: a.m./p.m.  

2. Pass-by trips: To be determined by zoning administrator.  

3. Trip distribution: Provide figures.  

4. Model split: If applicable.  

5. Trip assignment: Provide figures.  

b. Background traffic (horizon year shall be the year in which the project is to be completed).  

1. Method of projection (the city's traffic engineer will provide factor).  

2. Nonsite traffic for anticipated development in study area.  

(i) Trip generation.  

(ii) Trip distribution.  

(iii) Model split, if applicable.  

(iv) Trip assignment.  

3. Background traffic.  

c. Total traffic (horizon year—provide two figures).  

1. Background + (nonsite) + (site-existing zoning) = total for each traffic movement.  

2. Background + (nonsite) + (site-proposed zoning) = total for each traffic movement.  

(5) Traffic analysis. Highway capacity manual/software.  

a. Site access (review all access points).  

b. Capacity and level of service. Provide summary/worksheets in appendix; include a copy on 
diskette.  

1. Driveways (site).  

2. Internal street intersections, if applicable.  

3. External signalized/unsignalized intersections and driveways in study area as identified 
by the zoning administrator. Provide comparative table for existing conditions, horizon 
year with existing zoning/nonsite development, and horizon year with proposed 
zoning/development.  

c. Review impact of cut-through traffic.  

d. Traffic safety. Analyze accident history including adjacent roadway system at signalized and 
unsignalized intersections as per city traffic engineer.  

69



e. Traffic signals. NCDOT may require developer to fund any warranted traffic signal 
modifications on state system streets in Weaverville. The Town of Weaverville does not 
maintain traffic signals.  

f. Other traffic impact reviews. Review to include, but not limited to, parking analysis, internal 
circulation analysis, traffic calming measures and techniques, and traffic demand 
management requirements.  

(6) Improvements analysis.  

a. Improvements to accommodate site traffic.  

b. Alternative improvements.  

c. Status of improvements already funded, programmed or planned.  

d. Evaluation.  

(c) Improvements required. In those cases where the traffic impact analysis required by the Town of 
Weaverville pursuant to this section or where a similar requirement of the North Carolina department 
of transportation requires certain improvements to be constructed in order to accommodate additional 
traffic generated by the proposed developments, the improvements shall be constructed by the project 
developer, at its expense, in accordance with the standards and direction provided by the Town of 
Weaverville or by the North Carolina department of transportation. The improvements shall be in place 
before the final plat is approved, or, if not constructed prior to final approval of the proposed project 
and plat, the completion of such improvements shall be granted in accordance with the following 
section.  

(d) Improvements guarantee; bond for undertaking Unless the construction of all improvements required 
by this section (or by the State of North Carolina) have been totally completed prior to the approval by 
the town of a final plat and the recording of the same, the town shall, for the purpose of approving a 
final plat prior to the completion of construction, accept an agreement to complete and a guarantee 
from the developer that construction of required or contemplated improvements will be completed 
according to the town (or State of North Carolina) approved specifications at the developer's expense. 
Such guarantee may be in the form of:  

(1) A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do 
business in North Carolina;  

(2) A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security for 
the bond;  

(3) A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and 
deposited with the town clerk;  

(4) Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or  

(5) A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other 
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured financial 
institution in an account payable to the town.  

Such guarantee shall be in an amount equal to 125 percent of the cost of the construction of the 
required or contemplated improvements as estimated by the developer or his contractors and 
approved, as to the amount, by the town council. The town manager may allow up to 180 days 
from the date of the council approval of the final plat for the developer to post the necessary 
performance guarantee in addition to all other necessary documents. If prior to the expiration of 
the 180 days, the developer requests a further extension, the town manager may, at his or her 
discretion, grant an additional 180 days to complete the improvements required by the traffic 
impact analysis. If all documents and guarantees are not received by the town manager within 
the 180 day period, the council's approval of the final plat shall become null and void. All 
guarantees shall be reviewed by the town attorney and shall be subject to town council approval. 
Performance guarantees shall be kept by the town until the town manager determines that all 

70



public and private improvements as required by the traffic impact analysis have been constructed 
in accordance with the approved plans.  

If a bank escrow account is used as outlined in subsection (5) above, then the developer shall file 
with the town an agreement between the financial institution and himself guaranteeing that the 
account shall be held in trust until released by the town and may not be used or pledged by the 
developer for any other matter during the term of the escrow.  

The town council may release, from time to time, a portion of any security deposited with the town 
or deposited in a bank escrow account as the required improvements are completed. Such partial 
release of a security deposit shall be upon the petition of the developer to the town manager, who 
must then recommend such partial release of security deposit to the town council with the advice 
of the town's consulting engineers. Requested releases of security deposits shall be facilitated by 
the town manager and the town council shall process the requested release and shall release the 
requested funds within 45 days from the date the request is received by the town manager or the 
town council shall, within such time, deliver to the developer, a written list of deficiencies in 
construction which must be corrected before such petition to release a portion of a security 
deposit will be granted. Not until the town manager determines that all public and private 
improvements as required by the traffic impact analysis have been constructed in accordance 
with the approved plans, shall the total amount of a security deposit required, in excess of the 
actual costs of such improvements expended to a particular time, be released.  

(Ord. of 5-20-2002(1))  

Footnotes:  

--- (1) ---  

Note— Institute of Transportation Engineers (I.T.E.) Trip Generation Handbook, latest edition.  

 

Sec. 36-26. - Outdoor lighting.  

(a) Intent and purpose. Outdoor lighting shall be designed to provide the minimum lighting necessary to 
ensure adequate safety, night vision, and comfort and not create or cause excessive glare onto 
adjacent properties and public street rights-of-way.  

(b) IESNA Cutoff Classifications (translated into laymen's terms). See the appendix (on file with the city  
town clerk) for diagrams of these cutoff classifications.  

(1) Full cutoff: A fixture light distribution where no light intensity is emitted at or above a horizontal 
plane drawn through the bottom of the fixture and no more than ten percent of the lamp's light 
intensity is emitted at an angle ten degrees below that horizontal plane, at all lateral angles around 
the fixture.  

(2) Cutoff: A fixture light distribution where no more than 2.5 percent of a lamp's light intensity is 
emitted at or above a horizontal plane drawn through the bottom of the fixture and no more than 
ten percent of the lamp's light intensity is emitted at an angle ten degrees below that horizontal 
plane, at all lateral angles around the fixture.  

(3) Semi-cutoff: A fixture light distribution where no more than five percent of a lamp's light intensity 
is emitted at or above a horizontal plane drawn through the bottom of the fixture and no more 
than 20 percent of the lamp's light intensity is emitted at an angle ten degrees below that 
horizontal plane, at all lateral angles around the fixture.  

71



(4) Noncutoff: A fixture light distribution where there is no light intensity limitation in the zone above 
the maximum distribution of light intensity.  

(c) Definitions (translated in some instances into laymen's terms).  

Candela means a measure of luminous or light intensity in a certain direction. Useful in determining 
how much light is shining out of a fixture and in what direction.  

Flood lamp means a form of lighting designed to direct its output in a specific direction with a reflector 
formed from the glass envelope of the lamp itself. Such lamps are so designated by the manufacturers and 
are typically used in residential outdoor area lighting.  

Flood light means a form of lighting designed to direct its output in a diffuse, more or less specific 
direction, with reflecting or refracting elements located external to the lamp.  

Footcandle (FC) means a quantitative unit measuring the amount of light (illumination) falling onto a 
given point. One footcandle equals one lumen per square foot.  

Glare means the effect produced by a light source within the visual field that is sufficiently brighter than 
the level to which the eyes are adapted, to cause annoyance, discomfort, or loss of visual performance and 
ability.  

IESNA means the Illuminating Engineering Society of North America, a nonprofit professional 
organization of lighting specialists that has established recommended design standards for various lighting 
applications.  

Illuminance means the amount of light falling on a surface measured in lux or footcandles.  

Internal refractive lens means a glass or plastic lens installed between the lamp and the sections of 
the outer fixture globe or enclosure. Refractive refers to the redirection (bending) of the light as it goes 
through the lens, softening and spreading the light being distributed from the light source thereby reducing 
direct glare.  

Light source means the element of a lighting fixture that is the point of origin of the lumens emitted by 
the fixture.  

Lumen means a quantitative unit used to identify the amount of light emitted by a light source. A lamp 
is generally rated in lumens.  

Lux means a unit of illuminance equal to one lumen per square foot.  

Maintained footcandles means illuminance of lighting fixtures adjusted for a maintenance factor 
accounting for dirt build-up and lamp output depreciation. The maintenance factor used in the design 
process to account for this depreciation cannot be lower than 0.72 for high-pressure sodium and 0.64 for 
metal halide and mercury vapor.  

Medium base means the size of lamp socket designed to accept a medium or Edison base lamp.  

Outdoor performance area means an area permanently dedicated to the public presentation of music, 
dance, theater, media arts, storytelling, oratory, or other performing arts, whether publicly or privately 
owned, including but not limited to amphitheaters and similar open or semi-enclosed structures.  

Right-of-way means an interest in land to the city  town which provides for the perpetual right and 
privilege of the city town, its agents, franchise holders, successors, and assigns to construct, install, 
improve, reconstruct, remove, replace, inspect, repair, maintain, and use a public street, including related 
and customary uses of street rights-of-way such as sidewalks, bike paths, landscaping, mass transit 
facilities, traffic control, traffic control devices and signage, sanitary sewer, stormwater drainage, water 
supply, cable television, electric power, gas, and telephone transmission and related purposes in, upon, 
over, below, and across the rights-of-way.  

Vehicular canopy means a roofed, open, drive-through structure designed to provide temporary shelter 
for vehicles and their occupants while making use of a business' services.  

Wall pack means a type of light fixture typically flush-mounted on a vertical wall surface.  

72



Wide-body refractive globe means a translucent lamp enclosure used with some outdoor fixtures to 
provide a decorative look (including but not limited to acorn and carriage light style fixtures). Wide-body 
refers to a wider than average size globe (greater than 15.75 inches in diameter). Refractive refers to the 
redirection (bending) of the light as it goes through the lens, rendering the light fixture more effective. Wide-
body refractive globes are intended to soften and spread the light being distributed from the light source 
thereby reducing direct glare.  

(d) Light measurement technique. Light level measurements shall be made at the property line of the 
property upon which the light to be measured is being generated. If measurement on private property 
is not possible or practical, light level measurements may be made at the boundary of the public street 
right-of-way that adjoins the property of the complainant or at any other location on the property of the 
complainant. Measurements shall be made at finished grade (ground level), with the light-registering 
portion of the meter held parallel to the ground pointing up. The meter shall have cosine and color 
correction and have an accuracy tolerance of no greater than plus or minus five percent. 
Measurements shall be taken with a light meter that has been calibrated within the year. Light levels 
are specified, calculated and measured in footcandles (FC). All FC values below are maintained 
footcandles.  

(e) General standards for outdoor lighting.  

(1) Unless otherwise specified in subsections (e) through (k) below, the maximum light level shall be 
0.5 maintained footcandle at any property line in a residential district, or on a lot occupied by a 
dwelling, congregate care or congregate living structure, and 2.0 maintained footcandles at any 
public street right-of-way, unless otherwise approved by the town council.  

(2) All floodlights shall be installed such that the fixture shall be aimed down at least 45 degrees from 
vertical flood lights and display lights shall be positioned such that any such fixture located within 
50 feet of a public street right-of-way is mounted and aimed perpendicular to the right-of-way, 
with a side-to-side horizontal aiming tolerance not to exceed 15 degrees from perpendicular to 
the right-of-way.  

(3) All flood lamps emitting 1,000 or more lumens shall be aimed at least 60 degrees down from 
horizontal or shielded such that the main beam from the light source is not visible from adjacent 
properties or the public street right-of-way.  

(4) All wall pack fixtures shall be cutoff fixtures.  

(5) All fixtures installed by public agencies, their agents, or contractors for the purpose of illuminating 
public streets are otherwise exempt from this regulation.  

(f) Lighting in parking lots and outdoor areas.  

(1) Other than flood lights and flood lamps, all outdoor area and parking lot lighting fixtures of more 
than 2,000 lumens shall be cutoff fixtures, or comply with subsection (4) below.  

(2) The mounting height of all outdoor lighting, except outdoor sports field lighting and outdoor 
performance area lighting, shall not exceed 37 feet above finished grade, unless approved by the 
planning commission as having no adverse effect.  

(3) Open parking facilities. For lighted parking lots the minimum light level shall be no less than 0.2 
footcandles. All light levels are measured at ground level. The minimum light level requirements 
vary depending on the activity classification. The specified minimum FC value above 0.2 FC as 
outlined in the following table means that the lowest light level point or location in the parking lot 
must not exceed the minimum stated FC value in the table (i.e. 0.9 FC for large shopping centers). 
An average to minimum uniformity ratio of 4:1 means that the average FC to minimum FC ratio 
cannot be worse (higher) than 4:1. See the following table:  

Light Levels for Open Outdoor Parking Facilities*  

73



Use/Task  
Maintained 
Footcandles  

Uniformity 
Avg/Min  

(a)  Parking, residential, multi-family    

•  Low to medium vehicular/pedestrian activity  
Range from 

0.2 Min to 0.6 
Min  

4:1  

(b)  Parking, industrial/commercial/institutional/municipal    

•  
High activity, i.e. large shopping centers/fast food facilities, major 

athletic/civic cultural events  
0.9 Min  4:1  

•  

Medium/low activity, i.e. community shopping, office parks, 
hospitals, commuter lots, cultural/civic/recreational events, 

residential neighborhood shopping, industrial employee parking, 
schools, church parking  

Range from 
0.2 Min to 0.6 

Min  
4:1  

  

* Source: IESNA 8 th Edition Lighting Handbook  

Notes:  

1. Illumination levels are horizontal on the task, e.g. pavement or area surface.  

2. Uniformity ratios dictate that average illuminance values shall not exceed minimum values 
by more than the product of the minimum value and the specified ratio. For example, for 
commercial parking medium/low activity, the average footcandles shall not be in excess of 
2.4 (0.6 x 4).  

3. A low/medium activity can be reclassified upward when appropriate and only with Town of 
Weaverville approval.  

(4) Exceptions:  

a. Noncutoff fixtures may be used when the maximum initial lumens generate by each fixture 
shall not exceed 9,500 initial lamp lumens per fixture.  

b. All metal halide, mercury vapor, fluorescent, induction, white high pressure sodium and color 
improved high pressure sodium lamps used in noncutoff fixtures shall be coated with an 
internal white frosting inside the outer lamp envelope.  

c. All metal halide fixtures equipped with a medium base socket must utilize either an internal 
refractive lens or a wide-body refractive globe as described in subsection (c) Definitions.  

(g) Lighting for vehicular canopies. Areas under a vehicular canopy shall have an average maximum 
horizontal illuminance of 24 maintained footcandles (FC). Areas outside the vehicular canopy shall be 

74



regulated by the standards of subsection (f) above. Lighting under vehicular canopies shall be 
designed so as not to create glare off-site. Acceptable methods include one or more of the following:  

(1) Recessed fixture incorporating a lens cover that is either recessed or flush with the bottom surface 
(ceiling) of the vehicular canopy that provides a cutoff or shielded light distribution.  

(2) Surface mounted fixture incorporating a flat glass that provides a cutoff or shielded light 
distribution.  

(3) Other method approved by the Town of Weaverville.  

(h) Lighting of outdoor display areas.  

(1) Parking lot outdoor areas shall be illuminated in accordance with the requirements for subsection 
(f) above. Outdoor display areas shall have a maximum average of illuminance of 24 maintained 
footcandles.  

(2) All light fixtures shall meet the IESNA definition of cutoff fixtures. Forward throw fixtures (type IV 
light distribution, as defined by the IESNA) are required within 25 feet of any public street right-
of-way. Alternatively, directional fixtures (such as floodlights) may be used provided they shall be 
aimed in accordance with subsections (e)(2) and (e)(3) of this section.  

(3) The mounting height of outdoor display area fixtures shall not exceed 37 feet above finished 
grade, unless approved by the planning commission as having no adverse effect.  

(i) Lighting of buildings and landscaping.  

(1) Lighting fixtures shall be selected, located, aimed, and shielded so that direct illumination is 
focused exclusively on the building facade, plantings, and other intended site feature and away 
from adjoining properties and the public street right-of-way.  

(2) Minimum illumination on any vertical surface or angular roof shall not exceed 5.0 FC average 
maintained.  

(3) To the extent practical and where possible, lighting fixtures shall be directed downward rather 
than upward.  

(4) When aiming upward is used, placing low wattage fixtures with shields as needed close to the 
building to graze the facade is encouraged to minimize reflected light from windows and other 
surfaces that would be present from a flood design.  

(j) Permits. The applicant for any permit required for work involving outdoor lighting shall submit 
documentation at time of site plan or plot plan approval that the proposed lighting plan complies with 
the provisions of this Code. The submission shall contain, but not be limited to the following, all or part 
of which may be part of or in addition to the information required elsewhere in this Code:  

(1) A point-by-point footcandle array in a printout format indicating the location and aiming of 
illuminating devices. The printout shall indicate compliance with the maximum maintained 
footcandles required by this Code.  

(2) Description of the illuminating devices, fixtures, lamps, supports, reflectors, poles, raised 
foundations and other devices (including but not limited to manufacturers or electric utility catalog 
specification sheets and/or drawings, and photometric report indicating fixture classification 
[cutoff fixture, wall pack, flood light, etc.]).  

The zoning department personnel may waive any or all of the above permit requirements, 
provided the applicant can otherwise demonstrate compliance with this Code.  

(k) Nonconformities.  

(1) Any lighting fixture lawfully in place or approved by the town prior to the adoption of this ordinance 
shall be exempt from these requirements. At the time that a nonconforming fixture is replaced, 
moved, upgraded, or otherwise changed, the fixture must be brought into compliance with the 

75



requirements of this ordinance. Routine maintenance, including changing the lamp, ballast, 
starter, photo control, lens, and other required components, is permitted for all existing fixtures.  

(2) Property owners that install lighting fixtures after the effective date of this section and are found 
to be in noncompliance shall receive written notification and will be given 90 calendar days from 
the date of written notification to bring the lighting system into compliance.  

(3) Should the property owner fail to bring the lighting system into compliance, the owner shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of $50.00 for the violation. Each day that the lighting system remains out 
of compliance with the requirements of this section after the notification period shall constitute a 
separate violation.  

(Ord. of 5-20-2002(2))  

Sec. 36-27. - Hillside development standards.  

(a) Hillside area definition. For the purposes of this section, a hillside area is defined as any lot, parcel, or 
tract of land which meets all of the following standards:  

(1) Is located within the zoning jurisdiction of the Town of Weaverville.  

(2) Is defined by section 26-26  25-27 as a minor or major subdivision.  

(3) Has an average slope of its natural terrain of 15 percent or greater.  

(b) Previously approved developments exempt. Any portion of the lot, parcel, or tract of land which has 
been approved by the planning board as a minor or major subdivision prior to the adoption of this 
section, or developed prior to the adoption of this section, shall not be included within the definition of 
a hillside area if no further development is proposed within that portion of the lot, parcel, or tract of 
land. Subsequent phases of a minor or major subdivision, as well as approved subdivision projects 
where the site plan has been changed, or approved subdivisions where the lot design has changed, 
shall indicate the proposed contours, limit and area of grading, and percentage of the site to be graded. 
Grading shall mean any manipulation of the ground forms including, but not limited to cutting of trees 
with excavation of stumps or any other earth-disturbing activities; provided:  

(1) That installation of utilities in an area with a topographical change of not more than five percent 
where the area disturbed is not wider than 18 inches (including ditch and spill areas); and  

(2) That creation of stormwater drainage and erosion control ditches except when the ditch is located 
in an existing natural drainage channel and the only improvement is the lining of the channel with 
rock, shall not be considered grading.  

(c) Average slope determination.  

(1) Contour map required. Each application for a minor or major subdivision which meets the 
standards set forth in the hillside definition shall include a contour or topographical map which 
includes a scale and contour interval of two feet on the site plan to determine the average slope 
of a lot, parcel, or tract of land in its natural state.  

(2) Calculation of natural average slope. The natural average slope is calculated using the following 
formula:  

S% = 0.0023 x I x L / A  

Where:  

S = Average natural slope of parcel in percent  

I = Contour interval of map in feet, with said contour intervals to be five feet or less  

76



L = Total length of all of the contours of the parcel in feet (from highest elevation at the 
property line to the lowest elevation on property line)  

A = Area of the parcel in acres  

0.0023 = Constant which converts square feet into acres  

Once "S" or the average natural percent is calculated and rounded off to the nearest whole 
number, the grading and density graph, as set forth hereinafter, shall be used to determine 
development requirements.  

In the alternative, the slope calculator tool on the Buncombe County GIS system can be 
used. 

(d) [Consultation required.] Consultation with a geotechnical engineer, registered to practice in North 
Carolina, shall be required for road construction in areas of a tract in excess of 40 percent natural 
slope, and an investigation for colluvial deposits shall be made. Recommendations of the geotechnical 
engineer shall be submitted with the application review.  

(e) [Grade of slope.] Areas with a natural slope over 40 percent shall not have fill-slopes steeper that a 
2H:1V, nor cut slopes steeper than 1.5H:1V unless designed by a geotechnical engineer.  

(f) [Guardrails and shoulders.] Guardrails, installed to NCDOT specifications of the Standard 
Specifications for the Construction of Roads and Bridges on Federal Highway Projects, and shoulders 
of four feet minimum width will be required in construction of roads over 15 percent grade and with 
downhill slopes of 30 percent or more.  

(g) [Soil maps.] Soils maps shall be submitted if available from the Natural Resources Conservation 
Service (NRCS).  

(h) [Global stability analysis.] Global stability analysis should be performed for home sites on a greater 
than 40 percent or greater slope.  

(i) Density chart.  

(1) Residential development regulated; exceptions. Residential developments which meet the 
standards set forth in the definition of hillside area shall further be regulated with regard to the 
permitted density on the site. The permitted density for residential uses shall be determined by 
the average slope for a site to be developed for residential use in accordance with the density 
chart for the purposes of this section, but in no event can the density be higher than that allowed 
in the applicable zoning district.  

(2) Density chart. The density chart to be used in this section is shown in Figure 1 below. This density 
should be rounded off to the nearest whole number.  

(3) [Exceptions.] As the chart and the definition of hillside area indicate, any proposed development 
whose average natural slope is less than 15 percent is not subject to the regulations for permitted 
density and as set forth herein. Any proposed development which meets the definition of hillside 
area and whose average natural slope is above 65 percent is subject to the most restrictive 
percent labeled on the maximum density scales.  

(j) Hillside area development review process.  

(1) Information required. Compliance with this section shall be evaluated as part of the subdivision 
review process set forth in chapter 25 of the Weaverville Code of Ordinances. In addition to the 
application information required for a subdivision review, those proposed developments which 
meet the standards of the hillside area definition must include the following information:  

a. A site plan which includes the boundaries and acreage of the parcel, scale and contour 
interval, existing and proposed contours;  

77



b. Average natural slope calculations which include the average natural slope in percent, 
contour intervals of five feet or less, individual and total length of contour lines in feet and 
area of the parcel in acres;  

c. A density graph which shows the line that connects the hinge point and average natural 
slope and maximum density scales, labeled with the appropriate number for each scale 
where it is intersected by the line to describe the potential development limits with the number 
of proposed units or lots in the development; and  

d. Other information or descriptions or maps which may be requested by the zoning 
administrator or the planning board to address concerns regarding geologic hazards, soil 
stability, building-to-site relationships, and similar characteristics.  

(2) Issuance of land disturbing permit. No land disturbing permit shall be issued for a site plan review 
or a subdivision review which meets the standards set forth in the definition of hillside area until 
the site plan review and subdivision plat review have been completed.  

Figure 1  

Slope  Septic  Sewer  

 Units/Acre  Units/Acre  

15%—28%  2  6  

29%—34.99%  1  6  

35%—42%  1  4  

43%—44.99%  1  3  

45%—53%  0  2  

54%—65%  0  1  

  

(Ord. of 2-20-2006; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(h); Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 )  

 Sec. 36-28. - Adult oriented business.  

(a) Authority and jurisdiction. The provisions of this article are adopted by the town council under the 
authority granted by the state general assembly. From and after the effective date hereof, this article 
shall apply to every building, lot tract, or parcel of land within the town.  

(b) Purpose. For the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizenry 
of the town, this section is adopted by the town council to regulate adult and sexually oriented 

78

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


businesses, as hereby defined, located in the town. Further the regulations of this section have been 
made with reasonable consideration among other things, as to the character of the town and its areas.  

(c) Abrogation. These regulations shall not repeal, impair, abrogate, or interfere with any existing 
easements, covenants, deed restrictions, setback requirements, rules, definitions, regulations 
previously adopted pursuant to law in any established zoning district in the town. However, where 
these regulations impose greater restrictions, the provisions of these regulations shall govern.  

(d) Definitions relating to adult oriented businesses.  

(1) Adult oriented business. An adult arcade, adult bookstore, or adult video store, adult cabaret, 
adult motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, escort agency, nude model studio, sexual 
encounter center (including adult massage parlor and adult health club), sexually oriented device 
business or any combination of the foregoing or any similar business. As used in this section the 
following definitions shall apply:  

(2) Adult arcade (also know as "peep show"). Any place to which the public is permitted or invited 
wherein coin-operated or slug-operated or electronically, electrically, or mechanically controlled 
still or motion picture machines, projectors, or other image-producing devices are maintained to 
show images to persons in booths or viewing rooms where the images so displayed depict or 
describe "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas".  

(3) Adult bookstore or adult video store. A commercial establishment which as one of its principal 
business purposes officers for sale or rental for any form of consideration any one or more of the 
following:  

a. Books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion 
pictures, video cassettes or video reproductions, slides, or other visual representations that 
depict or describe "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas"; or  

b. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia that are designed for use in connection with 
"specified sexual activities".  

(4) Adult cabaret. A nightclub, bar, restaurant, or other commercial establishment that regularly 
features, exhibits or displays as one of its principal business purposes:  

a. Persons who appear nude or seminude; or  

b. Live performance which are characterized by the exposure of "specified anatomical areas" 
or by "specified sexual activities"; or  

c. Films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or other photographic reproductions which 
depict or describe "specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas".  

(5) Adult motel. A hotel, motored, or similar commercial establishment that:  

a. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration which provides patrons 
with closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or 
other photographic reproductions that depict or describe "specified sexual activities" or 
"specified anatomical areas" as one of its principal business purposes; or  

b. Offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time that is less than ten hours; or  

c. Allows a tenant or occupant of a sleeping room to subrent the room for a period of time that 
that is less than ten hours.  

(6) Adult motion picture theater. A commercial establishment where, for any form of consideration, 
films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or similar photographic reproductions are regularly 
shown as one of its principal business purposes that depict or describe "specified sexual 
activities" or "specified anatomical areas".  

(7) Adult theater. A theater, concert shall, auditorium, or similar commercial establishment which 
regularly features, exhibits or displays, as one of its principal business purposes, persons who 

79



appear in a state of nudity or seminude, or live performances that expose or depict "specified 
anatomical areas" or "specified sexual activities".  

(8) Escort. A person who, for any tips or any other form of consideration, agrees or offers to act as a 
date for another person, or who agrees or offers to privately model lingerie or to privately perform 
a striptease for another person.  

(9) Escort agency. A person or business that furnishes, offers to furnish, or advertises to furnish 
escorts as one of its principal business purposes, for a fee, tip, or other consideration.  

(10) Massage. Any manipulation of body muscle or tissue by rubbing, stroking, kneading or tapping, 
by hand or mechanical device. (See Weaverville Town Code, sections 6-126—6-136).  

(11) Massage business. Any establishment or business wherein massage is practiced, including 
establishments commonly known health clubs, physical culture studios, massage studios or 
massage parlors. (See Weaverville Town Code, sections 6-126—6-136).  

(12) Nude model studio. Any place where a person who appears, nude, or seminude, or who displays 
"specified anatomical areas" is provided to be observed, sketches, drawn, painted, sculptured, 
photographed, or similarly depicted by other persons who pay money or any form of 
consideration. Nude model studio shall not include a proprietary school licensed by the state or a 
college or university supported entirely or in part by public taxation; a private college or university 
which maintains an operated educational programs in which credits are transferable to a college, 
junior college; or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or in a structure:  

a. That has no sign visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that 
indicates a nude or seminude person is available for viewing; and  

b. Where in order to participate in a class a student must enroll at least three days in "advance 
of class; and  

c. Where no more than one nude or seminude model is on the premises at any one time.  

(13) Nude or a state of nudity.  

a. The appearance of a human anus, male genitals or female genitals; or  

b. A state of dress that fails to opaquely cover a human anus, male genitals or female genitals.  

(14) Seminude. A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, [pubic] region, 
and areola of the female breast, as well as portions of the body covered by or supporting straps 
or devices.  

(15) Sexual encounter center. A business or commercial enterprise that, as one of its principal 
business purposes, offers for any form of consideration physical contact in the form or wrestling 
or tumbling (including sexually oriented massaging) between persons of the opposite sex, or 
similar activities between male and female persons and/or between persons of the same sex 
when one or more of the persons is in a state of nudity or seminude.  

(16) Sexually oriented devices. Any artificial or simulated specified anatomical area or other device or 
paraphernalia that is designed principally for specified sexual activities but shall not mean any 
contraceptive device.  

(17) Specified anatomical areas. Human genitals in a state of sexual arousal.  

(18) Specified sexual activities. Is and includes any of the following:  

a. The fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, [pubic] region, buttocks, anus, or 
female breasts; or  

b. Sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or simulated, including intercourse, oral copulation, or 
sodomy; or  

c. Masturbation, actual or simulated; or  

80



d. Excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set forth in 
subsections (a—c) above.  

(e) Adult oriented business. No adult oriented business shall be permitted in any building located in the 
following areas:  

(1) Located within 1,500 feet in any direction from a residential building or residentially zoned 
property.  

(2) Located within 1,000 feet in any direction from a building in which an adult oriented business is 
located.  

(3) Located within 1,500 feet in any direction from a building used as a church, synagogue or other 
house of worship.  

(4) Located within 1,500 feet in any direction from a building used as a public or private elementary 
or secondary school, child day care or nursery school.  

(5) Located within 1,500 feet in any direction from any lot or parcel on which a public playground, 
public swimming pool, or public park is located.  

(6) Located within 1,500 feet in any direction from any establishment with an onpremise ABC license.  

(7) The gross floor area of any adult oriented business shall not exceed 3,000 square feet and all 
business-related activity shall be conducted in a building.  

(8) Except for an adult motel, no adult oriented business may have sleeping quarters.  

(9) There shall not be more than one adult oriented business in the same building, structure, or 
portion thereof. No other principal or accessory use may occupy the same building, structure, 
property, or portion thereof with any adult oriented business.  

(10) Except for signs as may be permitted by chapter 36, article VIII of this Code, no printed material, 
slide, video, photograph, written text, live show, or other visual presentation format shall be visible 
from outside the walls of the establishment, nor shall any live or recorded voices, music, or sounds 
be heard from outside the walls of the establishment.  

(11) No enclosed or underground parking shall be permitted.  

(f) Interpretation of terms and definitions.  

(1) Words used in the present tense include the future tense.  

(2) Words used in the singular number include the plural and words used in the plural number include 
the singular.  

(3) The word "person" includes and owner, firm, joint venture, association, organization, partnership, 
corporation, trust, and company, as well as an individual.  

(4) The word "owner" when applied to a building or land, shall include any part owner, joint owner, 
tenant in common, joint tenant, or tenant by entirety of the whole or part of such building or land.  

(5) The word "lot" includes the words "plot" or "parcel".  

(6) The word "building" includes the word "structure".  

(7) The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory.  

(8) The words "located", or "used" or "occupied" as applied to any land or building, shall be construed 
to include the words "intended, arranged or designed to be located, used or occupied.  

(9) The word "dwelling" shall mean a structure or portion thereof which is used exclusively for human 
habitation.  

(g) Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the board that the sections, paragraphs, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases of this section are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, 

81



paragraph or section of this article is declared unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this article, since the same 
would have been enacted by the town council without the incorporation in this section of any such 
unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section.  

(h) All permitted uses must meet all compliance regulations set forth in the this section.  

(1) Adult oriented businesses are only a permitted use within the commercial-2 (C-2) zoning district.  

(2) Adult oriented businesses will not be a permitted use in the following residential zones:  

Residential-1 (R-1);  

Residential-12 (R-12)  

Residential-2 (R-2);  

Residential-3 (R-3);  

(3) Adult oriented businesses will not be a permitted use in the central business district (C-1) zoning 
district.  

(4) Adult oriented businesses will not be a permitted use in the light industrial (I) zoning district.  

(5) Adult oriented businesses will not be a permitted use in any newly created zoning district except 
commercial-2 (C-2) zoning district.  

(Ord. of 5-21-2007; Ord. of 5-16-2016(1) ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 ; Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 20 )  

Secs. 36-29—36-55. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE II. - ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS  

 

Sec. 36-56. - Use districts.  

For the purpose; of this chapter, The Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, is divided into use districts 
designated as follows:  

R-1 primary residential  

R-2 transition residential  

R-3 general residential  

R-12 multi-unit residential  

C-1 central business  

C-2 general business  

I-1 light industrial  

CZD conditional zoning district 

The following standard use districts are hereby established: 

82

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


(a) R-1. The primary residential district is established in which the principal use of the land is for single 
family residential purposes and the regulations for the R-1 district are established in order to protect 
the existing residential development and protect and promote a suitable environment for family life. 

(b) R-2. The transitional residential district is established in which the principal use of the land is for 
residential purposes and the regulations for the R-2 district are established in order to protect the 
existing residential development and protect and promote a suitable environment for family life. 

(c) R-3. The general residential district is established in order to provide a location for manufactured 
homes on individual lots.  

(d) R-12. The multi-unit residential district is established in which the principal use of the land is for 
residential purposes and the regulations for the R-12 district are established in order to provide a 
location for multi-unit residential development such as apartments and to provide regulations to 
minimize the effects of higher density residential uses. 

 (e) C-1. The central business district is established in which the principal use of the land is for retail and 
food service businesses and the regulations for the C-1 district are established in order to protect the 
present retail businesses and service development within the district and promote future development 
within the district of businesses compatible with a vibrant, walkable main street.  

 (f) C-2. The general business district is established in which the principal use of the land is for commercial 
development and the regulations for the C-2 district are established in order to promote current and 
future development of businesses which are required to serve the needs of residents of the town with 
convenience shopping, goods and services. 

(g) I-1. The light industrial district is established in which the principal use of the land is for light industrial 
development and the regulations for the I-1 district are established in order to promote industrial 
development but provide that the noise, dust, glare, and odor of each such industrial operation be kept 
to a minimum. 

 In addition to the standard use districts, conditional zoning districts may be established in accordance 
with Section 36-84 of this chapter.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VI, § 17-610; Ord. of 4-15-2002; Ord. of 8-20-2007; Ord. of 5-16-
2016(1), § 2 ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 )  

Sec. 36-57. - District boundaries.  

The boundaries of the districts enumerated in section 36-56 above, are hereby established as shown 
on the map entitled "Official Zoning Map of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina," adopted by the town 
council and certified by the town clerk. Said map, and all explanatory matter thereon, accompanies, and is 
hereby made part of this chapter as if fully written herein. Said map shall be retained at all times in the office 
of the town clerk.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VI, § 17-620)  

Sec. 36-58. - Interpretation of district boundaries.  

Where uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of any of the aforesaid districts as shown on 
the official zoning map, the following shall apply:  

(1) Where district boundaries are so indicated as approximately following the center lines of streets, 
highways, streams or rivers, street right-of-way lines or such lines, extended, such center lines 
shall be construed to be such district boundaries.  

83

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


(2) Where district boundaries are so indicated as approximately following lot lines, such lot lines shall 
be construed to be such district boundaries.  

(3) Where district boundaries are so indicated as being approximately parallel to the center lines of 
streets or highways, or the rights-of-way of the same, such district boundaries shall be construed 
as being parallel thereto and at such distance therefrom as indicated on the zoning map. If no 
distance is indicated on the map, such dimension shall be determined by the use of the scale 
shown on said zoning map.  

(4) Where a district boundary line divides a lot with single ownership, the zoning district requirements 
for the least restricted portion of such lot shall be deemed to apply to the whole of such lot. 
Provided, that such extensions shall not include any part of such lot more than 35 feet beyond 
the district boundary line of the least restrictive use district.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VI, § 17-630)  

Secs. 36-59—36-75. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE III. - USE REGULATIONS  

 

Sec. 36-76. - Intent.  

It is the intent of this article that if any use or class of use is not specifically permitted in a particular 
use district as set forth below, such use shall be prohibited in that district.  

It is the intent that this chapter provide for regulation of all uses of land and properties within the Town 
of Weaverville. If a proposed use can't be found on the table of uses herein established or is not specifically 
defined herein, then the zoning administrator shall make a determination on which use most closely 
resembles the proposed use and shall apply those regulations and restrictions. Such determination may be 
made as a formal interpretation, or as part of an issuance or denial of a zoning permit or a notice of violation. 
The zoning administrator's determination is subject to an appeal of an interpretation which shall be heard 
by the zoning board of adjustment. Additionally, town council may consider a text amendment to add the 
proposed use and related regulations to this chapter. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-700)  

 Sec. 36-77. - R-1, primary residential district.  

(a) Intent. The R-1 primary residential district is established in which the principal use of land therein is for 
single-family dwellings. The R-1 district is established in order to:  

(1) Protect the present residential development.  

(2) Protect and promote a suitable environment for family life.  

(3) Discourage any use which would create excessive requirements and cost for public services in 
excess of that of the surrounding area.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the R-1 primary residential district, a building or premises shall be used only 
for the following purposes:  

(1) Single-family dwellings.  

(2) A garage apartment for a single family located on the same lot and incidental to a single-family 
dwelling located on the premises.  

84



(3) Churches and other places of worship; provided that no building for such use shall be located 
within 50 feet of any property line and such use shall be on a lot which abuts and has primary 
access to a major thoroughfare.  

(4) Customary incidental home occupations, including the lodging of two boarders or roomers; 
provided that the operation is conducted within the dwelling and employs no more than one 
person other than the persons resident therein. Each home occupation shall be allowed one 
nameplate sign for the purpose of identification. Such sign shall not exceed two square feet of 
total surface area. Nameplate signs in residential areas shall not be illuminated.  

(5) Customary accessory buildings, including private garages and non-commercial greenhouses and 
workshops, provided they comply with the yard requirements of the district.  

(6) Public parks and playgrounds.  

(7) Single-family modular homes.  

(8) Day care centers operating with five or less children.  

(9) Utility company accessory buildings and structures owned and operated by the town or the utility 
providing water and sewerage services to the area, including such facilities constructed by others 
under the terms of an agreement whereby operation and ownership will revert to the town or the 
utility providing water and sewerage services to the area.  

(c) Special use permits.  

(1) Fraternal organizations and clubhouses. Lots used for fraternal organizations and clubhouses 
shall be separated from abutting properties in any residential district by a ten-foot buffer as 
defined in section 36-5.  

(2) Cemeteries or the expansion of existing cemeteries. Burials in cemeteries established prior to the 
enactment of this chapter shall not require a special use permit. Gravesites on individual 
residential lots are expressly prohibited. No gravesite in any cemetery shall be located within any 
minimum required yard as provided for in this chapter and must be screened as set forth below.  

Screening. All new cemeteries or the expansion of any existing cemeteries must provide a 
vegetative screen, as defined in section 36-5, along all new exterior boundaries of the cemetery 
except along the street upon which the cemetery fronts. Screening shall not extend beyond the 
established setback line along any street. These planting requirements may be modified by the 
board of adjustment where adequate buffering exists in the form of vegetation and/or terrain.  

(3) Schools, both public and private.  

(4) Governmental buildings.  

(d) Further restrictions within the R-1, primary residential district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the R-1 residential district, no building or structure shall hereafter be erected or 
structurally altered to exceed 35 feet in height.  

(3) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(4) Parking. Two off-street spaces shall be provided for each dwelling unit. (See section 36-176).  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-710; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 )  

 Sec. 36-78. - R-2, transition residential district.  

(a) Intent. The R-2 transitional residential district is established in which the principal use of land therein 
is for residential purposes. The R-2 district is established in order to:  

85

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


(1) Protect the present residential development.  

(2) Protect and promote a suitable environment for family life.  

(3) Discourage any use which would create excessive requirements and costs for public services in 
excess of that of the surrounding area.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the R-2 transitional residential district, a building or premises shall be used only 
for the following purposes:  

(1) All uses permitted in the R-1 primary residential district.  

(2) Two-family dwellings.  

(3) Multi-family residential buildings provided that such building meets the requirements of 
subsection 36-241(d).  

(c) Special use permits.  

(1) All special use permits listed for the R-1, primary residential district.  

(2) Boarding houses with no more than ten guest rooms.  

(3) Professional offices and medical offices not used primarily for the treatment of drug addicts or 
alcoholics.  

(4) Day care centers operating with more than five children; provided such center meets the 
requirements of section 36-117.  

(d) Further restrictions within the R-2 transition residential district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the R-2 residential district, no building or structure shall hereafter be erected or 
structurally altered to exceed 35 feet in height.  

(3) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(4) Parking. Two off-street spaces shall be provided for each dwelling unit (see section 36-176).  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-720; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 )  

 Sec. 36-79. - R-3, general residential district.  

(a) Intent. The R-3 general residential district is established in order to provide a location for manufactured 
(mobile) home parks, and manufactured (mobile) homes on individual lots. The R-3 zone is established 
in order to:  

(1) Protect the present residential development.  

(2) Protect and promote a suitable environment for family life.  

(3) Discourage any use which would create excessive requirements and costs for public services in 
excess of that of the surrounding area.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the R-3 general residential district, a building or premises shall be used for the 
following purposes:  

(1) All uses permitted in the R-1 primary residential and R-2 transition residential districts.  

(2) Family care homes.  

(3) Manufactured (mobile) homes on individual lots.  

(4) Manufactured (mobile) home parks, provided that:  

a. There shall be no more than eight, manufactured or mobile homes per acre.  

86

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


b. Each park shall have a minimum area of three acres.  

c. No home or other structure within a park shall be closer to another home or structure than 
25 feet, except that storage or other auxiliary structures for the exclusive use of an individual 
home may be closer to the individual home than 25 feet.  

d. There shall be at least two off-street parking spaces for each home. Such spaces shall be 
provided either on the same site as the home served or in a designated parking area serving 
several or all homes within the park.  

e. No home or other structure shall be located closer than 40 feet to the exterior boundary of 
the park or to an abutting street or highway right-of-way.  

f. A 20-foot buffer, as defined in section 36-5 of this chapter, shall be located along all sides of 
the park, other than on the street upon which it fronts.  

g. All parks shall be served by a water system approved by the state department of 
environment, health and natural resources. Any park not served by a public sewerage 
system must be approved by the Buncombe County Health Department or the state 
department of environment, health and natural resources.  

h. The park owner shall be responsible for providing enclosed garbage containers, stands, and 
for the collection of all garbage and trash if municipal garbage service is not available. If a 
dumpster system is used, common dumpsters shall be located at least 40 feet from any 
manufactured or mobile home and at least ten feet from any internal street within the park.  

i. The resident of each home shall be responsible for securing that particular home on the site 
with proper anchors or tie downs.  

j. All homes shall be underpinned to screen the understructure and wheels.  

k. All internal streets within a park shall be at least 30 feet in width. All streets shall have 
unobstructed direct access to a public street or highway and shall be hard surfaced with a 
minimum of four inches of asphalt, well marked and lighted by the park owner.  

l. All parks shall have at least two access points to a public street or highway for ingress and 
egress of traffic.  

(c) Special use permits.  

(1) All special use permits listed for the R-1 primary residential and the R-2 transition residential 
district.  

(d) Further restrictions within the R-3 general residential district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the R-3 residential district, no building or structure shall hereafter be erected or 
structurally altered to exceed 35 feet in height.  

(3) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(4) Parking. Two off-street spaces shall be provided for each dwelling unit (see section 36-176).  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-730; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

 Sec. 36-80. - C-1, central business district.  

(a) Intent. The C-1 central business district is established in which the principal use of land thereon is for 
retail businesses and services. The C-1 district is established in order to:  

(1) Protect the present retail business and service development within the district.  

87

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


(2) Promote the future development within the district of businesses which are required to serve the 
retail and service needs of the residents of the town.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the C-1 central business district, a building or premises shall be used only for 
the following purposes:  

(1) All uses permitted in the R-1 primary residential and R-2 transition residential districts, provided 
that the more restrictive area and dimensional requirements of the R-1 or R-2 district are met and 
provided all provisions of article IX regarding any special use permit are met.  

(2) Ordinary retail businesses or services, including restaurants and private schools but excluding 
mobile home dealers; the sale of bulk petroleum products; warehouses; mini-warehouses for 
individual storage of personal property; and freight terminals.  

(3) Any business also making products sold at, on and/or off the premises; provided, however, the 
sales area must account for a minimum of 25 percent of the total floor area of the business and 
the business must not employ more than five persons at one time in the making of the product at 
the business site.  

(4) Offices.  

(5) Public buildings.  

(6) Enclosed entertainment facilities.  

(7) Public parks.  

(8) Any business of a drive-in nature including, but not limited to, banks, and pick-up stations for 
laundry and dry cleaning.  

(9) Automobile repair garages or service stations provided they meet the requirement of section 36-
118.  

(10) Lending institutions, which are FDIC approved.  

(11) Automobile sales.  

(12) Funeral homes.  

(c) Special use permits. All special use permits listed for the R-1 primary residential and R-2 transition 
residential districts, provided all provisions of article IX, regarding any special use permits are met.  

(d) Further restrictions within the C-1 central business district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the C-1 central business district, every building or structure hereafter erected or 
structurally altered to exceed 35 feet in height, shall, above such 35-foot height, be set back from 
the front line of the property on which the building or structure is located on the ratio of one set 
back foot for each two-foot rise above such 35-foot height. In no case shall the required setback 
exceed 11 feet.  

Where lots comprising more than one-half of the frontage on one side of a particular block are 
zoned residential and the lots comprising the remainder of such frontage on the same side of the 
particular block are zoned business, the height regulations for the residential district shall apply 
to the lots zoned for business uses on that side of the particular block.  

(3) For sign requirements, see article XII.  

(4) Lots abutting residential district. Where a lot in the C-1 central business district abuts a residential 
district, either directly or across a street (on the side of the C-1 lot), and any use is hereafter 
established on the C-1 lot by the construction of a new building thereon or by the enlargement of 
an existing building on the C-1 lot which enlargement exceeds by 25 percent the floor area of the 
existing building, such building and such lot shall be screened from the lot in the residential district 

88



by a vegetative screen as defined in section 36-5. Only the side of the building or lot facing the 
residential lot shall require screening.  

Exception No. 1: The provisions of this subsection 36-80(d)(4) shall not apply to any lot which is 
used for a use which would be permitted in the adjacent residentially zoned district.  

Exception No. 2: The vegetative screen required by this subsection 36-80(d)(4) shall be omitted 
along the street where the C-1 lot fronts.  

Exception No. 3: The zoning administrator shall have the authority to alter or eliminate the 
vegetative screen required by subsection 36-80(d)(4) where the lot requiring the vegetative 
screen and the adjacent lot zoned residential are in single ownership or upon receipt of a 
notarized statement waiving or modifying the screening provisions of this section, between the 
owner of the lot requiring the vegetative screen and the owner of the adjacent lot zoned 
residential. Any such agreements shall be attached to the application for zoning permit and 
retained by the town.  

(5) Parking. No additional off-street parking other than the parking currently available in the C-1 
central business district shall be required except where the structures currently located on an 
existing lot of record containing more than 1,875 square feet are razed and the lot of record is put 
to a new use in which event the parking regulations of section 36-176 shall be fully applicable to 
said property.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-740; Ord. of 8-8-1994; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(i)—(k); Ord. of 
7-21-2009, §§ 1, 2; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

 Sec. 36-81. - C-2, general business district.  

(a) Intent. The C-2 general business district is established in order to:  

(1) Protect the present residential development.  

(2) Protect and promote a suitable environment for family life.  

(3) Promote the future development of businesses which are required to serve the needs of residents 
of the town with convenient shopping, goods and services.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the C-2 general business district, a building or premises shall be used only for 
the following purposes:  

(1) All uses permitted in the R-1 primary residential and R-2 transition residential districts, provided 
the more restrictive area and dimensional requirements of the R-1 or R-2 districts are met and 
provided all provisions of article IX regarding any special use permits are met.  

(2) All uses permitted in the C-1 central business district.  

(3) Any business also making products sold at, on and/or off the premises; provided, however, the 
sales area must account for a minimum of 25 percent of the total floor area of the business and 
the business must not employ more than five persons at one time in the making of the product at 
the business site.  

(4) Automobile repair garages or service stations provided they meet the requirements of section 36-
118.  

(5) Hospital facilities as defined under definitions.  

(6) Businesses with gaming terminals, as defined in section 36-5, provided all use restrictions in 
section 36-119 are met.  

(7) Any business of a drive-in nature including, but not limited to, banks, restaurants, and pick-up 
stations for laundry and dry cleaning.  

89

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


(8) Storage buildings and fenced storage yards, not including junk yards or mini-warehouses. All new 
fenced storage yards or expansions of existing storage yards must provide a "vegetative screen" 
as defined under "screen" in section 36-5 of this chapter, along all new exterior boundaries of the 
fenced storage yard.  

(9) Hotels and motels.  

(c) Special use permits.  

(1) All special use permits listed for the R-1 primary residential, R-2 transition residential, and C-1 
central business districts, provided all provisions of article IX regarding any special use permits 
are met.  

(2) Unified business developments, provided such developments meet the requirements of section 
36-240.  

(d) Further restrictions within the C-2 general business district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the C-2 central business district, no building or structure shall hereafter be erected or 
structurally altered to exceed 75 feet in height.  

(3) Access. Any lot in the C-2 central business district hereafter used for business or service purposes 
shall have its only access upon the street on which it fronts.  

(4) Lots abutting residential district. Where a lot in the C-2 general business district adjoins any 
property zoned residential, and any business or service is hereafter established on the C-2 lot as 
permitted in subsection 36-81(b) or (c), such lot shall have a minimum setback requirement of 30 
feet from all abutting property zoned residential. Such lot shall also be separated from the abutting 
property in a residential district by a 20-foot buffer as defined in section 36-5 of this chapter, which 
buffer may be planted within the 30-foot setback area.  

(5) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(6) For parking, see section 36-176.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-750; Ord. of 7-21-2009, § 3; Ord. of 7-16-2012, § 2; Ord. of 
10-15-2012, § 1; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

 Sec. 36-82. - I-1, light industrial district.  

(a) Intent. The I-1 light industrial district is established in which the principal use of the land is for light 
industrial development. The I-1 zone is established in order to:  

(1) Protect the present residential development.  

(2) Promote industrial development but provide that the permitted use be conducted within a 
confined, enclosed building, insofar as practical.  

(3) Promote industrial development but provide that the noise, dust, glare, and odor of each such 
industrial operation be kept to a minimum.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the I-1 light industrial district, a building or premises shall be used only for the 
following purposes:  

(1) All uses permitted in the R-1 primary residential, R-2 transition residential, R-3 general residential, 
C-1 central business and C-2 general business districts, provided all provisions of article IX 
regarding any special use permits are met.  

(2) Any industry which does not cause injurious or obnoxious noise, vibrations, smoke, gas, fumes, 
odor, dust or fire hazard.  

90

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


(3) Wholesaling or warehousing, but excluding petroleum or gas bulk storage.  

(4) Freight transportation terminals.  

(5) Farm equipment services.  

(6) Businesses with gaming terminals, as defined in section 36-5, provided all use restrictions in 
section 36-119 are met.  

(c) Special use permits.  

(1) Any special use permits listed for the R-1 primary residential, R-2 transition residential, R-3 
general residential, C-1 central business or C-2 general business districts, provided all provisions 
of article IX regarding any special use permits are met.  

(2) Community facilities and convenience trade establishments which provide needed services to 
industrial development.  

(3) Light manufacturing or assembly operations, provided such operations are conducted entirely 
within an enclosed structure, and are of such a nature as to produce no obnoxious or injurious 
noise, vibrations, smoke, gas, fumes, odors, dust or fire hazard. The board of adjustment shall 
also ensure that the following conditions are met:  

a. No outside storage of materials or products shall be permitted.  

b. Solid waste service shall be provided by the applicant firm in accordance with the provisions 
of chapter 22 of this Code.  

c. Adequate off-street parking and loading spaces shall be provided in at least the following 
numbers: One parking space for each employee on the shift of maximum employment; plus 
one additional parking space for each company vehicle operating from the premises; plus 
one additional parking space per 2,500 square feet of gross floor area, or any fraction 
thereof; plus one loading space for each loading door or dock.  

d. Any previously existing building or structure modified and used for light manufacturing or 
assembly operations shall have all electrical wiring updated to comply with the current 
National Electrical Code requirements as they apply to the proposed use. No production 
operations shall begin prior to final certification by the county building inspector that the 
structure meets all building, plumbing and electrical codes applicable to the proposed use of 
the structure.  

(d) Further restrictions within the I-1, light industrial district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the I-1 district, no building or structure shall hereafter be erected or structurally altered 
to exceed 75 feet in height.  

(3) Lots abutting residential district. Where a lot in the I-1 light industrial district adjoins any property 
zoned residential, and any use is hereafter established on the I-1 lot as permitted in subsection 
36-82(b) or (c), such lot shall have a minimum setback requirement of 40 feet from all abutting 
property zoned residential. Where a lot in the I-1 district adjoins a lot zoned residential, and any 
use is hereafter established as permitted in subsection 36-82(b) or (c), such lot shall also be 
separated from the abutting property in the residential district by a 20-foot buffer as defined in 
section 36-5 of this chapter, which buffer may be within the 40-foot setback area.  

(4) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(5) For parking, see section 36-176.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VII, § 17-760; Ord. of 7-21-2009, § 4; Ord. of 7-16-2012, § 3; Ord. of 
10-15-2012, § 2; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

91

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


Sec. 36-83. - Repealed.  

Editor's note— Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 , repealed § 36-83, which pertained to TND, traditional 
neighborhood development district, and derived from Ord. of 4-15-2002; Ord. of 12-15-2003; 
Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(l)—(r).  

Sec. 36-84. - Conditional zoning district.  

(a) Intent. The CZD-conditional zoning districts provide for those situations where a particular use, 
properly planned, may be appropriate for a particular site, but where the general district has insufficient 
standards to mitigate the site-specific impact on surrounding area.  

(b) Use permitted. The uses which may be considered for a conditional zoning district shall be established 
on an individual basis, at the request of the property owner, according to the procedures of section 36-
83(d). Zoning of a conditional zoning district is not intended for the securing of early or speculative 
reclassification of property. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district will appropriately 
regulate site-specific impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas.  

(c) Definition of conditional zoning district. For purpose of this section, a "conditional zoning district" shall 
be defined as a zoning district in which the development and use of the property included in the district 
is subject to predetermined ordinance standards and the rules, regulations, and conditions imposed 
as part of the legislative decision creating the district and applying it to the particular property. If the 
property use is ever proposed to be changed from the original approved plan, then the new proposed 
use and plan must be resubmitted for approved by the town council.  

(d) Petition of request. Property may be rezoned to a conditional zoning district only in response to and 
consistent with a petition of the owners, or agents of the owners of all of the property to be included in 
the district and shall be accompanied by an official petition, a statement analyzing the reasonableness 
of the proposed rezoning request by the petitioner, the established fee, and documentation as required 
by the following:  

(1) A petition for a conditional zoning district must include a site plan and supporting information that 
specifies the actual use or uses intended for the property and any rules, regulations, and 
conditions that, in addition to all predetermined ordinance requirements, will govern the 
development and use of the property;  

(2) A boundary survey and vicinity map showing the property's total acreage, current zoning 
classification(s) general location in relation to major streets, date and north arrow;  

(3) Existing topography on the site and within 300 feet of the boundary of the site, and the general 
nature of the proposed topography contours shown at a maximum of five feet;  

(4) All existing easements, reservations, rights-of-way, and any other valid restrictions on the use of 
the land;  

(5) The number and general location of all proposed structures;  

(6) The proposed use of all land and structures, including the number of residential units or the total 
square footage of any nonresidential development;  

(7) All yards, buffers, screening, and landscaping required by the town code;  

(8) All existing and proposed points of access to public streets and the locations of proposed new 
streets;  

(9) Delineation of areas within the floodplain;  

(10) Proposed number and location of the signs;  

(11) Proposed phasing, if any, and the approximate completion time for the project;  

92

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


(12) The location of existing and proposed storm drainage patterns and facilities intended to serve the 
development;  

(13) Traffic, parking, and circulation plans, showing the proposed location and arrangement of parking 
spaces and ingress and egress to adjacent streets, existing and proposed;  

(14) A list of adjoining properties including county tax parcel numbers and the name and address of 
each owner, provided in digital form;  

(15) The location of significant trees on the petitioned property;  

(16) The scale of buildings relative to adjoining properties, including sight lines;  

(17) Information on the height of all proposed structures;  

(18) Exterior features of all of the proposed development;  

(19) Any supporting text shall constitute part of the petition.  

(e) Time limits. A time limit of 240 calendar days for securing applicable permits in order to construct the 
project and 365 calendar days thereafter for completion of the project; provided, however, the town 
council may approve up to an additional 365 calendar days for completion of the project, for good 
cause shown. In the event that the project involves more than three acres and/or more than 15,000 
thousand square feet, the time period for securing applicable permits for the project shall be 365 
calendar days and the time period for completion of the project shall be 730 calendar days thereafter; 
provided, however, the town council may approve up to an additional 180 calendar days for completion 
of the project, for good cause shown. Conditional zoning district projects that have approved detailed 
plans and have secured applicable permits for start of construction as of May 1, 2009, but on which 
there has not been a start of construction, will have an additional 12 months to be added to the 
construction time limits in this subsection from the date of approval of the detailed plans for the 
completion of the project.  

(f) Minor modifications. Minor modifications to a project shall be submitted to the zoning administrator for 
review. No building permit for the proposed development or any part thereof shall be issued until the 
zoning administrator has determined that the pertinent detailed plans are in accordance with the 
application and general plans as approved by the town council.  

(g) Future variance request. Property zoned CZD will not be able to apply for a variance on the approved 
project.  

(h) Maintaining the zoning district. CZD is a change in the zoning district and therefore is maintained after 
the sale of the property. If the property owner wishes to change the approved CZD plan, the property 
owner must reapply with the town council for a zoning change.  

(i) Guarantee of conditions. At the discretion of the town council, the council may require the property 
owner to guarantee the performance or completion of conditions included in the approved conditional 
zoning plan. Such guarantee may be in the form of:  

(1) A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do 
business in the state;  

(2) A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security for 
the bond;  

(3) A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and 
deposited with the town clerk;  

(4) Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or  

(5) A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other 
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured financial 
institution in an account payable to the town. The amount of the guarantee shall be determined 
by the town council.  

93



(j) District approval. If a petition for a conditional zoning is approved, the development and use of the 
property shall be governed by the predetermined ordinance requirements applicable to such district 
category, the approved site plan for the district, and any additional approved rules, regulations, and 
conditions, all of which shall constitute the zoning regulations for the approved district. Each conditional 
zoning district will be given a special number, distinguishing such district from another zoning district.  

(k) Planning and zoning review. All conditional zoning shall require that the request be submitted to the 
town planning and zoning board to determine if approvals of such plans are made in consideration of 
identified relevant adopted land-use plans for the area including, but not limited to, comprehensive 
plans, strategic plans, district plans, area plans, neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other land-
use policy documents. A statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning shall be 
prepared by the town planning and zoning board for each petition for a rezoning to a conditional zoning 
district and submitted to the town council for final action on the request.  

(l) Public involvement. Before a public hearing may be held by the town council on a petition for a 
conditional zoning the petitioner must file in the office of the town clerk a written report of a at least 
one community meeting held by the petitioner. The report shall include, among other things, a listing 
of those persons and organizations contacted about the meeting and the manner and date of contact, 
the date, time, and location of the meeting, a roster of the persons in attendance at the meeting, a 
summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description of any changes to the rezoning petition 
made by the petitioner as a result of the meeting. In the event the petitioner has not held at least one 
meeting pursuant to this subsection, the petitioner shall file a report documenting efforts that were 
made to arrange such a meeting and stating the reasons such a meeting was not held. The adequacy 
of a meeting held or report filed pursuant to this subsection shall be considered by the town council 
but shall not be subject to judicial review.  

Notice of such a public hearing shall be given to all the property owners within 200 feet of the property 
boundaries and in accordance with the provisions of G.S. 160A-364.  

(m) Judicial review. Conditional zoning district decisions under this section are a legislative process and 
not subject to judicial review.  

In the event of noncompliance by a property owner or any subsequent resale or lease of a property for 
use other than that stipulated in the original CZD approval, the property owner would be in violation of the 
town zoning ordinance.  

(n) Approval procedures. Except as specifically modified by this section, the procedures to be followed by 
the town council in reviewing, granting, or denying any petition for conditional zoning shall be the same 
as those established for general use district zoning petitions under G.S. ch. 160A, art. 19. Each 
ordinance adopted by town council which establishes a conditional zoning district within the Town of 
Weaverville is hereby incorporated into this chapter as a separate and unique zoning district and shall 
be reflected on the town's zoning map. Copies of such ordinances shall be kept on file with the town 
clerk and may be reviewed upon request. 

 The town council may not vote to rezone property to a conditional zoning district during the time period 
beginning on the date of a municipal general election and concluding on the date immediately following the 
date on which the town council holds its organizational meeting following a municipal general election 
unless no person spoke against the rezoning at the public hearing and no valid protest petition under G.S. 
160A-386 was filed. If a valid protest petition under G.S. 160A-386 has been filed against a zoning petition 
which would otherwise have been scheduled for a public hearing during the period beginning on the first 
day of October prior to a municipal general election, but prior to the new town council taking office.  

(Ord. of 8-20-2007; Ord. of 11-17-2008, § 1; Ord. of 4-20-2009, § 3; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 ; 
Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 6 )  

 Sec. 36-85. - R-12, multi-unit residential district.  

94

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


(a) Intent. The R-12 multi-unit residential district is established in which the principal use of land therein is 
for residential purposes. The R-12 district is established in order to:  

(1) Protect existing development.  

(2) Protect and promote a suitable environment for the public.  

(3) Discourage any use which would create excessive requirements and costs for public services in 
excess of that of the surrounding area.  

(b) Uses permitted. Within the R-12 multi-unit residential district, a building or premises shall be used only 
for the following purposes:  

(1) All uses permitted in the R-1 primary residential district.  

(2) Two-unit dwellings.  

(3) Multi-family residential buildings provided that such buildings do not exceed 12 dwelling units per 
acre and meets the requirements of subsection 36-241(d).  

(c) Special use permits.  

(1) All special use permits listed for the R-1, primary residential district.  

(2) Boarding houses with no more than ten guest rooms.  

(3) Professional offices and medical offices not used primarily for the treatment of drug addicts or 
alcoholics.  

(4) Day care centers operating with more than five children; provided such center meets the 
requirements of section 36-117.  

(d) Further restrictions within the R-12 multi-unit residential district.  

(1) For dimensional requirements, see article IV.  

(2) Height. In the R-12 multi-family residential district, no building or structure shall hereafter be 
erected or structurally altered to exceed 45 feet in height or more than 3 stories.  

(3) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(4) Parking. Two off-street spaces shall be provided for each dwelling unit (see section 36-176).  

( Ord. of 5-16-2016(1), § 3 ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 ; Ord. of Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 3 )  

Secs. 36-86—36-105 36-103. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE IV. - TABLE OF USES AND TABLE OF DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS  

Sec. 36-104. Notes on Table of Uses. 

Notes:  

1. See Article V (Sec. 36-116 et seq.) for additional standards for those uses identified on the Table 
of Uses as "permitted with standards." 

2. If a proposed use can't be found on the table of uses herein established or is not specifically 
defined herein, then the regulations and restrictions governing the use which most closely 
resembles the proposed use shall apply. 

3. The abbreviations and symbols shown in the Table of Uses have the following meanings: 

 "C" = Conditional Zoning District required 

95

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


"P" = Permitted 

"PS" = Permitted with Standards 

"-"  = Not Permitted 

Sec. 36-105. – Table of Uses. 

USES R-1 R-2 R-3 R-12 C-1 C-2 I-1
Residential 
Dwelling - Single Family P P P - - - - 
Dwelling – Duplex - P P P - - - 
Dwelling - Multifamily (4 or fewer 
units/building) 

- P P P - - - 

Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 4 
units/building) 

- - C C - - - 

Dwelling – Secondary PS PS PS - - - - 
Family Care Home (6 or fewer residents) P P P - - - - 
Child Care Home (6 or fewer children) PS PS PS - - - - 
Home Occupation PS PS PS PS - - - 
Manufactured Home - - PS - - - - 
Manufactured Home Park - - - - - - - 
Recreational Vehicle - - - - - - - 
Recreational Vehicle Park, Campground - - - - - C C 
Bed & Breakfast P P P - - - - 
Hotel, Motel, Inn - - - - C C C 
Office / Service 
Animal Services, Veterinary Clinic - - - - P P P 
Automated Teller Machines - - - P P P P 
Automobile Services, Gas Station - - - - P P P 
Automobile Services, Repair PS PS PS 
Banks, Credit Unions, Financial Services - - - - PS P P 
Child Care Center (more than 6) - - - - C PS PS 
Community Service Organization - - - - - P P 
Equipment Rental (Exterior Storage) - - - - - - P 
Equipment Rental (Interior Storage) - - - - - P P 
Funeral Home - - - - P P P 
Group Care Facility (more than 6 
residents) 

- - - - C P P 

Government Services C C C C C P P 
Kennels - - - - - PS PS 
Medical Services - Clinic, Urgent Care 
Center, Hospital 

- - - - - P P 

Medical Services - Doctor Office - - - - P P P 

96



USES R-1 R-2 R-3 R-12 C-1 C-2 I-1 
Personal Services - - - - P P P 
Post Office - - - - - P P 
Professional Services - - - - P P P 
Studio - Art, Dance Martial Arts, Music - - - - P P P 
Retail / Restaurants 
Accessory Retail  - - - - P P P 
Alcoholic Beverage Sales Store - - - - P P P 
Auto / Mechanical Parts Store - - - - P P P 
Bar / Tavern / Night Club - - - - P P P 
Drive-Thru Retail / Restaurant - - - - - P P 
General Retail (Under 10,000 sq. ft.) - - - - P P P 
General Retail (10,000 - 24,999 sq. ft.) 

    
PS PS PS 

General Retail (25,000 sq. ft. or more) - - - - C C C 
Multi-tenant Development (Under 25,000 
sq. ft.) 

- - - - C PS PS 

Multi-tenant Development (25,000 sq. ft. 
or more) 

- - - - C C C 

Pawn Shop - - - - - P P 
Restaurant - - - - P P P 
Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - Indoor - - - - P P P 
Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - 
Outdoor 

- - - - - P P 

Entertainment / Recreation 
Amusements - Indoor - - - - P P P 
Amusements - Outdoor - - - - - P P 
Cultural or Community Facility PS PS PS PS P P P 
Recreation Facilities - Indoor PS PS PS PS P P P 
Recreation Facilities - Outdoor PS PS PS PS PS PS PS 
Theater - Motion Picture - - - - - P P 
Manufacturing / Wholesale / Storage 
Manufacturing, Heavy - - - - - - P 
Manufacturing, Light - - - - - P P 
Manufacturing, Neighborhood - - - - P P P 
Metal Product Fabrication, Machine or 
Welding Shop, Auto Body Shop 

- - - - - - P 

Mini-Warehouses - - - - - PS PS 
Outdoor Storage Yard - - - - - - C 
Warehousing and Distribution - Exterior 
Storage 

- - - - - - P 

Warehousing and Distribution - Interior 
Storage 

- - - - - P P 

Civic / Institutional 

97



USES R-1 R-2 R-3 R-12 C-1 C-2 I-1 
Cemeteries - - - - - - C 
Public Safety Facilities C C C C C P P 
Religious Institutions C C C C C C C 
Schools C C C C C C C 
Utilities 

       

Wireless Telecommunication Facility - 
Stealth 

PS PS PS PS PS PS PS 

Wireless Telecommunication Facility - 
Tower 

- - - - - PS PS 

Miscellaneous Uses 
Adult Establishment - - - - - C C 
Agriculture - Commercial - - - - PS PS PS 
Agriculture - Neighborhood PS PS PS PS PS PS PS 
Crematories - - - - - - C 
Event Center - - - - C C C 
Gaming Terminals 

     
PS PS 

Mixed-Use Building or Structure - - - C C C - 
Noxious Uses - - - - - - C 
Tattoo Parlors - - - - - P P 
Temporary Uses 
Farmers Market PS PS PS PS PS PS PS 
Mobile Food Vendor - - - - PS PS PS 
Temporary Use PS PS PS PS PS PS PS 

 

 

Sec. 36-106. - Table of dimensional requirements.   

Zoning District  R-1  R-2  R-12  R-3  C-1  C-2  I-1  

Minimum Lot Area (sq. ft.)  
10,000 

2,7  
7,500 
1,2,3,4,7  

7,500 
4,7,8  

5,445 
1,2,3,4,7  

None  None  None  

Minimum Lot Width (ft.)  100  75  75  75  None  50  None  

Minimum Front Yard (ft.) (from edge of 
property line or right-of-way whichever is 

greater)  
30  30  30  30 *  0  0  0  

Major Thoroughfare  30  30  30 5  30  None  60  35 5  

98



Minor Thoroughfare  30  30  30 5  30  None  25 5   

with parking in front       60   

without parking in front       40   

Minimum Side Yard (ft.)         

Abutting Residential District  10  10 6  10 6  10 6  None  30  40  

Abutting Commercial or Industrial District  10  10 6  10 6  10 6  None  None  40  

Minimum Rear Yard (ft.)         

Abutting Residential District  10  10 6  10 6  10 6  None  30  40  

Abutting Commercial or Industrial District  10  10 6  10 6  10 6  None  None  40  

99



 
Zoning District R-1 R-2 R-3 R-12 C-1 C-2 I-1

Minimum Lot Area (sq.ft.) 10,000 (2,7) 7,500 (1,2,3,4,7) 5,445 (1,2,3,4,7) 7,500 (4,7,8) 0 0 0
Minimum Lot Width (ft.) 100 75 75 75 0 50 0
Minimum Front Yard (ft.) 30 30 30 30 0 0 0
Major Thoroughfare 30 30 30 30 (5) 0 60 35 (5)

Minor Thoroughfare 30 30 30 30 (5) 0 25 (5) 35 (5)

With Parking in Front - - - - - 60 -
Without Parking in Front - - - - - 40 -
Minimum Side Yard (ft.) 
Abutting Residential District 10 10 (6) 10 (6) 10 (6) 0 30 40
Minimum Side Yard (ft.) 
Abutting Commercial or 
Industrial District 10 10 (6) 10 (6) 10 (6) 0 0 40
Minimum Rear Yard (ft.) 
Abutting Residential District 10 10 (6) 10 (6) 10 (6) 0 30 40
Minimum Rear Yard (ft.) 
Abutting Commercial or 
Industrial District 10 10 (6) 10 (6) 10 (6) 0 0 40

Height Limit (ft.) 35 35 35

45 and  no 
more than 
3 stories Note 10 75 75

Buffer if Abutting a 
Residential District (ft.) 0 0 0 0 Note 9 20 20  

See dimensional notes in section 36-107.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VIII; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(s) ; Ord. of 5-16-2016(1), § 4 )  

Sec. 36-107. - Footnotes  Notes for table of dimensional requirements.  

See sections: Businesses, subsection 36-81(d)(4); cemeteries, subsection 36-77(c)(4); churches, 
subsection 36-77(b)(3); dwelling setbacks, sections 36-13 to 36-15; automobile service stations and repair 
garages, section 36-118; general density, section 36-7; industries, subsection 36-82(d)(3); mobile and 
manufactured homes, subsection 36-79(b)(3); nonconforming lots, section 36-21; right-of-way, section 36-
8; unified business development, section 36-240;  

Notes:  

1. 10,000 square feet if no public sewerage is available.  

2. 20,000 square feet if neither public water or sewerage is available.  

3. 5,000 additional square feet for each additional dwelling unit when public water and/or sewer is 
available.  

4. 10,000 additional square feet for each additional dwelling unit when public water and/or sewer is 
not available.  

100

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank


5. 40 feet if property directly across the right-of-way is zoned residential.  

6. 15 feet for two-family dwelling unit duplexes; 25 feet for all other multi-family dwelling units. (Also 
see section 36-241(d) for additional requirements for multi-family structures.)  

7. Additional square footage may be required by the authority having jurisdiction over private water 
and/or sewerage systems located on individual lots.  

8. 3,280 additional square feet for each additional dwelling unit when public water and/or sewer is 
available.  

9. Where a lot in C-1 central business district abuts a residential district, either directly or across a 
street (on the side of the C-1 lot), and any use is hereafter established on the C-1 lot by the 
construction of a new building thereon or by the enlargement of an existing building on the C-1 
lot which enlargement exceeds by 25 percent the floor area of the existing building, such building 
and such lot shall be screened from the lot in the residential district by a vegetative screen (as 
defined in Sec. 36-5) on the side of the building or lot facing the residential lot shall require 
screening. Exceptions to this buffering requirement in C-1 are as follows: 

(a) These provisions shall not apply to any lot which is used for a use which would be permitted 
in the adjacent residentially zoned district. 

(b) The vegetative screen required shall be omitted along the street where the C-1 lot fronts. 

(c) The board of adjustment shall have the authority to alter or eliminate the required 
vegetative screen where the lot requiring the vegetative screen and the adjacent lot zoned 
residential are in single ownership or upon receipt of a notarized statement waiving or 
modifying the screening provisions of this section, between the owner of the lot requiring 
the vegetative screen and the owner of the adjacent lot zoned residential. Any such 
agreements shall be attached to the application for zoning permit and retained by the town. 

10. In the C-1 central business district, every building or structure hereafter erected or structurally 
altered to exceed 35 feet in height, shall, above such 35-foot height, be set back from the front 
line of the property on which the building or structure is located on the ratio of one set back foot 
for each two-foot rise above such 35-foot height. In no case shall the height be greater than 57 
feet (which would require a setback of 11 feet).  

Where more than one-half of the street frontage in a particular street block is zoned residential 
and the remaining frontage on the same side of that street block is zoned C-1, the height 
regulations for the residential district shall apply to the lots zoned for commercial uses on that 
side of the street block. 

 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. VIII; Ord. of 5-16-2016(1), § 5 ; Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 )  

Secs. 36-108—36-115. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE V. - USE RESTRICTIONS  

 

Sec. 36-116. - Intent.  

 It is the intent of this article to establish additional criteria, review guidelines and safeguards when 
certain uses are permitted in various zoning districts. This article sets forth standards for those uses that 
have been identified as "permitted with standards" in the Table of Uses set forth in Sec. 36-104. 

101

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. IX, § 17-900)  

Sec. 36-117. -– Child care center. Day care centers operating with more than five children.  

(a) Intent. To establish additional review guidelines for day care centers operating with more than 
five children to insure that such centers will provide the community with adequate, safe facilities to 
protect the children in such centers and the interests of adjoining property owners.  

(b) General plans. Each applicant for a permit to operate a day care center must treat the 
application as a special use permit, must apply to the zoning board of adjustment and must submit a 
general plan, drawn to scale, with the application for a permit. The plans must show adequate play area, 
as prescribed below, as well as the structural facilities to be located on the property and the names of all 
adjoining property owners. Additional information may be required as the zoning board of adjustment 
sees fit.  

(c) Standards.  

(1) Child care centers The facilities shall provide for 100 square feet of outdoor play area for each 
child.  

(2) The outdoor play area shall be surrounded by a sturdy fence of not less than four feet in height.  

(3) The child care centerfacility shall meet all state requirements for day care centers.  

(4) For sign requirements, see article VIII. Child care centers shall provide locations for pick-up and 
drop-off for safe access to the center for children, parents and which do not impede traffic on 
public or private streets.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. IX, § 17-920; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-118. -– Automobile services, repair. Automobile service stations and repair garages.  

The following regulations shall apply to all automobile service stations and repair garages:  

(1) All buildings shall be located at least 40 feet from any street right-of-way line.  

(2) Gasoline pumps and other appliances, where permitted, shall be located at least 15 feet from any 
street right-of-way.  

(3) All service, storage or similar activities shall be conducted entirely on the premises.  

(4) All repair work, if any, shall be conducted within a completely enclosed building.  

(5) Open storage of wrecked or inoperable cars, discarded tires, auto parts, or similar material shall 
not be permitted.  

(6) For sign requirements, see article VIII.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. IX, § 17-930)  

Sec. 36-119. - Gaming terminals.  

 (a) Intent . To establish additional requirements for the placement of gaming terminals in the C-2 and I-1 
districts.  

102

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


(b) Standards . All businesses wishing to install gaming terminals shall comply with the following 
conditions and use restrictions:  

(1) There is a limit of two gaming terminals per business location.  

(2) No persons under the age of 18 shall be allowed to use the gaming terminals.  

(3) The gaming terminals must not be prohibited by state or federal law and must have all applicable 
state and local permits and business licenses and pay all applicable town fees and taxes before 
the gaming terminals may be placed at the business location and at all times the gaming terminals 
are operated.  

(4) During hours of operation, gaming terminals shall be open for direct, unobstructed access by all 
safety and enforcement personnel. All entrance doors shall remain unlocked while patrons are 
on the premises.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2012, § 4)  

Sec. 36-120. – Agriculture - commercial. 

A. This section does not limit regulation under this part chapter with respect to the use of a farm 
property for non-farm purposes. 

B. Livestock and fowl or poultry operations shall meet the following requirements: 
1. Enclosures shall be maintained such that the animals are prohibited from exiting the 

property on which the animals are kept. 
2. Composting or animal feeding areas shall be located at least 50 feet from any property 

line or stream or river as identified on the Buncombe County geographic information 
system. 

3. A minimum setback of fifty feet shall be established for any structure used for 
agriculture – commercial purposes where abutting a residential zoning district. Fencing 
shall not be included as an agriculture – commercial structure for this requirement. 

4. Any lot used to maintain livestock shall be a minimum of five acres of usable livestock 
area which excludes all impervious surfaces. Livestock does not include fowl for this 
requirement. 

5. On lots greater than five acres in size use to maintain livestock, no more than two 
animals per acre shall be allowed. 

C. The keeping of swine is expressly prohibited. 
D. All uses must be maintained in a clean and sanitary manner in order to protect the public health. 

This includes, but is not limited to, the proper management of livestock and fowl waste runoff 
and pesticide runoff. 

 

Sec. 36-121. – Agriculture - neighborhood. 

A. The keeping of livestock shall meet the following requirements: 
1. Enclosures shall be maintained such that the animals are prohibited from exiting the 

property on which the animals are kept. 
2. Animal feeding areas shall be located at least 50 feet from any property line or stream 

or river as identified on the Buncombe County geographic information system. 

103



3. A minimum setback of 50 feet shall be established for any structure used for agriculture 
– neighborhood purposes where abutting a residential zoning district. Fencing shall not 
be included as an agriculture – neighborhood structure for this requirement. 

4. Any lot used to maintain livestock shall be a minimum of two acres of usable livestock 
area which excludes all impervious surfaces and on such lot no more than one animal 
per acre shall be allowed. Livestock does not include fowl for this requirement.  

B. The keeping of fowl, including but not limited to chickens, shall meet the following 
requirements: 

1. Enclosures and coops shall be maintained such that the animals are prohibited from 
exiting the property on which the animals are kept and may only be placed in the side or 
rear yard of a primary residence. Said enclosures and coops shall be kept in a clean 
condition. 

2. The keeping of fowl shall not be permitted on any parcel of land which does not meet 
the minimum lot area required by the table of dimensional standards for the zoning 
district in which the property is located. 

3. No more than two fowl may be kept per 1/8 acre should the minimum lot area be found 
in compliance. 

4. The keeping of fowl shall not be permitted on any parcel of land on which there exists a 
dwelling – multifamily residential use as defined herein. 

5. The keeping of roosters is expressly prohibited. 
C. This section shall not apply to domesticated animals, including but not limited to, dogs and cats. 
D. Agriculture – neighborhood uses shall be clearly incidental to an existing primary structure used 

for residential purposes. 
E. The keeping of swine is expressly prohibited. 
F. All uses must be maintained in a clean and sanitary manner in order to protect the public health. 

This includes, but is not limited to, the proper management of livestock and fowl waste runoff 
and pesticide runoff. 

 

Sec. 36-122. – Banks, credit unions, financial services. 

A. Drive-through stacking lanes, windows, and associated equipment shall not be permitted within 
50 feet of a residential district or residential use. 

B. Drive-through windows and services shall be located and accessed only at the rear or side of the 
building and shall not be located between the principal structure and a public or private street. 
Service lanes shall not be located between the building and the street. 

C. Drive-through service lanes shall provide a minimum of six stacking spaces per lane on site for 
banking with drive-through facilities. Each stacking space shall be a minimum of 9 feet by 18 
feet. 

D. The drive-through shall be limited to a maximum of two service lanes and one additional lane 
for an automated teller machine (ATM). 

E. Speaker box sounds from the drive-through lane shall not unreasonably disturb the peace and 
quiet of abutting residential property. 

Sec. 36-123. – Cultural or community facility 

104



A. Off-street parking shall be provided at one space for each two hundred square feet within the 
principal assembly space. 

B. Where the lot abuts a residential district, a ten-foot buffer shall be provided as defined in 
section 36-5 of this chapter and said buffer may be placed within the setbacks established by 
the zoning district applicable to the property. 

C. Signage shall be limited to one wall mounted or attached sign and shall not exceed 10% of the 
total surface area on which the sign is located. Said signage may be illuminated but must be 
shielded in a fashion to prevent light trespass and to brighten only the surface of the sign. 
 

Sec. 36-124. – Dwelling – secondary 

A. Secondary dwelling units shall be accessory and subordinate to the primary living quarters. 
B. No more than one secondary dwelling unit is permitted on any lot. 
C. A secondary dwelling unit may only be located within a side or rear yard and within the setback 

established by the applicable zoning district. 
D. No secondary structure shall exceed two stories in height.  
E. Secondary dwelling units may be created as an independent structure, an addition to an existing 

primary structure, or a second story within detached garages. 
F. The gross floor space of a secondary dwelling unit shall not exceed 800 square feet. The ground 

floor area of an attached garage shall not be calculated as part of the total square footage of any 
secondary dwelling that is built as the second story of a detached garage; provided, such ground 
floor garage area shall not be converted into a dwelling space. 

G. At least one off-street parking space shall be provided. 
H. Properties with multifamily dwellings as defined herein shall not be permitted a secondary 

dwelling.  

Sec. 36-125. -Farmers Market 

A. Vendors may offer seasonal horticultural, agricultural, aquacultural or forest products, 
including but not limited to raw fruits, vegetable, perennials, annuals bulbs, dried flowers, 
Christmas trees, and similar products. 

B. Vendors may offer value-added horticultural, agricultural, aquacultural or forest products 
which were produced by the vendor, including but not limited to baked goods, meat, dairy, 
honey, cider, preserves, relishes, jams, jellies and similar products. 

C. Vendors may offer hand-made crafts and works of art which were produced by the vendor; 
provided, however, that such products shall not exceed 25 percent of all products sold 
within the venue on any given day of operation. 

D. Vendors may offer food items prepared by the vendor; provided, however, that such 
products shall not exceed 25 percent of all products sold within the venue on any given day 
of operation, and provided that the vendor shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
the director of public health and the North Carolina Department of Agriculture. 

E. The sale of live animals is prohibited. 

105



F. Off-street parking shall be provided in order to maintain the safe flow of traffic in the 
immediate vicinity. 

G. Farmers Markets operating within the R-1, R-2, R-3 or R-12 Zoning Districts shall only be 
conducted on property owned by the Town of Weaverville. Additionally, these Farmers 
Markets may not operate more than one day per week and for no longer than eight hours 
on such day.  

 

Sec. 36-126. -General Retail (10,000-24,999 sq. ft.) 

A. Such a development shall abut an existing major thoroughfare maintained by the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation or the Town of Weaverville and shall have direct access thereto. 

B. Points of ingress and egress shall be located a sufficient distance from road intersections to 
minimize traffic hazard, inconvenience and congestion. Additionally, each development shall 
have a minimum of two such points of ingress and egress to facilitate the safe flow of traffic.  

C. Parking and loading spaces shall be provided as established by Chapter 36, Article VII. 
D. Such facilities with a drive-thru window are subject to additional regulations as defined by drive-

thru retail / restaurant. 
 

Sec. 36-127. – Home Occupation 

A. Home occupations shall be clearly incidental to the residential use of a dwelling and shall not 
change the residential character of the dwelling or the neighborhood. 

B. Home occupations shall be contained entirely within the interior of the dwelling or accessory 
structure. Home occupations within a dwelling shall not occupy more than 25 percent of the 
gross floor area of the dwelling. Should a home occupation occur within an accessory structure, 
said use shall not exceed 25% of the aggregate square footage of both the dwelling unit and 
accessory structure. 

C. Only noncommercial vehicles are permitted in conjunction with a home occupation. 
D. Business or product identification signs shall not be permitted.   

 
Sec. 36-128. – Kennels 
 

A. Outside runs, holding pens, exercise areas or other open-air type enclosures or shelters, which 
are maintained in order to prevent the escape of animals, shall be located at least 200 feet from 
any dwelling, other than the property of the owner on which the structure is located, and at 
least 50 feet from adjoining property lines. 

B. Kennels shall be located in the side or rear yard area of any principal structure and must be on 
the same parcel of land. 

 
Sec. 36-129. – Manufactured Home 

106



 
A. No new manufactured home shall be permitted within floodways and nonencroachment areas 

as determined by the Floodplain Administrator of Buncombe County. 
B. Each new manufactured home shall be placed on an individual lot. 
C. A manufactured home must be built to or exceed the Manufactured Home Construction Safety 

Standards as developed by the Housing and Urban Development Code of June 15, 1976. 
 

Sec. 36-130. – Mobile Food Vendors 
 

A. No waste, wastewater or grease shall be distributed into the sanitary sewer system, stormwater 
system, or other public spaces. 

B. Mobile food vendors shall be situated at least ten feet from all property lines and any road right-
of-way, shall not encroach onto any street or sidewalk and shall not obstruct any loading zone or 
handicapped parking space. This requirement shall not apply to special events approved by the 
Town which take place on public streets, sidewalks or parking lots or any other public property. 

C. Mobile food vendors shall be located at least 200 feet from any residential structure located 
within the R-1, R-2 or R-3 Zoning District. 

D. Mobile food vendors shall not be located within ten feet of any fire hydrant. 
E. Hours of operation shall be limited to 7am to 10pm. This requirement shall not apply to special 

events approved by the Town which take place on public streets, sidewalks or parking lots or 
any other public property. Such hours may be established in conjunction with the special event. 

F. Each mobile food vendor shall supply at least one receptacle for waste which must be emptied 
regularly and removed upon conclusion of hours of operation.  Municipal waste receptacles 
shall not be used. 

G. In addition to signage displayed directly on the vehicle, one sign attached to the ground, or 
menu board sign, which shall not exceed four feet in height or 8 square feet of surface area. 
Such a sign shall be placed within ten feet of the mobile food unit or vehicle and must be 
removed when outside hours of operation. 

H. The sale of alcoholic beverages shall not be permitted by any mobile food vender absent the 
issuance of the requisite special event permit. 

I. Mobile food vendors are only permitted in the C-1 Zoning District in conjunction with the 
issuance of a special event permit. 

J. Such a use is also subject to standards of the Buncombe County Health Department as it relates 
to the permitting, inspection and grading of all regulated food service establishments. 

 
Sec. 36-131. – Multi-tenant development (under 25,000 sq. ft.) 
 

A. Such a development shall abut an existing major thoroughfare maintained by the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation or the Town of Weaverville and shall have direct access thereto. 

107



B. Points of ingress and egress shall be located a sufficient distance from road intersections to 
minimize traffic hazard, inconvenience and congestion. Additionally, each development shall 
have a minimum of two such points of ingress and egress to facilitate the safe flow of traffic.  

C. Parking and loading spaces shall be provided as established by Chapter 36, Article VII. 
D. Such facilities with a drive-thru window are subject to additional regulations as defined by drive-

thru retail / restaurant. 
 

Sec. 36-132. – Recreational Facilities – Indoor 
 

A. Such facilities operating in conjunction with a single family dwelling which use is clearly 
incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which use does 
not change the residential character of the dwelling shall be permitted as an accessory use or 
structure of the dwelling unit. 

B. Such facilities operating in conjunction with a school or religious institution as defined herein 
shall be permitted as an accessory use operating in conjunction with same. 

C. Such facilities operating in conjunction with a Conditional Zoning District, Special Use Permit, 
Major Subdivision or any other residential development within a residentially zoned district shall 
be allowed if presently in use or approved with the adoption process for each of the 
aforementioned forms of development.  
 
 

Sec. 36-133. – Recreational Facilities – Outdoor 
 

A. Lighting fixtures for outdoor recreational facilities shall be mounted and aimed so that the 
illumination falls within the primary playing area and immediate surroundings so that no direct 
light illumination is directed off site. Lights shall be turned off at the conclusion of any activity. 

B. Such facilities operating in conjunction with a single family dwelling which use is clearly 
incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which use does 
not change the residential character of the dwelling shall be permitted as an accessory use or 
structure of the dwelling unit. 

C. Such facilities operating in conjunction with a school or religious institution as defined herein 
shall be permitted as an accessory use operating in conjunction with same. 

D. Such facilities operating in conjunction with a Conditional Zoning District, Special Use Permit, 
Major Subdivision or any other residential development within a residentially zoned district shall 
be allowed if presently in use at the adoption of this ordinance or approved with the adoption 
process for each of the aforementioned forms of development.  

 
Sec. 36-134. – Temporary Use 
 

A. Temporary uses or structures may be permitted summarily in conjunction with a Special Event 
Permit issued by the Town Manager as described by Section 16-6 Special Events. 

108



B. Construction offices and storage containers or facilities may be permitted provided the 
structure(s) are placed within the setbacks established by the applicable zoning district and a 
sunset date is established at which the structure(s) shall be removed from the property. Such 
structure(s) shall be directly related to the development of a lot and shall be permitted via a 
zoning permit obtained from the Zoning Administrator. 

C. Temporary vendors may be permitted only one structure which may not exceed 1,500 square 
feet. Temporary vendors operating in the parking lot associated with a primary use must not 
cause nonconformity with the parking requirements of this chapter.  Temporary vendors may 
only operate in zoning districts in which general retail is also permitted. Those conducting yard 
sales on a property where they currently reside shall not be considered temporary vendors.  

 
Sec. 36-135. – Wireless Communication Facility – Stealth 
 

A. Stealth wireless communication facilities shall be designed and installed in a manner to make 
them unobtrusive. All facilities shall be mounted so that the wireless service facilities do not 
extend beyond the top of the building or structure on which they are mounted.  

B. Facilities shall be designed to blend in with the existing structure or buildings with similar 
colors or other techniques as appropriate. 

 
Sec. 36-136. – Wireless Communication Facility – Tower 
 

A. Wireless communication towers as defined herein are subject to the requirements of Chapter 
36, Article XIV Telecommunication Facilities. 

 
Sec. 36-137. – Child Care  Homes 
 

A. Child care homes shall provide location for pickup/drop off area for safe access to the home for 
children and parents and which do not impede traffic on public or private roads. 

B. Child care homes shall be clearly incidental to the residential use of the dwelling and shall not 
change the residential character of the dwelling or neighborhood. 

C. Business or product identification signs shall not be permitted. 
 

 
 
Secs. 36-12036-138—36-145. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE VI. - LANDSCAPE REGULATIONS  

 

Sec. 36-146. - Intent.  

109



The intent of this article is to improve the appearance, quality, and quantity of landscaped area which 
is visible from public roadways, the purposes being as follows:  

(1) To assist in providing adequate light and air and to prevent the overcrowding of land.  

(2) To provide visual buffering and to enhance the beautification of the town, particularly with 
reference to new development.  

(3) To safeguard and enhance property values and to protect the public and private investment 
therein.  

(4) To preserve, protect, and restore the unique identity and environment of the Town of Weaverville 
and preserve the economic base attracted to the town.  

(5) To encourage the preservation of existing trees and vegetation.  

(6) To aid in stabilizing the environment by contributing to the process of air purification, groundwater 
recharge, and stormwater runoff retardation, while at the same time aiding in noise and glare 
abatement.  

(7) To protect the public health, safety, and general welfare.  

(8) To encourage sustainable landscaping, emphasizing the use of plant species native to Western 
North Carolina that provide wildlife habitat.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1000; Ord. of 11-17-2008, § 1)  

Sec. 36-147. - Applicability.  

The requirements of this article shall apply to all public and private land within the town zoning 
jurisdiction except land used for the following purposes:  

(1) Single-family residences.  

(2) Duplex residences.  

(3) Properties located within the C-1 central business district. 

None of the other uses authorized in article III or article IX of this chapter shall be permitted until the 
requirements of this article are met.   

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1005)  

Sec. 36-148. - Landscape plan required.  

For uses which required landscaping, the zoning permit application for such use must be accompanied 
by a landscaping plan. Every application for a zoning permit, a special use permit, or a variance shall be 
accompanied with a landscape plan.  

Exception: Land uses exempted by section 36-147.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1010; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-149. - Landscape plan contents.  

The landscape plan required by section 36-148 may be combined with the site plan required by section 
36-268 36-298 and shall contain the following information:  

(1) Existing and proposed landscaping;  

110

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


(2) Any buffers required by this chapter;  

(3) Any screens required by this chapter;  

(4) Existing and proposed land uses of all adjoining properties and current zoning of those properties;  

(5) Existing vegetation intended to be saved under the provisions of section 36-154;  

(6) Any barriers proposed to protect vegetation during or after construction (see subsection 36-150(c) 
and section 36-154);  

(7) Topographic contours at intervals of not more than five feet, indication of the direction of storm 
water flow, and a description of all storm water control facilities.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1015)  

Sec. 36-150. - General provisions.  

(a) All plant materials used to comply with the requirements of this article shall be selected from the list of 
recommended species unless otherwise approved by the zoning administrator.  

(b) When any landscaped area required by this article involves clear cutting of the property, the 
conservation board will be permitted to conduct a plant rescue survey and, if feasible, be permitted to 
remove desirable native plants for use in town parks or on other town property. The conservation board 
shall have 30 days from the issuance of the zoning permit to conduct the survey and remove the plants. 
Absent agreement by the property owner and/or the permit holder, no expense for the survey or 
removal of the plants shall be borne by the property owner and/or the permit holder.  

(c) When any landscaped area required by this article is adjacent to parking or vehicular circulation areas, 
such planted area shall be protected by curbing or other parking barriers.  

(d) Landscaping shall not obstruct the view of motorists using any street, private driveway, parking aisles, 
or the approach to any street intersection so as to constitute a traffic hazard. Such landscaping shall 
not violate the guidelines set forth in the town's minimum construction standards for streets.  

(e) All landscaped areas herein required shall be stabilized from dust and soil erosion immediately upon 
planting and shall thereafter be so maintained until the use of the property or the zoning thereof is 
changed. Water efficient landscapes and practices are encouraged.  

(f) The property owner of record shall be responsible for maintaining all required plant material in good 
health. Any dead, unhealthy or missing plants shall be replaced within 120 days after death with locally 
adapted plants which conform to the planting standards of this chapter. In the event that plant material 
is severely damaged due to unusual weather occurrence or other acts of God, the owner shall have 
two years to complete the replanting of the area so damaged.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1020; Ord. of 11-17-2008, § 2; Ord. of 7-18-2016(1), § 1 )  

Sec. 36-151. - Landscaping required for all sites.  

At least five percent of all lots or parcels which are subject to this article (see Sec. 36-147) shall be 
landscaped. This requirement shall be met in addition to any area required for street trees, buffer strips, or 
screens. Through the adoption of a conditional zoning district as allowed in Sec. 36-84, town council may 
require landscaping consistent with this article or waive such requirements. 

 Exception No. 1: Land uses exempted by section 36-147.  

Exception No. 2: Where property is located in the C-1 district, the provisions of this section shall not operate 
to impose minimum lot area, minimum lot widths, or minimum front, side or rear yard widths in excess of 
those required by article IV.  

111

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=791087&datasource=ordbank


(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1025)  

Sec. 36-152. - Street trees required.  

Landscaping shall be required on any portion of a lot adjacent to a public right-of-way. A strip shall be 
provided for the planting of street trees, which strip must average ten feet in width with a minimum width of 
five feet. The strip shall contain one tree for each 40 feet of street right-of-way frontage. Street trees shall 
have a caliper of at least one inch. The width of the planting strip and tree placement therein may be varied 
except that street trees may not be closer than 15 feet apart. Other types of plant materials shall be provided 
to complement street trees subject to approval by the zoning administrator. Shrubs and other types of plant 
materials shall be used which will complement the tree plantings subject to approval by the zoning 
administrator.  

Exception No. 1: Land uses exempted by section 36-147.  

Exception No. 2: Where property is located in the C-1 central business district and a building is located 
nearer than five feet to the property line adjacent to the street right-of-way as may be permitted by Article 
IV, the provisions of this section shall not apply.  

Exception No. 3: The provisions of this section shall not apply where a buffer strip or other screening is 
required along the property line adjacent to the right-of-way by any section of this chapter.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1030)  

Sec. 36-153. - Off-street parking and loading areas.  

(a) Landscaping shall be required in and around all new or redesigned off-street parking and loading 
areas. The word "redesigned" is hereby defined as a change in configuration or increase or decrease 
in the lot size.  

(b) Landscaping shall be provided for parking and loading areas as follows:  

Number of Parking Spaces  
Landscaping Requirements  

(as a Percent (%) of Paved area)  

1—20  2.5  

21 and over  5.0  

  

(c) At least 50 percent of the required parking lot landscaping shall be provided as landscaped islands 
within the parking lot.  

(d) One tree of a least one inch caliper and an initial height of at least four feet shall be provided for each 
15 parking spaces. The expected height at maturity of such trees shall be at least eight feet.  

(e) No parking space shall be more than 50 feet from a tree or 75 feet from plantings of more than one 
tree. (This must be shown on the landscape plan.)  

(f) Shrubs and other types of plant materials shall be used which will complement the tree plantings 
subject to approval by the zoning administrator.  

112



(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1035)  

Sec. 36-154. - Credit for existing trees.  

The zoning administrator may waive the requirement of planting of new trees set forth in this article if 
large trees existing on the site are protected and maintained before, during, and after construction. This 
credit for existing trees is only available on a one to one ratio for trees of more than six inches in 
circumference measured at a point on the trunk four feet above the ground.  

In order for credit to be assigned for street trees, buffer strips, or screening trees, the zoning 
administrator must certify that the same buffer or screening function will be provided by the saved trees as 
would be provided by an equivalent number of newly planted trees. If this function will not be provided, the 
amount of credit shall be reduced accordingly. Saved trees must be protected before, during and after 
construction by a barrier at the drip line subject to the approval of the zoning administrator. Without such 
protection no credit shall be awarded for such trees. If a saved tree dies at any time, it shall be replaced.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1050)  

Sec. 36-155. - Effect of project phasing.  

(a) Landscaping plan. If a proposed development is to be completed in phases, the landscaping plan shall, 
nevertheless, include and show all required landscaping, buffering, and screening for the entire project.  

(b) Guarantee. If a proposed development is subject to the landscaping guarantee provided for in section 
36-156, below, such guarantee shall be provided as follows:  

(1) The requirements of section 36-152 (street trees) and any required buffering or screening 
requirements shall be met and guaranteed as provided for in section 36-156 for the current phase 
of the project prior to the issuance of any zoning permit or special use permit for the current phase 
of the project.  

(2) The requirements of sections 36-151 (landscaping) and 36-153 (off-street parking and loading) 
shall be met and guaranteed as provided for in section 36-156 prior to the issuance of a zoning 
permit or building permit for the construction of additional phases and shall be consistent with the 
original landscaping plan as approved at the beginning of the project. Any change or modification 
of the landscaping plan for the additional phases shall be reviewed and approved in the same 
manner as the original plan.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1060; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-156. - Landscaping guarantees bond or undertaking.  

(a) Applicability. The provisions set forth in this section shall apply to all of the following:  

(1) Unified business developments as provided for in section 36-240 of this chapter.  

(2) All development of land where the total lot area is two acres or more in size.  

Exception: Land uses exempted by section 36-147.  

(b) Requirements. If the landscaping and buffering requirements, as shown on the approved landscaping 
plan, cannot be totally completed prior to issuance of the zoning permit or special use permit due to 
inappropriate timing for meeting the growing season or due to conflicts with construction schedules, 
the zoning administrator shall, for the purpose of issuing the zoning permit, or the zoning board of 
adjustment, for the purpose of issuing a special use permit, accept an agreement to complete and 
guarantee from the developer/owner that the landscaping and buffering requirements of this chapter 

113

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


will be completed, in accordance with the approved landscaping plan at the developer/owners 
expense. Such guarantee shall be in one of the following forms:  

(1) A surety performance bond issued by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do 
business in North Carolina;  

(2) A bond of the developer/owner with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as 
collateral security for the bond;  

(3) A bond of the developer/owner secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and 
deposited with the town clerk;  

(4) Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit;  

(5) A bank escrow account and agreement whereby the developer/owner deposits cash, a note, a 
bond or some other instrument readily convertible to cash for a specific face value, with a federally 
insured financial institution in an amount payable to the town. The developer/owner, in using such 
escrow account, shall file with the town an agreement between the financial institution and himself 
guaranteeing that the account shall be held in trust until released by the town and that the account 
may not be used or pledged by the developer/owner for any other matter during the term of the 
escrow agreement.  

Any of the above forms of guarantee shall be in an amount equal to 150 percent of the cost of the 
landscaping and buffering as estimated by the developer/owner or his contractor and approved, as to 
amount and form, by the zoning administrator who may consult with persons with responsible knowledge 
of landscaping costs who are not associated with the project in order to determine the proper amount of the 
guarantee. All such guarantees shall be reviewed by the town attorney prior to acceptance by the zoning 
administrator. All such guarantees shall remain in full force for the town's benefit until the zoning 
administrator determines, and certifies to the town council, that all of the landscaping and buffering 
requirements as shown on the approved landscaping plan have been completed, at which time the town 
council shall take action to release said guarantees.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1070; Ord. of 8-8-94; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 ; Ord. of 9-19-
2016(3), § 1 )  

Sec. 36-157. - List of recommended species.  

All landscape plantings materials required by this article shall be selected from the following "List of 
recommended species" or as otherwise approved on a case by case basis by the zoning administrator.  

APPROVED SHRUBS TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  

Botanical Name  Common Name  Expected Height  

Shrubs  

Small Shrubs (up to approximately 4′ tall)  

Ceanothus americanus  New Jersey Tea  3  

Diervilla lonicera  Northern Bush-honeysuckle  3  

Fothergilla gardenii  Dwarf Witchalder  4  

114

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank


Hypericum frondosum  Cedarglade St. Johnswort  3  

Hypericum prolificum  Shrubby St. Johnswort  4  

Xanthorhiza simplicissima  Yellowroot  2  

Medium Shrubs (approximately 5-10′ tall)  

Aronia arbutifolia  Red Chokeberry  8  

Aronia melanocarpa  Black Chokeberry  5  

Callicarpa americana  American Beautyberry  6  

Calycanthus floridus  Sweetshrub  9  

Corylus americana  Hazelwood  10  

Cornus amomum  Silky Dogwood  7  

Euonymus americanus  Hearts-a-Bustin'  8  

Fothergilla major  Mountain Witchalder  6  

Hydrangea arborescens  Wild Hydrangea  6  

Hypericum densiflorum  Bushy St. Johnswort  6  

Itea virginica  Virginia Sweetspire  10  

Kalmia latifolia  Mountain Laurel  6  

Lindera benzoin  Spicebush  10  

Photinia melanocarpa  Black Chokeberry  8  

Photinia pyrifolia  Red Chokeberry  5  

Physocarpus opulifolius  Ninebark  10  

115



Rhododendron calendulaceum  Flame Azalea  10  

Rhododendron carolinianum  Carolina Rhododendron  6  

Rhododendron catawbiense  Catawba Rhondendron  8  

Rhododendron cumberlandense  Cumberland Azalea  8  

Rhododendron periclymenoides  Pinxterbloom  8  

Rhus copallina  Shining Sumac  8  

Rosa carolina  Carolina Rose  5  

Rosa palustris  Swamp Rose  8  

Sambucus canadensis  Elderberry  10  

Spiraea virginiana  Virginia Meadowsweet  8  

Viburnum acerifolium  Mapleleaf Viburnum  6  

Viburnum dentatum  Southern Arrowwood  10  

Viburnum nudum  Possumhaw Viburnum  8  

Tall Shrubs (over approximately 10′ tall)  

Alnus serrulata  Hazel Alder  12  

Castanea pumila  Allegheny Chinquapin  14  

Cephalanthus occidentalis  Buttonbush  15  

Clethra acuminata  Cinnamon Clethra  12  

Hamamelis virginiana  Common Witchhazel  15  

Ilex decidua  Possumhaw  30  

116



Ilex montana  Mountain Winterberry  30  

Lindera benzoin  Spicewood  12  

Prunus virginiana  Chokecherry  20  

Rhododendron arborescens  Sweet Azalea  18  

Rhododendron maximum  Rosebay Rhododendron  20  

Rhododendron vaseyi  Pinkshell Azalea  12  

Rhododendron viscosum  Swamp Azalea  15  

Rhus glabra  Smooth Sumac  12  

Rhus typhina  Staghorn Sumac  20  

Vaccinium corymbosum  Highbush Blueberry  12  

Viburnum cassinoides  Witherod  15  

Viburnum prunifolium  Blackhaw Viburnum  16  

Viburnum rufidulum  Rusty Blackhaw Viburnum  15  

  

APPROVED TREES TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  

Botanical Name  Common Name  
Expected Height  

(in feet)  

Small to Medium Trees (to approximately 50 ft. tall)  

Amelanchier arborea  Downy Serviceberry  25  

Amelanchier laevis  Allegheny Serviceberry  25  

117



Asimina triloba  Pawpaw  25  

Carpinus caroliniana  American Hornbeam  30  

Cercis canadensis  Redbud  25  

Chionanthus virginicus  Fringetree  25  

Cladrastis kentukea  Yellowwood  50  

Cornus alternifolia  Alternateleaf Dogwood  25  

Cornus florida  Flowering Dogwood  25  

Cornus kousa x florida*  Chinese x Flowering Dogwood hybrid  25  

Crataegus phaenopyrum  Washington Hawthorn  25  

Frangula caroliniana  Carolina Buckthorn  35  

Halesia tetraptera  Mountain Silverbell  40  

Ilex opaca  American Holly  30  

Juniperus virginiana  Eastern Red Cedar  50  

Malus angustifolia  Southern Crabapple  25  

Malus coronaria  Sweet Crabapple  20  

Magnolia acuminata  Mountain magnolia  40  

Magnolia tripetala  Cucumber Tree  30  

Ostrya virginiana  Eastern Hophornbeam  40  

Oxydendrum arboreum  Sourwood  30  

Prunus americana  American Plum  25  

118



Ptelea trifoliata  Hoptree  20  

Robinia viscosa  Clammy Locust  40  

Salix sericea  Silky Willow  12  

Sassafras albidum  Sassafras  40  

Stewartia ovata  Mountain Stewartia  20  

Symplocos tinctoria  Horse Sugar  30  

Medium to Large Trees (over approximately 50 ft. tall)  

Acer negundo  Boxelder  60  

Acer rubrum  Red Maple  70  

Acer saccharinum  Silver Maple  80  

Acer saccharum  Sugar Maple  80  

Aesculus flava  Yellow Buckeye  70  

Betula alleghaniensis  Yellow Birch  75  

Betula nigra  River Birch  70  

Carya cordiformis  Bitternut Hickory  75  

Carya glabra  Pignut Hickory  80  

Carya ovata  Shagbark Hickory  75  

Carya pallida  Sand Hickory  90  

Carya tomentosa  Mockernut Hickory  85  

Castanea dentata**  American Chestnut  115 (potential)  

119



Celtis occidentalis  Hackberry  60  

Diospyros virginiana  Persimmon  55  

Fagus grandifolia  American Beech  80  

Fraxinus americana  White Ash  80  

Fraxinus pennsylvanica  Green Ash  80  

Juglans nigra  Black Walnut  100  

Liquidambar styraciflua  Sweetgum  75  

Liriodendron tulipifera  Tuliptree  100  

Magnolia fraseri  Umbrella Tree  60  

Morus rubra  Red Mulberry  60  

Nyssa sylvatica  Black Gum  60  

Pinus echinata  Shortleaf Pine  100  

Pinus strobus  Eastern White Pine  80  

Pinus virginiana  Virginia Pine  70  

Platanus occidentalis  Sycamore  100  

Prunus serotina  Black Cherry  80  

Quercus alba  White Oak  90  

Quercus coccinea  Scarlet Oak  70  

Quercus falcata  Southern Red Oak  75  

Quercus imbricaria  Shingle Oak  80  

120



Quercus montana  Chestnut Oak  75  

Quercus muehlenbergii  Chinkapin Oak  70  

Quercus rubra  Red Oak  75  

Quercus stellata  Post Oak  80  

Quercus velutina  Black Oak  90  

Salix nigra  Black Willow  80  

Tilia americana  American Linden or Basswood  80  

Tsuga canadensis***  Eastern Hemlock  90  

Tsuga caroliniata***  Carolina Hemlock  65  

Ulmus alata  Winged Elm  80  

  

OTHER LANDSCAPING PLANTS  

Vines  

Bignonia capreolata  Cross Vine  

Campsis radicans  Trumpet Flower  

Clematis virginiana  Clematis (Virgin's Bower)  

Lonicera sempervirens  Coral Honeysuckle  

Parthenocissus quinquefolia  Virginia Creeper  

Wisteria frutescens  American Wisteria  

Ground Covers  

121



Antennaria plantaginifolia  Pussytoes  

Asarum canadense  Wild Ginger  

Carex sp.  Sedges (see below)  

Chrysogonum virginianum var. australe  Green-and-Gold  

Iris cristata  Dwarf Crested Iris  

Meehania cordata  Creeping Mint  

Pachysandra procumbens  Allegheny Spurge  

Phlox stolonifera  Creeping Phlox  

Tiarella cordifolia  Heartleaf Foamflower  

Viola sp.  Violets  

Grasses & Sedges  

Andropogon gerardii  Big Bluestem  

Andropogon virginicus  Broomsedge  

Arundinaria gigantea  Giant Cane  

Carex flaccosperma  Blue Wood Sedge  

Carex platyphylla  Blue Satin Sedge  

Carex plantaginea  Seersucker Sedge  

Carex stricta  Tussock Sedge  

Carex pensylvanica  Oak Sedge  

Carex appalachica  Appalachian Sedge  

122



Chasmanthium latifolium  River Oats  

Danthonia compressa  Oat Grass  

Deschampsia flexuosa  Wavy Hair Grass  

Elymus hystrix  Bottle Brush  

Muhlenbergia capillaris  Muhly Grass  

Panicum virgatum  Switch Grass  

Saccharum giganteum  Giant Plume Grass  

Schizachyrium scoparium  Little Bluestem  

Sorghastrum nutans  Indian Grass  

Tridens flavus  Purple Top  

Tripsacum dactyloides  Eastern Gamma Grass  

Ferns  

Adiantum pedatum  Maidenhair Fern  

Athyrium filix-femina  Southern Lady Fern  

Dryopteris marginalis  Marginal Wood Fern  

Matteuccia struthiopteris  Ostrich Fern  

Osmunda cinnamomea  Cinnamon Fern  

Osmunda regalis  Royal Fern  

Polystichum acrostichoides  Christmas Fern  

Thelypteris noveboracensis  New York Fern  

123



  

*  Hybrid is resistant to dogwood anthracnose that can infect Comus florida.  

**  Experimental hybrids with a high percentage American chestnut genes now available.  

***  Requires treatment to protect from hemlock wooly adelgid.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. X, § 17-1080; Ord. of 8-8-1994; Ord. of 11-17-2008, § 3; Ord. of 2-16-
2009, § 1; Ord. of 2-16-2009, § 1; Ord. of 9-21-2015, § 1 )  

Secs. 36-158—36-175. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE VII. - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS  

 

Sec. 36-176. - Off-street parking.  

(a) Off-street automobile storage or parking space shall be provided on every lot on which any of the 
following uses are hereafter established. Each parking space shall have an all weather surface with 
minimum dimensions of nine by 18 feet. The number of parking spaces provided shall be at least as 
great as the number specified below for various uses. Each space shall be provided with vehicular 
access to a street or alley.  

Use  Required Parking  

Any residential use  Two spaces for each dwelling unit.  

Rooming and boarding houses  One space for each bedroom.  

Hotels and motels  
One space for each unit, plus one space for each 

employee working on the shift of greatest employment.  

Medical or dental offices or clinics  
Five spaces for each doctor, or five spaces for each office, 

whichever is greater.  

Places of public assembly, including funeral 
homes, churches, and similar places of 

worship with fixed seating  

One space for each four seats or one space for each seven 
feet of seating capacity in the principal assembly room.  

Places of assembly or recreation without 
fixed seating  

One space for each seven feet of seating capacity 
dedicated to patron use and one space for each employee 

working on the shift of greatest employment.  

124

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=748100&datasource=ordbank


Schools, elementary and junior high  
Two spaces for each classroom and for each 

administrative office.  

Schools, senior high or higher  One space for each four pupils.  

Libraries and public buildings  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space.  

Professional and business offices  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space.  

Banks  Five spaces for each employee.  

Retail stores and shops of all kinds  One space for each 300 square feet of gross floor space.  

Multiple tenant development  
One space for each 300 square feet of gross floor space 

for the entire facility.  

Restaurants  
One space for each three seats (booths and tables 

included), plus one space for each employee working on 
the shift of greatest employment.  

Service stations  
Five spaces for each service bay, whether a grease, wash 

or other type of bay.  

Hospital facilities  One space for each 200 square feet of floor space.  

Laundromats machines  One space for each five washing or drying.  

  

USES Required Parking 
Residential  
Dwelling - Single Family Two spaces 
Dwelling - Duplex Two spaces for each dwelling unit 
Dwelling - Multifamily (four or less 
units/building) 

Two spaces for each dwelling unit 

Dwelling - Multifamily (more than four 
units/building) 

Two spaces for each dwelling unit 

Dwelling - Secondary One space 
Family Care Home (6 or fewer residents) Two spaces 
Child Care Home (6 or fewer children) - 

125



Home Occupation - 
Manufactured Home Two spaces 
Manufactured Home Park - 
Recreational Vehicle - 
Recreational Vehicle Park, Campground One space for each RV/camp site 
Bed & Breakfast One space for each bedroom 
Hotel, Motel, Inn One space for each room plus one space for each 

employee working on the shift of greatest 
employment 

Office / Service  
Animal Services, Veterinary Clinic One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Automated Teller Machines Two spaces 
Automobile Services, Gas Station One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Automobile Services, Repair Five spaces for each service bay 
Banks, Credit Unions, Financial Services Five spaces for each employee 
Child Care Center (more than 6 children) One space for each room plus one space for each 

employee working on the shift of greatest 
employment 

Community Service Organization One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 
space 

Equipment Rental (Exterior Storage) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Equipment Rental (Interior Storage) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Funeral Home One space for each four seats in the principal 

assembly room 
Group Care Facility (more than 6 residents) One space for each room plus one space for each 

employee working on the shift of greatest 
employment 

Government Services One space for each room plus one space for each 
employee working on the shift of greatest 

employment 
Kennels One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Medical Services - Clinic, Urgent Care Center, 
Hospital 

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 
space 

Medical Services - Doctor Office Five spaces for each office 
Personal Services One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Post Office One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Professional Services One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Studio - Art, Dance Martial Arts, Music One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 

126



Retail / Restaurants  
Accessory Retail  One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Alcoholic Beverage Sales Store One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Auto / Mechanical Parts Store One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Bar / Tavern / Night Club One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Drive-Thru Retail / Restaurant One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
General Retail (Under 10,000 sq. ft.) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (10,000 - 24,999 sq. ft.) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (25,000 sq. ft. or more) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Multi-tenant Development (Under 25,000 sq. 
ft.) 

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Multi-tenant Development (25,000 sq. ft. or 
more) 

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
for the entire facility 

Pawn Shop One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Restaurant One space for each three seats plus one space for 

each employee working on the shift of greatest 
employment 

Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - Indoor One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - Outdoor One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Entertainment / Recreation  
Amusements - Indoor One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Amusements - Outdoor One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Cultural or Community Facility One space for each two hundred square feet 

within the principal assembly room 
Recreation Facilities - Indoor One space for each seven feet of seating capacity 

dedicated to patron use and one space for each 
employee working on the shift of greatest 

employment 
Recreation Facilities - Outdoor One space for each seven feet of seating capacity 

dedicated to patron use and one space for each 
employee working on the shift of greatest 

employment 
Theater - Motion Picture One space for each four seats in the principal 

assembly room 

Manufacturing / Wholesale / Storage  
Manufacturing, Heavy One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Manufacturing, Light One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Manufacturing, Neighborhood One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 

127



Metal Product Fabrication, Machine or 
Welding Shop, Auto Body Shop 

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 
space 

Mini-Warehouses One space for each 300 square feet of gross floor 
space 

Outdoor Storage Yard One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 
space 

Warehousing and Distribution - Exterior 
Storage 

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Warehousing and Distribution - Interior 
Storage 

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Civic / Institutional  
Cemeteries - 
Public Safety Facilities One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Religious Institutions One space for each four seats in the principal 

assembly room 
Schools Two spaces for each classroom and for each 

administrative office or one space for each four 
pupils for high schools or higher.  

Utilities  
Wireless Telecommunication Facility - Stealth - 
Wireless Telecommunication Facility - Tower - 
Miscellaneous Uses  
Adult Establishment One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Agriculture - Commercial One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Agriculture - Neighborhood - 
Crematories One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Event Center One space for each four seats in the principal 

assembly room 
Gaming Terminals - 
Tattoo Parlors One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Mixed-Use Building or Structure Match parking requirements with closest uses 
Noxious Uses One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor 

space 
Temporary Uses  
Farmers Market - 
Mobile Food Vendor - 
Temporary Use - 

128



 

(b) Extension of parking space into a residential district. Required parking space may not extend from a 
commercial (C-1 and C-2) use district or from a conditional use district (CZD) that contains any 
commercial or office use into any residential use district.  

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no additional off-street parking other than the parking currently 
available in the C-1 central business district shall be required except where the structures currently 
located on an existing lot of record containing more than 1,875 square feet are razed and the lot of 
record is put to a new use in which event the parking regulations of section 36-176 shall be fully 
applicable to said property. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XI, § 17-1110; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(t); Ord. of 7-18-2016(2), § 1 )  

Sec. 36-177. - Off-street loading and unloading space.  

Every lot on which a business or multi-family residential use is hereafter established by the erection of 
a new structure shall provide off the street space as indicated below for the loading and unloading of 
vehicles. Such space(s) shall be paved and shall have access to a street. An off-street loading space shall 
have minimum dimensions of 12 feet by 40 feet.  

(1) Retail business: One space each loading door.  

(2) Wholesale business: One space for each 10,000 square feet of gross floor space.  

(3) Multi-family residential uses with more than ten dwelling units: One space plus one space for 
each additional ten units in excess of 20 dwelling units.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XI, § 17-1120)  

Secs. 36-178—36-195. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE VIII. - SIGN REGULATIONS  

 

Sec. 36-196. - Statement of purpose.  

The purpose of this article is to regulate and control signs and their placement throughout the Town of 
Weaverville. The sign regulations contained herein are designed to enhance the health, safety and visual 
communication of the residents within the area in addition to preserving the natural beauty of the 
surrounding environment. This chapter also establishes the procedures through which such goals can be 
fulfilled.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1200)  

 Sec. 36-197. - Definitions.  

Words used herein shall have the meanings set forth in sections 36-4 and 36-5 of this chapter. Words 
not defined in said section shall have the meaning set forth in Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary, latest 
revisal.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1205)  

129

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=791086&datasource=ordbank


Sec. 36-198. - Signs exempt from the regulations of this chapter.  

(a) Signs erected or installed by a governmental agency under governmental authority to identify public 
buildings, welcome or direct visitors, or to regulate, control or direct traffic, including signs indicating 
bus stops, taxi stands, and similar transportation facilities. Such signs may be illuminated, flashing or 
moving as required for public safety. Furthermore, signs erected by a governmental agency which 
convey information regarding a public service or the location of a public facility may also be illuminated 
as may be necessary [sic].  

(b) Signs required by law, including, but not limited to, building permits, exit signs, etc.  

(c) Signs which warn of hazard to life, limb, and property, such as high voltage electrical equipment, 
explosives, etc.  

(d) "No Trespassing" signs equal to or containing less than four square feet of surface area.  

(e) Trade names or product names and graphics which are customarily painted on newspaper stands, 
soft drink machines, gasoline pumps and automatic teller machines.  

(f) Temporary display of decorations, when such are clearly incidental to, and are customarily and 
commonly associated with any national, local or religious holiday or celebration.  

(g) Signs indicating finance or credit information such as VISA, MASTERCARD, etc., not to exceed one 
square foot per financial sign.  

(h) One freestanding church sign located on church property, or two freestanding church signs on church 
property if said church is located on a corner lot (one sign facing each street that borders the lot). 
Exempt church signs shall not exceed 36 square feet in surface area per side of sign up to a maximum 
of 72 square feet of aggregate surface area.  

(i) One church bulletin board not to exceed 12 square feet of surface area (which may be a wall sign or 
a freestanding sign).  

(j) Church directional signs. These signs may be located on private property with permission of the owner, 
at the nearest intersection of the major thoroughfare and/or collector street to the site of the church.  

(k) The display of the flag of the United States, North Carolina, Buncombe County, or the Town of 
Weaverville.  

(l) Private residential signs indicating the name, box, or house number of a particular residence not to 
exceed two square feet.  

(m) Temporary signs or festival signs indicating town, civic club or school sponsored events, which must 
be removed within three days after the event is held.  

(n) Signs which are located inside a particular establishment and which are not intended for external 
viewing are not regulated by this chapter.  

(o) Signs considered to be historically significant and/or landmark signs if so designated by resolution of 
the town council.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1210)  

Sec. 36-199. - Prohibited signs.  

The following signs shall not be erected or maintained in any zoning district within the jurisdiction of 
the town:  

(1) Any sign located in a manner or place so as to constitute a hazard to traffic as determined by the 
zoning administrator.  

130



(2) Any sign (except a governmental sign) located within a street right-of-way, or projecting into a 
street right-of-way.  

(3) Any sign which obstructs or substantially interferes with any window, door, fire escape, stairway, 
ladder, or opening intended to provide light, air, ingress or egress for any building.  

(4) Billboards and other types of off-premise advertising signs, except such signs located along U.S. 
19-23 (Projected I-26) and U.S. 25-70, which permitted signs must, nevertheless, comply with all 
department of transportation and Buncombe County sign restrictions.  

(5) Roof signs. (Except signs painted or affixed to awnings, canopies, facades, parapets or soffits 
which shall be allowed.)  

(6) Any flashing device or sign displaying flashing or intermittent lights, or lights of changing degrees 
of intensity, except a sign indicating time and/or temperature, with changes alternating on not less 
than a five-second cycle.  

(7) Any sign painted on a roadway (except governmental signs) or any sign posted to utility poles, 
trees, fences, rocks, or upon other signs.  

(8) Any sign which is a copy of or an imitation of an official governmental sign, or which purports to 
have official status.  

(9) Portable or moveable signs such as rented or leased signs, not permanently affixed to the ground 
or to a building.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1220)  

Sec. 36-200. - Signs in general.  

No freestanding pole sign, ground level sign, marquee or menu board, shall be greater than six feet in 
height measured from street grade of the closest point in the street upon which the sign is located or from 
the grade at the base of the sign, whichever is higher, to the highest point of the sign or sign structure. This 
shall not include wall signs, multiple tenant development signs, mobile home park name signs or projecting 
signs. All signs shall be aesthetically appealing and in harmony with the environment.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1225)  

Sec. 36-201. - Temporary signs.  

Temporary signs shall be allowable in all zoning districts.  

(1) Signs used prior to and during construction to identify the name of contractor(s) and/or 
developer(s) shall be considered temporary signs, and shall meet the following requirements:  

a. Each contractor shall have no more than one sign per location which shall be removed upon 
completion of the project.  

b. Construction signs shall not be placed on trees, rocks, or other natural objects.  

c. Construction signs shall be either attached to the building or affixed to a secure temporary 
post.  

d. Construction signs shall be no greater than 32 square feet per side of the sign up to a 
maximum of 64 square feet of aggregate surface area for the entire sign.  

(2) Political signs shall be considered temporary signs, and shall meet the following requirements:  

a. No political sign shall be placed in any town or state public right-of-way which includes utility 
poles and/or street medians.  

131



b. All such signs shall be removed within two days after the election day.  

(3) Real estate signs (signs offering property for sale, lease or development) shall be considered 
temporary signs, and shall meet the following requirements:  

a. Real estate signs in residential zoning districts shall not exceed six square feet in surface 
area per side of sign up to a maximum of 12 square feet of aggregate surface area for the 
entire sign.  

b. Real estate signs in all other areas shall not exceed 16 square feet in surface area per side 
of sign up to a maximum of 32 square feet of aggregate surface area for the entire sign.  

c. Real estate signs shall be erected only on the property which is being offered for sale, rent, 
lease and development.  

d. Real estate signs shall conform to all other applicable provisions of the ordinance not 
inconsistent with this section.  

e. Real estate signs shall be removed with seven days after the sale or lease of the property is 
closed.  

f. Real estate directional signs (sign indicating the direction to a property being offered for sale) 
must be located on private property, with written permission of the property owner, at the 
nearest intersection of the major thoroughfare or collector street to the street upon which the 
property which is being offered for sale, rent, lease or development is located.  

(4) Any other temporary sign must be approved by the zoning administrator, and shall be of a size 
and height which is consistent with signs permitted in the neighborhood in which it will be located 
and limited to a maximum of 30 days.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1230)  

Sec. 36-202. - Special use permit signs  Sign restrictions for R-1, R-2 and R-3 districts.  

 In addition to the sign regulations contained in Sec. 36-200, the following restrictions apply within 
R-1, R-2 and R-3 zoning districts: 

(a) Professional offices and medical offices Professional services, medical services-doctor offices, 
personal services, not used primarily for the treatment of drug addicts and alcoholics, and boarding 
housesbed & breakfast establishments shall be allowed one nameplate sign not to exceed eight 
square feet per side of sign for a maximum total aggregate sign area of 16 square feet.  

(b) Manufactured or mobile home parks shall be allowed one freestanding sign per entrance. Such sign 
shall be no larger that than 32 square feet of surface area per side up to a maximum of 64 square feet 
of aggregate surface area per sign. Such sign shall not exceed ten feet in height.  

(c) Such signs shall be allowed only in conjunction with the allowance of a special use permit by the zoning 
board of adjustment.  

(c) Each residential development approved under a special use permit or conditional zoning district, or as 
a major subdivision, shall be allowed one freestanding sign per entrance. Said sign shall be no larger 
than 50 square feet of surface area per side of sign up to a maximum of 100 square feet of aggregate 
surface area per sign.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1235; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-203. - Sign restrictions for R-12, C-1, C-2 and I-1 districts.  

132

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


 In addition to the sign regulations contained in Sec. 36-200, the following restrictions apply within 
R-12, C-1, C-2 and I-1 zoning districts: 

(a) Wall signs shall not cover an area greater than 50 percent of the total surface area of the wall(s) upon 
which the sign(s) is located. (The surface area of a wall(s) shall be computed excluding windows and 
doors). All signs attached to a building, including all the visible face of flat signs, and both sides of 
projecting signs, and suspended signs shall be computed to determine the 50 percent wall coverage 
limitation. Within the R-12 zoning district, excluding signs which show the address or building number 
of residential units, such attached signage shall only be permissible on common buildings which are 
not primarily used for recreational purposes within the development.  

(b) Projecting or suspended signs shall be limited to one per business per building front, not to exceed 
eight square feet per side of sign up to a maximum of 16 square feet of aggregate surface area for the 
entire sign.  

(c) Signs overhanging any sidewalk shall be placed at least 7½ feet above the sidewalk and shall not 
extend over the sidewalk for a distance equal to or greater than two-thirds of the width of the sidewalk. 
In no event shall such a sign extend more than ten feet from the building upon which it is located.  

(d) Changeable copy signs shall be limited to one per store front, not to exceed 50 square feet in surface 
area per side up to a maximum of 100 square feet of aggregate surface area.  

(e) Detached ground-level signs, excluding private directional signs, shall be limited to one per commercial 
site. Ground level signs shall not extend more than six feet, at their highest point above ground level 
and shall not exceed 50 square feet in aggregate surface area per side of sign and shall not exceed a 
maximum of 100 square feet of aggregate surface area for the entire sign.  

(f) All ground level signs and freestanding pole signs shall be located on the immediate premises of the 
advertised commercial establishment, and shall be no closer than ten feet to any street pavement, but 
in no event shall such sign be erected on a street right-of-way.  

(g) Private directional signs on premise shall not be over six feet in sign height, and shall not have a 
surface area greater than four square feet per side up to a maximum of eight square feet in aggregate 
surface area for all sides.  

(h) Where two or more business premises share a common courtyard, alley, or access area, the 
businesses therein shall be limited to one freestanding identification sign, no higher than 20 feet from 
top of grade, which shall contain no greater than 75 square feet of surface area per side of sign up to 
a maximum of 150 square feet of aggregate surface area for the entire sign. Each business 
establishment located within the development shall be permitted one nameplate sign, not to exceed 
12 square feet in surface area per side of sign up to a maximum of 24 square feet of aggregate surface 
area for the entire sign to be attached to (or hung from) the freestanding identification sign for the 
development as a whole. (Nameplate signs shall not be of changeable copy). The total square footage 
of the identification sign and all of the attached nameplate signs shall not exceed 150 square feet per 
side of sign or 300 square feet for both sides. Signage within the R-12 zoning district is not permitted 
under this subsection. 

(i) The proper installation and/or secure attachment of any sign permitted under this chapter is the 
responsibility of the owner of the building, the tenant and/or the person installing/securing the same. 
A Buncombe County building permit may be required in additional to the requisite sign permit from the 
Town of Weaverville. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1240; Ord. of 3-20-2017)  

Sec. 36-204. - Sign construction, design and illumination.  

133



(a) All signs, except temporary signs and window signs, shall be constructed of materials which will not 
rapidly deteriorate, fade, fall apart, or in any way become a threat to the public's health, safety, and 
general welfare.  

(b) All signs shall be securely fastened, anchored, and generally placed so as to withstand ordinary 
adverse weather conditions.  

(c) No sign shall use a light reflecting background, but may use light reflecting letters.  

(d) Any sign may be illuminated unless otherwise prohibited by subsection 36-199(6). The lights of 
indirectly illuminated signs shall be shielded in such a manner so as to illuminate only the face of the 
sign.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1245)  

Sec. 36-205. - Sign maintenance.  

(a) The owner of each sign shall be responsible for maintaining the area around the sign, including the 
cutting of weeds and grass, and the removal of all trash and litter from the sign locale.  

(b) In the event that one sign is placed over another sign, the original sign shall be adequately covered or 
removed so that the original sign is not visible.  

(c) All signs, supports, braces, poles, wires and the anchors thereof shall be kept in good repair. They 
shall be maintained in a clean and safe condition, free from deterioration, missing parts, and peeling 
paint. Any sign not in compliance with these standards shall be deemed a nuisance and shall be 
subject to removal by the sign owner or by the town through the zoning administrator.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1250)  

Sec. 36-206. - Sign permit required.  

(a) All signs placed or erected within the town shall require a sign permit issued by the zoning 
administrator. Failure to secure a permit, when required, shall constitute a violation of this article. A 
sign permit fee shall be charged for each sign placed or erected after the effective date of the ordinance 
from which this chapter derives. Fees shall be charged in accordance with the schedule of fees 
established by town council.  

(b) A sign permit shall not be required for the following types of signs; provided they meet all of the other 
requirements of this chapter:  

(1) Private directional or safety signs;  

(2) Temporary construction signs;  

(3) Real estate signs;  

(4) Political signs;  

(5) Window signs;  

(6) Any flag, badge, insignia or design customarily displayed by any governmental, charitable, civic, 
fraternal, patriotic, religious or similar organization;  

(7) Municipal, school, recreational and civic club sponsored signs which indicate a schedule of events 
or rules and regulations, and school and public park signs which do not exceed 48 square feet of 
aggregate surface area per sign.  

(c) All signs which are erected or which are in place prior to the adoption of this chapter or the adoption 
of any amendment thereto shall require a sign permit in order to be allowed to remain or shall require 

134



a statement of noncompliance issued by the zoning administrator setting forth those things which must 
be done by the sign owner in order to bring the sign within the provisions of the ordinance. Such 
statements of noncompliance or sign permits shall be issued by the town within 180 days after the 
initial adoption of this chapter or after the adoption of subsequent amendments hereto which affect a 
sign. No permit fee shall be collected for the issuance of such noncompliance statement or sign permit.  

(d) In the event that the town fails to issue a sign permit or statement of noncompliance within the 180-
day period, the sign owner may assume that the sign is in compliance with all provisions of this chapter 
and that the sign is permitted to stand but the town shall not be bound by such assumption and may 
challenge the permissibility of the sign at a later date. A sign owner may request, at any time, that the 
town issue a sign permit stating that the subject sign is in compliance with the provisions of this chapter.  

(e) Sign permit applications for which a statement of noncompliance is issued, shall include a list of all 
reasons for such statement of noncompliance. The owner of such sign shall have 90 days from receipt 
of the statement of noncompliance within which to bring the sign into compliance with the ordinance 
or to remove the sign. If the sign is not brought into compliance or removed prior to the expiration of 
the 90-day period, the town may remove the same at the owner's expense.  

(f) All signs erected or placed after the adoption of this chapter without prior sign permit approval shall 
immediately be removed upon inspection by the town if found not to be in compliance with the 
provisions of this chapter. If the sign is found to be in full compliance, an after-the-fact permit may be 
issued provided that all specified fees charged and collected.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1260; Ord. of Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 4 )  

Sec. 36-207. - Obsolete or abandoned signs.  

(a) Signs or parts of signs which advertise or pertain to a development, complex, business, product, 
service, commodity, or which pertain to a purpose which no longer exists or which has not been in use 
for 90 days or more shall be deemed to be an obsolete or abandoned sign. Signs which are associated 
with a seasonal business shall not be considered obsolete or abandoned provided there is clear intent 
to continue the business in an upcoming season.  

(b) Obsolete or abandoned signs are prohibited and shall be removed by the owner or agent of the owner 
within 30 days after the termination or the business or event so advertised.  

(c) If the owner or agent of an abandoned or obsolete sign fails to remove said sign within the time allowed, 
the town may seek removal of the sign by an order of abatement pursuant to G.S. § 160A-175.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1270)  

Sec. 36-208. - Miscellaneous provisions.  

Any sign which is not clearly covered by the provisions of this chapter shall, for the purposes of this chapter, 
be considered a commercial sign and shall comply with all of the provisions concerning commercial 
signs.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1280)  

Sec. 36-209. - Violation of article.  

(a) Notice of violation. The zoning administrator or his designee shall have the authority to issue a notice 
of violation for all violations of this article. Where the owner of the sign is indicated on the sign or is 
otherwise apparent or known to the zoning administrator or his designee, a copy of the notice of 
violation shall be delivered to the sign owner by hand delivery or by registered or certified mail. In all 

135

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


other cases, a copy of the notice of violation shall be posted on the sign. A copy of the notice of 
violation shall also be delivered by hand delivery or registered or certified mail to the owner of the 
property where the sign is located as shown on the Buncombe County tax records. In addition, service 
of a notice of violation hereunder may be made in accordance with Rule 4 of the North Carolina Rules 
of Civil Procedure.  

(b) Time to remedy violation. Other than for temporary signs, all violations shall be remedied within 30 
days after notice of the violation. The 30-day period shall commence upon the service of the notice of 
violation by any means set forth above. Violations of regulations for temporary signs shall be remedied 
within 24 hours after service of the notice of violation by any means set forth above.  

(c) Extension of time for compliance. Other than for violations of regulations for temporary signs, the 
zoning administrator or his designee shall have the authority to grant a single 30-day extension of time 
within which to remedy the violation. For violations of regulations for temporary signs, the zoning 
administrator or his designee shall have the authority to issue a single 24-hour extension of time within 
which to remedy the violation. Either single extension of time may be issued based upon a written 
request for an extension of time which sets forth valid reasons for not complying within the original 
time period.  

(d) Remedies for failure to comply. Pursuant to G.S. § 160A-175, the zoning administrator or his designee 
may choose from the remedies set forth below to enforce the requirements of this article when there 
is a failure to comply with the notice of violation. Those remedies are as follows:  

(1) In addition to or in lieu of the other remedies set forth in this section, the zoning administrator or 
his designee may issue a citation setting forth a civil penalty of $50.00, pursuant to G.S. § 160A-
175(c). In the case of a continuing violation, each 72-hour period during which the violation 
continues to exist shall constitute a separate violation. The citation shall be served upon the 
person(s) described in subparagraph (a) by the means set forth therein. In the event the offender 
does not pay the penalty within 30 days of service of the citation, the civil penalty shall be collected 
by the town in a civil action in the nature of debt, which shall not subject the offender to the penalty 
provisions of G.S. § 14-4.  

(2) In addition to or in lieu of the other remedies set forth in this section, the zoning administrator or 
his designee shall have the authority to issue an order to remove for any sign not repaired or 
otherwise brought into compliance within the provisions of this chapter within the time required 
by the foregoing provisions. Orders to remove shall be issued to and served upon the person(s) 
described in subparagraph (a) by the means set forth therein. Any sign ordered to be removed 
shall be removed 30 days after the service of the order to remove at the expense of the offender. 
The order to remove shall describe with particularity the location of the sign to be removed and 
all of the reasons for issuance of the order to remove, including specific reference to the provisions 
of this article which have been violated.  

(3) In addition to or in lieu of the other remedies set forth above, the town may use all of the remedies 
set forth in G.S. § 160A-175. Specifically, the person violating a provision of this chapter may be 
charged with a misdemeanor or infraction pursuant to G.S. § 14-4 and fined in accordance with 
the provisions.  

(e) Removal and recovery of expense. In the event of the failure to comply with the requirements of an 
order to remove, the zoning administrator or his designee may cause such sign to be removed. The 
sign owner and property owner shall be jointly and severally liable for the expense of removal. Notice 
of the cost of removal shall be served upon the person(s) described in subparagraph (a) by the means 
set forth therein. If the cost of removal is not paid within 30 days thereafter, such costs shall be 
collected by the town in a civil action in the nature of debt, which shall not subject the offender to the 
penalty provisions of G.S. § 14-4.  

(f) Removal of dangerous signs. Pursuant to G.S. § 160A-193, the town, through the zoning administrator 
or his designee shall have the authority to summarily remove, abate or remedy a sign which is 
determined to be dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or safety. The expense of removal shall 
be paid by the sign owner, or if the sign owner cannot be determined, by the owner of the property, 

136



and if not paid, the expense shall be a lien upon the land or premises where the sign is located and 
shall be collected in the same manner as unpaid taxes.  

(g) Removal of prohibited signs. The zoning administrator or his designee shall have the authority to 
remove summarily any signs prohibited under section 36-199 of this Article VIII.  

(h) Stay upon appeal. In the event of a timely appeal of a decision of the zoning administrator or his 
designee to the zoning board of adjustment, enforcement of all proceedings and the furtherance of the 
action appealed from shall be stayed, unless the zoning administrator or his designee certifies to the 
zoning board of adjustment that a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XII, § 17-1285)  

Secs. 36-210—36-235. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE IX. - SPECIAL USE PERMITS[2]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (2) ---  

Editor's note— Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 , amended the title of Art. IX to read as herein set out. The 
former title read "Special Exceptions."  

 

Sec. 36-236. - Compliance mandatory; exception.  

Compliance with the requirements of this chapter is mandatory, except that under the specific 
conditions enumerated in the following sections of this Article IX, these requirements may be varied or 
modified as stated herein. This article is applicable for the issuance of any special use permit required by 
this chapter and for any amendment to an existing special use permit, conditional use permit or order 
granting a special exception. 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIII)  

Sec. 36-237. - Intent.  

The purpose of this article is to insure adequate review and control of various specific uses or 
developmental proposals which may have a direct influence or impact upon neighboring or contiguous land 
uses. This review is intended to aid in protecting the private and public values and interests in such land 
uses, whether residential or commercial in nature.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIII, § 17-1300)  

Sec. 36-238. - Standards.  

While there are many uses which are classified as "special uses," only a few require compliance with 
specific design or other criteria in order to be approved. For those few, the following sections of this article 
provide both the application procedure to be followed, and the special criteria which must be satisfied to 

137

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


obtain approval from the zoning board of adjustment. No special use permit shall be issued or amended 
unless the zoning board of adjustment shall find that:  

(1) The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.  

(2) The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted nor substantially diminish and impair property values 
within the neighborhood.  

(3) The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  

(4) The exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or with the character 
of the applicable district as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood.  

(5) Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or other necessary facilities have been, are being 
or will be provided.  

(6) Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.  

(7) The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 
which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the zoning 
board of adjustment.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIII, § 17-1310; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-239. - Application procedure.  

(a) Applicant. The applicant must be the owner or lessee (or legal representative) of all land and structures 
included within the tract or structure where the special use will be located or must be a governmental 
agency. The holder of a conditional sales contract or option on the land and/or structures shall, for the 
purposes of the application, be deemed to be the owner or lessee of the land and/or structures covered 
by the special use permit application.  

(b) Application form for special use permits. A special use permit application form shall be obtained from 
the zoning administrator. Completed forms, including any attached exhibits, must contain information 
showing: (a) the location and intended use of the site, and (b) the names of all property owners and 
existing land uses within 200 feet of the property boundaries. The completed form may contain other 
pertinent information which will aid the zoning board of adjustment in making a decision and shall be 
filed with the zoning administrator who shall forward all information to the zoning board of adjustment. 
An application fee shall be charged in accordance with the schedule of fees established by town 
council. This fee shall be non-refundable.  

(c) Public hearing. Before acting on an application for a special use permit, the zoning board of adjustment 
shall hold a public hearing as provided in section 36-329.  

(d) Special use permit. Following the public hearing, the zoning board of adjustment may issue a special 
use permit. In granting such a permit, the board may attach such conditions to the permit as will, in its 
opinion, assure that the use will conform to the requirements of this chapter. If at any time after a 
special use permit has been issued the zoning board of adjustment finds that any conditions imposed 
have not been or are not being fulfilled by the holder of a special use permit, the permit shall be 
immediately terminated and the use discontinued. If a request for a special use permit is denied or if 
the special use permit is terminated for any reason, the matter shall not be brought back before the 
zoning board of adjustment for a period of six months from the date of denial or termination.  

138

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank


(e) [Majority vote required.] When deciding special use permits or conditional use permits, the zoning 
board of adjustment shall follow quasi-judicial procedures. No vote greater than a majority vote shall 
be required for the zoning board of adjustment to issue such permits. For the purposes of this section, 
vacant positions on the board and members who are disqualified from voting on a quasi-judicial matter 
shall not be considered members of the board for calculation of the requisite majority. Every such 
decision of the board of adjustments shall be subject to review of the superior court in the nature of 
certiorari in accordance with G.S. 160A-388.  

(f) [Conflicts of interest.] A member of the board or any other body exercising the functions of the zoning 
board of adjustment shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would 
violate affected persons' constitutional rights to an impartial decision maker. Impermissible conflicts 
include, but are not limited to, a member having a fixed opinion prior to hearing the matter that is not 
susceptible to change, undisclosed ex parte communications, a close familial, business, or other 
associational relationship with an affected person, or a financial interest in the outcome of the matter. 
If an objection is raised to a member's participation and that member does not recuse himself or 
herself, the remaining members shall by majority vote rule on the objection.  

(g) The application procedure outlined herein shall also apply to amendments for any previously issued 
special use permit, conditional use permit or order granting a special exception. 

(h) Completion of construction on lots subject to a special use permit shall be subject to the following:  

(1) Detailed plans. Within six months of the approval of the application and general plan, the applicant 
shall file detailed plans for review by the zoning administrator showing the details of the proposed 
development as fully as possible and including elevations and perspectives of proposed 
construction. If the applicant later wishes to change any of the details of the proposed 
development, further detailed plans shall be filed for review by the zoning administrator. No 
building permit for the proposed development, or any part thereof, shall be issued until the zoning 
administrator has determined that the pertinent detailed plans are in accordance with the 
application and general plans as approved by the board of adjustment.  

(2) Construction. If construction or improvements have not begun within 12 months of the date of 
approval of the detailed plans, the special use permit shall become null and void. One six-month 
extension may be granted by the board of adjustment when reasonable cause is shown but an 
application for the extension must be filed prior to the end of the initial 12-month period. No zoning 
permit shall be issued until a detailed report showing the outcome of construction is submitted by 
the applicant to the zoning administrator and the administrator has certified that all requirements 
of this section and the special use permit have been met.  

 

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIII, § 17-1315; Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 ; Ord. of 11-
21-2016(1), § 5 )  

 Sec. 36-240. - Unified business development.  

(a) Intent. To establish additional criteria and guidelines for unified business developments consisting of 
one or more principal structures or buildings and accessory structures or buildings to be constructed 
on a lot or plot not subdivided into the customary streets and lots and which lot may or may not be so 
subdivided. These developments are subject to additional design criteria due to the significant impact 
they are likely to have on surrounding property, traffic patterns, and the physical environment of the 
area.  

(b) Applicability. These regulations shall apply to all business developments with one or more business 
structures located on a parcel of land. Developments meeting either of the following criteria shall be 
subject to regulation under this section:  

139

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


(1) One or more buildings on the lot or plot, at least one of the buildings containing of 10,000 square 
feet or more; and  

(2) Two or more principal buildings located on a parcel of land not customarily subdivided into 
individual lots.  

(c) Requirements.  

(1) No unified business development shall contain less than two acres.  

(2) Such a development shall abut a major existing thoroughfare or collector street maintained by the 
state department of transportation or the town and shall have direct access thereto.  

(3) Points on ingress and egress shall be located a sufficient distance from highway intersections to 
minimize traffic hazard, inconvenience and congestion. Furthermore, each development shall 
have a minimum of two such access points to facilitate the safe flow of traffic.  

a. Minimum pavement width for two-way streets: 24 feet, or 18 feet, provided usable, all 
weather shoulders are provided on each side of the 18-foot pavement to effect an overall 
usable minimum width of 24 feet.  

b. Minimum pavement width for one-way streets: 12 feet.  

(4) The number, width and location of all curb cuts shall be such as to minimize traffic hazards, 
inconvenience, and congestion.  

(5) Parking areas and loading spaces shall be provided in accordance with article VII of this chapter, 
and all traffic lanes shall be clearly marked. Paved parking areas may be constructed for the 
individual business units to within ten feet of the front of the unit and may be flush with the side 
of any unit.  

(6) Storm drainage and sanitary sewerage shall be provided, as approved by the town and by the 
Metropolitan Sewerage District, respectively, and in accordance with the regulations set forth in 
this Code or other applicable regulations.  

(d) General plan. Each application shall be accompanied by a general site plan, drawn neatly and to scale, 
showing:  

(1) Property lines, street and other public right-of-way lines, public utility easements, and rights-of-
way.  

(2) Topography of the site, showing five-foot contours and true elevations.  

(3) Location and approximate size of all existing and proposed buildings and structures within the 
site and ownership of all properties within 500 feet of the site boundaries.  

(4) All proposed points of ingress and egress together with the proposed pattern of internal traffic 
circulation and parking areas.  

(5) All proposed provisions for stormwater collection and disposal, including both natural and 
manmade features, and the proposed treatment of ground cover, slopes, banks and ditches.  

(6) Proposed connections with the town water shall have a commitment letter from the town and 
sewer systems shall have a sewer system allocation approval from the Metropolitan Sewerage 
District and proposed locations of trash or garbage bulk containers shall be shown on the plans.  

(7) Landscaping shall be provided and must comply with article VI of this chapter. The landscaping 
plan required by article VI shall be submitted for approval to the zoning board of adjustment, as 
well as the site plan.  

(8) Each site and landscaping plan shall be accompanied by a statement that an erosion control plan 
has been submitted to the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
(DENR) or its successor.  

140



(9) The zoning board of adjustment may require other matters to be incorporated into the special use 
which are for the protection of the public health, safety, welfare and convenience.  

(e) Area requirements. Area and building requirements shall be the same as for the district in which the 
unified business district is to be located.  

(f) Sign requirements. See section 36-80(d)(3) and article VIII.  

(g) Buffering requirements. If the property adjoins a lot zoned residential, the owner or lessee of the unified 
business development shall be responsible for providing a 20-foot buffer as defined in section 36-5 of 
this chapter along the side or rear lines where the property adjoins said residential district. This buffer 
shall be in place before beginning construction on any structure.  

(h) Subsequent performance.  

(1) Detailed plans. Within six months of the approval of the application and general plan, the applicant 
shall file detailed plans for review by the zoning administrator showing the details of the proposed 
development as fully as possible and including elevations and perspectives of proposed 
construction. If the applicant later wishes to change any of the details of the proposed 
development, further detailed plans shall be filed for review by the zoning administrator. No 
building permit for the proposed development, or any part thereof, shall be issued until the zoning 
administrator has determined that the pertinent detailed plans are in accordance with the 
application and general plans as approved by the zoning board of adjustment.  

(2) Construction. If construction or improvements have not begun within 12 months of the date of 
approval of the detailed plans, the special use permit shall become null and void. One six-month 
extension may be granted by the zoning board of adjustment when reasonable cause is shown 
but an application for the extension must be filed prior to the end of the initial 12-month period. 
No building shall be occupied until a detailed report showing the outcome of construction is 
submitted by the applicant to the zoning administrator and the administrator has certified that all 
requirements of this section have been met.  

(3) [Extension of time limit.] Projects that have approved detailed plans as of May 1, 2009, but on 
which there has not been a start of construction will have an additional 24 months (36 months 
total) from the date of approval of the detailed plans to the start of construction. If there has not 
been start of construction prior to the expiration of the approved time period, the special use 
permit shall become null and void. Developers with approved plans must file a request for the 
additional extension of time with the Weaverville Zoning Administrator prior to the end of the initial 
12-month period.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIII, § 17-1320; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(u)—(w); Ord. of 4-20-2009, § 
1; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 )  

Sec. 36-241. - Reserved.  

Editor's note— Ord. of 9-19-2016(3), § 1 , repealed § 36-241, which pertained to unified housing 
development and derived from Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIII, § 17-1330; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 
1(x)—(aa); Ord. of 4-20-2009, § 2; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 2 ; Ord. of 3-21-2016(2), § 1 ; Ord. of 5-16-
2016(1), § 6 .  

Secs. 36-242—36-265. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE X. - ZONING VESTED RIGHTS  

 

141

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790577&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=629348&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790580&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790584&datasource=ordbank


Sec. 36-266. - Intent.  

The town council finds and declares that it is necessary and desirable, as a matter of public policy, to 
provide for the establishment of certain vested rights in order to ensure reasonable certainty, stability, and 
fairness in the land-use planning process, secure the reasonable expectations of landowners, and foster 
cooperation between the public and private sectors in the area of land-use planning. Furthermore, the town 
council recognizes that approval of land-use development typically follows significant landowner investment 
in site evaluation, planning, development costs, consultant fees, and related expenses, and;  

The ability of a landowner to obtain a vested right after town council approval of a site specific 
development plan or a phased development plan will preserve the prerogatives and authority of local 
elected officials with respect to land-use matters. There will be ample opportunities for public participation 
and the public interest will be served. These provisions will strike an appropriate balance between private 
expectations and the public interest, while scrupulously protecting the public health, safety, and welfare.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1400)  

Sec. 36-267. - Purpose.  

The purpose of this chapter is to implement the provisions of G.S. 160A-385.1 pursuant to which a 
statutory zoning vested right is established upon the approval of a site specific development plan or a 
phased development plan.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1410)  

Sec. 36-268. - Definitions.  

Landowner means any owner of a legal or equitable interest in real property, including the heirs, 
devisees, successors, assigns, and personal representative of such owner. The landowner may allow a 
person holding a valid option to purchase to act as his agent or representative for purposes of submitting a 
proposed site specific development plan or a phased development plan under this section, in the manner 
allowed by ordinance.  

Phased development plan means a plan which has been submitted to the town by a landowner for 
phased development which shows the type and intensity of use for a specific parcel or parcels with a lesser 
degree of certainty than the plan determined by the town council to be a site specific development plan.  

Property means all real property subject to zoning regulations and restrictions and zone boundaries 
by the Town of Weaverville.  

Site specific development plan means a plan which has been submitted to the town by a landowner 
describing with reasonable certainty the type and intensity of use for a specific parcel or parcels of property. 
Such plan may be in the form of, but not be limited to, any of the following plans or approvals: A planned 
unit development plan, a subdivision plat, a preliminary or general development plan, a special use permit, 
a conditional or special use district zoning plan, (at such time as the town may provide for conditional and 
special use districts by ordinance) or any other land-use approval designation as may be utilized by the 
town. Unless otherwise expressly provided by the town such a plan shall include the approximate 
boundaries of the site; significant topographical and other natural features effecting development of the site; 
the approximate location on the site of the proposed buildings, structures, and other improvements; the 
approximate dimensions, including height, of the proposed buildings and other structures; and the 
approximate location of all existing and proposed infrastructure on the site, including water, sewer, roads, 
and pedestrian walkways. What constitutes a site specific development plan under this section that would 
trigger a vested right shall be finally determined by the town council pursuant to this chapter, and the 
document that triggers such vesting shall be so identified at the time of its approval. However, at a minimum, 
the ordinance to be adopted by the town council shall designate a vesting point earlier than the issuance 

142



of a building permit. A variance shall not constitute a site specific development plan, and approval of a site 
specific development plan with the condition that a variance be obtained shall not confer a vested right 
unless and until the necessary variance is obtained. Neither a sketch plan nor any other document which 
fails to describe with reasonable certainty the type and intensity of use for a specified parcel or parcels or 
property may constitute a site specific development plan.  

Town shall mean the Town of Weaverville or the town council of the Town of Weaverville.  

Vested right means the right to undertake and complete the development and use of property under 
the terms and conditions of an approved site specific development plan or an approved phased 
development plan.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1420)  

Sec. 36-269. - Establish of zoning vested rights and procedure.  

A vested right shall be deemed established with respect to any property upon the valid approval, or 
conditional approval, of a site specific development plan or a phased development plan, following notice 
and public hearing by the town council. Such vested right shall confer upon the landowner the right to 
undertake and complete the development and use of said property under the terms and conditions of the 
site specific development plan or the phased development plan including any amendments hereto. The 
town council may approve a site specific development plan or a phased development plan upon such terms 
and conditions as may reasonably be necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare. Such 
conditional approval shall result in a vested right, although failure to abide by such terms and conditions 
shall result in a forfeiture of vested rights. The town council shall not require a landowner to waive his vested 
rights as a condition of developmental approval. A site specific development plan or a phased development 
plan shall be deemed approved upon the effective date of the town council's action or ordinance relating 
thereto.  

An application for a site specific development plan or for a phased development plan shall be 
processed through the zoning administrator or town manager who shall cause notice of a hearing to be 
properly published and who shall submit the applications to the town council for action after a proper 
hearing. The town council may hereinafter promulgate further rules and procedures with regards to the 
processing of such application and may provide a form for such application. The person seeking vested 
rights in a site specific development plan or a phased development plan must submit such maps, plats, site 
plans or other documentation which may be required by the town council in order to fully determine the 
nature and extent of the vesting rights sought and shall include an adequate legal description of the 
boundaries of the site and a narrative description of significant topographical features of the site affecting 
development of the site, the approximate location on the site of the proposed buildings, structures, and 
other improvements, the approximate dimensions, including height of the proposed buildings and other 
structures and approximate location of all existing and proposed infrastructure on the site, including water, 
sewer, roads and pedestrian walkways. Based upon the application and information supplied, the town 
council shall determine what constitutes a site specific development plan or a phased development plan 
sufficient to trigger a vested right pursuant to this chapter and the town council shall identify the document 
that triggers such vesting at the time of its approval. Such approval shall specifically state that the approval 
issued zoning vesting rights pursuant to this article and pursuant to G.S. § 160A-385.1. The approval shall 
further state that unless terminated at an earlier date, the zoning vested right shall be valid until a specific 
date.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1430)  

Sec. 36-270. - Duration and termination of vested right.  

143



(a) A right which has vested as provided for in this section shall remain vested for a period of two years. 
This vesting shall not be extended by any amendments or modifications to a site specific development 
plan unless expressly provided by the town.  

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 36-270(1)(a), the town council may provide that rights 
shall be vested for a period exceeding two years but not exceeding five years where warranted in light 
of all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the size and phasing of development, the 
level of investment, the need for the development, economic cycles, and market conditions. These 
determinations shall be in the sound discretion of the town council.  

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections 36-270(1) and (2)(a) and (b), the town council may 
provide by ordinance that approval by the town council of a phased development plan shall vest the 
zoning classification or classifications so approved for a period not to exceed five years. The document 
that triggers such vesting shall be so identified at the time of its approval. The town council still may 
require the landowner to submit a site specific development plan for approval by the town council with 
respect to each phase or phases in order to obtain final approval to develop within the restrictions of 
the vested zoning classification or classifications. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require 
the town council to adopt an ordinance providing for vesting of rights upon approval of a phased 
development plan.  

(d) Following approval or conditional approval of a site specific development plan or a phased 
development plan, nothing in this section shall exempt such a plan from subsequent reviews and 
approvals by the town council to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the original 
approval, provided that such reviews and approvals are not inconsistent with said original approval. 
Nothing in this section shall prohibit the town council from revoking the original approval for failure to 
comply with applicable terms and conditions of the approval or the zoning ordinance.  

(e) Upon issuance of a building permit, the provisions of G.S. § 160A-418 and G.S. § 160A-422 shall 
apply, except that a permit shall not expire or be revoked because of the running of time while a vested 
right under this section is outstanding.  

(f) A right which has been vested as provided in this section shall terminate at the end of the applicable 
vesting period with respect to buildings and uses for which no valid building permit applications have 
been filed.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1440)  

Sec. 36-271. - Subsequent changes prohibited; exceptions.  

A vested right, once established as provided for in this section, precludes any zoning action by the 
town council which would change, alter, impair, prevent, diminish, or otherwise delay the development or 
use of the property as set forth in an approved site specific development plan or an approved phased 
development plan, except:  

(1) With the written consent of the affected landowner;  

(2) Upon finding, by ordinance after notice and a public hearing, that natural or man-made hazards 
on or in the immediate vicinity of the property, if uncorrected, would pose a serious threat to the 
public health, safety, and welfare if the project were to proceed as contemplated in the site specific 
development plan or the phased development plan;  

(3) Upon finding, by ordinance after notice and a hearing, that the landowner or his representative 
intentionally supplied inaccurate information or made material misrepresentations which made a 
difference in the approval by the town council of the site specific development plan or the phased 
development plan; or  

(4) Upon the enactment or promulgation of a state or federal law or regulation which precludes 
development as contemplated in the site specific development plan or the phased development 
plan, in which case the town council may modify the affected provisions, upon a finding that the 

144



change in state or federal law has a fundamental effect on the plan, by ordinance after notice and 
a hearing.  

The establishment of a vested right shall not preclude the application of overlay zoning which imposes 
additional requirements but does not affect the allowable type or intensity of use, or ordinances or 
regulations which are general in nature and are applicable to all property subject to land-use regulation by 
the town council, including, but not limited to, building, fire, plumbing, electrical, and mechanical codes. 
Otherwise applicable new regulations shall become effective with respect to property which is subject to a 
site specific development plan or a phased development plan upon the expiration or termination of the 
vesting rights period provided for in this section.  

The nonconforming use provisions of section 36-19 of this chapter shall not apply to any 
nonconforming use in which vested rights have been granted, pursuant to the provisions of this vested 
rights ordinance.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1450)  

Sec. 36-272. - Miscellaneous provisions.  

A vested right obtained under this section is not a personal right, but shall attach to and run with the 
applicable property. After approval of a site specific development plan or a phased development plan, all 
successors to the original landowner shall be entitled to exercise such rights.  

Nothing in this section shall preclude judicial determination, based on common-law principles or other 
statutory provisions, that a vested right exists in a particular case or that a compensable taking has 
occurred. Except as expressly provided in this section, nothing in this section shall be construed to alter the 
existing common law.  

In the event the town council fails to adopt an ordinance setting forth what constitutes a site specific 
development plan triggering a vested right, a landowner may establish a vested right with respect to 
property upon the approval of a zoning permit, or otherwise may seek appropriate relief from the Superior 
Court Division of the General Court of Justice.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1460)  

Sec. 36-273. - Voluntary annexation.  

A petition for annexation filed with the Town of Weaverville under G.S. § 160A-31 or G.S. § 160A-58.1 
shall contain a signed statement declaring whether or not any zoning vested right with respect to the 
properties subject to the petition has been established under G.S. § 160A-385.1 or G.S. § 153A-344.1. A 
statement that declares that no zoning vested right has been established under G.S. § 160A-385.1 or G.S. 
§ 153A-344.1, or the failure to sign a statement declaring whether or not a zoning vested right has been 
established, shall be binding on the landowner and any such zoning vested right shall be terminated.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1470)  

Sec. 36-274. - Limitations.  

Nothing in this section is intended or shall be deemed to create any vested right other than those 
established pursuant to G.S. § 160A-385.1.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1480)  

Sec. 36-275. - Repealer.  

145



In the event that G.S. § 160A-385.1 is repealed, this section shall be deemed repealed and the 
provisions hereof no longer effective.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XIV, § 17-1490)  

Secs. 36-276—36-295. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE XI. - ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT  

 

Sec. 36-296. - Intent.  

It is the intent of this chapter that all questions arising in connection with the enforcement or the 
interpretation of this chapter shall be first presented to the zoning administrator and that such questions 
shall be presented to the zoning board of adjustment only on appeal from the zoning administrator, and that 
from the decision of the zoning board of adjustment, recourse shall be taken to the courts as provided by 
law. It is further the intent of this chapter that the duties of the town council in connection with this chapter 
shall not include hearing and passing on disputed questions which might arise in connection with the 
enforcement or interpretations of this chapter, but that the procedures for determining such questions shall 
be as stated in this chapter. The duties of the town council in connection with this chapter shall only be the 
duty of holding a public hearing and voting upon any proposed amendment to  or repeal of this chapter, as 
provided by law.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XV, § 17-1500)  

Sec. 36-297. - Zoning administrator.  

It shall be the duty of the town manager to appoint a zoning administrator who shall be given the 
authority to administer and enforce the provisions of this chapter. The zoning administrator shall have the 
power to designate duties of inspection and enforcement to deputies but shall pass upon any matter 
appealed from the deputy.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XV, § 17-1510)  

Sec. 36-298. -– Zoning Permits required.  

A zoning permit shall be obtained from the zoning administrator before beginning any construction on 
any lot within the town's zoning jurisdiction. No lot shall be graded so as to alter its contour and no building 
or other structure shall be erected, moved, added to, or structurally altered prior to the issuance of said 
zoning permit. In no event will the zoning administrator approve any permit for the grading of any lot or the 
construction or alteration of any building if such building, or its intended use would be in violation of any of 
the provisions of this chapter, or if the contour of any lot would be altered or graded in violation of the 
screening and buffering requirements of this chapter.  

(1) Application for permit. All applications for zoning permits shall be accompanied by such 
information as the zoning administrator determines as needed for a full review of the request. 
Zoning administrator shall ensure that all applications are compliant with the applicable sections 
of this chapter prior to issuance of permit or transmittal to the decision-making board. a site plan 
(or plot plan) in duplicate, drawn to scale, showing the following:  

a. Title block, containing:  

- Name of owner.  

146



- Location (including Buncombe County tax lot number).  

- Date or dates survey was conducted and plan prepared.  

- A scale of the drawing, in feet per inch, listed in words or figures.  

- Deed book and page reference of the deed conveying the property to the current owner (or 
information on will and estate file).  

b. The exact dimensions, by metes and bounds, of the lot, including any interior lot lines if the lot 
consists of more than one lot of record under single ownership.  

c. The lot area in acres or square feet.  

d. The location, right-of-way width and name of all streets bordering the property.  

e. The minimum building setback lines applicable to the lot and any drainage or utility easements 
located on the lot.  

f. The exact size and location of any existing buildings or structures located on the lot or within eight 
feet of any exterior lot line.  

g. The exact dimension and location of all proposed buildings or structures or additions thereto, 
including any projections except those projections provided for in section 36-16, as therein limited.  

h. The exact size and location of any patios, decks, porches, awnings, carports and similar 
structures which may be attached to the proposed building or structure or which may be an 
addition to an existing building or structure.  

i. The exact dimension and location of all off-street parking and loading spaces including all turn-
around spaces and vehicular access to a street or alley which may be required by Article VII.  

j. Any landscaping (plan) which may be required by Article VI.  

k. Any other information which may be required by the zoning administrator in order to assure 
compliance with the provisions of this chapter, including a grading contour plan in order to assure 
compliance with the screening and buffering requirements of this chapter.  

Property corners shall be in place on the ground and the location of all proposed buildings or structures 
or additions thereto shall be accurately located upon the lot by stakes or other acceptable means 
prior to the submission of the application for a zoning permit.  

(2) Issuance of zoning permit. Prior to issuing a zoning permit the zoning administrator shall first 
review the application and supporting documentation, site (plot) plan, and the required 
landscaping plan to determine compliance with all of the applicable requirements of this chapter. 
If the plans show that the proposed construction meets all of the requirements of this chapter the 
zoning administrator shall, prior to the issuance of the zoning permit, make an inspection of the 
site to determine that the actual location of all existing or proposed buildings or structures, parking 
areas, buffer strips etc. are located as shown on the plans. If the services of the town engineer or 
of a registered land surveyor are required to assure that the actual locations, on the ground, are 
as shown on the plans, the cost of this service shall be paid by the applicant prior to issuance of 
the zoning permit. Any such charges shall be in addition to the normal charges for such zoning 
permit. After the zoning administrator finds that the plans and on-site locations meet the 
requirements of this chapter, the administrator shall issue a zoning permit stating that the 
proposed construction, if built as located, meets the provisions of this chapter and that the 
applicant can apply for building and other permits.  

Explanatory note: While it may be obvious that a proposed building or structure to be located on 
a large tract of land meets the setback requirements by simple observation, actual field 
measurements would be required to determine compliance on a typical residential lot. All such 
measurements must be made from actual property or right-of-way lines using property corner or 
right-of-way markers. It may be assumed that the paved portion of any street or alley is in the 

147



center of the right-of-way for this purpose only if the right-of-way of record cannot be otherwise 
established by actual surveys.  

(3) County building permits required. After the zoning permit is approved and issued, the applicant 
shall apply to the Buncombe County Public Works Permits and Inspections Department, or any 
successor thereto, for building, plumbing, electrical or other required permits. If such permits are 
not issued within 60 days after issuance of the zoning permit, the zoning permit shall become 
invalid.  

(4) Construction progress. If no substantial construction progress has been made within 180 calendar 
days of the date of the issuance of the zoning permit, or if work is suspended for 365 calendar 
days, the zoning permit shall become invalid; provided, however, the zoning administrator may 
extend the time for substantial construction progress to be made by up to 180 calendar days, for 
good cause shown. This provision shall not be applicable, however, for time periods for projects 
in conditional zoning districts, which shall be governed by subsection 36-84(e), or special use 
permits, which shall be governed by Article IX.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XV, § 17-1520; Ord. of 9-15-2008, § 1(bb); Ord. of 11-17-2008, § 2)  

Secs. 36-299—36-325. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE XII. - ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  

 

Sec. 36-326. - Establishment.  

A zoning board of adjustment is hereby established to consist of five regular members and two 
alternate members. These members shall be appointed by the town council.  

Any alternate member may serve in the absence of any regular member of the zoning board of 
adjustment and it shall not be necessary that an absent member of the board be temporarily replaced by a 
person residing in the same jurisdiction as said absent member.  

The term of office of each member and alternate member of the zoning board of adjustment shall be 
for three years. Vacancies occurring on said board shall be filled for the unexpired term only. Any member 
who is absent without good cause from three consecutive meetings shall be removed from the board. The 
members of the board shall receive no compensation for their services.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 17-1610; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1; Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 21 )  

Sec. 36-327. - Proceedings.  

The zoning board of adjustment shall elect a chairman and a vice chairman from its members who 
shall serve for one year or until reelected or until their successors are elected. The board shall appoint a 
secretary, who may be a municipal officer, an employee of the town, or a member of the zoning board of 
adjustment. The board shall adopt rules and by-laws in accordance with the provisions of this chapter and 
G.S. ch. 160A, art. 19. Meetings of the board shall be held at the call of the chairman and at such other 
times as the board may determine. The chairman, or in his absence, the vice chairman, may administer 
oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses by subpoena. All meetings of the board shall be open to the 
public.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 17-1620; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

148

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


Sec. 36-328. - Powers and duties.  

The zoning board of adjustment shall have the following powers and duties:  

(1) Granting of or amending special use permits. The zoning board of adjustment is authorized to 
grant special use permits where authorized in a particular use district upon deciding that the 
request complies with applicable standards and procedures in this chapter. Reasonable and 
appropriate conditions may be imposed upon any special use approved. In additional the board 
of adjustment shall be authorized to review and approve any amendment to an existing special 
use permit. 

(2) Granting of variances. The zoning board of adjustment is authorized, to grant a variance when 
unnecessary hardships would result from carrying out the strict letter of the terms of this chapter 
upon a showing of all of the following:  

a. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this chapter. It shall not be 
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be 
made of the property.  

b. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, 
or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships 
resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may 
not be the basis for granting a variance.  

c. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The 
act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the 
granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  

d. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of this chapter such 
that public safety is secured and substantial justice is achieved.  

e. The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, building or structure which is not 
permitted in the zoning district in which the property is located.  

f. The variance is not a request to permit a prohibited sign. Appropriate conditions may be 
imposed on any variance, provided that the conditions are reasonably related to the 
variance.  

(3) Appeals. The zoning board of adjustment is authorized to hear and decide appeals of decisions 
of administrative officials charged with enforcement of this chapter. "Decision" includes any final 
and binding order, requirement or determination of such officials.  

a. Any person who has standing under G.S. § 160A-393(d) or the town may appeal a decision 
to the board of adjustment. An appeal is taken by filing a notice of appeal with the town clerk. 
The notice of appeal shall state the grounds for the appeal.  

b. The official who made the decision shall give written notice to the owner of the property that 
is the subject of the decision and to the party who sought the decision, if different from the 
owner. The written notice shall be delivered by personal delivery, electronic mail, or by first-
class mail.  

c. The owner or other party shall have 30 days from receipt of the written notice within which 
to file an appeal. Any other person with standing to appeal shall have 30 days from receipt 
from any source of actual or constructive notice of the decision within which to file an appeal.  

d. It shall be conclusively presumed that all persons with standing to appeal have constructive 
notice of the decision from the date a sign containing the words "Zoning Decision" in letters 
at least six inches high and identifying the means to contact an official for information about 
the decision is prominently posted on the property that is the subject of the decision, provided 
the sign remains on the property for at least ten days. Posting of signs is not the only form 
of constructive notice. Any such posting shall be the responsibility of the property owner or 

149



applicant. Verification of the posting shall be provided to the official who made the decision. 
Posting of signs shall not be required.  

e. The official who made the decision shall transmit to the board all documents and exhibits 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is taken. The official shall also 
provide a copy of the record to the appellant and to the owner of the property that is the 
subject of the appeal if the appellant is not the owner.  

f. An appeal of a notice of violation or other enforcement order stays enforcement of the action 
appealed from unless the official who made the decision certifies to the board of adjustment 
after notice of appeal has been filed that because of the facts stated in an affidavit, a stay 
would cause imminent peril to life or property or because the violation is transitory in nature, 
a stay would seriously interfere with enforcement of the ordinance. In that case, enforcement 
proceedings shall not be stayed except by a restraining order, which may be granted by a 
court. If enforcement proceedings are not stayed, the appellant may file with the official a 
request for an expedited hearing of the appeal, and the board of adjustment shall meet to 
hear the appeal within 15 days after such a request is filed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
appeals of decisions granting a permit or otherwise affirming that a proposed use of property 
is consistent with the ordinance shall not stay the further review of an application for permits 
or permissions to use such property; in these situations the appellant may request and the 
board may grant a stay of a final decision of permit applications or building permits affected 
by the issue being appealed.  

g. The official who made the decision shall be present at the hearing as a witness. The 
appellant shall not be limited at the hearing to matters stated in the notice of appeal. If any 
party or the town would be unduly prejudiced by the presentation of matters not presented 
in the notice of appeal, the board shall continue the hearing.  

h. The board of adjustment may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the decision 
appealed from and shall make any order, requirement, decision, or determination that ought 
to be made. The board shall have all the powers of the official who made the decision.  

i. When hearing an appeal pursuant to G.S. § 160A-400.9(e) or any other appeal in the nature 
of certiorari, the hearing shall be based on the record below and the scope of review shall 
be as provided in G.S. § 160A-393(k).  

j. The parties to an appeal that has been made under this subsection may agree to mediation 
or other forms of alternative dispute resolution.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 1630; Ord. of 3-16-98; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

Sec. 36-329. - Hearings and notices.  

(a) Hearing . The zoning board of adjustment shall hold a public hearing and enter a written decision on 
all matters upon which it is required to decide under this chapter. The public hearing shall be held 
within 30 days after receipt by the town clerk of an application for a special use permit or variance or 
a notice of appeal. The board shall follow quasi-judicial procedures when deciding appeals, requests 
for variances and requests for special use permits. The board shall decide the matter within 60 days 
after the conclusion of the hearing. Upon a hearing before the zoning board of adjustment, any party 
may appear in person, or by agent, or by an attorney.  

(b) Notice . Notice of the time and the place of the public hearing shall be published weekly for two 
consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the town. The first weekly notice shall be 
published not less than ten days nor more than 25 days before the date fixed for the public hearing. In 
computing such period, the day of publication is not to be included, but the day of the hearing shall be 
included. Notice of hearings shall be mailed to the person or entity whose appeal, application or 
request is the subject of the hearing; to the owner of the property that is the subject of the hearing if 
the owner did not initiate the hearing; and to the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel of 

150



land that is the subject of the hearing and to all property owners within 500 feet of the property 
boundaries even if their property is not abutting. Notice to such persons or entities must be deposited 
in the mail at least ten days, but not more than 25 days, prior to the date of the hearing. Within that 
same time period, a notice of hearing shall be prominently posted on the site that is the subject of the 
hearing or on an adjacent street or highway right-of-way.  

(c) Oaths . The chair of the board of adjustment or any member temporarily acting as chair and the clerk 
to the board are authorized to administer oaths to witnesses in any matter coming before the board. 
Any person who, while under oath during a proceeding before the board of adjustment, willfully swears 
falsely is guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor.  

(d) Subpoenas . The board of adjustment through the chair, or in the chair's absence anyone acting as 
chair, may subpoena witnesses and compel the production of evidence. To request issuance of a 
subpoena, persons with standing under G.S. § 160A-393(d) may make a written request to the chair 
explaining why it is necessary for certain witnesses or evidence to be compelled. The chair shall issue 
requested subpoenas he or she determines to be relevant, reasonable in nature and scope, and not 
oppressive. The chair shall rule on any motion to quash or modify a subpoena. Decisions regarding 
subpoenas made by the chair may be appealed to the full board of adjustment. If a person falls or 
refuses to obey a subpoena issued pursuant to this subsection, the board of adjustment or the party 
seeking the subpoena may apply to the general court of justice for an order requiring that its subpoena 
be obeyed, and the court shall have jurisdiction to issue these orders after notice to all proper parties.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 17-1640; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

Sec. 36-330. - Decisions.  

The concurring vote of four-fifths of the zoning board of adjustment shall be necessary to grant a 
variance. A majority vote of the members shall be required to grant or amend a special use permit or to 
decide on an appeal. For the purpose of calculating votes, vacant positions on the board and members who 
are disqualified from voting shall not be considered members of the board if there are no qualified alternates 
available to take the place of such members. The board shall keep minutes of its proceedings showing the 
vote of each member upon each question The board's decision shall be based upon competent, material 
and substantial evidence in the record and its written decision shall reflect the board's determination of 
contested facts and their application to the applicable standards. The written decision of the board shall be 
signed by the chair or other duly authorized member of the board, and shall become effective upon filing 
the written decision with the zoning administrator. The decision of the zoning board shall be delivered by 
personal delivery, electronic mail, or by first-class mail to the applicant, property owner (if different from the 
applicant) and to any person who has submitted a written request for a copy with the town clerk prior to the 
effective date of the decision. The town clerk shall certify to the board that proper notice has been made.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 17-1650; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

Sec. 36-331. - Appeals from decisions.  

Any person who has standing under G.S. § 160A-393(d) may appeal any quasi-judicial decision of the 
board to the Buncombe County Superior Court by filing with the clerk of such court a petition for review in 
the nature of certiorari pursuant to G.S. § 160A-393. Such petition shall be filed within 30 days after the 
decision of the board is effective or after a written copy of the decision is delivered in accordance with 
section 36-330 above, whichever is the later date. When first class mail is used to deliver the decision, 
three days shall be added to the time to file the petition.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 17-1660; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

Sec. 36-332. - Fees for variances, appeals and special use permits.  

151



Fees shall be paid to the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, as outlined in the Town of Weaverville 
Schedule of Fees for Planning and Development Permits to cover the necessary administrative costs and 
advertising. During the review of any request, if additional costs are incurred (i.e., attorney or engineering 
fees), the applicant shall be responsible for reimbursing the town the cost of these services, if over and 
above the initial application fee.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVI, § 17-1670; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

Sec. 36-333. - Moratoria on development.  

The Town of Weaverville may adopt temporary moratoria on any town development approval required 
by law, except for the purpose of developing and adopting new or amended plans or ordinances as to 
residential uses. The duration of any moratorium shall be reasonable in light of the specific conditions that 
warrant imposition of the moratorium and may not exceed the period of time necessary to correct, modify, 
or resolve such conditions. Except in cases of imminent and substantial threat to public health or safety, 
before adopting an ordinance imposing a development moratorium with a duration of 60 days or any shorter 
period, the town council shall hold a public hearing and shall publish a notice of the hearing in a newspaper 
having general circulation in the area not less than seven days before the date set for the hearing. A 
development moratorium with a duration of 61 days or longer, and any extension of a moratorium so that 
the total duration is 61 days or longer, is subject to the notice and hearing requirements of G.S. § 160A-
364. Absent an imminent threat to public health or safety, a development moratorium adopted pursuant to 
this section shall not apply to any project for which a valid building permit issued pursuant to G.S. § 160A-
417 is outstanding, to any project for which a special use permit application has been accepted, to 
development set forth in a site-specific or phased development plan approved pursuant to G.S. § 160A-
385.1, to development for which substantial expenditures have already been made in good faith reliance 
on a prior valid administrative or quasi-judicial permit or approval, or to preliminary or final subdivision plats 
that have been accepted for review by the town prior to the call for public hearing to adopt the moratorium. 
Any preliminary subdivision plat accepted for review by the town prior to the call for public hearing, if 
subsequently approved, shall be allowed to proceed to final plat approval without being subject to the 
moratorium.  

Any ordinance establishing a development moratorium must expressly include at the time of adoption 
each of the following:  

(1) A clear statement of the problems or conditions necessitating the moratorium and what courses 
of action, alternative to a moratorium, were considered by the town and why those alternative 
courses of action were not deemed adequate.  

(2) A clear statement of the development approvals subject to the moratorium and how a moratorium 
on those approvals will address the problems or conditions leading to imposition of the 
moratorium.  

(3) An express date for termination of the moratorium and a statement setting forth why that duration 
is reasonably necessary to address the problems or conditions leading to imposition of the 
moratorium.  

(4) A clear statement of the actions, and the schedule for those actions, proposed to be taken by the 
town during the duration of the moratorium to address the problems or conditions leading to 
imposition of the moratorium.  

No moratorium may be subsequently renewed or extended for any additional period unless the town 
shall have taken all reasonable and feasible steps proposed to be taken by the town in its ordinance 
establishing the moratorium to address the problems or conditions leading to imposition of the moratorium 
and unless new facts and conditions warrant an extension. Any ordinance renewing or extending a 
development moratorium must expressly include, at the time of adoption, the findings set forth in 
subsections (1) through (4) of this section, including what new facts or conditions warrant the extension.  

152



Any person aggrieved by the imposition of a moratorium on development approvals required by law 
may apply to the appropriate division of the general court of justice for an order enjoining the enforcement 
of the moratorium, and the court shall have jurisdiction to issue that order. Actions brought pursuant to this 
section shall be set down for immediate hearing, and subsequent proceedings in those actions shall be 
accorded priority by the trial and appellate courts. In any such action, the town shall have the burden of 
showing compliance with the procedural requirements of this subsection.  

(Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 11-18-2013, § 1)  

Secs. 36-334—36-354. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE XIII. - TEXT AMENDMENTS AND MAP AMENDMENTS  

 

Sec. 36-355. - Purposes in view.  

Zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with a comprehensive plan. Prior to adopting or 
rejecting any zoning amendment, the town council shall adopt a statement describing whether its action is 
consistent with an adopted comprehensive plan and explaining why the board considers the action taken 
to be reasonable and in the public interest. That statement is not subject to judicial review.  

The planning board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed amendment is consistent with 
any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and any other officially adopted plan that is applicable. The 
planning board shall provide a written recommendation to the town council that addresses plan consistency 
and other matters as deemed appropriate by the planning board, but a comment by the planning board that 
a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the comprehensive plan shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the town council.  

Zoning regulations shall be designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare. To that 
end, the regulations may address, among other things, the following public purposes: to provide adequate 
light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population; to lessen 
congestion in the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic, and dangers; and to facilitate the efficient and 
adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, and other public requirements. The 
regulations shall be made with reasonable consideration, among other things, as to the character of the 
district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a view to conserving the value of buildings 
and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the town.  

(Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Sec. 36-356. - Initiation of amendments.  

Proposed changes or amendments to the text of this chapter may be initiated by the town council, the 
planning board, the board of adjustment, any owner of a legal or equitable interest in land located in the 
town, or any resident of the town. Except for petitions for a conditional zoning district, which must follow the 
procedure set forth in section 36-84, proposed zoning map amendments may be initiated by the town 
council, the planning board, the board of adjustment, or any owner of a legal or equitable interest in the 
property for which the map amendment is requested.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVII, § 17-1710; Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1; Ord. of 11-
21-2016(1), § 22 )  

Sec. 36-357. - Petition requirements.  

153

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


(a) Prefiling meeting. Before filing a petition for an amendment to the text or map, an applicant shall meet 
with the zoning administrator to discuss the proposed amendment or request and to become more 
familiar with the applicable requirements and approval procedures of the town.  

(b) Filing.  

(1) A petition requesting an amendment shall be filed with the zoning administrator on a form 
provided by the town.  

(2) Petitions must be submitted no later than 10 business days before a regularly scheduled town 
council meeting in order to be considered at the next regularly scheduled town council meeting.  

(c) Content of petition applications.  

(1) Each application shall contain or be accompanied by all information required on the application 
form provided by the town.  

(2) Every amendment proposing to change the district boundary lines shall be accompanied by a 
metes and bounds description, a survey of the area involved, or reference to existing lots, 
sufficient in the estimation of the zoning administrator to plot or otherwise identify the amendment 
on the official zoning maps of the town.  

(3) Any person designated by the owner(s) of the property included in the petition to serve as agent 
for the owner shall submit such authorization in writing with the application.  

(d) Petition fees. Fees shall be paid to the town for each application for an amendment to the text or map 
according to the schedule of fees and charges adopted by the town.  

(Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Sec. 36-358. - Initial review by the town council.  

(a) Review—General. Upon receipt of a completed and timely application, the town council shall consider 
the request at its next regularly scheduled meeting.  

(b) Action.  

After its initial consideration of the application, the town council may shall refer the request to the 
planning board for the full review process, or may decide that the request shall not be considered. If the 
town council decides that the request shall not be considered, the request shall be terminated.  

(Ord. of 6-19-1978, Art. XVII, § 17-1770; Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Sec. 36-359. - Review by the planning board.  

(a) Review—General. The planning board shall consider a proposed amendment to the text or map. The 
planning board will make recommendations to the town council regarding whether to approve or deny 
each proposed amendment.  

(b) Affirmative recommendation by the planning board. Following an affirmative recommendation by the 
planning board on the proposed amendment, the action shall be reported to the town council for a 
public hearing and final action.  

(c) Negative recommendation by the planning board. If the planning board has made a negative 
recommendation on an amendment, the petitioner may, within 30 days after written notification from 
the town clerk of such negative recommendation, request that a public hearing be held by the town 
council. This request shall be in writing and submitted, within the 30-day period, to the town clerk. If 
the petitioner fails to request a public hearing before the town council within the allotted 30-day time 
frame, then the denial shall be considered affirmed by the town council and the normal administrative 

154



remedies provided by this chapter satisfied. Furthermore, the waiting period for subsequent 
applications as set forth in section 36-364 shall apply to all property included in a petition denied in 
this manner.  

Amendments initiated by the town council which receive a negative recommendation from the planning 
board shall not be required to follow the appeals process set forth above. The recommendation of the 
planning board on an amendment initiated by the town council shall be forwarded to the town council for 
review and action.  

(d) No action by the planning board. If the planning board has made neither a positive nor a negative 
recommendation on a proposed amendment within 90 days of first considering it, the proposed 
amendment shall be forwarded to the town council for consideration. The proposed amendment shall 
be accompanied by a record of the planning board's comments regarding the amendment and the 
reasons, if any, for their lack of action.  

(e) Content of recommendations. Any recommendation made by the planning board to the town council 
pursuant to this section shall be in writing and shall include a statement describing whether the 
proposed amendment is consistent with the comprehensive land use plan and any other applicable 
plan, and shall address any other matter deemed appropriate by the planning board.  

(Ord. of 3-20-2006; Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Sec. 36-360. - Action by the town council.  

(a) Review—General. Following receipt of a recommendation on a proposed amendment or, in the case 
of a negative recommendation, the receipt of the petitioner's request for a public hearing or in the case 
of no action by the town planning board as described in section 36-359 above, the town council shall 
hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment. Notice of the hearing shall be provided in 
accordance with the provisions of the North Carolina General Statutes. In addition, when a zoning map 
amendment is proposed, the town shall prominently post a notice of the public hearing on the site 
proposed for rezoning or on an adjacent public street or highway right-of-way. When multiple parcels 
are included within a proposed zoning map amendment, a posting on each individual parcel is not 
required, but the town shall post sufficient notices to provide reasonable notice to interested persons.  

(b) Action.  

(1) Before acting on any proposed amendment, the town council shall consider any recommendation 
made by the planning board, the comments made at the public hearing, and any other relevant 
additional information.  

(2) When considering a proposed amendment, the town council will not evaluate the petition based 
on any specific proposal for the use or development of the property. The petitioner shall not use 
any graphic materials or descriptions of the proposed development except for those which would 
apply to all uses permitted by the requested classification.  

(3) Upon reviewing all pertinent information, the town council may:  

a. Adopt the proposed amendment;  

b. Reject the proposed amendment;  

c. Refer the proposed amendment back to the planning board for further consideration or 
hearing; or  

d. Modify the proposed amendment.  

(4) Considerations during decisions. Prior to adopting or rejecting any amendment, the town council 
shall adopt a statement describing whether its action is consistent with the comprehensive land 
use plan and any other applicable plan, and shall state why the action taken is considered to be 
reasonable and in the public interest.  

155



(Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

 Sec. 36-361. - Protests.  

(a) Protest petitions. In case of a qualified protest against a zoning map amendment, that amendment 
shall not become effective except by favorable vote of three-fourths of all the members of the town 
council. For the purposes of this subsection, vacant positions on the council and members who are 
excused from voting shall not be considered 'members of the council' for calculation of the requisite 
supermajority.  

(b) Qualifications.  

(1) Signatories required. To qualify as a protest, under this section, the petition must be signed by 
the owners of either: (i) 20 percent or more of the area included in the proposed change; or (ii) 
five percent of a 100-foot-wide buffer extending along the entire boundary of each discrete or 
separate area proposed to be rezoned. A street right-of-way shall not be considered in computing 
the 100-foot buffer area as long as that street right-of-way is 100 feet wide or less. When less 
than an entire parcel of land is subject to the proposed zoning map amendment, the 100-foot 
buffer shall be measured from the property line of that parcel. In the absence of evidence to the 
contrary, the town may rely on the Buncombe County tax listing to determine the 'owners' of 
potentially qualifying areas.  

(2) Qualified signatures. Where the owner of property submitting a protest petition is something other 
than an individual, married couple holding the property as an entirety, or fewer than five joint 
owners (tenancy in common, joint tenants, etc.), the petition shall be accompanied by copies of 
appropriate documentation that the petition has been signed by all of the record owners of the 
protesting property, and in the case of an owner that is not a real person, documentation showing 
that the petition has been executed in the proper form for that entity. Where the property is titled 
in the name of someone who is deceased, divorced, or otherwise no longer an owner of the 
property, the petition shall so state. An opinion from a licensed North Carolina attorney as to the 
legal sufficiency of the form of execution of a protest petition will suffice for this requirement.  

(c) Exceptions. The foregoing provisions concerning protests shall not be applicable to any amendment 
which initially zones property added to the territorial coverage of the ordinance as a result of annexation 
or otherwise, or to an amendment to a conditional zoning district if the amendment does not change 
the types of uses that are permitted within the district or increase the approved density for residential 
development, or increase the total approved size of nonresidential development, or reduce the size of 
any buffers or screening approved for the conditional zoning district.  

(d) Form and time for filing. No protest against any change in or amendment to the zoning map shall be 
valid or effective unless it be in the form of a written petition actually bearing the signatures of the 
requisite number of property owners and stating that the signers do protest the proposed change or 
amendment, and unless it shall have been received by the town clerk in sufficient time to allow the 
town at least two normal work days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays, before the date 
established for a public hearing on the proposed change or amendment to determine the sufficiency 
and accuracy of the petition. The town council requires that all protest petitions be on a form prescribed 
and furnished by the town, and such form may prescribe any reasonable information deemed 
necessary to permit the town to determine the sufficiency and accuracy of the petition. The town 
provides protest petition forms at the office of the town clerk. A person who has signed a protest 
petition may withdraw his or her name from the petition at any time prior to the vote on the proposed 
zoning amendment. Only those protest petitions that meet the qualifying standards set forth in G.S. 
160A-385 at the time of the vote on the zoning amendment shall trigger the supermajority voting 
requirement,  

(Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

156



Sec. 36-362. - Applicability.  

Amendments to zoning ordinances shall not be applicable or enforceable without consent of the owner 
with regard to buildings and uses for which either: (i) building permits have been issued pursuant to G.S. 
160A-417 prior to the enactment of the ordinance making the change or changes so long as the permits 
remain valid and unexpired pursuant to G.S. 160A-418 and unrevoked pursuant to G.S. 160A-422; or (ii) a 
vested right has been established pursuant to G.S. 160A-385.1 and such vested right remains valid and 
unexpired pursuant to G.S. 160A-385.1.  

(Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Sec. 36-363. - Conflict of interest.  

A town council member shall not vote on any zoning map or text amendment where the outcome of 
the matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable 
financial impact on the member. Members of appointed boards providing advice to the town council shall 
not vote on recommendations regarding any zoning map or text amendment where the outcome of the 
matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable financial 
impact on the member.  

(Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Sec. 36-364. - Waiting period for subsequent applications.  

(a) Waiting period—General. When an application for a zoning amendment has been approved or denied 
by the Town Council, no rezoning application covering the same property shall be accepted or 
considered within 12 months after the date of the approval or denial. This restriction shall apply 
regardless of whether or not the new application is for a zoning classification different from the original 
application.  

(b) Waiting period—Waiver. The waiting period required by this section may be waived by a three-fourths 
vote of town council if it determines that there have been substantial changes in conditions or 
circumstances which may relate to the request.  

(Ord. of 1-24-2011, § 1)  

Secs. 36-365—36-400. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE XIV. - TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES[3]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (3) ---  

State Law reference— Authority to adopt, G.S. ch. 160A, art. 19, pt. 3.  

 

Sec. 36-401. - Definitions.  

157



Alternative structure means, for antenna-mounting purposes, a structure which is not primarily 
constructed for the purpose of holding antennas but on which one or more antennas may be mounted. The 
term "alternative structures" includes, but is not limited to, buildings, silos, water tanks, pole signs, lighting 
standards, steeples and electric transmission towers.  

Antenna means any exterior transmitting or receiving device that radiates or captures electromagnetic 
waves (excluding radar signals).  

Antenna array means two or more antennas that operate as components of a complete antenna suite 
for a single wireless telecommunication facility.  

Antenna, concealed means an antenna that is designed and erected on or in a building or alternative 
structure in such a way that it blends in with the existing facade and/or is located such that it is not readily 
visible to an individual at adjacent street level.  

Antenna, dual-band/multiband means an antenna with separate elements for two or more commercial 
wireless service frequency bands (example: cellular and PCS or specialized mobile radio).  

Broadcast tower means a structure situated on a lot that is intended for transmitting television or radio 
signals.  

Collocation means, for purposes of regulating wireless telecommunication facilities, the placement of 
additional antennas or antenna arrays on an existing or approved telecommunication tower (or alternative 
structure or concealed telecommunication support structure), the sharing of an antenna or antenna array, 
or otherwise sharing a common location by two or more FCC licensed providers of personal wireless 
services. Collocation includes antennas, combiners, transmitters, receivers and related electronic 
equipment, cabling, wiring, equipment enclosures and other components or improvements associated with 
a wireless telecommunication facility.  

Combiner means a device which allows two or more wireless service providers to share an antenna 
or antenna array by combining signals being transmitted and separating signals being received.  

Commercial wireless service provider means persons who operate radio systems requiring an FCC 
license and who employ those facilities to provide point-to-point microwave links for wireless communication 
services, fixed wireless (including microwave), or mobile wireless communication services to third parties 
for compensation. Commercial wireless service providers include, but are not limited to, cellular, personal 
communication services (PCS), specialized mobile radio (SMR), enhanced specialized mobile radio 
(ESMR), paging, competitive local exchange carriers (CLEC) utilizing point-to-multipoint microwave, and 
point-to-point microwave links for wireless communication services.  

Discernible means capable of being distinguished with the unaided eye from its surroundings as a 
telecommunication tower.  

Electric distribution towers means metal, wooden or concrete towers and poles used to suspend wires 
transporting electricity between substations at the terminus of transmission lines and individual customer 
premises.  

Electric transmission towers means metal, wooden or concrete towers and poles used to suspend 
wires transporting electricity between generating plants and substations supplying electricity to distribution 
and feeder lines.  

Equipment enclosure means, for purposes of regulating wireless telecommunication facilities, a 
building, cabinet or shelter used to house transmitters, receivers and other electronic equipment and 
accessories.  

FAA means Federal Aviation Administration.  

Facade, RF-transparent means a facade used to conceal antennas and other components of a 
wireless telecommunication facility which is constructed of materials that allow the free passage of radio 
frequency or other electromagnetic signals.  

FCC means Federal Communications Commission.  

158



Functionally equivalent service means FCC-licensed providers of commercial mobile radio services 
(CMRS) classified as cellular, personal communication services (PCS), paging, specialized mobile radio 
(SMR) and enhanced specialized mobile radio (ESMR).  

Governmental user means federal, state or local governments, or agencies or instrumentalities thereof, 
volunteer fire departments or rescue squads which operate radio systems (including microwave) requiring 
an FCC license and which employ those facilities exclusively for intra-governmental or inter-governmental 
public service, public safety or administrative purposes.  

Microcell means a wireless telecommunication facility for which all electronics (if not located within an 
existing and approved building) are contained in equipment enclosures which occupy less than 40 cubic 
feet and for which all antennas are eight feet or less in height and have a combined surface area of less 
than 30 square feet.  

Modification means the addition, removal, repositioning (other than downtilt adjustments), alteration or 
other material change in the number or type of antennas employed in a wireless telecommunication facility; 
changes in the height, size, shape or appearance of telecommunication towers; and increases in the 
number or size of equipment enclosures or other improvements at an existing or approved wireless 
telecommunication facility.  

Primary public safety provider means a FCC licensed governmental user, which uses wireless 
telecommunication facilities to provide primary communications for law enforcement, fire, ambulance or 
related emergency services. Primary public service provider does not include commercial wireless service 
providers who provide telecommunication services on a commercial basis to primary public safety providers 
or who deliver emergency calls from its customers to a public safety answering point (PSAP).  

Private business user means persons who operate radio facilities (including microwave) requiring an 
FCC license solely for intra-company communications and who do not employ those facilities to offer fixed 
or mobile wireless communication services, or point-to-point microwave links for wireless communication 
services, to third parties for compensation.  

Public utility means any structure or facility transmitting a service provided by a utility company to 
include private systems such as telephone, electric, water and sewer, gas, power, etc. but not including 
utility substations, telecommunication towers, concealed telecommunication support structures, and other 
telecommunications devices.  

Replacement tower means a telecommunication tower intended to replace an existing approved tower 
where such replacement tower is (1) at or within 100 yards of the existing tower base, and (2) no higher 
than the existing tower.  

Restricted mountain ridge means a ridge whose elevation is 500 or more feet above the elevation of 
an adjacent valley floor.  

Ridge means the elongated crest or series of crests at the apex or uppermost point of intersection 
between two opposite slopes or sides of a mountain, and includes all land within 100 feet below the 
elevation of any portion of such line or surface along the crest.  

Telecommunication support structure, concealed means a support structure used to mount antennas 
for a wireless telecommunication facility which has all structural members concealed within a facade which 
matches or complements the architectural character of buildings and other structures located on the same 
parcel as the wireless telecommunication facility.  

Telecommunication tower means any tower, pole or similar structure 20 feet or more in height, used 
to support one or more antennas including self-supporting lattice-framed towers or monopoles and guyed 
towers.  

Tower base means the foundation, usually concrete, on which the telecommunication tower is situated. 
For measurement calculations, the tower base is the actual or geometric center of the tower.  

Tower height means the vertical distance measured from the tower base to the highest point on a 
telecommunication tower, including any antennas or other equipment affixed thereto, but excluding any 
lightning protection rods extending above the tower and attached equipment.  

159



Tower site means the land area that contains, or will contain, a proposed telecommunication tower, 
and related equipment enclosures and other improvements.  

Utility substation means a structure or facility for transforming or transmitting a service provided by a 
utility company to include private utility systems such as telephone, electric, water, sewer, gas, power, etc., 
but not including telecommunication towers, or concealed telecommunication support structures.  

Vegetative canopy means trees that create a roof-like layer of spreading branches.  

Visible means capable of being seen by the unaided eye in the daylight.  

Wireless telecommunication facility means equipment at a single location used by a private business 
user, governmental user or commercial wireless service provider to transmit receive or relay 
electromagnetic signals (including microwave). Such facility includes antennas or antenna arrays, 
telecommunication towers, support structures, transmitters, receivers, base stations, combiners, amplifiers, 
repeaters, filters or other electronic equipment; together with all associated cabling, wiring, equipment 
enclosures and other improvements.  

Wireless telecommunication facility, collocated means a wireless telecommunication facility located 
(or proposed to be located) upon or within a supporting structure or building which hosts one or more 
existing and approved wireless telecommunication facilities.  

Wireless telecommunication facility, concealed means a wireless telecommunication facility with all 
antennas camouflaged to match or complement the color and architectural treatment of the surface upon 
which they are mounted, or which has all facility components concealed behind a facade or parapet wall.  

Wireless telecommunication facility, microcell means a wireless telecommunication facility for which 
all electronics (if not placed within an existing and approved building) are contained in equipment 
enclosures which occupy less than 40 cubic feet and for which all antennas are eight feet or less in height 
and have a combined surface area of less than 30 square feet.  

Wireless telecommunication facility, temporary means a vehicle-mounted or portable wireless 
telecommunication facility including portable towers, antennas, equipment enclosures, generators and 
associated electronics, cabling, wiring and hardware.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2001, § 1)  

Sec. 36-402. - General application requirements.  

(a) Permits required. It shall be unlawful for any person, corporation, partnership or other entity to erect 
any communication tower without first obtaining a permit from the Weaverville Zoning Administrator. 
A permit shall be required for the erection of a replacement tower or the modification of an existing 
tower. Existing towers owned by governmental agencies and designed for noncommercial emergency 
communications are exempt from this article.  

(b) Permit application. Telecommunications tower permit applications are available from the Weaverville 
Zoning Administrator.  

(c) Application fee. A fee for reviewing tower permit applications shall be established by the Weaverville 
Town Council.  

(d) Application submission and review process. A completed tower permit application and three copies of 
all supporting documentation identified in subsections (e) and (f) [of this section] shall be submitted to 
the zoning administrator for review. The zoning administrator shall review the completed tower permit 
application for compliance with subsections (e) and (f). Any application not containing all information 
required in subsection (e) and (f), shall be returned to the applicant for correction and resubmission. If 
the zoning administrator deems it necessary, he (she) may retain, at a reasonable expense to the 
permit applicant, one or more professional engineers to assist him in reviewing any technical 
requirements.  

160



(f) Requirements for site development. The site development plan and preliminary design plan shall 
contain the following information and be part of the tower permit application. The site development 
plan shall be prepared by a N.C. Registered Land Surveyor and contain the following:  

(1) The tower applicant's name and property owner's name and their addresses, scale, north arrow, 
vicinity map, tax parcel identification number, and the tower's latitude and longitude coordinates.  

(2) The name, address, signature and seal of the surveyor preparing the site development plan.  

(3) The surveyed boundary lines of the parcel(s) that will contain the proposed tower and its fall area.  

(4) The name, addresses and tax parcel identification numbers of all owners of property abutting the 
subject property.  

(5) All identifiable structures located on the parcel, all private and public roads, highways, and 
underground and overhead utilities.  

(6) All existing towers on the property or any towers whose fall area encroaches onto the property.  

(7) The proposed tower's location, the proposed fall area and the location of all support structures 
and guy line anchors.  

(8) The ground elevation of the proposed tower's base, all proposed support structures, property 
corners, and a permanent site bench mark. All elevations shall be determined using the National 
Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929.  

(9) The height of the existing vegetative canopy surrounding the proposed tower.  

(10) Tower set backs from all property lines must be one half the total height of the proposed tower.  

(f) The preliminary tower design plan. The preliminary tower design plan shall be prepared by a N.C. 
Registered Professional Engineer and contain the following:  

(1) The tower permit applicant's name and address, scale, north arrow, vicinity map and tax parcel 
identification number.  

(2) The name, address, signature and seal of the engineer preparing the preliminary tower design 
plan.  

(3) A plan showing the base of the tower and the foundations for all guy line anchors and support 
structures, all proposed buildings and any other proposed improvements including access roads 
and utility connections within and to the proposed site.  

(4) A tower elevation showing the proposed lighting, tower color and all proposed antennas.  

(5) An elevation of each proposed set of guy line anchors.  

(6) The proposed tower design loads.  

(7) A map or description showing the service area(s) for the proposed tower's antenna(s).  

(8) The applicant shall provide written statements from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
and the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) showing that the proposed tower complies 
with all permit regulations administered by that agency or evidence that the proposed tower is 
exempt from those regulations.  

(9) The applicant shall identify all other possible alternatives considered within the service area for 
the proposed tower's antenna(s) and explain why the proposed tower is necessary and why 
existing towers and structures (e.g., Carolina Power transmission towers) cannot accommodate 
the proposed antenna(s).  

(10) The applicant shall identify any variance(s) to the ordinance, the reason(s) for seeking the 
variance(s) and any measures that are proposed to mitigate possible adverse affects of the 
proposed variance(s). All variances must be approved by the Weaverville Zoning Board of 
Adjustments.  

161



(11) All towers must be of a mono (single) pole design. No lattice towers will be allowed.  

(g) Issuance of permit. Following the zoning administrator's approval of any tower permit application not 
requesting a variance, the zoning shall issue a tower permit. All tower permit conditions shall appear 
on the face of the site development plan. The permit owner shall acknowledge and agree to permit 
conditions approved by the board of adjustments if necessary. If a building permit is not obtained within 
12 months after the tower permit is issued, the tower permit shall expire. No permit under the state 
building code shall be issued until or unless any tower permit required by this article is granted.  

(h) Tower approval standards. Any proposed tower shall provide a needed service and/or benefit to the 
residents of the Town of Weaverville.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2001, § 2; Ord. of 11-21-2016(1), § 23 )  

Sec. 36-403. - Public emergencies.  

In the event of a natural disaster, catastrophic event or public emergency the town manager or his or 
her designee may waive any temporary use permit procedures and authorize the placement of temporary 
use facilities which are deemed necessary or desirable in conjunction with the management of the 
emergency.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2001, § 3)  

Sec. 36-404. - Wireless telecommunication facilities, microcell.  

(a) Use districts: C-1, C-2, I-1 and all Town of Weaverville owned property located in R-1, R-2 and R-3.  

(b) Microcellular wireless telecommunication facilities are permitted on buildings and other existing 
structures (other than off-premises signs) which do not require an increase in height to accommodate 
the facility. Electric distribution poles may be extended in height in R-3 residential zoning districts to 
the lesser of 20 feet above the vegetative canopy in the vicinity of the site as determined by the town 
zoning administrator or 100 feet in height. Such extensions shall qualify as an existing structure for 
purposes of this section. Such height extensions of electric distribution poles shall only be permitted if 
no other distribution pole within 1,320 feet of the proposed site has been extended in height above the 
average pole height on the same distribution line as documented by the utility owning such poles.  

(c) All antennas associated with microcellular wireless telecommunication facilities mounted on a building 
or other existing structure (other than a utility pole) shall be flush-mounted against the side of the 
building or structure and camouflaged to match or complement the color and architectural treatment 
of the surface on which they are mounted.  

(d) Antennas associated with a microcellular wireless telecommunication facility mounted on a utility pole 
must be mounted atop the pole or flush mounted against the sides of the pole, and shall be colored to 
match or complement the color of the utility pole and shall be mounted in as unobtrusive a manner as 
possible.  

(e) Antennas associated with a microcellular wireless telecommunication facility may not be collocated on 
a tower or other support structure used by an amateur radio operator.  

(f) Equipment enclosures associated with microcellular wireless telecommunication facilities mounted on 
a building or other existing structure (other than a utility pole) shall be mounted inside the building or 
structure, attached to an exterior surface, or placed underground or on a concrete pad on the ground 
outside the building or structure. If mounted on an exterior surface, the enclosures shall be colored or 
camouflaged to match or complement the color and architectural treatment of the surface on which 
they are mounted. If placed on a concrete pad on the ground, the enclosures shall be screened so as 
to make them unobtrusive.  

162

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=801394&datasource=ordbank


(g) Equipment enclosures associated with a microcellular wireless telecommunication facility mounted on 
a utility pole, must be mounted on the utility pole provided, however, if combiners are used to allow 
collocation by sharing of an antenna or antenna array and pole-mounting of equipment enclosures 
cannot be accommodated on the pole, the combiner and additional equipment enclosures may be 
placed underground or on a concrete pad on the ground. If placed on a concrete pad on the ground, 
such additional equipment enclosures shall be screened so as to make them unobtrusive.  

(h) All cabling and wiring connecting antennas, equipment enclosures, and other components of a 
microcellular wireless telecommunication facility shall be colored or concealed in a manner as to 
render them unobtrusive.  

(i) No towers may be mounted on a roof structure.  

(j) Generators may not be used as a primary electrical power source. Backup generators shall only be 
operated during power outages or for testing and maintenance purposes. Testing and maintenance 
shall only take place on weekdays between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.  

(k) A copy of the applicant's FCC license must accompany its application. If the applicant is not an FCC 
licensee, the applicant must demonstrate that it has binding commitments from one or more FCC 
licensees to utilize the wireless telecommunication facility and must submit a copy of each such 
wireless service provider's FCC license. If FCC licenses have previously been filed with the Town of 
Weaverville in conjunction with other wireless telecommunication facilities, the applicant may certify 
that such licenses remain in full force and effect.  

(l) As part of its application each applicant for a microcellular wireless telecommunication facility shall be 
required to execute a standard maintenance/removal agreement binding the applicant and its 
successors and assigns to properly maintain the exterior appearance of and ultimately remove the 
facility upon abandonment or cessation of operations. Such agreement shall require the applicant to 
pay all costs for monitoring compliance with, and enforcement of, the agreement and to reimburse the 
Town of Weaverville for all costs it incurs to perform any work required of the applicant by the 
agreement that the applicant fails to perform. A $5,000.00 cash bond, or other security acceptable to 
the Town of Weaverville, shall be required in conjunction with the maintenance/removal agreement. 
The applicant and its successors and assigns shall be required to continue such bond or other security 
until such time as the facility has been removed and all other requirements of its maintenance/removal 
agreement have been satisfied. Private business users operating a single wireless telecommunication 
facility at their principal place of business and governmental users are exempt from the bond 
requirement.  

(m) Abandoned or unused wireless telecommunication facilities shall be removed within one year (365 
days) of abandonment or cessation of operations. If not removed within that period, such facilities may 
be removed as provided in the permittee's maintenance/removal agreement and the costs of removal 
recovered from the permittee's bond or other security. Prior to removing a wireless telecommunication 
facility pursuant to this provision, the Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days written notice of its 
intention to do so to the permittee at its last known address.  

(n) An annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall be required for each wireless 
telecommunication facility located in the Town of Weaverville. Before an annual permit shall be issued 
or renewed an applicant or permittee must certify that:  

(1) It currently holds an FCC license to provide commercial wireless services and that such license 
is in good standing or, if the permittee is not an FCC licensee, that the license of each of it's FCC 
tenants is in good standing.  

(2) The wireless telecommunication facility continues to be operated by the permittee and that it has 
a continuing need for the facility to meet the requirements of its FCC license.  

(3) That the facility continues to comply with all FCC and FAA rules and regulations.  

(4) That the permittee currently has general liability insurance of at least $1,000,000.00 in force 
covering the wireless telecommunication facility as evidenced by a certificate of insurance 
attached to its renewal application.  

163



(5) That it is in compliance with its maintenance/removal agreement and that any bond or other 
security given in conjunction therewith remains it full force and effect.  

(6) That it has not constructed, maintained, modified or operated any wireless telecommunication 
facilities in the Town of Weaverville without the Town of Weaverville's approval or, if it has done 
so, that it has ceased operating and has removed all such facilities.  

Failure to obtain or renew an annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall result in the wireless 
telecommunication facility being deemed abandoned and subject to removal, as well as subjecting the 
facility's owner to all other penalty and enforcement provisions of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 
Weaverville. The Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' advance written notice to the permittee at its last 
known address of the pending expiration of the permittee's annual wireless telecommunication facility 
permit. Fees for annual wireless telecommunication facility permits shall be in accordance with the Town of 
Weaverville Fees and Charges Manual.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2001, § 4)  

Sec. 36-405. - Same—Concealed.  

(a) Use districts: C-1, C-2, I-1 and all Town of Weaverville owned property located in R-1, R-2 and R-3.  

(b) Concealed wireless telecommunication facilities are permitted on buildings and alternative structures 
(other than off-premises signs and telecommunication towers).  

(c) For purposes of this section antennas mounted on an electric transmission tower shall qualify as a 
concealed wireless telecommunication facility provided antennas associated with such a facility do not 
extend more than ten feet above the top of the supporting structure, nor more than two feet from the 
sides of the structure. Equipment enclosures associated with such a facility may be mounted on the 
structure or placed underground or on the ground. If placed on the ground, equipment enclosures shall 
be placed on a concrete pad and screened so as to make them unobtrusive.  

(d) For purposes of this section, antennas mounted on an electric distribution tower, street lighting pole or 
traffic light pole shall qualify as a concealed wireless telecommunication facility provided antennas 
associated with such a facility do not extend more than ten feet above the top of the supporting 
structure, nor more than two feet from the sides of the structure, and equipment enclosures associated 
with the facility occupy less than 60 cubic feet. Equipment enclosures associated with such a facility 
may be mounted on the structure or placed underground or on the ground on a concrete pad. Electric 
distribution poles may be extended in height in I-1, zoning districts to 20 feet above the vegetative 
canopy in the vicinity of the site as determined by the town zoning administrator. Such extensions shall 
qualify as an existing structure for purposes of this section. Such height extensions of electric 
distribution poles shall only be permitted if no other distribution pole within 1,320 feet of the proposed 
site has been extended in height above the average pole height on the same distribution line as 
documented by the utility owning such poles.  

(e) Panel antennas associated with concealed wireless telecommunication facilities may not exceed eight 
feet in height. If flush-mounted on the side of a building or alternative structure, antennas shall be 
camouflaged to match or complement the color and architectural treatment of the surface. Antennas 
extending above the roofline of a building shall be concealed behind a RF-transparent parapet wall or 
facade, which is camouflaged to match or complement the color and architectural treatment of the 
building or structure. Such parapet walls or facades shall not extend more than ten feet above the 
roofline. Where a parapet wall is at least eight feet in height, omnidirectional (whip-type) antennas may 
extend above the parapet wall by a distance equal to the height of the parapet wall.  

(f) Antennas associated with a concealed wireless telecommunication facility may not be collocated on a 
tower or other support structure used by an amateur radio operator.  

(g) Electronic equipment associated with concealed wireless telecommunication facilities may be placed 
inside a building or, if placed on a rooftop, all equipment enclosures shall be mounted behind a parapet 

164



wall or facade which is camouflaged to match or complement the color and architectural treatment of 
the building. If placed on the ground on a concrete pad, except as provided in subsection (d) above, 
equipment enclosures shall be screened so as to make them unobtrusive.  

(h) All cabling and wiring connecting antennas, equipment enclosures, and other components of 
concealed wireless telecommunication facilities shall be colored or concealed in a manner as to render 
them unobtrusive.  

(i) Generators may not be used as a primary electrical power source. Backup generators shall only be 
operated during power outages or for testing and maintenance purposes. Testing and maintenance 
shall only take place on weekdays between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.  

(j) Reserved.  

(k) Applicants for concealed wireless telecommunication facilities shall first be encouraged to consider 
properties owned by the Town of Weaverville, before considering private properties. Public properties 
shall be subject to the same restrictions and standards of appropriateness as private properties. All 
such public agencies or instrumentalities shall retain discretion as to whether to make a specific 
property available for wireless telecommunication facilities and to make determinations with respect to 
site capacity, aesthetics, or suitability of such facilities.  

(l) A copy of the applicant's FCC license must accompany its application. If the applicant is not an FCC 
licensee, the applicant must demonstrate that it has binding commitments from one or more FCC 
licensees to utilize the wireless telecommunication facility and must submit a copy of each such 
wireless service provider's FCC license. If FCC licenses have previously been filed with the Town of 
Weaverville in conjunction with other wireless telecommunication facilities, the applicant may certify 
that such licenses remain in full force and effect.  

(m) Before a concealed wireless telecommunication facility is approved an applicant shall be required to 
post a $5,000.00 cash bond, or other security satisfactory to the Town of Weaverville, to secure the 
costs of maintaining the exterior appearance of the facility if the wireless provider or its successors or 
assigns fails to continually do so, or removing such facility in the event the wireless provider shall fail 
to do so within one year (365 days) of abandonment or cessation of operation of the facility. The 
applicant shall be required to continue such bond or other security until such time as the facility has 
been removed and all other requirements of its maintenance/removal agreement have been satisfied. 
Private business users operating a single wireless telecommunication facility at their principal place of 
business and governmental users are exempt from the bond requirement.  

(n) Abandoned or unused wireless telecommunication facilities shall be removed within one year (365 
days) of abandonment or cessation of operations. If not removed within that period, such facilities may 
be removed as provided in the permittee's maintenance/removal agreement and the costs of removal 
recovered from the permittee's bond or other security. Prior to removing a wireless telecommunication 
facility pursuant to this provision, the Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' written notice of its intent 
to do so to the permittee at its last known address.  

(o) An annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall be required for each wireless 
telecommunication facility located in the Town of Weaverville. Before an annual permit shall be issued 
or renewed an applicant or permittee must certify that:  

(1) It currently holds an FCC license to provide commercial wireless services and that such license 
is in good standing or, if the permittee is not an FCC licensee, that the license of each of it's FCC 
tenants is in good standing.  

(2) The wireless telecommunication facility continues to be operated by the permittee and that it has 
a continuing need for the facility to meet the requirements of its FCC license.  

(3) That the facility continues to comply with all FCC and FAA rules and regulations.  

(4) That the permittee currently has general liability insurance of at least $1,000,000.00 in force 
covering the wireless telecommunication facility as evidenced by a certificate of insurance 
attached to its renewal application.  

165



(5) That it is in compliance with its maintenance/removal agreement and that any bond or other 
security given in conjunction therewith remains it full force and effect.  

(6) That it has not constructed, maintained, modified or operated any wireless telecommunication 
facilities in the Town of Weaverville without the Town of Weaverville's approval or, if it has done 
so, that it has ceased operating and has removed all such facilities.  

Failure to obtain or renew an annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall result in the wireless 
telecommunication facility being deemed abandoned and subject to removal, as well as subjecting the 
facility's owner to all other penalty and enforcement provisions of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 
Weaverville. The Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' advance written notice to the permittee at its last 
known address of the pending expirations of the permittee's annual wireless telecommunication facility 
permits. Fees for annual wireless telecommunication facility permits shall be in accordance with the Town 
of Weaverville Fees and Charges Manual.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2001, § 5)  

Sec. 36-406. - Same—Collocated.  

(a) Use districts: Use Districts: C-1, C-2, I-1 and all Town of Weaverville owned property located in R-1, 
R-2 and R-3.  

(b) Application fees for a collocated wireless telecommunication facility shall be in accordance with the 
Town of Weaverville's Fees and Charges Manual.  

(c) Wireless telecommunication facilities may be collocated on any structure which hosts one or more 
permitted and approved wireless telecommunication facilities provided, however, that the proposed 
collocated wireless facility must meet equipment enclosure and antenna size restrictions for the type 
of facility and zoning district in which the existing facility was approved (i.e., microcell and concealed 
wireless telecommunication facilities).  

(d) Where collocation is proposed by use of a combiner (allowing two or more commercial wireless service 
providers to share a common antenna or antenna array), an equipment enclosure which houses only 
the combiner and amplifiers may exceed the maximum permitted dimensions for other types of 
equipment enclosures.  

(e) Antennas associated with a co-located wireless telecommunication facility may not be collocated on a 
tower or other support structure used by an amateur radio operator.  

(f) Collocated wireless telecommunication facilities shall meet the following design standards:  

(1) Use of dual-band/multi-band antennas (to allow sharing of antennas or antenna arrays by wireless 
providers using different frequency bands) or by using combiners (to allow antenna sharing by 
users of the same frequency band) is encouraged in order to minimize the height of support 
structures and the visual impact of multiple collocated antennas or antenna arrays.  

(2) Antennas associated with a collocated wireless telecommunication facility shall be mounted so 
as to present the smallest possible silhouette, profile, or cross-section. Preferred antenna 
mounting scenarios are, in order of descending preference:  

a. Compact dual-polarized antennas in a cylindrical unicell arrangement extending less than 
two feet from the structure, and mounted atop the tower;  

b. Panel antennas flush-mounted against the tower;  

c. Antennas mounted at the end of straight or curved davit arms or brackets extending from 
the sides of the tower.  

(3) No collocated wireless telecommunication facility located on a telecommunication tower shall 
have constructed thereon, or attached thereto in any way, any platform, catwalk, crow's nest, 
triangular framework, or like structures or equipment, except during periods of construction or 

166



repair. Curved or straight davit arms or brackets used for antenna mounting shall be connected 
to the tower at the base of the arms or brackets only and such arms or brackets (and any antennas 
or hardware mounted thereon) shall not be physically interconnected with any similar arm or 
bracket.  

(4) All equipment enclosures and other improvements accessory to a collocated wireless 
telecommunication facility shall be architecturally designed to blend in with the surrounding 
environment and shall be maintained in good appearance and repair. No equipment enclosure 
may exceed 12 feet in height. Ground mounted equipment shall be screened from view, except 
where a design of nonvegetative screening better reflects and complements the architectural 
character of the surrounding neighborhood.  

(5) Generators may not be used as a primary electrical power source. Backup generators shall only 
be operated during power outages or for testing and maintenance purposes. Testing and 
maintenance shall only take place on weekdays between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.  

(6) Equipment enclosures and other improvements shall be enclosed within a security fence 
consisting of chain link fencing at least eight feet in height. The fence may be topped with barbed 
wire. The zoning administrator may require as a condition of approval that the fencing be 
screened by appropriate landscaping or other means, or may waive or modify the fencing 
requirement if it determines that doing so will enhance the overall appearance of the facility 
without any compromise in safety or security.  

(7) Signage at any ground-based portion of a collocated wireless telecommunication facility site shall 
conform to the following provisions:  

a. A sign listing the name of the wireless telecommunication service provider operating the site, 
the site name or number and an emergency telephone number shall be posted at or near 
the entrance to the site so as to be readily visible to persons outside the site's security 
fencing. Maximum size of the sign is four square feet.  

b. Equipment hazard warning and informational signs are permitted.  

c. The posting of any other signs or advertising is prohibited at any wireless telecommunication 
facility or upon any telecommunication tower.  

(g) A copy of the applicant's FCC license must accompany its application. If the applicant is not an FCC 
licensee, the applicant must demonstrate that it has binding commitments from one or more FCC 
licensees to utilize the wireless telecommunication facility and must submit a copy of each such 
wireless service provider's FCC license. If FCC licenses have previously been filed with the Town of 
Weaverville in conjunction with other wireless telecommunication facilities, the applicant may certify 
that such licenses remain in full force and effect.  

(h) Before a collocated wireless telecommunication facility is approved, an applicant shall be required to 
post a $5,000.00 cash bond, or other security satisfactory to the Town of Weaverville, to secure the 
costs of maintaining the exterior appearance of the facility if the wireless provider fails to continually 
do so, or removing such facility in the event the wireless provider shall fail to do so within one year 
(365 days) of abandonment or cessation of operation of the facility. The applicant shall be required to 
continue such bond or other security until such time as the facility has been removed and all other 
requirements of its maintenance/removal agreement have been satisfied. Private business users 
operating a single wireless telecommunication facility at their principal place of business and 
governmental users are exempt from the bond requirement.  

(i) Abandoned or unused wireless telecommunication facilities shall be removed within one year (365 
days) of abandonment or cessation of operations. If not removed within that period, such facilities may 
be removed as provided in the permittee's maintenance/removal agreement and the costs of removal 
recovered from the permittee's bond or other security. Prior to removing a wireless telecommunication 
facility pursuant to this provision, the Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' written notice of its 
intention to do so to the permittee at its last known address.  

167



(j) Collocated wireless telecommunication facilities shall not be constructed unless the facility owner has 
general liability coverage of at least $1,000,000.00. The owner of a collocated wireless 
telecommunication facility shall provide the town with a certificate of insurance showing evidence of 
its coverage and the certificate shall contain a requirement that the insurance company notify the town 
30 days prior to the cancellation, modification or failure to renew the insurance coverage required.  

(k) An annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall be required for every wireless 
telecommunication facility located in the Town of Weaverville. Before a permit shall be issued or 
renewed an applicant or permittee must certify that:  

(1) It currently holds an FCC license to provide commercial wireless services and that such license 
is in good standing or, if the permittee is not an FCC licensee, that the license of each of it's FCC 
tenants is in good standing.  

(2) The wireless telecommunication facility continues to be operated by the permittee and that it has 
a continuing need for the facility to meet the requirements of its FCC license.  

(3) That the facility continues to comply with all FCC and FAA rules and regulations and all conditions 
of its conditional use permit.  

(4) That the permittee currently has general liability insurance of at least $1,000,000.00 in force 
covering the wireless telecommunication facility as evidenced by a certificate of insurance 
attached to its renewal application.  

(5) That it is in compliance with its maintenance/removal agreement and that any bond or other 
security given in conjunction therewith remains it full force and effect.  

(6) That it has not constructed, maintained, modified or operated any wireless telecommunication 
facilities in the Town of Weaverville without the Town of Weaverville's approval or, if it has done 
so, that it has ceased operating and has removed all such facilities.  

Failure to obtain or renew an annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall result in the wireless 
telecommunication facility being deemed abandoned and subject to removal, as well as subjecting the 
facility's owner to all other penalty and enforcement provisions of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 
Weaverville. The Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' advance written notice to the permittee at its last 
known address of the pending expiration of the permittee's annual wireless telecommunication facility 
permit. Fees for annual wireless telecommunication facility permits shall be in accordance with the Town of 
Weaverville Fees and Charges Manual.  

(Ord. of 7-16-2001, § 6)  

Sec. 36-407. - Same—Monopole.  

(a) Use districts. Use districts C-2 and I-1 and all Town of Weaverville owned property located in R-1, R-
2, and R-3.  

(b) Applications fees for a monopole wireless telecommunication facility shall be in accordance with the 
Town of Weaverville's Fee and Charges Manual.  

(c) Monopole wireless telecommunications facilities may be located on any property located in the C-2 
and I-1 district that can provide the required fall zones as described herein. In addition, a wireless 
telecommunications company may construct a monopole telecommunication facility only if they can 
prove that no other type of wireless telecommunication facility will allow them to provide service.  

(d) Monopole wireless telecommunication facilities shall meet the following design standards:  

(1) Use of dual-band/multi-band antennas (to allow sharing of antennas or antenna arrays by wireless 
providers using different frequency bands) or by using combiners (to allow antenna sharing by 
users of the same frequency band) is encouraged in order to minimize the height of support 
structures and the visual impact of multiple collocated antennas or antenna arrays.  

168



(2) Antennas associated with a monopole wireless telecommunication facility shall be mounted so 
as to present the smallest possible silhouette, profile, or cross section. Preferred antenna 
mounting scenarios are, in order of descending preference:  

i. Compact dual-polarized antennas in a cylindrical unicell arrangement extending less than 
two feet from the structure, and mounted atop the tower;  

ii. Panel antennas flush-mounted against the tower;  

iii. Antennas mounted at the end of straight or curved davit arms or brackets extending from 
the sides of the tower.  

(3) No monopole wireless telecommunication facility shall have constructed thereon, or attached 
thereto in any way, any platform, catwalk, crow's nest, triangular framework, or like structures or 
equipment, except during construction or repair. Curved or straight davit arms or brackets used 
for antenna mounting shall be connected to the tower at the base of the arms or brackets only 
and such arms or brackets (and any antennas or hardware mounted thereon) shall not be 
physically interconnected with any similar arm or bracket and shall not extend more than two feet 
from the structure.  

(4) All equipment enclosures and other improvements necessary to a monopole wireless 
telecommunications facility shall be architecturally designed to blend in with the surrounding 
environment and shall be maintained in good appearance and repair. No equipment enclosure 
may exceed 12 feet in height. Ground-mounted equipment shall be screened from view, except 
where a design of non-vegetative screening better reflects and complements the architectural 
character of the surrounding neighborhood.  

(5) Generators may not be used as the primary electrical power source. Backup generators shall only 
be operated during power outages and for testing and maintenance purposes. Testing and 
maintenance shall only take place on weekdays between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.  

(6) Equipment enclosures and other improvements shall be enclosed within a security fence 
consisting of chain link fencing at least eight feet in height. The fence may be topped with barbed 
wire. The zoning administrator may require as a condition of approval that the fencing be 
screened by appropriate landscaping or other means, or may waive or modify the fencing 
requirement if he determines that doing so will enhance the overall appearance of the facility 
without any compromise in safety or security.  

(7) Signage at a monopole wireless telecommunications facility shall conform to the following 
provisions:  

a. A sign listing the name of the wireless telecommunication service provider operating the site, 
the site name or number and an emergency telephone number shall be mounted at or near 
the entrance to the site so as to be readily visible to persons outside the site's security 
fencing. Maximum size of the sign is four square feet.  

b. Equipment hazard warning and informational signs are permitted.  

c. The posting of any other signs or advertising is prohibited at any wireless telecommunication 
facility or upon any telecommunication tower.  

(8) Notwithstanding any height limitations otherwise set forth in the Town Code, monopoles may be 
constructed up to, but shall not exceed 150 feet in height in the C-2 and I-1 use districts and 100 
feet in height in all other use districts.  

(e) Monopoles shall be constructed in a manner to provide a fall zone all around the monopole in a length 
of one-half of the heights of the monopole unless the applicant provides a sealed statement from a 
North Carolina professional engineer that a shorter length for all or a part of the fall zone area shall 
provide adequate distance to provide protection from damage to adjacent property. A copy of the 
applicant's FCC license must accompany its application. If the applicant is not an FCC licensee, the 
applicant must demonstrate that it has binding commitments from one or more FCC licensees to utilize 
the wireless telecommunication facility and must submit a copy of each wireless service provider's 

169



FCC license. If FCC licenses have been previously filed with the Town of Weaverville in conjunction 
with other wireless telecommunication facilities, the applicant may certify that such licenses remain in 
full force and effect.  

(f) Before a monopole wireless telecommunication facility is approved, an applicant shall be required to 
post a $25,000.00 cash guarantee or other security satisfactory to the Town of Weaverville, to secure 
the costs of maintaining the exterior appearance of the facility, including the property on which the 
facility is located and any improvements on the property which are associated with the facility if the 
wireless provider fails to continually do so, or removing such facility in the event the wireless provider 
shall fail to do so within one year (365 days) of abandonment or cessation of operation of the facility. 
The applicant shall be required to continue such guarantee or other security until such time as the 
facility has been removed and all other requirements of its maintenance/removal agreement have been 
satisfied. Private business users operating a single wireless telecommunications facility at their 
principal place of business and governmental users are exempt from the guarantee requirement.  

(g) Abandoned or unused wireless telecommunications facilities shall be removed within one year (365 
days) of abandonment or cessation of operations. If not removed within that period, such facilities may 
be removed as provided in the permittee's maintenance/removal agreement and the costs of removal 
recovered from the permittee's bond or other security. Prior to removing a wireless telecommunication 
facility pursuant to this provision, the Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' written notice of its 
intention to do so to the permittee at its last known address. The remedies of the town set forth herein 
are not exclusive and the town may elect to use any or all of the remedies for enforcement of town 
ordinances set forth in section 1-6 of the town's Code of Ordinances or any other remedies available 
to the town in state statutes or other applicable law.  

(h) Monopole wireless telecommunication facilities shall not be constructed unless the facility owner has 
general liability coverage of at least $1,000,000.00. The owner of a collocated wireless 
telecommunication facility shall provide the town with a certificate of insurance showing evidence of 
its coverage and the certificate shall contain a requirement that the insurance company notify the town 
30 days prior to the cancellation, modification or failure to renew the insurance coverage required.  

(i) An annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall be required for every monopole wireless 
telecommunication facility located in the Town of Weaverville. Before a permit shall be issued or 
renewed, an applicant or permittee must certify that:  

(1) It currently holds an FCC license to provide commercial wireless services and that such license 
is in good standing or, if the permittee is not an FCC licensee, that the license of each of its FCC 
tenants is in good standing.  

(2) The wireless telecommunication facility continues to be operated by the permittee and that it has 
a continuing need for the facility to meet the requirements of its FCC license.  

(3) The facility continues to comply with all FCC and FAA rules and regulations and all conditions of 
its conditional use permit.  

(4) The permittee currently has general liability insurance of at least $1,000,000.00 in force covering 
the wireless telecommunication facility as evidenced by a certificate of insurance attached to its 
renewal application.  

(5) It is in compliance with its maintenance/removal agreement and that any bond or other security 
given in conjunction therewith remains it full force and effect.  

(6) It has not constructed, maintained, modified or operated any wireless telecommunication facilities 
in the Town of Weaverville without the Town of Weaverville's approval or, if it has done so, that it 
has ceased operating and has removed all such facilities.  

Failure to obtain or renew an annual wireless telecommunication facility permit shall result in the 
wireless telecommunication facility being deemed abandoned and subject to removal, as well as subjecting 
the facility's owner to all other penalty and enforcement provisions of the Code of Ordinances of the Town 
of Weaverville. The Town of Weaverville shall give 30 days' advance written notice to the permittee at its 
last known address and pending the expiration of the permittee's annual wireless telecommunications 

170



facility permit. Fees for annual wireless telecommunication facility permits shall be in accordance with the 
Town of Weaverville Fees and Charges Manual.  

(Ord. of 6-18-2012, § 1)  

Secs. 36-408—36-500. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE XV. - GRADING  

 

Sec. 36-501. - Definitions.  

As used in this article, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following definitions apply:  

Active construction. Activities which contribute directly to the completion of facilities contemplated or 
shown on the construction plans.  

Adequate erosion control measure, structure or device. Control of the soil material within the land area 
under responsible control of the persons conducting the grading activity.  

Borrow. Fill material which is required for on-site construction and is obtained from other locations.  

Buffer. The definition included in section 36-5 is incorporated herein.  

Buffer zone. The strip of land adjacent to a lake or natural watercourse, the width of which is measured 
from the edge of the water to the nearest edge of the disturbed area, with the 25 percent of the strip nearer 
the grading or land-disturbing activity containing natural or artificial means of confining visible siltation. 
Waters that have been classified as trout waters by the North Carolina Environmental Management 
Commission ("EMC") shall have an undisturbed buffer zone of 25 feet wide or whatever width may be 
subsequently required by the EMC.  

Design professional. An engineer, surveyor or landscape architect licensed by or registered in the 
State of North Carolina.  

Erosion. The wearing away of land surface by the action of wind, water, gravity, or any combination 
thereof.  

Grading or land grading. A land-disturbing activity intended to alter the contour or topography of a tract 
of land or portion thereof, generally as part of a plan for the development of the land which may or may not 
include the construction of buildings or structures.  

Ground cover. Any natural vegetation growth or other material which renders the soil surface stable 
against accelerated erosion.  

Lake or natural watercourse. Any stream, river, brook, swamp, sound, bay, creek, run, branch, canal, 
waterway, estuary, and any reservoir, lake or pond, natural or impounded, in which sediment may be moved 
or carried in suspension, and which could be damaged by accumulation of sediment.  

Land-disturbing activity. Any use of the land by any person in residential, industrial, education, 
institutional, or commercial development, highway and road construction and maintenance that results in a 
change in the topography and that may cause or contribute to sedimentation.  

Landscape grading. The leveling or contouring of an area of a lot or tract for aesthetic purposes where 
such area will not be used to support a building or structure, does not exceed 5,000 square feet in area, is 
not part of a storm drainage easement, is not within a street right-of-way, and involves cut or fill of the 
existing contour of less than four feet in depth.  

Natural erosion. The wearing away of the earth's surface by water, wind, or other natural agents under 
natural environmental conditions undisturbed by man.  

171



Person. Any individual, partnership, firm, association, joint venture, public or private corporation, trust, 
estate, commission, board, public or private institution, utility, cooperative, interstate body, or other legal 
entity.  

Person responsible for the violation. As used in this article, means:  

a. The developer or other person who has or holds himself out as having financial or operational 
control over the grading or land-disturbing activity; and/or  

b. The landowner or person in possession or control of the land when he has directly or indirectly 
allowed the grading or land-disturbing activity or has benefitted from it or he has failed to comply 
with any provision of this article, or any order adopted pursuant to this article.  

Person conducting land-disturbing activity. Any person who may be held responsible for a violation 
unless expressly provided otherwise by this article.  

Phases of land-grading activity. Defined portions (area or implementation) of grading that are required 
to be done in a specific sequence as part of the plan.  

Plan. The grading plan and the supporting documentation for such plan.  

Storm drainage facilities. The system of inlets, conduits, channels, ditches and appurtenances which 
serve to collect and convey stormwater through and from a given drainage area.  

Stormwater runoff. The direct runoff of water resulting from precipitation in any form.  

Types of grading. One of two types of grading, rough or fine.  

Undertaken. The initiating of any activity, or phase of activity, which results or will result in a change 
in the ground cover or topography of a tract of land.  

Waste. The surplus materials resulting from on-site construction and disposed of at other locations.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-502. - Activities affected.  

This article pertains to all land-disturbing activity and grading conducted within the town's jurisdiction. 
It is the responsibility of the property owner and the person conducting land-disturbing activity and grading 
to ensure that provisions of this article are adhered to, including activities contracted for, or performed by 
those under their employ. The exception from plan approval requirements in section 36-503 hereinafter due 
to the size or type of activity contemplated does not relieve the property owner of responsibility for complying 
with soil erosion control requirements, and complying with North Carolina statutes and this article.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-503. - Plan approval required.  

(a) Town review and approval of a site-specific plan, is required when any land-disturbing activity is 
proposed, with the exception of the following:  

(1) Single- and two-family projects of less than 21,780 square feet (0.5 acre) where none of the lot 
has a slope steeper than 15 percent.  

(2) Commercial site improvements that involve no more than 2,500 square feet of land-disturbed 
area where none of the lot has a slope steeper than 15 percent.  

(3) Landscape grading as defined in this article.  

(4) Temporary removal of soil to allow installation of tanks, septic fields or basements where the final 
grade upon completion of the project will be unchanged from the original grade and topography.  

172



(5) Removal of top or subsoil to allow placement of another material such as gravel for a driveway or 
parking area when the final grade upon completion of the project will be unchanged from the 
original grade and topography and no storm drainage structures are required.  

(6) Activities undertaken on farms or other agricultural land for the production of plants, including, but 
not limited to, forages and sod crops, grains and feed crops, tobacco, cotton and peanuts.  

(b) The following grading or land-disturbing activities should be included in the submission for plan 
approval, when not already covered by a valid plan approval:  

(1) Access and haul roads: Temporary access and haul roads, other than public roads, constructed 
or used in connection with any grading activity and are subject to the requirements of this article 
which pertain to road building.  

(2) Borrow and waste areas: When the applicant conducting the grading activity is also the 
responsible party conducting the borrow or waste disposal activity, areas from which borrow is 
obtained and which are not regulated by the provisions of the Mining Act of 1971, and the waste 
areas for surplus materials other than landfills regulated by the North Carolina Department of 
Human Resources, Division of Health Services, shall be considered as part of the grading activity 
where the borrow material is being used or from which the waste material originated. When the 
applicant conducting the grading activity is not the responsible party for obtaining the borrow 
and/or disposing of the waste, these areas shall be considered a separate grading activity.  

(c) [Approval process.] Approval of the plan shall be completed as part of the zoning approval process. A 
plan will not be approved unless it is submitted with an application for a zoning permit.  

(Ord. No. 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-504. - Administrative procedures for plan approval.  

(a) The plan along with all supporting calculations shall be submitted with the zoning permit application. 
The plan with supporting calculations shall be designated collectively throughout this subsection as 
the plan.  

(1) The plan(s) shall be prepared by, and shall bear the seal and signature of a design professional.  

(2) Supporting documentation shall be considered an integral part of the plan submittal. The applicant 
shall include general supporting documentation such as location map and written specifications 
governing work performance and materials, for the plan submitted. Although specific plan content 
will vary to meet the needs of particular site requirements, following are some typical forms of 
specific supporting documentation:  

(A) Grading plan: Site specific soils investigation (if performed), detail drawings and cross-
section of earthwork, construction details for retaining structures, and whatever other 
narrative statements may be necessary to adequately describe the proposed development 
of the tract and the measures planned to comply with the requirements of this article. More 
specialized documentation may include such items as design calculations for temporary 
excavation support, calculations for temporary surface water diversion, dewatering methods 
with provisions for handling extracted water, importation of fill material (quantity and type), 
description of rock excavation techniques (blasting) with protection or monitoring of 
neighboring properties and structures.  

(B) Soil erosion and sediment control plan:  

1. Buncombe County enforces the North Carolina Sedimentation Pollution Control Act of 
1973, as amended, within the jurisdiction of the Town of Weaverville. Where a land-
disturbing permit is required by Buncombe County, said permit and erosion control 
plans shall be included in the supporting documentation accompanying the plan.  

173



2. Where a permit is not required by Buncombe County, the plan shall include erosion 
control measures specific to the site to prevent erosion and damage to adjacent or 
downstream properties.  

(b) The zoning administrator shall review the plan for completeness and for compliance with the 
requirements of this article. Incomplete or nonconforming plans will be returned to the applicant prior 
to further review with an explanation of issues requiring resolution before plan review can be 
[approved].  

(c) Approval or denial of the proposed plan shall be in writing. In the case of denial, the reasons for denial 
shall be clearly stated. The applicant may appeal the decision of the zoning administrator to the board 
of adjustment as provided in article XII of chapter 36. A condition of plan approval will be the right to 
physical inspection by the town of the grading activity at any time.  

(d) Application for amendment of a plan in written and graphic form may be made at any time by repeating 
the filing process outlined above in subsections 36-504 (a) through (c). Until such time as any 
amendment is approved by the zoning administrator, it shall be unlawful to deviate from the approved 
plan.  

(e) In the enforcement of this article, town staff may perform random independent inspections of the 
grading activity to ensure compliance with the approved plan and this article. No person shall willfully 
resist, delay, or obstruct any town official or duly appointed agent, who is inspecting or attempting to 
inspect a grading or land-disturbing activity.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-505. - Compliance with approved plans.  

The property owner is responsible for ensuring that the grading and land-disturbing activity is 
completed in accordance with the approved plan and specifications. The zoning administrator shall require 
that the design professional who prepared the plan certify that the grading and land-disturbing activity was 
completed in compliance with the approved plan.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-506. - Grading plan details.  

(a) The plan shall define the existing site topography and the proposed elevations for all site improvements 
in sufficient detail to accurately plan and control earthwork construction. The plan shall be prepared to 
meet the grading performance standards required by subsection 36-509, and presented at a scale not 
smaller than one inch = 50 feet.  

(b) The plan shall be prepared by and shall bear the seal and signature of a design professional. Plans 
submitted for grading approval, and plats submitted for major and minor subdivisions for approval, 
shall include detailed plans, specifications and supporting calculations for the construction of 
stormwater management installation.  

(c) The applicant shall follow the administrative process for permit applications required by subsection 36-
298 of the Town Code.  

(d) Plans shall contain sufficient information as specified herein, but not limited to the topographic survey 
required by subsection 36-507 and the grading plan format required by subsection 36-508, to allow 
the zoning administrator to determine if the requirements and intent of this article as applied to the 
proposed development have been met.  

(e) The construction sequence describing major work activities shall be listed on the plan. Grading that 
will be conducted in phases should be clearly indicated on the plan. Multiple plans may be necessary 
to portray adequately tracts with complex phasing or discontinuous areas of land-disturbing activity.  

174



(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-507. - Topographic survey.  

(a) The plan shall be based upon a topographic survey of the tract that includes detailed information of 
both natural and cultural physical features prior to development. In addition to showing physical 
features such as existing buildings, overhead and/or underground utilities, roadways, walks, water or 
drainage features, the plan shall also indicate the location of existing vegetation, particularly significant 
trees being retained and protected, either pursuant to article VI of chapter 36 of the Town Code or 
pursuant to development plans, and limits of vegetation if the tract is partially wooded.  

(b) Survey information can be provided through submittal of a separate topographical survey, or included 
as part of the grading and utilities plans. This survey shall be produced by a North Carolina registered 
land surveyor. Topographical maps prepared for the town or Buncombe County are also acceptable 
providing that the maps reflect the current existing conditions of the tract and are certified as accurate 
by a North Carolina registered land surveyor.  

(c) Contour lines shall be used to present the topography of the entire tract, including sufficient distance 
into adjoining properties to indicate continuity. The contour line interval should be selected to 
appropriately convey the topographic information for planning and controlling construction. Generally, 
a two-foot contour interval is sufficient. However, smaller intervals (one-half to one foot) may be used 
for flatter areas and larger intervals (five to ten feet) for steeper terrain. Contour intervals may be no 
greater than ten feet.  

(d) The following basic survey data is required for proper execution of the plan:  

(1) Boundary information (metes and bounds, legal description of the site if available), including all 
existing and proposed street rights-of-way.  

(2) Location of existing curbing, walks, grass, utility or planting strips, edge of pavement, roadway 
medians, if any, and their respective grades, widths, and alignments.  

(3) Location, size, and depths of all underground utilities when available, including; gas, electric, 
water, sanitary sewer, stormwater drainage features, telephone, television cable, etc.  

(4) Location and approximate height above existing grade of overhead utility lines and poles for 
lighting, electric, telephone, cable television, and any other utilities.  

(5) Location and description of all recorded public or private utility easements, building setbacks, and 
drainage easements encumbering the tract.  

(6) Location of all natural features such as rock outcroppings, watersheds, streams, ponds, etc. on 
the lot or within 100 feet of the graded area. This information conveys the impact of the proposed 
development on the lot.  

(7) Location of any wells or septic fields within 100 feet of the graded area.  

(8) Location of existing structures such as buildings, retaining walls, fences, building foundations, 
underground storage tanks and similar structures. Reference of the setbacks of other buildings 
on adjacent properties and adjacent property lines.  

(9) Location of sufficient spot elevations on existing land surface to generate a topographic map of 
the entire tract.  

(10) The location and size of any landscaping, screening and/or buffering requirements applicable to 
the site based on the provisions of the Town Code.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-508. - Grading plan format.  

175



(a) The plan must show the existing and proposed shape of earth and surfaced areas. The method of 
portrayal should be well thought out, systematized, and clearly presented graphically. The following 
information shall be included in all plans submitted to the town for approval:  

(1) Contour lines shall be used to present the existing and proposed topography of the entire tract, 
including sufficient distance into adjoining properties to indicate continuity. The contour line 
interval should be selected to appropriately convey the topographic information for planning and 
controlling construction. Generally, a two-foot contour interval is sufficient. However, smaller 
intervals (one-half to one foot) may be used for flatter areas and larger intervals (five to ten feet) 
for steeper terrain. Contour intervals may be no greater than ten feet.  

(2) Grades at corners of buildings, step landings, and first floor elevations.  

(3) Finished grades at the edges of surfaced areas and at such interior points as necessary to show 
the shaping of the area. A combination of proposed contours and spot elevations may be used to 
convey this information.  

(4) Proposed roadway elevations by indicating proposed contours and spot elevations where 
necessary. Profiles, cross sections, and spot elevations are to be used to establish grading of 
paved areas such as roadways.  

(5) Top-of-curb grades at all connecting walks, curb returns, and all catch basin locations including 
inlet elevations.  

(6) Spot elevations along swale lines, by using arrows to show direction of flow. Slope gradients 
should also be shown.  

(7) Top elevation of all catch basins, storm and sanitary sewer manholes and other appurtenances 
and the invert elevations of all pipes entering such structures.  

(8) Lawn and earth grades can be shown by proposed contours and by spot elevations where 
necessary.  

(9) The proposed location of stockpiled topsoil for future land use in landscaped areas. To avoid root 
compaction the stockpile should be located outside root zones of significant vegetation to be 
preserved.  

(10) The storage locations of construction materials outside the root zones of significant vegetation to 
avoid root compaction.  

(11) The location of existing significant vegetation such as specimen trees or the canopy limits of 
wooded areas intended for preservation.  

(12) The elevations of any floodplains located on, or directly affecting a tract (i.e. drainage, sediment 
and erosion control considerations and/or watershed protection).  

(13) The location and size of any landscaping, screening and/or buffering requirements applicable to 
the site based on the provisions of the Town Code.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

Sec. 36-509. - Grading performance standards.  

(a) Any land-disturbing activity that includes alteration of existing topographic slope grades shall conform 
to grading performance standards contained in subsections (b) through (j) hereinafter.  

(b) The plan and specifications controlling execution of grading activities shall adhere to the following 
standards unless superseded by a site-specific subsurface investigation, report and recommendation 
performed by a North Carolina registered professional engineer competent in geotechnical 
engineering.  

176



(1) Existing grade may remain, if natural vegetation undisturbed and slope(s) are unaffected by the 
planned site improvements.  

(2) Maximum cut grade shall be 2H:1V.  

(3) Maximum fill grade shall be 2H:1V.  

(4) Grades shall be sloped to drain surface water away from buildings, pavements, slopes and 
structures, and toward storm drainage facilities.  

(c) Conventional seeding with native grasses and mulching are acceptable permanent erosion control 
measures for slopes flatter than 2H:1V, provided the grasses can be established and properly 
nourished to maturation.  

(d) Site-specific permanent erosion control and stabilization of slopes steeper than 2H:1V must be 
designed by a design professional competent in such practice. Universally accepted armoring 
techniques and innovative approaches will be considered appropriate when properly detailed and 
specified.  

(e) Notification of the zoning administrator shall be made prior to starting grading for any slope steeper 
than 3H:1V.  

(f) Cut and fill slopes that are steeper than 3H:1V shall have intermediate benches to control surface 
water runoff. These benches shall be a minimum of five feet wide and sloped back from the crest of 
the lower slope, to form a drainage swale at the toe of the upper slope. The drainage swale invert shall 
divert surface water to the appropriate storm drainage facilities. The maximum change in elevation 
between these benches shall be 20 feet. Slope stability considerations may require wider benches for 
steeper or taller slopes. If a site specific evaluation is performed and recommendations submitted by 
a North Carolina registered professional engineer with a specialization in sub-surface evaluations, the 
provisions of this subsection may be modified or waived.  

(g) Exposed and fill covered slope cuts in rock foundations or slopes greater than five feet and steeper 
than 1H:1V should be properly investigated and designed by a North Carolina registered professional 
engineer or geologist competent in rock slope engineering. The plan should clearly indicate the depth, 
orientation, and method to accomplish a cut into rock formations.  

(h) Retaining systems providing a cumulative vertical relief greater than five feet within a horizontal 
distance of 50 feet or less, including retaining walls or mechanically stabilized earth walls, shall be 
designed and constructed under the responsible charge of a North Carolina registered professional 
engineer. Testing and inspection reports shall verify:  

(1) Foundation support system is adequate for the intended site conditions;  

(2) Quality of construction materials conform with specifications;  

(3) Actual soil conditions are substantially and functionally similar to those anticipated in design; and  

(4) Backfill materials and any drainage systems comply with plans and specifications.  

The engineer will submit a separate summary report stating that the constructed retaining 
structures are in compliance with the intent of the design.  

(i) Utilize a maximum 3H:1V slope within any temporary or permanent buffer zone adjacent to any lake 
or natural watercourse, tying into existing grades along the perimeter or property line of the tract. 
Landscape buffer areas shall be limited to a maximum 3H:1V slope unless otherwise approved by the 
administrator.  

(j) Property boundary and field grading stakes sufficient to define the grading activity shall be established 
prior to starting, and maintained until earthwork construction is completed.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

177



Sec. 36-510. - Violations.  

(a) The following shall constitute a violation of this article:  

(1) Land-disturbing activity is being undertaken in a manner which is in violation of this article.  

(2) Substantial departure from the approved plan and specifications.  

(3) Refusal or failure to comply with the requirements of any applicable state law, local law, local 
ordinance, or local regulation.  

(4) Plan approvals granted on the basis of false statements or misrepresentations made by the 
property owner or their representatives during application.  

(5) Plan approvals mistakenly granted in violation of an applicable state law, local law, local 
ordinance, or local regulation.  

(b) Violations of this article shall result in revocation of approval of the plat and revocation of the zoning 
permit and additional enforcement shall be conducted pursuant to section 36-23 of the Town Code.  

(Ord. of 8-16-10, § 1)  

178



179



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD RECOMMENDED CHANGES TO PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS TO THE WEAVERVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

PG# PROPOSED CHANGE NATURE OF CHANGE REQUESTED BY 
6 Definition of adult establishment –  

Change "14.202.10" to "14-202.10" 
Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

10 Definition of clinic –  
Change reference from "hospital 
facility" to "medical services – clinic, 
urgent care center, hospital" 

Cleanup/consistency P&Z – 8/1/17 

11 Definition of development – 
Changed "contect" to "context" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

11 Definition of development regulation –  
Changed "regularion" to "regulation" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

12 Definition of dwelling – multi-family –  
Slightly different from concept docs 

  

12 Definition of dwelling – slightly 
different from concept docs 

  

15 Definition of hotel, motel, inn – 
Added "including but not limited to" 
language 

Consistency/Broader 
language 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

17 Definition of lot –  
Changed "terms" to "term" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

17 Definition of manufactured home – 
slightly different from concept docs 

  

19 Definition of multiple tenant 
development – 
Changed "a pedestrian mall area" to 
"pedestrian ways" 

Consistency/Broader 
language 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

23 Definition of school –  
Added "includes but is not limited to" 
language 

Consistency/Broader 
language 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

27 Definition of tattoo parlor –  
Delete sentence that read "Tattoo 
parlors shall be regulated as a personal 
service." 

Substantive change – 
Tattoo parlors added to 
TOU 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

30 Section 36-12 – Street Access –  
Added sentence is changed to read 
"Any lot in the C-2 general business 
district used for commercial purposes 
shall have its primary access upon the 
street on which it fronts." [changes 
"only" to "primary"] 

Substantive change – 
allows back access for 
loading 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

180



PG# PROPOSED CHANGE NATURE OF CHANGE REQUESTED BY 
34 Section 36.24 – Sidewalk requirements 

–  
Changed (c)(1) to read "… the town 
manager is authorized to waive the 
requirement for sidewalks."  [changes 
"waiver" to "waive"] 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

45 Section 36-27(i) – 
Change "but in not event" to "but in no 
event" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

63 Section 36-104 - Table of Uses  
Renumbered to Section 36-105 

Organizational – To move 
Notes on Table of Use to 
before the Table 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

65 Table of Uses – 
Added Tattoo Parlors under 
Miscellaneous Uses – Permitted in C-2, 
I-1 

Substantive P&Z – 8/1/17 

65 Section 36-105 – Notes on Table of 
Uses  
Renumbered to Section 36-104 

Organizational – To move 
Notes on Table of Use to 
before the Table 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

 

181



RECOMMENDED CHANGES TO AND PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING  
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WEAVERVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
The following changes are recommended to be made to the proposed amendments and 
have been made based upon Planning and Zoning Board review on August 1, 2017, 
community input received on July 25th, August 8th and August 15th, and on continued staff 
review. 
 
Page numbers noted in the first column of the table below are taken from the Exhibit A 
which is attached to the proposed Ordinance Amending Chapters 4 and 36 of the 
Weaverville Code of Ordinances. 
 

PG# PROPOSED CHANGE NATURE OF CHANGE REQUESTED BY 
 Entire Ordinance –  

Revise entire ordinance to bring into 
compliance with model codes – 
uniformity of terms, streamlined 

Substantive 
 

Public Comment 
8/8/17 
8/15/17 

The amendments are a good step 
forward; consensus to continue with 
these amendments and not start over 

 Town Council 
Comment 
8/15/17 

2 4-39 Keeping livestock; max number – 
Ag Commercial 
Clarify that the minimum acreage is 
land usable for livestock and excludes 
impervious surfaces 

Substantive/Clarification Staff 

3 4-40 Keeping livestock; max number - 
Ag – Neighborhood 
Clarify that the minimum acreage is 
land usable for livestock and excludes 
impervious surfaces 

Substantive/Clarification Staff 

6 Definition of "adult establishment" –  
Change "14.202.10" to "14-202.10" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

9 Definition of "boarding house" changed 
to "bed & breakfast" and moved to keep 
alphabetical order 

Cleanup Town Council 
Comment 
8/15/17 

10 Definition of "clinic" –  
Change reference from "hospital 
facility" to "medical services – clinic, 
urgent care center, hospital" 

Cleanup/consistency P&Z – 8/1/17 

10 Deleted definition of "clinic"  Cleanup - Not used Staff  
11 Definition of "development" – 

Changed "contect" to "context" 
Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

12 Definition of "development regulation"  
Changed "regularion" to "regulation" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

182



PG# PROPOSED CHANGE NATURE OF CHANGE REQUESTED BY 
12 Definition of "dwelling – multi-family"  

Slightly different from concept docs 
  

12 Definition of "dwelling" – slightly 
different from concept docs 

  

14 Add definition of "fowl" Cleanup Staff 
16 Definition of "hotel, motel, inn" – 

Added "including but not limited to" 
language 

Consistency/Broader 
language 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

17 Definition of "lot" –  
Changed "terms" to "term" 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

17 Add definition of "livestock" Cleanup Staff 
17 Definition of "manufactured home" – 

slightly different from concept docs 
  

19 Definition of "multiple tenant 
development" – 
Changed "a pedestrian mall area" to 
"pedestrian ways" 

Consistency/Broader 
language 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

20 Definition of "noxious use" changed to 
reflect "including but not limited to" 
language 

Cleanup/Consistency P&Z-Comment 
8/15/17 

23 Definition of school –  
Added "includes but is not limited to" 
language 

Consistency/Broader 
language 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

27 Definition of tattoo parlor –  
Delete sentence that read "Tattoo 
parlors shall be regulated as a personal 
service." 

Substantive change – 
Tattoo parlors added to 
Table of Uses 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

31 Section 36-12 – Street Access –  
Added sentence is changed to read 
"Any lot in the C-2 general business 
district used for commercial purposes 
shall have its primary access upon the 
street on which it fronts." [changes 
"only" to "primary"] 

Substantive change – 
allows back access for 
loading 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

35 Section 36-24 – Sidewalk requirements 
–  
Changed (c)(1) to read "… the town 
manager is authorized to waive the 
requirement for sidewalks."  [changes 
"waiver" to "waive"] 

Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

45 Section 36-27(d), (e), (f) and (g) – 
Delete brackets in description of 
subsection 

Cleanup Staff 

45 Section 36-27(i) – Typo P&Z – 8/1/17 

183



PG# PROPOSED CHANGE NATURE OF CHANGE REQUESTED BY 
Change "but in not event" to "but in no 
event" 

63 Table of Uses – 
Changed child care homes from 
permitted in R-1, R-2 and R-3 to 
permitted with standards in R-1, R-2, 
R-3  

Substantive Town Council 
Comment 
8/15/17 

63 Table of Uses –  
Changed label for child care centers to 
"more than 6 children" 

Cleanup Staff 

63 Section 36-104 - Table of Uses  
Renumbered to Section 36-105 

Organizational – To move 
Notes on Table of Use to 
before the Table 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

64 Section 36-105 – Notes on Table of 
Uses  
Renumbered to Section 36-104 

Organizational – To move 
Notes on Table of Use to 
before the Table 

P&Z – 8/1/17 

66 Table of Uses – 
Added Tattoo Parlors under 
Miscellaneous Uses – Permitted in C-2, 
I-1 

Substantive P&Z – 8/1/17 

71 36-120 - Agriculture – Commercial 
Add a provision to standards requiring 
management of runoff 

Substantive Staff   
 

71 Agriculture – Commercial 
Add a provision to standards requiring 
management of runoff 

Substantive Staff  

72 36-121- Agriculture – Neighborhood 
Revise so that the required acreage for 
livestock is usable land; exclude 
impervious surfaces 

Substantive Staff  

72 36-121 - Agriculture – Neighborhood 
Reduce the acreage so that smaller 
farms are allowed to have livestock 

Substantive Public Comment 
7/25/17 

75 36-130 - Mobile Food Vendor  
Standards amended to only allow in  
C-1 if in conjunction with a special 
event permit 

Substantive Town Council 
Comment 
8/15/17 

77 Add 36-137 – Child Care Homes 
Standards  

Substantive Town Council 
Comment 
8/15/17 

184



PG# PROPOSED CHANGE NATURE OF CHANGE REQUESTED BY 
94 36-176 Off Street Parking 

Changed label of "boarding house" to 
"bed & breakfast"; changed label of 
child care center to "(more than 6 
children)" 

Cleanup/Clarification Staff 

96 36-176 Off Street Parking 
Add Tattoo Parlors to table – 1 space 
per 200 gross sqft 

Substantive/Cleanup Staff 

 

185



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE:  August 21, 2017   

SUBJECT: FY 2016-2017 Tax Collector’s Settlement; Approval of Bond Amount for Tax 
Collector; FY 2017-2018 Tax Order for Collection   

PRESENTER:   Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS:  Tax Settlement for FY 2016-2017 
    Listing of Delinquent Taxpayers 
    Proposed Resolutions and Order of Collection 
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

It is time for the delivery of the tax receipts to the Town of Weaverville Tax Collector (Debbie Bruce); 
however, before they can be delivered the following must occur to be in compliance with NCGS § 105-352:  

(1) Prepayments - The Tax Collector must deliver any duplicate bills printed for prepayments 
received by the Tax Collector to the Finance Director and demonstrate to the Finance 
Director’s satisfaction that all prepayments received have been deposited. 

(2) Settlement – The Tax Collector must make settlement with the Town Council for all taxes 
placed in her hands for collection for the past year and provide a listing of all taxpayers 
whose taxes remain unpaid. 

(3) Bond – The Town Council must approve the bond to be issued for the Tax Collector. 
(4) Order of Collection – An Order of Collection must be adopted at tonight’s meeting which 

will charge the Tax Collector with the collection of FY 2017-2018 taxes, plus all outstanding 
delinquent taxes. 

It should be noted that the Tax Collector’s collection percentage for FY 2016-2017 is over 99.87%. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Approval of the Tax Collector’s Settlement for FY 2016-2017 taxes, the Tax Collector’s bond and 
approval of the Order of Collection and Charge for FY 2017-2018. 

If the Board is so inclined, the following motion is suggested: 

I move that the Town Council approve (1) the Resolution Approving the Tax Collector’s Settlement 
for Fiscal Year 2016-2017, (2) the Resolution Setting the Bond Amount for the Tax Collector, and 
(3) the Resolution Adopting the Order of Collection for the 2017-2018 Tax Year and Charge to the 
Tax Collector for the collection of the taxes for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.  

186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SETTLEMENT OF THE TAX COLLECTOR 
FOR THE 2016-2017 TAX YEAR 

WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-352 requires that settlement be made with the Tax 
Collector for the taxes charged to the Tax Collector in the previous tax year prior to 
delivery of the tax receipts to the Tax Collector for the current tax year, said settlement 
being conducted in accordance with NCGS § 105-373; and 

WHEREAS, NCGS 105-373 requires that settlement be made for both taxes charged 
to the Tax Collector in the previous tax year, and for all delinquent taxes charged to the Tax 
Collector, there being a specified format for current year settlements, but not delinquent 
taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council has received a proposed settlement for 
the 2016-2017 tax year taxes, and all delinquent taxes charged to the Tax Collector for 
prior tax years; 

Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

1. The Settlement for the 2016-2017 taxes charged to the Tax Collector is hereby 
approved. The Board finds:

a. All prepayments received by the Tax Collector were properly deposited;
b. The settlement is in proper form; and
c. A diligent effort was made to collect from the persons who were legally 

obligated to pay their taxes for the 2016-2017 fiscal year.

2. The Settlement for the delinquent taxes charged to the Tax Collector for the previous 
fiscal years is hereby approved. The Town Council finds that the settlement for the 
delinquent taxes is in an appropriate form.

THIS the 21st day of August, 2017.

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

_____________________________________________
Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

197



RESOLUTION SETTING THE BOND AMOUNT 
FOR THE TAX COLLECTOR 

 
 WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-352 requires that before the tax receipts are delivered to 
the Tax Collector for collection, the Town Council must approve the bond amount for the 
Tax Collector; and 

 WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council is desirous of complying with NCGS § 
105-352; 

 Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED that the Bond amount for the Tax Collector shall 
be set at $250,000.00 through June 30, 2018. 

 
THIS the 21st day of August, 2017. 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
By:  _____________________________________________ 

Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 
________________________________________ 
Selena D. Coffey, Town Clerk 

198



RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ORDER OF COLLECTION  
FOR THE 2017-2018 TAX YEAR 

 
 WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-352 requires that before the tax receipts for the 2017-2018 
tax year may be delivered to the Tax Collector for collection the following must occur: (1) 
the Tax Collector must deliver any duplicate bills printed for prepayments received by the 
Tax Collector to the Finance Director and demonstrate to the Finance Director’s satisfaction 
that all prepayments received have been deposited; (2) the Tax Collector must make 
settlement with the Town Council for all taxes placed in her hands for collection for the 
2016-2017 tax year; and (3) the Town Council must approve the bond proposed for the Tax 
Collector for collection of all taxes charged for the 2017-2018 tax year and all delinquent 
taxes; and 

 WHEREAS, for each prepayment received for the 2017-2018 taxes a duplicate bill 
has been printed and prepayments received have been deposited; and 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council has approved the settlement for the taxes 
charged to the Tax Collector for collection for the 2016-2017 tax year, including the 
delinquent taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council has approved the bond proposed for the 
Tax Collector; 

 Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED that the Order of Collection attached hereto is 
hereby adopted. 

 
THIS the 21st day of August, 2017. 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
By:  _____________________________________________ 

Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 
________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 
 

199



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
       ORDER OF COLLECTION 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 

TO THE TAX COLLECTOR OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE: 

 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes, 
including current, insolvent, and delinquent taxes, set forth in the tax records for the Town 
of Weaverville and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from 
the taxpayers likewise therein set forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien 
upon all real property of the respective taxpayers in the Town of Weaverville, and this 
order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and 
sell any real or personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in 
accordance with law. This order is adopted pursuant to and in accordance with N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § 105-321. 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal, this 21st day of August, 2017. 

  TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

 
 By:  ____________________________________________ 
  Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

200



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  AUGUST 21, 2017  

SUBJECT: LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
(LGRS) AUDIT - CONTRACT  

  
PRESENTER:   TOWN MANAGER 

ATTACHMENTS:  PROPOSED CONTRACT 
 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of the attached contract with Gould Killian CPA 
Group, P.A., for the required audit of the Town's participation in the Local Government 
Employees' Retirement System.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

A motion to approve the attached contract and authorize the Mayor and Town Manager to 
execute it is requested. 

201



202



203



204



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  AUGUST 21, 2017  

SUBJECT: BUDGET AMENDMENT – RE-APPROPRIATION FOR WATER 
STUDY FEE 

  
PRESENTER:   TOWN FINANCE DIRECTOR 

ATTACHMENTS:  BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM 
 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Town Manager and Town Finance Director recommend approval of the attached budget 
amendment. Town Council approved a budget amendment for 2016/2017 to add $30,000 to 
cover the fee to McGill to conduct the water study. Bills have been paid as invoiced and some 
invoices were received and paid prior to June ($18,000); however, the last one ($12,000) was 
received in July, after the close out of the FY 2016-2017 budget. The unspent funds that were 
being held for the water fees reverted to fund balance at the end of the budget year. This budget 
request calls for the re-appropriation of the funds that reverted to fund balance to allow for the 
payment of the last invoice from McGill.   

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

A motion approved the attached budget amendment is requested.  

205



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
030-700-711-19000  Water Admin Professional Svcs  $12,000 
     
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
030-004-310-09900  Appropriated Fund Bal (Water)                            $12,000 
     
     
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment. 

To re-appropriate unused funds (from FY17 to FY18) for the McGill Water Study.  Of the original $30,000 
appropriated for the study, $18,000 was spent in FY17, and the remaining $12,000 will be spent in FY18. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 5: 
A. He/she may transfer amounts between line items, expenditures and revenues, within a department without limitation and 

without a report being required. 
B. He/she may transfer amounts up to $5,000 between departments within any one division, including contingency 

appropriations, within the same fund during any month. For the purpose of this ordinance, the Town of Weaverville has the 
following divisions: Public Works, Public Safety, and General Government. The Budget Officer must make an official report 
on such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Governing Board. Transfers between divisions would require action of 
the Governing Board. 

C. He/she may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by the Governing Board in the Budget Ordinance 
as amended. 

206



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, August 21, 2017 

Subject: Final Plat Approval and Waterline Acceptance for Lillie Farm Cove 
(formerly New Homes at North Main) 

Presenter:   Planning Director/Public Works Director 

Attachments: Final Plat 
 Waterline Easement Plat 

 
Description: 

The residential project for New Homes at North Main, now known as Lillie Farm Cove, is being 
developed by Mountain Housing Opportunities under a conditional zoning district previously 
approved by Town Council. The development has progress to such an extent that all infrastructure 
has been completed and the final plat is ready for approval. The name change to Lillie Farm Cove 
was reviewed and approved by the Planning and Zoning Board on August 1, 2017.  Staff 
recommends approval of the final plat. 

The waterline extensions have been completed and the Public Works Director requests that the 
Town accept the waterlines constructed and installed as part of the Lillie Farm Cove into the 
Town’s water system and set the repair guarantee amount at $8,500. The Public Works Director 
and Town Attorney have been working with the property owner to get the legal documents 
finalized and ready for recording. The utility plat and documents are ready for signature pending 
Town Council approval.  

 

Action Requested: 

The following motion is recommended:   

I move that we approve the final plat for Lillie Farm Cove, accept the waterlines into the Town’s 
water system, set the waterline repair guarantee amount at $8,500, and allow staff to finalize 
the documents and see to their proper recording. 

 

207



N
:\J

O
BS

\1
70

91
 L

ill
ie

 F
ar

m
 C

ov
e\

D
W

G
\1

70
91

 L
ill

ie
 F

ar
m

 C
ov

e 
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n.
dw

g

S
IT

E

C
R

IT
T

E
R

 T
R

.

N. MAIN ST.

W
IL

D
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
IL

D
W

O
O

D
 P

A
R

K
 D

R
.

19
-2

3

N. BUNCOMBE SCHOOL RD

D
o

cV
er

if
y 

ID
: 

C
6B

D
48

E
7-

10
E

D
-4

21
4-

8C
E

B
-9

8F
7A

7D
E

D
9F

7
w

w
w

.d
oc

ve
rif

y.
co

m

C6BD48E7-10ED-4214-8CEB-98F7A7DED9F7 --- 2017/08/03 12:45:27 -7:00

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 1

19
8F

7A
7D

E
D

9F
7

C
9D

F
14

E
E

8B
22

S
ig

ne
d 

on
 2

01
7/

08
/0

3 
12

:4
9:

22
 P

S
T

Ro
be

rt 
C.

 B
ro

wnA
ug

us
t 0

3,
 2

01
7

A
ug

us
t 0

3,
 2

01
7

0B
08

F
8B

76
93

4

S
ig

ne
d 

on
 2

01
7/

08
/0

3 
13

:0
5:

51
 P

S
T

R.
 S

co
tt 

D
ed

m
an

 P
re

sid
en

te
xe

c. 
D

ire
ct

or

208



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments:  

August 21, 2017 

Engineering Report: Upgrade & Expansion for the Water Treatment Plant

Keith Webb, McGill Associates

Yes: Report

Description: 

Keith Webb, McGill Associates, P.A. will be present at the meeting to provide an overview and 
summary of the attached report.

Council Action Requested: 

No action required at this meeting.

209



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 16, 2017 
 
 
 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Town of Weaverville 
Post Office Box 338 

Weaverville, North Carolina 28787  
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

McGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A. 
55 Broad Street 

Asheville, North Carolina 28801 
(828) 252-0575(phone) 
(828) 252-2518 (fax) 

keith.webb@mcgillengineers.com 

  
 

Project No. 16.00369 
 
 

 
 

 
ENGINEERING REPORT 

UPGRADE AND EXPANSION  
FOR THE 

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  
BUNCOMBE COUNTY 

 
 
 
 

210



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SECTION 1 Executive Summary 
 
SECTION 2 Introduction 
 
SECTION 3 General Information 
 
SECTION 4 Planning and Demand Projections 
 
SECTION 5 Available Water Supply 
 
SECTION 6 Proposed Project 
 
APPENDIX USGS 7Q10 Estimate 
 
 Figures 
 
 
 
 
  

211



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 3 
 

1.0 Executive Summary 

The Town of Weaverville’s water treatment plant (WTP) and raw water intake on the Ivy 
River have a permitted design capacity of 1.5 million gallons per day (MGD). Treated 
potable water is pumped to the town’s distribution system which supplies a service 
population of approximately 6,500 customers with an average of 600,000 gallons per day 
of finished water.  
 
Recent interest from a number of multi-family residential developers and commercial 
development groups has resulted in the need for a reevaluation of previous demand 
projections to aid in planning for the potential expansion of the raw water intake and WTP. 
Previous demand projections presented in the Town’s 2016 Local Water Supply Plan 
(LWSP) did not take these additional demands into account. Since no treatment process is 
100% efficient, it should be noted that only approximately 90% of water withdrawn from 
the Ivy River is expected to be available as finished water to be distributed to customers. 
This effective water treatment plant capacity of 1.35 MGD is due to the need for treated 
process water for filter backwash, chemical feed addition carrier water and instrumentation. 
 
In addition to an infill growth projection in the existing service area, a likely area of 
expansion to the north and west of the existing service area has been identified, and its 
potential water demand has been estimated. Assuming gradual expansion into this service 
area, the water system could exceed 80% of its capacity by 2021, and 100% by 2027. 
Assuming no expansion of the service area, infill alone would cause the water system’s 
demands to exceed 80% of its capacity by 2021, and 100% of its capacity by 2038. 
 
Expansion of the town’s water supply is subject to approval by the North Carolina Division 
of Water Resources. The town’s water supply, the Ivy River, has an estimated 7Q10 stream 
flow at the raw water intake site of 8.70 MGD. Withdrawal of more than 20% of the 
published 7Q10 flow for water supply requires additional review and study to ensure the 
health of the aquatic habitat in the stream. An expansion of the raw water intake and WTP 
from 1.5 MGD to 3.0 MGD will increase the percentage of the 7Q10 flow for water supply 
to equal 34.5%. Preliminary discussions also requested a review of expansion of the WTP 
to a capacity of 4.50 MGD. The 4.50 MGD expansion would result in the removal of 52% 
of the 7Q10 flow in the Ivy River for water supply and it is unlikely that a request for 
expansion to 4.5 MGD  would be approved. 
 
The estimated cost to expand the water treatment plant and intake from 1.5 MGD to 3.0 
MGD and install additional water main to convey finished water to the distribution system 
is $7,553,000. A cost estimate for expansion to 4.5 MGD was not completed, since that 
expansion is unlikely to be approved. 
  

212



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 4 
 

2.0 Purpose & Need 

Study Purpose 

The Town of Weaverville owns and operates a water treatment plant (WTP) which 
provides potable water to the customers of the town. The water treatment plant was brought 
online in 1998 and has a design treatment capacity of 1.50 MGD (million gallons per day) 
and utilizes a convention water treatment configuration with raw water withdrawn from 
the Ivy River.  
 
The Ivy River has proven to be an excellent water source, but the capacity is somewhat 
limited during low flow and drought conditions. The Ivy River forms the boundary between 
Buncombe County and Madison County downstream of the I-26 bridge and has a drainage 
area at the water treatment plant raw water intake of 112 square miles (71,680 acres). As a 
part of the original water treatment plant construction the Ivy River watershed was 
protected by the North Carolina legislature under the provisions of Chapter 153A, Article 
6, Section 121 and Chapter 143, Article 21. The Ivy River is classified as a WS-II water 
supply by the Department of Environmental Quality, Division of Water Resources. 
 
Weaverville’s water distribution system consist of approximately 66 miles of water lines 
ranging in size from 20-inch to 2-inch. From the WTP located on Sams Road, in northern 
Buncombe County, a 20-inch water line extends along Old Mars Hill Highway to Clarks 
Chapel Road at North Buncombe High School. The distribution system then reduces to a 
10-inch line which extends to Hamburg Mountain Road and a 1.0 MG (million gallon) 
water storage tank. The distribution system extends southward along Old Asheville 
Highway (Merrimon Avenue) to an inter-connection with the City of Asheville water 
system at which point emergency water may be purchased. Additional system storage is 
provided at this area through the Dubose Hill tank.  
 
The water system extends westward from the I-26/US 25/70 interchange at Weaver 
Boulevard to the intersection of Monticello Road. Water service is also provided to much 
of the Reems Creek Valley with the distribution system extending along Reems Creek 
Road to Ox Creek Road with system storage in this area provided by the Ox Creek tank. 
The Ridge tank on Union Chapel Road provides an additional 1.0 MG of storage for fire 
protection and domestic system demands in the Reems Creek area. 
 

213



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 5 
 

 
Figure 2.0 – Existing Distribution System Map 

 
Over a period of the past two to three years there has been a renewed and increased interest 
for water service to serve proposed new multi-family and single family residential 
developments in the Weaverville area as a part of the improved economic conditions in 
Weaverville and Western North Carolina. To date the requests approved by Weaverville 

214



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 6 
 

for new water connections when added to the current water treatment plant usage result in 
a projected water demand that approaches 70% of the water treatment plant’s 1.50 MGD 
permitted design capacity, or 76% of the water treatment plant’s 1.35 MGD finished water 
production capacity.  
 
These recent requests for water service and their associated demands when combined with 
the current system demands equates to the  projected future growth demands for 
Weaverville for the year 2030 planning period. The town’s most recent LWSP filed with 
the Division of Water Resources included a projected water demand for the 2030 planning 
year of 1.123 MGD. This demand was projected to increase to 1.450 MGD by the 2060 
planning year. 

 
Rules Governing Public Water Supply in North Carolina recommend that water systems 
begin the planning process to address future water supply demands whenever the demand 
on the current system is at 80% of the permitted WTP capacity. Given the increased 
demands for water service the purpose of this report is to evaluate the projected potential 
increased water system demands should the Town of Weaverville water system be 
expanded beyond its current service area and with that expansion the increased water 
system demands. 

 
This Preliminary Engineering Report will also evaluate the available water supply 

capacity from the Ivy River and develop opinions of probable cost to expand the WTP. 
 
 

  
 

      

 

215



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 7 
 

3.0 General Information 

3.1 Project Location 

The Town of Weaverville is located in the northern portion of Buncombe County at the 
intersection of I-26 and US 25-70. This accessibility to major transportation systems makes 
the town an attractive location for continued growth. I-26 serves as the major transportation 
corridor to Mars Hill in adjoining Madison County and eastern Tennessee (Erwin, Johnson 
City and Kingsport) as well as the northern mountains of Western North Carolina and 
Yancey, Mitchell and Avery Counties. US 25-70 continues from Weaverville in a westerly 
direction to connect Marshall, the county seat of Madison County, then continuing to Hot 
Springs and into Eastern Tennessee at Newport and I-40. 
 
Weaverville continues to see increased growth as a result of its small town charm along 
with regional topography which makes residential development cost attractive. The town’s 
proximity to Asheville also contributes to the likelihood of increased growth. The 2010 
census indicated a population of 3,120 for the town. Updated estimates by the US Census 
Bureau indicate the current population to be 3,981, or a growth of more than 25% over a 6 
year span. This growth is expected to continue. Along with the growth there will be an 
increased demand of water to meet these growth demands.  
 
Figure 3.1 provides a general location map for Weaverville.  
 

216



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 8 
 

 
Figure 3.1 – Vicinity Map 

 
 
Weaverville’s WTP and the main source of water is located on the Ivy River off of Sams 
Road near the Madison County line. The WTP was completed in 1997 and has a design 
capacity of 1.50 MGD. The 2016 average daily withdrawal was approximately 600,000 
gpd, with seven-day peak demands averaging around 750,000 MGD. However, this use is 
a historical outlier, with the previous three years all exceeding 750,000 gpd on average 
days. 

217



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 9 
 

A raw water pump station with two vertical turbine pumps withdraws water from the Ivy 
River and conveys water to the plant for treatment. A coarse bar screen/rack is in place to 
protect the pumps and remove larger inorganic materials. 
 
The raw water is pumped to a pretreatment unit (Claricone) for the removal of the majority 
of the sediment in the raw water. The Claricone unit was constructed to comply with the 
Rules Governing Public Water Supplies that require water systems which utilize source 
waters that experience excessive changes in raw water turbidity or water quality to provide 
either off-stream raw water storage or mechanical pretreatment prior to treatment. Similar 
installations utilizing the Claricone unit as a mechanical pretreatment was presented to the 
Public Water Supply Section of the Division of Water Resources during the original design 
process and was approved. Operational experience of the Claricone has demonstrated its 
effectiveness in the pretreatment of the water. 
 
From the Claricone treated raw water flows to a flash mix unit for the addition of chemicals 
to enhance the sedimentation process, if required in addition to the chemicals added to the 
influent flow to the Claricone, and then to two flocculation basins where the coagulation 
process to remove sediment from the water continues with the chemical addition creating 
an environment where the lighter sediment particles combine to create a floc material 
which can be removed by gravity settling in the two sedimentation basins following.  
 
Final treatment is accomplished through two gravity mixed media filters which remove 
99.9% of the sediment and material in the water and produce an excellent finished water 
for the customers of the Weaverville system. After filtration the water is disinfected using 
chlorine and flows to the on-site clearwell for final storage prior to being pumped into the 
distribution system. 
 
Two high service vertical turbine pumps convey finished water from the clearwell through 
the 20-inch water line along Old Mars Hill Highway to the Hamburg Mountain water tank 
for system storage and distribution.  
 
It should be noted that the effective WTP capacity is less than the 1.50 MGD design 
capacity as a result of the amounts of finished water required for the operation of the WTP. 
Finished water is required for daily operation of the WTP including filter backwash, 
chemical feed addition carrier water and process sampling instrumentation water. This 
local usage reduces the effective water treatment plant production capacity to 1.35 MGD 
which is available for pumping to the distribution system and the customers.  
 
  

218



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 10 
 

4.0 PLANNING AND DEMAND PROJECTIONS 

The Weaverville water system currently provides service to those areas inside of the 
corporate limits and to a section along Reems Creek Road. Historically water service 
outside of the corporate limits has been limited. In order to project the impact on future 
demands of the water system associated with expansion of the system this report looked at 
two scenarios. Scenario #1 being the continued in-fill and development of the area within 
the current Weaverville corporate limits. Scenario #2 being the expansion of the water 
system to the west of Weaverville into the area bounded by Monticello Road on the east 
and the edge of the current service boundary and extending westward to New Stock Road. 
This area would be bound on the north by Lower Flat Creek Road at North Buncombe High 
School and North Buncombe Elementary School and extend south to the intersection of 
New Stock Road and Monticello Road. As shown in Figure 4.0 below, the expanded 
service area consists of approximately 1,596 developed parcels (3,500 acres), 130 
undeveloped or underdeveloped parcels (831 acres, shown in red), and 112 parcels (382 
acres) already served by the existing distribution system. 

219



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 11 
 

 
Figure 4.0 – Proposed Expanded Service Areas 

This area currently has a somewhat dense development of single family homes and there 
are a number of larger tracts of land which could potentially be developed. Historically 
homes in this area have been supplied potable water through the development of 
groundwater wells. Many of these wells have limited capacity and the presence of higher 
than acceptable concentrations of iron, manganese and sediment are often reported. While 
the water quality is acceptable these contaminants and the limited capacity can create 
concern for the homeowner. 

220



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 12 
 

 
This study also assumes continued infill of the undeveloped areas in Reems Creek Valley 
adjacent to the existing water lines. 
 
Demand is expected to grow within the existing service area by approximately 121% 
between 2017 and 2070 assuming the population within the service area continues to 
increase at the same rate previously documented by the 1997-2016 Local Water Supply 
Plans, and per capita water use remains constant at the 1997-2016 average. Demand 
projections for the expanded service area to the north and west of the existing service 
assume the NCDEQ standard of 400 gallons per day per acre for undeveloped areas and 
400 gallons per day per parcel for developed parcels.  
 
Demand for outstanding commitments has been allocated with the assumption that those 
commitments would be fulfilled within the next 4 years, with one additional development 
whose outcome is less certain being completed in the fifth year. The total flow owing to 
these outstanding commitments is almost 349,000 gallons per day. The 165 dwellings at 
the North View Mobile Home Park were also considered separately.  
 
In total, the potential water demand of the expansion area is estimated to be 0.892 MGD 
assuming full development of the area. This demand growth was applied linearly to the 
planning period from 2017-2070, but could more realistically be expected to be added to 
the system in blocks as water mains are expanded. Town staff have observed that seven-
day peak flows are approximately 25% higher than the average daily withdrawal. This 
peaking factor was applied to the existing service area’s demand projection but not to the 
expanded service area or allocated flows, whose demands are already assumed to include 
peak flow. 
 
The demand projections shown in this report are for salable water as shown historically in 
the town’s LWSPs as the sum of residential, commercial, industrial, and institutional 
demand. A reserve of approximately 10% of the plant’s withdrawal capacity, or 150,000 
gallons per day, for filter backwashing, cleaning, and other treatment system use should be 
considered unsalable water, reducing the system’s finished water production capacity from 
1.5 MGD to around 1.35 MGD. The WTP operation staff continues to make process 
equipment changes to make operation of the WTP as efficient as possible and to keep the 
unsalable water to a low level.  
 
Demand projections for the system are shown in Table 4.0.1 and include salable water, 
water for allocated flows already granted and for infill and growth of the system. 
 
Water systems must be able to meet not only average daily demands, but peak demands. 
Study of the historical usage of the Weaverville system indicates that peak demands range 
from 1.2 to 1.25 of the capacity. These peak day demands reflect the increased demand for 
water during the warmer, drier summer months and the demand for small amounts of lawn 
irrigation water and a general increase in consumption during these warmer months as well 
as peak weekend resulting from increased tourism demands. The water system must be 
able to supply these peak demands. For the purpose of this study a peaking factor of 1.25 
has been applied to the average daily demands and is reflected in the following demand 
tables. 

221



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 13 
 

 
With the new demand growth assumptions, projected demand for finished water can be 
expected to exceed 80% of the existing system’s 1.35 MGD effective capacity as soon as 
2021. Without expansion of the service area, projected demand could exceed 80% of 
capacity in the same year. The system would reach 100% of capacity by 2027, or 2038 
without expansion of the service area.  
 
Table 4.0.1 shows projected demands without expansion into the service areas identified 
in Figure 4.0, as well as the percentage of the 1.35 MGD design capacity of the treatment 
plant the total demand constitutes: 
  

222



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 14 
 

Table 4.0.1 
Demand Projection without Service Area Expansion 

 Projected Demand (MGD) Percent of Capacity 

Year 
Existing 

Service Area 
Allocated 

Flows 
Average 

Day 
Peak 
Day 

Average 
Day Peak Day 

2017 0.682 0.000 0.682 0.853 51% 63% 
2020 0.729 0.275 1.004 1.186 74% 88% 
2025 0.807 0.349 1.156 1.358 86% 101% 
2030 0.885 0.349 1.234 1.455 91% 108% 
2035 0.963 0.349 1.312 1.553 97% 115% 
2040 1.041 0.349 1.390 1.650 103% 122% 
2045 1.119 0.349 1.468 1.747 109% 129% 
2050 1.197 0.349 1.546 1.845 114% 137% 
2055 1.275 0.349 1.624 1.942 120% 144% 
2060 1.353 0.349 1.702 2.040 126% 151% 
2065 1.431 0.349 1.780 2.137 132% 158% 
2070 1.509 0.349 1.858 2.235 138% 166% 

 
Table 4.0.2 shows projected demand including expansion into the service areas identified 
in Figure 4.0: 
 

Table 4.0.2 
Demand Projection with Service Area Expansion 

 Projected Demand (MGD) 
Percent of 
Capacity 

Year 
Existing 

Service Area 
Allocated 

Flows 
Expanded 

Service Area 
Average 

Day 
Peak 
Day 

Average 
Day 

Peak 
Day 

2017 0.682 0.000 0.000 0.682 0.853 51% 63% 
2020 0.729 0.275 0.039 1.042 1.225 77% 91% 
2025 0.807 0.349 0.136 1.292 1.493 96% 111% 
2030 0.885 0.349 0.233 1.467 1.688 109% 125% 
2035 0.963 0.349 0.330 1.641 1.882 122% 139% 
2040 1.041 0.349 0.427 1.816 2.077 135% 154% 
2045 1.119 0.349 0.524 1.991 2.271 148% 168% 
2050 1.197 0.349 0.621 2.166 2.465 160% 183% 
2055 1.275 0.349 0.718 2.341 2.660 173% 197% 
2060 1.353 0.349 0.815 2.516 2.854 186% 211% 
2065 1.431 0.349 0.911 2.691 3.049 199% 226% 
2070 1.509 0.349 1.008 2.866 3.243 212% 240% 

 
 
  

223



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 15 
 

5.0 Available Water Supply 

The Town of Weaverville WTP utilizes the Ivy River as the source for raw water. The Ivy 
River is a WS-II protected water supply under the rules established by the North Carolina 
Department of Environmental Quality, Division of Water Resources. Drought conditions 
experienced during the period from 2000 to 2009 and again in the past couple of years has 
had the impact of reducing the average stream flows for many streams in Western North 
Carolina. New estimates of stream flow include both the impact of the drought conditions 
mentioned as well as an increased source of data from which to analyze stream flows. 
 
North Carolina Division of Water Resources is responsible for the review and approval of 
permits for the withdrawal of water from streams for all flows over 100,000 gpd. For water 
treatment facilities the amount available for withdrawal is typically based upon the 7Q10 
flow of the stream where 7Q10 flow is defined as that statistical low flow condition in the 
stream which occurs over  a seven (7) consecutive day period once every 10 years. Water 
treatment facilities are typically allowed to take up to 20% of the 7Q10 stream flow without 
the need for special studies. 
 
The United States Geological Service (USGS) was contacted to provide an updated 7Q10 
flow for the Ivy River at the Weaverville raw water intake. This area represents the 112 
square mile drainage area. USGS provided a revised 7Q10 flow estimate for the Ivy River 
at the Weaverville Raw Water Intake of 8.70 MGD. 
 
With the current WTP design/permitted capacity of 1.50 MGD this reflects removal of 
approximately 17% of the 7Q10 flow. 
 
One scenario included in the water plant study is the expansion of the plant to a capacity 
of 3.0 MGD. Under this scenario the plant would withdraw approximately 34.5% of the 
7Q10. To obtain approval for this amount of flow from the Ivy River will require the 
completion of an in-stream aquatic habitat study of the river in conjunction with the 
Division of Water Resources. Based upon other similar water systems permitted in North 
Carolina we believe that once the in-stream habitat study is completed that approval to 
withdraw up to 3.0 MGD can be obtained. However this approval will most likely require 
a minimum downstream flow requirement for the withdrawal. This would result in a 
requirement to implement an aggressive drought management plan in the event of future 
drought conditions to maintain this in-stream flow.  
 
For scenario #1 McGill Associates task included the development of an estimated cost for 
the expansion of the water plant. The estimated cost to expand the Ivy River Water 
Treatment Plant from a capacity of 1.50 MGD to 3.0 MGD is $7,553,000. A breakdown of 
this cost is provided below:  
  

224



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 16 
 

 
  
The second scenario of our study was to evaluate the cost to expand the water treatment 
plant to 4.50 MGD. This flow would represent the removal of 52% of the 7Q10 flow from 
the Ivy River. McGill Associates does not believe that approval for this amount of 
withdrawal will be permitted. Therefore we have not completed a cost estimate for this 
expansion.  
 
  

225



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 17 
 

6.0 Proposed Project 

Water Treatment Plant Expansion  

Due to the limited flow in the Ivy River the maximum expansion of the Ivy River Water 
Treatment Plant will be the doubling of the capacity to 3.0 MGD. At the design flow of 3.0 
MGD this will represent a withdrawal of 35% of the 7Q10 flow. The removal of this 
percentage of the 7Q10 flow will require special permission from the Division of Water 
Resources and will require a special in-stream flow study to determine if this amount of 
withdrawal will have any negative impact on the aquatic habitat of the stream.  
 
The Town of Weaverville should expect that along with the approval to withdraw 3.0 MGD 
from the Ivy River that there will be a requirement for a minimum in-stream flow 
downstream of the raw water intake. In future instances of low stream flows the town will 
be required to implement aggressive water conservation measures and to maintain a certain 
in-stream flow in the Ivy River. The exact amount of in-stream flow and the conservation 
measures will be determined as a part of the future aquatic habitat study and consultation 
with the Division of Water Resources. 
 
The upgrade of the WTP will consist of the construction of a plant layout on the north east 
side of the current control/filter building and will include: 
 

1. Upgrade of the raw water pump station to increase the pumping capacity by 
the addition of a third pump 

 
2. New Claricone pretreatment unit 
 
3. Two new flocculation basins, and two new sedimentation basins.  
 
4. Two new mixed media gravity filters with controls 
 
5. Construction of a second clearwell 
 

  

226



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 18 
 

 

The estimated cost for these improvements is shown in Table 7.1. 
 

Table 7.1 
IVY RIVER WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

EXPANSION FOR 1.50 MGD to 3.0 MGD 
ESTIMATE PROJECT COST 

Item # Description Unit Qty Unit Cost Total 
Amount 

1 Mobilization LS 1 $153,000 $153,000 

2 Filter Media, Underdrain, 
Troughs, Agitators LS 1 $270,000 $270,000 

3 Filter Valves and Actuators EA 10 $7,000 $70,000 
4 Raw Water Pumps EA 2 $150,000 $300,000 
5 Finished Water Pumps EA 2 $150,000 $300,000 
6 12" DIP Water Line LF 13,300 $100 $1,330,000 
7 Finished Water Pump Station LS 1 $250,000 $250,000 

8 Chemical Feed 
Modifications LS 1 $100,000 $100,000 

9 Flocculators LS 4 $20,000 $80,000 

10 Settling Basins, Flocculation 
Basins, and Filter Bays LS 1 $475,000 $475,000 

11 Backwash Sludge Basin LS 1 $275,000 $275,000 
12 0.250 MG Clearwell LS 1 $390,000 $390,000 

13 36'6" Diameter Claricone 
Clarifier LS 1 $850,000 $850,000 

14 Yard Piping LS 1 $100,000 $100,000 
15 Electrical Improvements LS 1 $300,000 $300,000 

Subtotal $5,243,000 
Contingency (20%) $1,050,000 

Total Construction Cost $6,293,000 
Technical Services (20%) $1,260,000 
Total Construction Cost $7,553,000 

 
 
  

227



Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion –Engineering Report for the Town of Weaverville Page 19 
 

Sewer Extension to Jupiter Road  

One potential future commercial growth area for Weaverville that already has available 
water service is the Jupiter Road/Barnardsville exit off of I-26. This is the site of the old 
Flat Creek Elementary School. In the past decade there has been considerable residential 
development in this area and the potential for commercial development exist. However the 
lack of sanitary sewer service to this area prevents most commercial development as there 
is inadequate room for an on-site wastewater treatment system. To provide sewer service  
to this area a sanitary sewer lift station be constructed near the intersection of Jupiter Road 
and Old Mars Hill Highway in order to collect flows from the nearby densely-populated 
area between Jupiter Road and McLean Road. The lift station would be connected to an 
existing Metropolitan Sewerage District manhole on North Buncombe School Road by 
approximately 13,450 linear feet of 4” ductile iron force main. The cost for this project, 
not including collection lines, is likely to be in excess of $2,000,000 depending on the route 
of the force main, location of the lift station, and subsurface conditions. 

228



 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 

Response from USGS Concerning Ivy River 
Intake Location 7Q10 Estimate  

229



From: Weaver, John [mailto:jcweaver@usgs.gov]  
Sent: Monday, March 27, 2017 11:55 AM 
To: Mike Dowd <Mike.Dowd@Mcgillengineers.Com> 
Cc: John C Weaver <jcweaver@usgs.gov> 
Subject: Response from USGS concerning...Re: 7Q10 Estimate 
 
Mr. Dowd, 
 
In response to your inquiry about the low-flow characteristics (7Q10) for Ivy River (Creek, as 
noted on topographical map) in the vicinity of Democrat in northern Buncombe County, the 
following information is provided: 
 
A check of the low-flow files here at the USGS South Atlantic Water Science Center (Raleigh 
office) indicates a previous low-flow determination on Ivy River near Mars Hills ( station id 
0345282105, drainage area 112 sqmi), located just downstream of U.S. Highways 19/23 
(Interstate 26), which is upstream from the point of interest.  Completed in March 1989, 
the 7Q10 was estimated at 13 cfs (equivalent to about 0.12 cfs per square mile drainage area), 
based on transfer of flow characteristics from two nearby upstream USGS partial-record sites in 
the Ivy River basin. 
 
No USGS discharge records are likewise known to exist for the point of interest. 
 
In the absence of site-specific discharge records sufficient for a low-flow analysis, estimates of 
low-flow characteristics at ungaged locations are determined by assessing a range in the low-
flow yields (expressed as flow per square mile drainage area, of cfsm) at nearby sites where such 
estimates have previously been determined. 
 
A basin delineation completed using the online USGS StreamStats application for North 
Carolina (http://water.usgs.gov/osw/streamstats/north_carolina.html) indicates the drainage area 
for the point of interest is 112 sqmi. 
 
For streams in Buncombe County, low-flow characteristics published by the USGS are provided 
in two reports: 
 
(1) The first is a statewide report completed in the early 1990's.  It is USGS Water-Supply 
Paper 2403, "Low-flow characteristics of streams in North Carolina" (Giese and Mason, 
1993).  An online version of the report is available 
at http://pubs.usgs.gov/wsp/2403/report.pdf.  The report provides the low-flow characteristics 
(based on data through 1988) via regional relations and at-site values for sites with drainage 
basins between 1 and 400 sqmi and not considered or known to be affected by regulation and/or 
diversions. 
 
(2) The second is a statewide report published in March 2015.  It is USGS Scientific 
Investigations Report 2015-5001, "Low-flow characteristics and flow-duration statistics for 
selected USGS continuous-record streamgaging stations in North Carolina through 2012" 
(Weaver, 2015).  The report is available online at http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2015/5001/.  The 

230



report provides updated low-flow characteristics and flow-duration statistics for 266 active (as of 
2012 water year) and discontinued streamgages across the state where a minimum of 10 climatic 
years discharge records were available for flow analyses. 
 
Inspection of both reports indicates the presence of 3 nearby selected USGS partial-record sites 
(2) and continuous-record streamgage (1) in general vicinity of the point of interest where low-
flow characteristics have previously been published.  Among these 3 sites, the 
annual 7Q10 yields range from about 0.09 to 0.13 cfsm (average approximately 0.11 cfsm). 
 
Applying the above annual 7Q10 yield range to the drainage area for the point of 
interest (112 sqmi) results in an estimated annual 7Q10 discharge from 10.1 to 14.6 cfs (average 
approximately 12.3 cfs). 
 
Please note the estimated flows are provided in units of cubic feet per second (cfs). 
 
Please understand the information provided in this message is based on a preliminary assessment 
and considered provisional, subject to revision pending further analyses. 
 
Hope this information is helpful. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Curtis Weaver 
 
J. Curtis Weaver, Hydrologist, PE                        Email: jcweaver@usgs.gov 
USGS South Atlantic Water Science Center        Online: http://nc.water.usgs.gov/ 
North Carolina - South Carolina - Georgia           
3916 Sunset Ridge Road 
Raleigh, NC  27607 
Phone: (919) 571-4043  //  Fax: (919) 571-4041 
 

231



 

 

 

Appendix 2 

 

 

 

Figures 

232



T
O

 
B

E

A
B

A
N

D
O

N
E

D

PLAN

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

UPGRADE AND EXPANSION

EXISTING SERVICE AREA  

I
:
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
2
0
1
6
\
1
6
.
0
0
3
6
9
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
W

a
t
e
r
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
L
a
r
g
e
 
P

a
r
c
e
l
s
_
r
e
c
o
v
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
8
/
9
/
2
0
1
7
 
1
1
:
5
6
 
A

M
 
M

I
C

H
A

E
L
 
W

H
I
T

T
E

N
B

U
R

G

FIGURE



    



IVY RIVER WTP

HAMBURG MTN TANK

RIDGE TANK HIGH BLUFF TANK

COURSEVIEW TANK

DUBOSE HILL TANK

ASHEVILLE WATER METER

OLD ELLER COVE TANK

OX CREEK TANK

IVY RIVER INTAKE

233



D

R

.

P

A

R

K

W

I

L

D

W

O

O

D

S

R

 
2

1

2

3

R

O

A

D

M
O

U
N

TAIN

H

A

M

B

U

R

G

P

A

R

K

C

I

R

C

L

E

F
A

I
R

W

A
Y

 
 
V

I
E

W

D

R

I

V

E

U

N

I

O

N

C
H

A
P

E
L

R
A

B
B

I
T

 
R

I
D

G
E

 
R

D

A
L
 
D

O
R

F
 
D

R
I
V

E

G
A

L
E

 
K

E
L
L
Y

 
C

O
U

R
T

P

E

R

R

I

O

N

 

A

V

E

.





I
:
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
2
0
1
6
\
1
6
.
0
0
3
6
9
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
W

a
t
e
r
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
S

e
r
v
i
c
e
 
A

r
e
a
s
.
d
w

g
 
8
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
7
 
9
:
1
1
 
A

M
 
M

I
C

H
A

E
L
 
W

H
I
T

T
E

N
B

U
R

G

FIGURE

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
:
 
_
_
_
_

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
.
:

D
A

T
E

:

C
A

D
D

 
B

Y
:

C
O

N
S

T
.
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
:
 
_
_
_
_

F
I
L
E

 
N

A
M

E
:

B
U

N
C

O
M

B
E

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A

W
A

T
E

R
 
T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 
P

L
A

N
T

T
O

W
N

 
O

F
 
W

E
A

V
E

R
V

I
L

L
E

E
X

P
A

N
D

E
D

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
A

R
E

A
S

M
J
W

2

1
6
.
0
0
3
6
9

J
U

L
Y

 
2
0
1
7

M
J
W

2

U
P

G
R

A
D

E
 
A

N
D

 
E

X
P

A
N

S
I
O

N

S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
A

r
e
a
s
.
d
w

g

PLAN





   



UNDEVELOPED OR UNDERDEVELOPED

PARCELS

DEVELOPED OR SERVED PARCELS

234



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 21, 2017  

SUBJECT: Board Appointments  

PRESENTER:   Mayor Sherrill 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Planning and Zoning Board Roster 
Proposed Zoning Board of Adjustment Roster 

 Proposed Alcoholic Beverage Control Board Roster 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

September is the month that several boards have term expirations. The Mayor recommends that 
the following board members, who have all agreed to continue to serve, be reappointed for another 
term: 

 Zoning Board of Adjustment – Roger Parkin and Tycer Lewis (3-year terms) 
 Planning and Zoning Board – Doug Theroux and Peter Stanz (2-year terms) 
 ABC Board – Rob Chason (3-year term) 
 
There is an open alternate seat on the Planning and Zoning Board and the Mayor recommends that 
applicant Steve Warren be appointed for a 3-year term.  
 
The Town Attorney notes that the Code Amendments related to the incorporation of a table of uses 
does away with all special use permits, which, if adopted, will impact the number and intensity of 
the matters coming before the Zoning Board of Adjustment.  There are two alternate seats on the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment that have not been filled. The Mayor and staff are continuing to look for 
volunteers to serve on the Zoning Board of Adjustment and members of Council are encouraged to 
nominate any qualified and willing candidates. 
 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Mayor recommends a motion to reappoint Roger Parkin, Tycer Lewis, and Rob Chason to their 
respective boards for 3-year terms and Doug Theroux and Peter Stanz to the Planning and Zoning 
Board for 2-year terms, and to appoint Steve Warren as an alternate member to the Planning and 
Zoning Board for a 2-year term.   

235



Proposed on August 21, 2017 

WEAVERVILLE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
Regularly meets 1st Tuesday of the month at 5:45 pm 
in Council Chambers at Town Hall  
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

TERM            
(2 YEARS) 

Doug Theroux 
Chairman 

73 Hillcrest Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-9477; (cell) 231-3568 
dbtheroux93@gmail.com 
 

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2019 

Gary Burge 
Vice Chairman 

3 High Bluff Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 423-0150 
garyburge@garyburge.com 
 

September 
2016 

September 
2016 – 2018 

Catherine Cordell 
Regular Member 

13 Hamburg Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 776-7380 
cat.cordell@live.com  
 

September 
2016 

September 
2016 – 2018 

Leslie Osborne 
Regular Member 

9 Reeves Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 712-3507 
lesliesellshomes@charter.net  
 

September 
2016 

September 
2016 – 2018 

Peter Stanz 
Regular Member 

49 Brown Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 828-768-4202 
stanzbus@gmail.com 
 

August 2017 September 
2016 – 2019 

Steve Warren 
Alternate Member 

3 Duncannon Street 
Weaverville, NC 287887 
704-682-5801/704-807-9899 
warren.smw.steve@gmail.com 
 

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2019 

John Chase 
Alternate Member 

151 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 828-337-3366 
jchase@medlockengr.com 
 

February 2017 Feb 2017 – 
Sept 2018 

 

James Eller 
Town Planner 

484-7002 
jeller@weavervillenc.org  
 

  

Jennifer Jackson 
Town Attorney 

 

828-442-1858 
jjackson@weavervillenc.org  

  

  

236

mailto:dbtheroux93@gmail.com
mailto:garyburge@garyburge.com
mailto:cat.cordell@live.com
mailto:lesliesellshomes@charter.net
mailto:stanzbus@gmail.com
mailto:warren.smw.steve@gmail.com
mailto:jchase@medlockengr.com
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


Proposed – August 21, 2017 
 

WEAVERVILLE 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Regularly meets 2nd Monday of the month at 7:00 pm 
 in Town Hall Council Chambers 
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT  

TERM            
(3 YEARS) 

Jeff McKenna 
Chairman 

30 Yost Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
484-9202; (cell) 231-8811 
jeffmckenna3@gmail.com 

August 2016 September    
2016 – 2018 

John “Tycer” Lewis 
Vice-Chairman 

14 South College Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 279-4290 
tycerrenovations@gmail.com  

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2020 

Paul Clauhs 
Regular Member 

P.O. Box 483 
74 Hamburg Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
768-6679 

August 2016 September 
2016 – 2019 

Cynthia Wright 
Regular Member 

88 Hillcrest Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-1579; (cell)703-862-8428 
wright.cindy2011@gmail.com  

August 2016 September 
2016 – 2018 

Roger Parkin 
Regular Member 
 
 

57 Church Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
828-337-2868 
rdplimey@gmail.com  

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2020 

Alternate Member 
 
 

  September  
2017 – 2020 

Alternate Member 
 
 

   September 
2016 – 2019  

 
James Eller 
Zoning 
Administrator 

484-7002 
jeller@weavervillenc.org  

  

Jennifer Jackson 
Town Attorney 

484-7003; 828-442-1858 
jjackson@weavervillenc.org  
 

  

 
 

237

mailto:jeffmckenna3@gmail.com
mailto:tycerrenovations@gmail.com
mailto:wright.cindy2011@gmail.com
mailto:rdplimey@gmail.com
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


Proposed – August 21, 2017 

WEAVERVILLE 
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL (ABC) BOARD 

Quarterly – 10 am on First Wednesday in March, June, September and December 
in Small Conference Room at Town Hall; and as needed 
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT  

TERM            
(3 YEARS) 

Robert Chason 
Chairman 

1 South College Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
645-4191; (cell) 277-8510 
homebrew7@charter.net 
 

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2020 

Roney Hilliard 
 

85 Alexander Road 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
645-0522; (w) 776-2278  
roneyhilliard@gmail.com 
 

August 2015 September 
2015 – 2018 

Warren Alcorn 
 

22 Perrion Avenue 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-3510; 713-7634 
alcornwd@msn.com  
 

August 2016 September 
2016 –  2019 

 
James Eller 
Town Staff 

484-7002 
jeller@weavervillenc.org  
 

  

 

238

mailto:homebrew7@charter.net
mailto:roneyhilliard@gmail.com
mailto:alcornwd@msn.com
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  August 21, 2017  

Subject:   Update on Lake Louise Community Center  

Presenter:   Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:   None 

 

Description: 

Town Council appointed an ad hoc committee to study the utilization of the Lake Louise Community 
Center during the FY 2017-2018 budget deliberations. Vice-Mayor Penley and Councilman Nagle 
were appointed as Council representatives on this committee and wish to update Town Council on 
the committee’s direction. 
 
The Town Manager will have additional information to provide to Council and will possibly be 
asking that Town Council take action on this agenda item, based on Council discussion. 
 

 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

Action requested to be determined based on Council discussion. 

 

 

239



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  AUGUST 21, 2017  

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION REGARDING ELLER COVE WATERSHED PROCEEDS 
  
PRESENTER:   TOWN MANAGER 

ATTACHMENTS:  NONE 
 

DESCRIPTION: 

Councilman Nagle has asked that this matter be placed on Town Council's agenda so that 
Council can discuss and potentially take action on assigning a purpose to the $550,000 that the 
Town received as proceeds from the transfer of the Eller Cove Watershed Conservation 
Easement. 

 

 

240


	Aug-21-17 Agenda
	August-21-2017-Town Council Meeting Agenda Packet.pdf
	June 27, 2017-Town Council & PZB Workshop 1 - with jj revisions.pdf
	July 17, 2017-Town Council Minutes - with jj revisions.pdf
	July 25, 2017 - Community Input & Town Council Workshop I - with jj revisions.pdf
	Public Hearing on Voluntary Annexation and R-2 Zoning - Shakamar.pdf
	Ordinance Amending Zoning Map - Initial Zoning - Shakamar.pdf
	ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING INITIAL ZONING DESIGNATION OF R-2
	FOR NEWLY ANNEXED PROPERTY ON REEMS CREEK ROAD


	Public Hearing on Code Amendments related to Table of Uses.pdf
	Agenda Coverpage
	Proposed Ordinance
	Exhibit A - Code Amendments
	Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation
	Table of Cumulative Recommended Changes and Public Comments

	Tax Collector Settlement and Charge - FY 2017-2018.pdf
	LGRS Audit Contract.pdf
	Budget Amendment - Re-Appropriation for Water Study Fee.pdf
	Final Plat Approval and Waterline Acceptance for Lillie Farm Cove.pdf
	McGill Engineering Report on Water Plant Expansion.pdf
	McGill Water Report Cover Sheet.pdf
	ADP9F07.tmp
	1.0 Executive Summary
	2.0 Purpose & Need
	Study Purpose

	3.0 General Information
	3.1 Project Location

	4.0 PLANNING AND DEMAND PROJECTIONS
	5.0 Available Water Supply
	6.0 Proposed Project
	Water Treatment Plant Expansion
	Sewer Extension to Jupiter Road



	Board Appointments.pdf

	Ad hoc committee Lake Louise Council Update 8-21-17
	Discussion of Eller Cove Watershed Proceeds



